
 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
Mayor/Commissioner – Ed Wolf – Seat 1 

Pamala Harrison-Bivins – Seat 2 

Don C. Clark – Seat 4 

Robby Strickland – Seat 3  

Julian Green – Seat 5 

Bill Ed Cannon – City Manager 
 

January 14, 2013 
7:00 PM 

 

PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND PAGERS 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk’s Department, ADA 

Coordinator, at 352-330-1330, Ext. 102, forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. 

F.S.S. 286.0105A - If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, 
they will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 

made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   
The City of Wildwood DOES NOT provide this verbatim record. 

City Hall Commission Chamber - 100 N. Main Street, Wildwood, FL 34785 

 

AGENDA 
 

 THE MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER BY THE MAYOR 
 INVOCATION 

 FLAG SALUTE 
 

 OATH OF OFFICE to COMMISSIONERS JULIAN GREEN and ROBBY STRICKLAND by JUDGE THOMAS SKIDMORE  
 

 SELECTION OF MAYOR PRO-TEM 
 

 PRESENTATION: of Key to the City/Plaque to Commissioner Ronald B. Allen for 20 years of service 
(Attachment) 

 

 (IMMEDIATELY) ADJOURN AS CITY COMMISSION – MOTION TO APPOINT CITY COMMISSION TO SERVE AS 
THE CITY’S LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY (LPA) FOR THE PURPOSE OF ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

 

A. Case CP 1211-01: The applicant seeks approval and a favorable recommendation from the Land Planning 
Agency for a Text Amendment to Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan.  Policy 1.7.3 is specific to The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact 
(DRI).  LPA to review and make a recommendation to the City Commission (Attachments – Staff suggests 
approval and a favorable recommendation of Ordinance No. O2013-02 to be forwarded to the City 
Commission for further action) 
 

RECONVENE AS CITY COMMISSION AND CONTINUE WITH REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COMMISSION MEETING: 
 

1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance O2012-26: An Ordinance proposing a 
small scale land use map amendment, Sumter Retirement Residence, Oxford Cottages Retirement, 
Portion of Parcel #D08=005, Lot 5 (3.02± acres). Case was heard by Local Planning Agency 12-04-12 
who recommended approval of the ordinance. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 



P a g e  | 2 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
January 14, 2013 

 
b. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance O2012-27: An Ordinance proposing a 

zoning map amendment, Sumter Retirement Residence, Oxford Cottages Retirement, Portion of Parcel 
#D08=005, Lot 5 (3.02± acres). Case RZ 1210-01 was considered by the P&Z Board/Special Magistrate 
12-04-12 who recommended approval of the ordinance. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval 
subject to approval of Ordinance O2012-26) 

c. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance O2012-28: An Ordinance proposing a 
small scale land use map amendment, Sumter Retirement Residence, Oxford Assisted Living Facility 
and Memory Care, Portion of Parcel #D08=005, Lot 4 (4.15± acres). Case was heard before the Local 
Planning Agency 12-04-12 who recommended approval of the ordinance. (Attachments)  

d. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance O2012-29: An Ordinance proposing a 
zoning map amendment, Sumter Retirement Residence, Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory 
Care, Portion of Parcel #D08=005, Lot 4 (4.15± acres). Case was heard before the P&Z Board/Special 
Magistrate 12-04-12 who recommended approval of the ordinance. (Attachments) 

e. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 1
st

 Reading on the transmittal of Ordinance O2013-01 to the Reviewing 
Agencies for review; and 1

st
 Reading of Ordinance O2013-01 an ordinance adopting the 10-Year Water 

Supply Facilities Work Plan and the recommended text amendments to the Public Facilities, 
Conservation, Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital Improvement Elements of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval of the Transmittal) 

f. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 1
st

 Reading on the transmittal of Ordinance O2013-02 to the state 
Reviewing Agencies for review; and 1

st
 Reading of Ordinance O2013-02, a Text Amendment to Policy 

1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the adopted Comprehensive Plan which is specific to The 
Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact (DRI). (Attachments – Staff Recommends 
Approval of the Transmittal) 

 
  
 
 

 
 
 

2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
 

a. City Manager 
1.  

b. City Attorney 
1.  

c. City Clerk 
1.  

d. Commission Members 
1.  

e. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 
1.  

f. Notes and Reports 
1. FYI – Results of Roadway Improvements through the City’s CDBG Grant – Before & After Photos 

of Street Repaving (Attachments – No Action Required; Informational Only) 
2. FYI – Development Services’ new “Information for Citizens and Businesses” Brochure 

(Attachments – No Action Required; Informational Only) 
3. Proclamation Request from Patrick V. Kennedy, President of the Ancient Order of Hibernians in 

America to declare the month of March 2013 as Irish American Heritage Month in the City of 
Wildwood (Attachments – Board Option) 

4. FYI – Letter from Chief Reeser regarding the City and CSX addressing the speed of approaching 
trains to the public (Attachment) 

* Quasi Judicial Hearing 

 



P a g e  | 3 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
January 14, 2013 

 
 
3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 
 

a. MINUTES 
 

1. Minutes of Special Called Workshop Meeting held on December 3, 2012 (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

2. Minutes of Regular Meeting held on December 10, 2012 (Attachments – Staff Recommends 
Approval) 

 
b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 
 

1. Ordinance No. O2013-03 Amending Section 6.4(E) of the Land Development Regulations to 
eliminate the 12-inch minimum pipe size requirement for storm sewers located in grassed areas 
not subject to vehicular traffic (Attachments) 

2. Ordinance No. O2013-04: An Ordinance modifying the Five-Year Capital Improvement Schedule 
of the Capital Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan in the City of Wildwood. (First 
reading)  
a. Approval requested for transmittal of Ordinance O2013-04 to the Department of Community 

Affairs for compliance determination in accordance with Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 

c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 

1.     a.  Request approval for forfeiture of currency seized as evidence to the Wildwood Police  
Department by deposit into the Law Enforcement Trust Fund under Section 705.105, Florida 
Statutes and other certain property be declared surplus (Attachments – Staff Recommends 
Approval) 

b. Request from Chief Reeser to amend the LETF (Law Enforcement Trust Fund) to add 
unanticipated revenue in the amount of $11,903.00 (Attachment – Staff Recommends 
Approval) 

c.  Request approval of Resolution No. R2013-01 declaring certain property seized as evidence as 
surplus and determining the manner of disposal (Attachment - Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
d. APPOINTMENTS  

 
1. Request from Sumter County Administrator Bradley Arnold to appoint a Wildwood elected 

official to serve the next four year term on the Sumter County Tourist Development Council to fill 
the expired seat of Commissioner Strickland  (Attachments – Board Option) 

 

e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
  

1. Request Approval to execute a Developer’s Agreement Between the City of Wildwood, Florida 
and the Word Family, LLC for the provision of utilities and other municipal services from the City 
for development of the Word property (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
f. FINANCIAL 
 

1. Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

2. Recommendation to accept construction of the CR 462 Phase I Utility Extension and approval of 
final pay request to Rainey Construction Co. Invoice No. 2-3708 in the amount of $18,081.89 
(Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval) 

3. Request for approval to purchase a pump impeller from Barney’s Pumps in the amount of 



P a g e  | 4 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
January 14, 2013 

$1,900.00 and purchase a new 60 HP motor from TAW Orlando Services Center, Inc. in the 
amount of $3,211.62 for a total cost of $5,111.62 to repair the reclaimed water pump on the 
Lake Miona property. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval)  

4. Request for approval to repair the failed Wastewater Treatment Plant Digester Blower No. 4 at a 
cost of $2,450.00 (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval)  

5. Request by Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk for approval of financing for 6 (six) Dodge Police vehicles 
(previously approved) by awarding the bid to the apparent low bidder, BB&T Bank at the rate of 
1.45% with annual payments of $49,381.86 for a term of 5-years (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

6. Request by Chief Reeser for approval to purchase and have installed an automatic gate system at 
the south entrance to the Police Department for security from Campbell’s Gate Service in the 
amount of $7,119.45 utilizing Impact Fees to pay for it (Attachments – Staff Recommends 
Approval) 

7. Request by Chief Reeser for approval to purchase a new server to handle the capacity of  the in-
car video system installed in patrol vehicles, from L3 Mobile-Vision, Inc., a sole-source provider 
(R2011-16) in the amount of $15,749 utilizing Impact Fees for the purchase (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

8. Request for approval to upgrade technical services throughout City Hall, Water/Wastewater, 
Public Works/Fleet Services, Annex and the Wildwood Community Center with high speed 
Internet Access, enhanced e-mail, Wi Fi, Hot Spots, Backups and Internet Phone (Bundled 
Services).  Lowest quote provided by and staff would recommend Bright House Networks.  
(Attachments – Board Option) 

 

B. ADJOURN AS CITY COMMISSION – RECONVENE AS MEMBERS OF THE CRA (Community Redevelopment 
Agency)  FOR THE PURPOSE OF ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Request for the CRA to make a recommendation to the City Commission to authorize the use of 
CRA funding for a survey within the City’s CRA district along the CSX right-of-way extending from 
the north boundary of parcel G06=069 (SNJ Discount Beverages) to the south boundary of parcel 
G06C001 (Seaboard Systems RR), enabling the City to enter into a long-term lease with CSX for 
that portion of property.  (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 

RECONVENE AS CITY COMMISSION AND CONTINUE WITH REGULARLY SCHEDULED CITY COMMISSION MEETING: 
9. Request Commission approval of a $4,800 expenditure for a survey along the CSX right of way 

enabling the City to enter into a long-term lease with CSX for that portion of property to ensure 
businesses on the west side of US 301 in the downtown area maintain adequate access to their 
facilities and for public parking. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval)  

 

g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

1. Request for approval to send the attached letter to the Department of Economic Opportunity – 
Division of Community Development regarding the Evaluation and Appraisal of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

2. Request from CSX to schedule a date for a Commission Workshop Meeting in January to include 
City department heads and County Fire and Ambulance Services affected by the planned changes 
to CSX rail operations so necessary officials are fully informed and so that a public meeting can 
be held in February (Attachments – Board Option) 

3. Request for Site Plan approval (SP 1211-02) to construct a three-story 54,128 sq. ft. (162,384 
GFA) building for a 103 suite Assisted Living and Memory Care facility; subject to approval, 
exemption or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction; and subject to 
approval of the land use change (case CP 1210-02, O2012-28) and rezoning (case RZ 1210-02, 
O2012-29) ordinances heard earlier in meeting (A portion of parcel D08=005, Lot 4 of the Oxford 
Greens Plat) (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

   
4. ADJOURN 

 



P a g e  | 5 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
January 14, 2013 

IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 
a. January 14, 2013 – (Tuesday) – Wildwood Business Council Meeting – 6:00 PM – Wildwood 

Community Center – President’s Hall (Upstairs) 
b. January 21, 2013 (Monday) – City Offices CLOSED for Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday (Except 

Police Dept.) 
c. January 28, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission 

Chamber 
d. February 5, 2013 – (Tuesday)  - Parks & Recreation Board Meeting – 6:00 PM – City Hall – 

Conference Room 124 
e. February 11, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission 

Chamber 
f. February 12, 2013 – (Tuesday) – Wildwood Area Historical Board Meeting – 6:00 PM – City Hall - 

Conference Room 124 
g. February 12, 2013 – (Tuesday) – Wildwood Area Historical Association Meeting – 6:30 PM – City 

Hall - Conference Room 124 
h. February 25, 2013 – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission 

Chamber 
i. February 19, 2013 – (Tuesday) – Wildwood Business Council Meeting – 6:00 PM – Wildwood 

Community Center – President’s Hall (Upstairs) 
 

 
 



plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 
Acting as the Local Planning Agency 

 
Case No:    CP 1211-01 
 
Parcel Number(s):  G08=096, G08=200, G08=200A, G16=007, G09=096, G08=060, 

G08=020, G04=054, G04=055  
 
Property Location:  Powell Road/SR 44/CR 44A and Powell Road/CR 466A  
 
Owner/Developer:  The Villages of Lake-Sumter, Inc. 
 
Applicant:   Darrin F. Taylor, Carlton Fields PA 
 
The applicant seeks approval and a favorable recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency for a Text Amendment to Policy 
1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the adopted Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Policy 1.7.3 is specific to The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact (DRI). The 
DRI consists of 396 acres that is divided into two areas: 

 Area 1: 339 acres known as the Brownwood Town Center  
 Area 2: 54 acres known as Pinellas Plaza Village Center 

 
The applicant’s request is to amend Policy 1.7.3 to: 

 Remove the cap of a maximum of 66 residential dwelling units. 
 Increase the maximum residential acreage from 15% to 40%. 
 Add clarifying language so that it is clear that the percentage distribution ranges from 

the minimum percentage to the maximum percentage. 
 
Staff believes the proposed amendment should be granted based on the following criteria found 
in Section 1.7(D) of the Land Development Regulations:  

(1) Justification of the proposed amendment has been adequately presented; 
In 2008, the Department of Community Affairs (DCA) and the City of Wildwood were 
in disputed over the amount of residential units “needed” in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. At that time, the DCA mandated a cap of 66 units in The 
Villages of Wildwood DRI. Since that time, F.S. 163.3177 has been amended to 
remove the mandated “need” requirement. As such, there is no reason to retain the 
residential unit cap. 

(2) The proposed amendment is not inconsistent with the goals, objectives and policies of 
the comprehensive plan; 

The proposed amendment is consistent with goals, objectives and policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Specifically, the proposed text amendment is consistent with 
the intent of the Comprehensive Plan in promoting high-quality, mixed use 
developments. This amendment will allow the developer to construct higher density 
housing adjacent to the Brownwood Town Center. The Town Center, with residential 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 1 of 18

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



(3) T
energ

T
a

(4) T
syste

T
sy
re

(5) T
schoo

 
Therefore
#02013
 
The Plan
duty to m
pursuant
 
This offic
NOTICES
property 
Board at
meeting 
Decembe
 
DATED:  

  
 

 

and reta
environme

The propose
gy inefficient

The proposed
nd exemplifi

The proposed
ems;  
The propose
ystems. The
esidential un

The proposed
ols or other 

The text 
addressed
through t
Order. Th
uses as sp

e, Staff sug
3-02 (attach

nning and Zo
make recomm
t to the Sect

ce has duly 
S in the City

owners adj
t City Hall a
was publish

er 28, 2012. 

 Decem

 

il in close 
ent for pede
ed amendm
t land use pa
d amendme
ies an efficie
d amendme

d amendme
e boundary 
nits will be b
d amendmen
public facilit
amendment
d through t
the land us

hus, any incr
pecified in th

ggests app
hed), to be fo

oning Board
mendations 
ion 1.7(D) o

noticed this
y of Wildwo
joining the 

and on the 
hed in a ne

mber 28, 201

  

proximity,
estrians.     
ent should 
attern; 
ent is locate
ent use of la
nt will not h

ent will not 
of where t

uilt in an are
nt will not ad
ies without p
t will not gra
the DRI pr
se conversio
rease in resid
he Developm

proval and
orwarded to

d/Special Ma
to the City C

of the Land D

s meeting a
ood. Notice 
property in
bulletin boa

ewspaper of

12 

______
Jason M
Develop

will provide
 
not be con

ed in an are
nd and reso
have an adv

have adve
the develop
ea already p
dversely affe
providing re
ant addition
ocess. Resi
on matrix c
dential units

ment Order. 

d a favora
the City Co

gistrate acti
Commission 
Development

s prescribed
of Hearing 
 question. 

ard at the W
f general cir

 

___________
McHugh 
pment Servi

e a safe, 

nsidered urb

ea planned 
ources.  
verse effect 

erse effect o
ment may 

planned and 
ect transport
medies to co

nal entitleme
dential unit

contained w
s must be of
 

ble recom
mmission fo

ing as the L
on all comp

t Regulation

d by City of 
has been s
Notice has 
Wildwood Po
rculation (D

 

__________

ces Coordina

comfortable

ban sprawl 

for urban-ty

on environm

of environm
occur is no
approved fo
tation, potab
orrect the sy
ents.  All im
ts can only

within the D
ffset with a d

mendation
or further act

Local Plannin
prehensive p
ns. 

f Wildwood C
sent via Cer
been poste
ost Office.  

Daily Comme

 

________ 

ator/ City Pl

e, and attra

or exemplif

ype develop

mentally sen

mentally sen
ot changing.
or developme
ble water, se
ystem or fac

mpacts have 
y be constru
DRI Develop
decrease in 

n of Ordin
tion. 

ng Agency h
plan amendm

Code for PU
rtified Mail t
ed on the N

A notice of
ercial) on Fr

anner 

active 

fy an 

pment 

nsitive 

nsitive 
. Any 
ent. 
ewer, 
cility. 
been 
ucted 

pment 
other 

ance 

has a 
ments 

UBLIC 
to all 

Notice 
f this 
riday, 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 2 of 18



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
1 of 6 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR TEXT AMENDMENTS TO 
POLICY 1.7.3 OF THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF 
THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
PERTAINING TO THE VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD 
DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT; IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT 
OF 2011; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS,  The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact, herein 
referred to as “The Villages,” is a mixed-use development located within the municipal 
limits of the City of Wildwood, Florida; 

 
WHEREAS, The Villages is governed by The Villages of Wildwood Development 

of Regional Impact Development Order and Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Villages wish to amend Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 

Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan pertains solely to The Villages. The lands contained within The Villages subject to 
Policy 1.7.3 are legally described as follows:  

 
VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD  

DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT 
 

SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA: 
 
THE LAND LYING IN SECTION 4, TOWNHSIP 19, SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID 
SECTION 4, RUN S00°22’17”W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID SECTION 4 A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 3 of 18



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
2 of 6 

SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY OF WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 466A AND THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°30’00”E, 
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY A DISTANCE OF 2208.01 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID RIGHT OF WAY, S00°29’59”W, 294.99 FEET; THENCE 
S11°45’51”W, 115.75; THENCE S03°11’42”E, 88.78 FEET; THENCE 
S20°58’27”E, 62.51 FEET; THENCE S26°51’45”E, 59.88; THENCE S39°43’42”E, 
51.33 FEET; THENCE S72°01’33”W, 298.77 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC 
OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 3,572.15 FEET 
AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S21°25’12”E, 351.44 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05°38’21”, A DISTANCE OF 351.58 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 122°10’41”, A DISTANCE OF 85.30 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY AND HAVING  A RADIUS OF 171.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 98°54’59”, A DISTANCE OF 295.22 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 249.33 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 170.00 FEET AND A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N26°31’56”W, 303.33 FEET TO WHICH A 
RADIAL LINE BEARS S53°23’12”E; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 126°17’27”, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 374.71 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE 
N89°40’39”W, 166.79 FEET; THENCE S00°19’21”W, 269.89 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 521.40 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 789.00 FEET OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE N00°22’17”E, 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 15.00 FEET OF THE WEST 789.00 FEET OF 
SAID NORTH ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST 
LINE N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 298.30 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF WEST 490.70 FEET OF SAID NORTH ½ 
OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE 
N00°22’17”E, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 466.70 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 481.70 FEET OF SAID NORTH 
½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO A 
POINT ON SAID WEST LINE THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID NORTH LINE N00°22’17”E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 4 of 18



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
3 of 6 

794.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; LESS:  THE RIGHT OF WAY OF 
COUNTY ROAD 139; AND 
 
SECTIONS 8,  9, 16 AND 17, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEING PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 8, 9, 16 AND 17, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF CSX RAILWAY AND LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE 
NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 44, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF "KERL & MILLER SUBDIVISION 
1ST ADDITION", ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN 
PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 55, SUMTER COUNTY RECORDS, FLORIDA; THENCE 
N65°13'12"W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE THEREOF AND ALONG 
THE NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF FOR A DISTANCE OF 
874.89 FEET; THENCE S22°30'28"W 716.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF AFORESAID SECTION 8; THENCE 
N89°28'01"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE FOR A DISTANCE OF 611.48 FEET; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, S00°25'18"E, 471.13 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 44; 
THENCE THE FOLLOWING 22 COURSES ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE: S70°31'17"E, 296.92 FEET; THENCE S71°43'13"E, 
300.33 FEET; THENCE S70°31'17"E, 350.12 FEET; THENCE S69°02'54"E, 
2190.00 FEET; THENCE N20°57'06"E, 293.00 FEET; THENCE S69°02'54"E, 
312.68 FEET; THENCE S00°40'13"W, 307.04 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 
390.88 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 
1,118.84 FEET; THENCE S69°02'53"E, 943.81 FEET; THENCE N18°38'47"E, 
10.01 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 337.76 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 
FEET; THENCE S69°02'58"E, 131.89 FEET; THENCE S69°02'49"E, 68.11 
FEET; THENCE S68°11'21"E, 200.02 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 
FEET; THENCE S65°58'19"E, 400.58 FEET; THENCE S64°37'01"E, 200.60 
FEET; THENCE S65°48'19"E, 300.48 FEET; THENCE S67°34'23"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 271.85 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE WESTERLY 
LINE OF OAK PARK, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED 
IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 32, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING AFORESAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NO. 44, RUN N00°37'16"E, ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID OAK PARK A DISTANCE OF 606.23 FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID "OAK PARK"; THENCE S89°43'00"E ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE 401.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE LANDS 
DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 947, PAGE 7, RECORDED IN THE 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 5 of 18



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
4 of 6 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N00°33'26"E 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE 394.18 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1419, PAGE 616, 
RECORDED IN PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE N60°44'37"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 834.76 FEET TO THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 
1419, PAGE 616; THENCE N00°35'51"E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 536.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1419, PAGE 616 AND THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 16; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°30'39"E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINES 
THEREOF A DISTANCE OF 56.08 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID 
NORTH LINES AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE CSX RAILWAY; 
(THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES ARE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY 
OF THE CSX RAILWAY); THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINES 
N51°31'53"W, 1,333.10 FEET; THENCE S00°29'25"W, 12.69 FEET; THENCE 
N51°31'53"W, 30.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE SOUTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,928.30 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH 
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°40'39", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 460.32 FEET; 
THENCE N65°12'32"W, 2,448.41 FEET; THENCE N00°24'18"E, 10.98 FEET; 
THENCE N65°12'32"W, 1,418.92 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF KERL AND 
MILLER SUBDIVISION 1ST ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 55, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY OF 
THE CSX RAILWAY S24°48'19"W, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1,133.40 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
AND 
 
A PORTION OF SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT PORTION OF THE CSX RAILWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO AND 
NORTHEASTERLY OF TAX PARCELS G08=096, G08=019, G08=022, 
G09=009 AND G09=008; SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY BOUNDED ON THE WEST BY 
THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EASTERLY LINE OF “KERL & 
MILLER SUBDIVISION 1st ADDITION” AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, 
PAGE 55 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA AND 
BOUNDED ON THE EAST BY A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED CSX RAILWAY 
BEGINNING AT ITS INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 
9, LESS THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 44A. 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 6 of 18



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
5 of 6 

 
AND 
 
THAT LAND LYING IN SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8 RUN N00°29'25"E, ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF A 
DISTANCE OF 317.95 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF C-44A 
ACCORDING TO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP ON FILE IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE AND ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
THE FOLLOWING COURSES: N57°12'30"W, 18.62 FEET; THENCE N65°08'45"W, 
55.69 FEET; THENCE N64°55'26"W, 27.20 FEET; THENCE N65°09'05"W, 652.79 
FEET; THENCE S71°31'02"W, 3.69 FEET; THENCE N65°35'30"W, 10.02 FEET TO 
THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 139 AS RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2088, PAGE 193, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AND ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING 
COURSES: N19°25'59"W, 39.56 FEET; THENCE N25°04'43"E, 239.29 FEET TO THE 
NORTH BOUNDARY OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
2131, PAGE 399, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA.; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG SAID NORTH 
BOUNDARY AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF, S65°09'05"E, 
715.62 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID 
NORTH BOUNDARY, S00°57'59"W, 295.85 FEET TO SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF C-44A; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE 
FOLLOWING COURSES: N65°02'56"W, 21.89 FEET; THENCE N57°12'30"W, 20.22 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.    

SECTION 2. The text amendments to Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan are shown in attached “Exhibit A.” 
The amendments are attached hereto and are shown with strikethrough for deletions 
and underline for additions. 
 
 SECTION 3. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
amendments are hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land planning 
agency.  
 
 SECTION 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 7 of 18



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
6 of 6 

 SECTION 5. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 6. This Ordinance, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
effective 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that 
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining this Ordinance to be in compliance. No 
development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent upon this Ordinance 
may be issued or commenced before it has become effective. If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this Ordinance may 
nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, 
a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             
 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 8 of 18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-02 

“Exhibit A” 

The Villages of Wildwood 

Development of Regional Impact 

Future Land Use Element Policy 1.7.3 

 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 9 of 18



Policy 1.7.3 The Villages of Wildwood DRI The City of Wildwood recognizes the 
uniqueness of the property known as The Villages of Wildwood DRI which is designated 
as such on the City of Wildwood’s Future Land Use Map.  The Villages of Sumter 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI) 3rd Substantial Deviation, Application for 
Development Approval (ADA) serves as supporting data and analysis for the project. The 
DRI is composed of a town center, office, commercial, institutional and other uses which 
are only a portion of the entire The Villages of Sumter DRI. Thus, the land uses lying 
within Wildwood are only a small part of the entire development plan and a portion of the 
allocation of mixed uses within the DRI. The ADA provides a comprehensive analysis of 
the suitability of the area and impacts from the DRI. This DRI analysis can be used by the 
City of Wildwood to guide the timing, location, type and amount of future development. 
Thus, the ADA, sufficiency responses and the DRI Development Order provide 
supporting data and analysis for the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) and text amendments. 
The boundaries of The Villages of Wildwood DRI are identified on the City’s Future 
Land Use Map and subject to the following: 
 

a. The Villages of Wildwood DRI is a mixed use development that may include a 
functional integration of residential, retail, office, medical, attraction, hotel, 
institutional, recreation uses and supporting infrastructure (e.g. roads, water, 
sewer, etc.). All uses within the Villages of Wildwood may be located within the 
Town Center except for the Medical Campus.  The planning timeframe for the 
project is 2008 through build-out in 2014. The maximum non-residential land use 
intensity shall not exceed 0.5 Floor Area Ratio (FAR), except for Town Centers 
and Medical Campus which shall not exceed 3.0 FAR. The maximum residential 
density shall not exceed 7 dwelling units per net residential acre and is limited to 
a maximum of 66 units.  All residential units are age-restricted and must be 
established through the use of the land use-trade off mechanism within the 
adopted DRI development order.  Consistent with these intensity/density 
standards, the Village of Wildwood is limited to the following development 
entitlements: 

 
Retail  1,288,258 SF 
Office  14,400 SF 
Hotel  200 rooms 
Medical 300 hospital beds or equivalent medical uses 
Theatre 8 screens 
Institutional 49,714 SF 
 
These entitlements may be converted through mechanisms described in the DRI 
development order.  Conversions must not create an increase in public facility 
impacts and are limited to a maximum of 25% of the approved entitlements to 
maintain the character of development.  Phasing for the project is based on 
development units (e.g. non-residential square footage and hospital beds) and is 
approximately divided into three year increments, but may proceed more quickly 
than projected. Interim land use activities for undeveloped land may include 
farming, and cattle and buffalo husbandry, provided such activities are not in 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 10 of 18



conflict with the Wildlife Habitat Management Plan approved by the FFWCC for 
the DRI. The mix of uses and distribution of uses (not including support 
infrastructure) as a percent of the project’s acreage shall be consistent with the 
following minimum and maximum ranges are as follows: 

  
Use Minimum 

Permitted 
Maximum 
Permitted 

Commercial: Including Retail, Office, Hotel 
Convention/Performing Arts Center and Theater 

55% 68% 

Residential 0% 40% 
Institutional/Educational 1% 3% 
Medical Campus: Including Hospital, Clinic, 
Professional Offices, Pharmacy, Assisted Living 
Facility/ Skilled Nursing Facility 

5% 15% 

 
  Commercial: Including Retail, Office, Hotel 

 Convention/Performing Arts Center and Theater   55% to 68% 
 Residential  0% to 15% 
 Institutional/Educational  1% to 3% 
 Medical Campus: Including Hospital, Clinic, 
 Professional Offices, Pharmacy, Assisted Living 
 Facility/Skilled Nursing Facility   5% to 15% 
 
  This policy does not guarantee the approval of development orders which are in 

accordance with the percent distribution of acreage mix. The approval of 
development orders shall be consistent with this policy and other policies under 
Policy 1.7.3 and future conditions maps. 

 
  No vertical construction may occur within the Villages of Wildwood until the 

effective date of a Villages of Sumter DRI development order amendment to 
remove the entitlements identified above. 

 
b. The Villages of Wildwood DRI must be consistent with the supporting criteria in 

this policy.  Policy 1.7.3 restates the relevant provisions within the City’s plan as 
it relates to the DRI, but exempts the project from all other comprehensive plan 
standards which do not relate to the project or have been superseded by Policy 
1.7.3.  This exemption is necessary in order to ensure that the DRI is developed 
consistently with the remainder of the Villages of Sumter DRI and considers those 
land uses that are outside of, but support, the portion within the City. The DRI 
must also be consistent with the City of Wildwood FLUM and future conditions 
maps. 
 

c. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will meet all required local, state and federal 
regulations as specified in the DRI development order and zoning requirements.  
 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 11 of 18



d. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA is determined to be 
suitable for the land uses proposed for the site and will remain compatible with 
the surrounding area through design requirements including standards for 
buffering and landscaping. The project will also be developed as an intense urban 
center providing the benefits of a mixed use project that will encourage pedestrian 
activity and other modes of transportation including sidewalks bike lanes and golf 
cart paths. 
 

e. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA has determined there are 
approximately 25 acres of wetlands on-site. The wetlands will be protected or 
mitigated in accordance with the Southwest Florida Water Management District’s 
Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) requirements. Wetlands impacted will be 
limited to isolated wetlands and may be mitigated off-site as provided by the 
conditions of the ERP. No development will be permitted within protected 
wetlands in accordance with the development order. Impacted wetlands can be 
developed in accordance with the DRI development order as long as the wetlands 
are mitigated as required under the ERP. 
 

f. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA has identified the nesting 
of the Sherman Fox Squirrel on-site. No other listed plant or animal species or 
other environmental features have been identified. A habitat management plan 
must be developed and incorporated into the DRI development order which will 
direct the protection and/or mitigation of impacts to any listed species. The 
Habitat Management Plan also requires coordination with the Florida Game and 
Freshwater Fish Commission. 
 

g. Development of the Villages of Wildwood DRI will require coordination between 
the developer, the City of Wildwood and Sumter County. This may include the 
development of any necessary agreements between the developer of the DRI, one 
or more Community Development Districts, Sumter County and the City of 
Wildwood, either through joint or separate agreements, in the provision of 
services. The developer will also coordinate with the City in regards to capital 
improvement planning as required in this policy. 
 

h. New development within the Villages of Wildwood DRI must not degrade the 
adopted level of service for the public facilities required to serve this 
development. Water and sewer facilities will be provided by the Central Sumter 
Utility Company and not by the City of Wildwood. For transportation facilities, 
the DRI development order includes requirements for mitigating transportation 
impacts. If improvements are necessary, then the developer will coordinate with 
the City regarding any necessary capital planning which may include agreements 
to ensure the roads are mitigated. 
 

i. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will be developed in accordance with the 
following level of service standards and shall be used as the basis for determining 
the availability of facility capacity and the demand generated for the DRI. 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 12 of 18



Decisions regarding the issuance of development orders and permits for the DRI 
will be based upon coordination of the development requirements adopted as part 
Policy 1.7.3. 

 
Level of Service Standards for the Villages of Wildwood DRI 

 
(These level of service standards only apply within the boundaries of The Villages of 

Wildwood DRI as identified on the FLUM) 
 

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES LEVEL OF 
SERVICE

Principal Arterial D 
Minor Arterial and others D 

POTABLE WATER AND SANITARY SEWER
LEVEL OF 
SERVICE

 
Land Use Unit

Sanitary Sewer 
(GPD)

Potable Water 
(GPD) 

Residential Dwelling unit/day 115.9 118.6 
Office Gross SF 0.010 0.10 
Hotel Rooms 100 100 
Retail/Service Gross SF 0.15 0.15 
Hospital Beds 250 250 
Theater Seat 5 5 
Educational/Institutional Gross SF 0.15 0.15 
DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
Stormwater facilities shall be designed to accommodate the 15-year, 24-hour design 
storm to meet the water quality and quantity standards below.
WATER QUALITY and QUANTITY
Treatment and attenuation of stormwater runoff shall be required for all development, 
redevelopment and, when expansion occurs, existing developed areas.  Infill residential 
development within improved residential areas or subdivisions, which existed prior to the 
adoption of the comprehensive plan, must ensure that its post-development stormwater 
runoff will not contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the entire improved 
area to degrade receiving waters.  Water quality and attenuation shall be deemed 
acceptable when the applicant has demonstrated compliance with Southwest Florida 
Water Management District Chapter 40D-4 and Chapter 40D-40, F.A.C. 
RECREATION FACILITIES 

The recreation facilities necessary for this site are provided in the Sumter County
portion of the Villages of Sumter DRI.  The developer may include parks and 
other recreation uses within the City but these facilities are in excess of required 
recreation level of service to serve the project. Thus, the developer will not rely 
on nor degrade the City’s level of service standard for recreation.   

 
 

 
j. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will include as part of this project sidewalks, bike 

lanes and golf cart paths to ensure the project is interconnected with the remainder 
of The Villages. 
 

k. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will mitigate for any required affordable housing 
impacts in accordance with the adopted development order. 
 

l. The developer will coordinate with the City of Wildwood in the provision of 
transportation facilities that may be necessary to mitigate for the DRI’s impacts. 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 13 of 18



No other public facilities (such as potable water and sewer) will be provided by 
the City of Wildwood. As part of any required mitigation, the developer will 
coordinate with the City to ensure the mitigation can be considered as part of the 
City’s required capital improvement planning. The developer will also coordinate 
with any water suppliers in accordance with the Consumptive Use Permit to 
ensure that adequate water supplies are available to serve the DRI. 
 

m. Amendments to the DRI through the Notice of Proposed Change process pursuant 
to s. 3 80.06(19), FS, shall not require a plan amendment provided the change 
does not include the addition of land or a new use and is otherwise consistent with 
the comprehensive plan. Changes to a DRI Development Order adopted by the 
City of Wildwood shall be reflected in the Conceptual Master Plan and other 
zoning support documents as a ministerial function. 
 

n. The Application for Development Approval, sufficiency responses and DRI 
Development Order for The Villages of Wildwood DRI provide the supporting 
data and analysis for the DRI land use designation on the FLUM. 
 

o. The Villages of Wildwood DRI Development Order ensures consistency of the 
DRI land use designation on the FLUM with Policy 1.7.3 and future conditions 
maps of the Wildwood Comprehensive Plan. 

 

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 14 of 18



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 1

Villages of Wildwood DRI
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 Vi
lla

ge
s o

f W
ild

wo
od

 D
RI

.m
xd

 - 1
2/2

1/2
01

2 3
:12

:40
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

Legend
Villages of Wildwood DRI

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 15 of 18



K
M

K
S

R
V

11
-1

2-
12

1 
of

 2

D
at

e:
D

ra
w

n 
by

:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y:

R

0
60
0

12
00

18
00

24
00

30
00

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
lo

rid
a 

 3
21

62
10

20
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng

M
A

S
TE

R
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
P

LA
N

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

Te
l N

o.
 (3

52
)7

53
-4

74
7 

 F
ax

 N
o.

 (3
52

)7
53

-1
29

6
10

38
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng
   

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
L 

32
16

2
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

LL
C

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r: 

 2
74

95

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

2

M
A

P
 O

F 
V

IL
LA

G
E

S
 O

F
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

 D
R

I
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 16 of 18



K
M

K
S

R
V

11
-1

2-
12

2 
of

 2

D
at

e:
D

ra
w

n 
by

:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y:

R

0
30
0

60
0

90
0

12
00

15
00

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
lo

rid
a 

 3
21

62
10

20
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng

M
A

S
TE

R
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
P

LA
N

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

Te
l N

o.
 (3

52
)7

53
-4

74
7 

 F
ax

 N
o.

 (3
52

)7
53

-1
29

6
10

38
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng
   

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
L 

32
16

2
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

LL
C

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r: 

 2
74

95

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

2

M
A

P
 O

F 
V

IL
LA

G
E

S
 O

F
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

 D
R

I
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 17 of 18



Future Land Use 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 1

Villages of Wildwood DRI
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Ex
ist

ing
 FL

U 
- V

illa
ge

s o
f W

ild
wo

od
 D

RI
.m

xd
 - 1

2/2
1/2

01
2 3

:11
:12

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

C-44A

E SR 44

PO
WE

LL
 R

D

C-466A

C-
46

2 E

S B
UE

NA
 VI

ST
A B

LV
D

PO
WE

LL
 ST

CLEVELAND AVE/C-466A

E SR 44

Legend
Villages of Wildwood DRI

City Limits

Villages of Wildwood
DRI

COM

REC

I

COM

RIO

HDR

PF

PF

CMU

CMU

CMU PF

MDR

COM

ECNMU

A. 1. CP 1211-01 
Page 18 of 18



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Oxford Cottages Retirement (Lot 5) CP 1210-01 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2012-26. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 12/10/12 – First Reading 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting 1/14/13 – Public Hearing 
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant (Lenity Architecture, LLC) seeks approval for a Small Scale Future Land Use Map 
Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  On December 4, 2012 the case was heard before 
the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency in which the 
Special Magistrate recommended approval of Ordinance O2012-26.  Staff also recommends 
approval of Ordinance #02012-26 (attached). 
 
The 3.02 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized for senior retirement cottages.  The 
amendment to Medium Density Residential (MDR) is necessary to accommodate the proposed 
development.   
 
Staff believes a Future Land Use Map designation of “Medium Density Residential” is appropriate 
based on the intended use of the property and should be recommended for approval for the following 
reasons: 

 The applicant has provided justification for the proposed amendment; 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 

Comprehensive Plan;  
 The proposed rezoning will not have an adverse effect on public facilities and services; 
 The proposed amendment does not represent urban sprawl and exemplifies an energy efficient 

land use pattern;  
 The proposed amendment will not have an adverse impact on environmentally sensitive lands; 

and 
 The proposed amendment will not adversely impact public facilities and services. 

 
 
 

1. a. 
Page 1 of 13



12/10/2012 – Page 2 of 2 
Oxford Cottages (Lot 5) SSCPA CP 1210-01 

Executive Summary 

 
 
The attached maps illustrate the subject parcel’s relation to the surrounding area as well as the 
existing and proposed Future Land Use Map designations within the vicinity. 
 

 
Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 

 
 

1. a. 
Page 2 of 13



1. a. 
Page 3 of 13



Oxford Cottages
Lot 5

Oxford Cottages
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Location Map

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

Lo
ca

tio
n 

- O
xf

or
d 

C
ot

ta
ge

s.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 3

:0
8:

16
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

Legend
Oxford Cottages

Oxford Greens

City of Wildwood

1. a. 
Page 4 of 13



C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

C
R

 1
03

C-466 E C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

Oxford Cottages
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Existing Future Land Use

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

E
xi

st
in

g 
FL

U
 - 

O
xf

or
d 

C
ot

ta
ge

s.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 2

:5
5:

08
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

Oxford Cottages

Legend
Oxford Cottages

City Limits

LMDR

LDR
LDR

PF
COM

ONMU

1. a. 
Page 5 of 13



Ordinance No. 2012-26 
1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-26 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the local 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map of said City, to include a land use 
amendment described as follows, to-wit: 

Sumter Retirement Residence 
Oxford Cottages Retirement 

Portion of Parcel #: D08=005 (Lot 5) 
Containing 3.02 acres more or less 

A PORTION OF THE S.W. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER  COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

COMMENCE AT THE S.W. CORNER OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
S.89°49'41"E., A DISTANCE OF 1335.05 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF 
THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 
OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°00'25"W., A DISTANCE OF 383.72 
FEET TO THE N.E. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1356, PAGE 358 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY 
OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°01'08"W., A 
DISTANCE OF 372.42 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST BOUNDARY, N.89°49'26"W., A DISTANCE 
OF 398.96 FEET; THENCE N.39°31'22"W., A DISTANCE OF 45.56 FEET TO 
THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 2004, PAGE 536 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY AND 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION, N.00°21'53"W., A DISTANCE OF 272.71 FEET; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY AND THE NORTHERLY 

1. a. 
Page 6 of 13



Ordinance No. 2012-26 
2 of 3

EXTENSION, S.89°49'26"E., A DISTANCE OF 429.59 FEET TO THE 
AFORESAID WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID 
SECTION 8; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, S.00°01'08"E., A 
DISTANCE OF 307.76 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS 
CONTAINING 3.02 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

This property is to be reclassified from City comprehensive plan category “Low 
Density Residential” to City comprehensive plan category “Medium Density Residential.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The adopted local Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
for the City of Wildwood, Florida, are hereby amended to include the above-referenced 
property and proposed land use amendment as indicated above. The amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.

SECTION 2. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
land use amendment is hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land 
planning agency.

SECTION 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

1. a. 
Page 7 of 13



Ordinance No. 2012-26 
3 of 3

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2012, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. a. 
Page 8 of 13



Ordinance O2012-26: “Exhibit A” 

Oxford Cottages Retirement 

Future Land Use Map Designation 

1. a. 
Page 9 of 13



C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

C
R

 1
03

C-466 E C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

Oxford Cottages
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Proposed Future Land Use

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

P
ro

po
se

d 
FL

U
 - 

O
xf

or
d 

C
ot

ta
ge

s.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 3

:2
5:

47
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

Oxford Cottages

Legend
Oxford Cottages

City Limits

LMDR

LDR
MDR

PF
COM

ONMU

1. a. 
Page 10 of 13



Oxford Florida – Retirement Cottages 
Project Summary & Justification Statement��

1

I. INTRODUCTION – OXFORD COTTAGES 

Site Description
The subject parcel is directly north of and adjacent to a retirement residence that 
is currently under construction at the easterly end of Bellweather Lane.

  Surrounding Uses: 

� North and East of the site LDR (Low Density Residential) 

� West of the site INS (Institutional) – Central Florida Urology 
Specialists 

Site:
Current Zoning: R- 1 / LDR (Pending Zone Change to R-3) 
Current Use: Undeveloped 

   ACCOUNT #: D08—005 (Includes additional property) 

Acreage
The parcel is 2.7 acres in size and is currently undeveloped. 

Proposed Development
Hawthorn Retirement Group proposes to develop 24 independent retirement 
cottages as a compliment to their retirement residence under construction.  

INTENDED USE – Retirement Cottages

The fourplex retirement cottages are designed to encourage ongoing 
independence for retirees and attract the most independent members of our 
retirement community.

The proposed 24 retirement cottages afford the advantages of independent living 
while utilizing services available at the main building, which provide support, 
security, and friendship.  The retirement cottages come in different configurations 
but each version includes two bedrooms, a full kitchen, ample living and storage 
space and a single car garage. 

Cottage residents also benefit from the private van transportation and the various 
events and activities provided by the facility both on and off site. 

Cottage residents have the option of including meal service, housekeeping, 
laundering as a part of their monthly rental package.

1. a. 
Page 11 of 13



Oxford Florida – Retirement Cottages 
Project Summary & Justification Statement��

2

Each cottage has the added security of having staff “in house” 24 hours a day at 
the main building.  All cottages have two-way communication with staff and the 
cottages are fully fire sprinklered for additional safety and peace of mind. 

Building Design
The 24 units will be housed in 6 fourplex buildings.  Each unit has an average of 
1,200 to 1,300 square feet of living space. 

The exterior siding materials will include horizontal lap siding, board and batton, 
and brick.  The roof will be architectural comp shingles. 

The site is to be extensively landscaped with usable outdoor spaces including 
manicured lawns and a pitch and putt course.  Walkways will connect the 
cottages to the main building to provide access to the swimming pool, putting 
green, gardens and other amenities offered on the main site.

II ZONING, LAND USE AND DESNITY 

Purpose of the proposed Comprehensive Plan and Zone Change
It is the intent of the developer to complete a Zone Change to R-3 while 
maintaining the existing Comprehensive Plan designation of MDR (Medium 
Density Residential) in order to accommodate the development of the above 
referenced retirement cottages. 

III.  Overview and Summary 

Existing Zoning:   R-1: Low Density Residential 
Proposed Zoning: R-3: Medium Density Residential 
Land Area:   2.7 acres  
Existing Use:   Undeveloped 
Proposed Use: 24 Independent Retirement Cottages

IV.  SUPPORTING DOUCMENT AND DRAWINGS 
  Legal Description 
  Proof of Ownership (Recorded Deed) 
  Aerial Photo 
  Existing FLU Map 
  Property Appraiser Information 
  Existing Zoning Map 
  Location Map 
  Environmental Constraints Map 
  Requested FLU Map 
  Requested Zoning Map 

1. a. 
Page 12 of 13



Oxford Florida – Retirement Cottages 
Project Summary & Justification Statement��

3

V. JUSTIFICAITON FOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING 

The proposed development will add 24 retirement homes to the area as a compliment to 
the facility already under construction.  This allows for independent senior living while 
providing the security and benefits of the larger retirement residence, which provides 
amenities beyond conventional private living. 

This provides another vital component to meet the growing demand for senior housing 
in Oxford, the City of Wildwood, and greater Sumter County.  The addition of these 
cottages complements the existing senior housing in the area and provides additional 
options for seniors. 

Comprehensive Plan
This use coordinates well with the Comprehensive Plan and its surrounding land 
uses:

This proposal is consistent with the current Compressive Plan and no change to 
the existing designation of MDR (Medium Density Residential) is requested. 

Rezoning
Rezoning this site to R-3 provides the density needed to construct the 24 
cottages on this site. 

Amending the zoning designation to R-3 for this site is consistent with land use 
goals and appropriate for area.  This site is ideally suited for the proposed 
retirement cottages as a complimentary development to the retirement residence 
underway south of the subject property.  It has close proximity to services such 
as shopping, recreation and medical services while still being near established 
conventional residential uses.

Thank you for your consideration. 

1. a. 
Page 13 of 13

plaw
Typewritten Text



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Oxford Cottages Retirement (Lot 5) RZ 1210-01 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2012-27. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 12/10/12 – First Reading 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting 1/14/13 – Public Hearing 
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant (Lenity Architecture, LLC) seeks approval for a rezoning from “R-1 Low Density 
Residential” to “R-3 Medium Density Residential” in conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance #02012-27 (attached) subject to 
approval of Ordinance O2012-26, which establishes a future land use appropriate to the 
proposed zoning. 
 
The 3.02 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized for senior retirement cottages.  The 
amendment to Medium Density Residential (MDR) is necessary to accommodate the proposed 
development.  The property was recently subject to an approved Small Scale Comprehensive Plan 
amendment to change the future land use to “Medium Density Residential”. The requested zoning of 
“IN Institutional” will bring the property into compliance with the Future Land Use Map and the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Case RZ 1210-01 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
December 4, 2012.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the rezoning to the City Commission.  The attached maps illustrate the subject 
parcel’s relation to the surrounding area as well as the existing and proposed zoning designations 
within the vicinity. 
 

 
Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 

1. b. 
Page 1 of 9



1. b. 
Page 2 of 9



Oxford Cottages
Lot 5

Oxford Cottages
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Location Map

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

Lo
ca

tio
n 

- O
xf

or
d 

C
ot

ta
ge

s.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 3

:0
8:

16
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

Legend
Oxford Cottages

Oxford Greens

City of Wildwood

1. b. 
Page 3 of 9



Oxford Cottages

C-466 E

C
R

 1
03

C
R

 1
01

C-466 EC-466 E

C
R

 1
01

R-1
C-3 NMU-7

C-2

PUD

INS

R-2

Oxford Cottages
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Existing Zoning

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

E
xi

st
in

g 
Zo

ni
ng

 - 
O

xf
or

d 
C

ot
ta

ge
s.

m
xd

 - 
11

/2
7/

20
12

 8
:4

0:
43

 A
M

 - 
to

ne
al

Legend
Oxford Cottages

City Limits

R-1

1. b. 
Page 4 of 9



Ordinance No. 2012-27 
1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-27 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of said City, to include a rezoning of real property described as follows, to-
wit:

Sumter Retirement Residence 
Oxford Cottages Retirement 

Portion of Parcel #: D08=005 (Lot 5) 
Containing 3.02 acres more or less 

A PORTION OF THE S.W. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER  COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

COMMENCE AT THE S.W. CORNER OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
S.89°49'41"E., A DISTANCE OF 1335.05 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF 
THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 
OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°00'25"W., A DISTANCE OF 383.72 
FEET TO THE N.E. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1356, PAGE 358 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY 
OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°01'08"W., A 
DISTANCE OF 372.42 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST BOUNDARY, N.89°49'26"W., A DISTANCE 
OF 398.96 FEET; THENCE N.39°31'22"W., A DISTANCE OF 45.56 FEET TO 
THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 2004, PAGE 536 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY AND 
NORTHERLY EXTENSION, N.00°21'53"W., A DISTANCE OF 272.71 FEET; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY AND THE NORTHERLY 
EXTENSION, S.89°49'26"E., A DISTANCE OF 429.59 FEET TO THE 

1. b. 
Page 5 of 9



Ordinance No. 2012-27 
2 of 3

AFORESAID WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID 
SECTION 8; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY, S.00°01'08"E., A 
DISTANCE OF 307.76 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS 
CONTAINING 3.02 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

This property is to be reclassified from “R-1: Low Density Residential” to “R-3: 
Medium Density Residential.”

 AND WHEREAS, the rezoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Regulations.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Wildwood, Florida is hereby 
amended to include the above-referenced property as indicated above. The amendment 
to the Official Zoning Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2012, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

1. b. 
Page 6 of 9



Ordinance No. 2012-27 
3 of 3

ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. b. 
Page 7 of 9



Ordinance O2012-27: “Exhibit A” 

Oxford Cottages Retirement 

Zoning Map Designation 

1. b. 
Page 8 of 9



Oxford Cottages

C-466 E

C
R

 1
03

C
R

 1
01

C-466 EC-466 E

C
R

 1
01

R-1
C-3 NMU-7

C-2

PUD

INS

R-2

Oxford Cottages
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Proposed Zoning

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

P
ro

po
se

d 
Zo

ni
ng

 - 
O

xf
or

d 
C

ot
ta

ge
s.

m
xd

 - 
11

/2
7/

20
12

 8
:3

7:
43

 A
M

 - 
to

ne
al

Legend
Oxford Cottages

City Limits

R-3

1. b. 
Page 9 of 9



 

 

CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care (Lot 4) CP 1210-02 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2012-28. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 12/10/12 – First Reading 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting 1/14/13 – Public Hearing 
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant (Lenity Architecture, LLC) seeks approval for a Small Scale Future Land Use Map 
Amendment to the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  On December 4, 2012 the case was heard before 
the Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate acting as the Local Planning Agency in which the 
Special Magistrate recommended approval of Ordinance O2012-28.  Staff also recommends 
approval of Ordinance #02012-28 (attached). 
 
The 4.15 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized for an Assisted Living Facility and Memory 
Care center.  The amendment to Public Facilities (PF) is necessary to accommodate the proposed 
development.   
 
Staff believes a Future Land Use Map designation of “Public Facilities” is appropriate based on the 
intended use of the property and should be recommended for approval for the following reasons: 

 The applicant has provided justification for the proposed amendment; 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 

Comprehensive Plan;  
 The proposed rezoning will not have an adverse effect on public facilities and services; 
 The proposed amendment does not represent urban sprawl and exemplifies an energy efficient 

land use pattern;  
 The proposed amendment will not have an adverse impact on environmentally sensitive lands; 

and 
 The proposed amendment will not adversely impact public facilities and services. 

 
 
 

1. c. 
Page 1 of 13



12/10/2012 – Page 2 of 2 
Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care (Lot 4) SSCPA CP 1210-02 

Executive Summary 

 

 
 
The attached maps illustrate the subject parcel’s relation to the surrounding area as well as the 
existing and proposed Future Land Use Map designations within the vicinity. 
 

 
Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 

 
 

1. c. 
Page 2 of 13



1. c. 
Page 3 of 13



ALF/Memory Care
Lot 4

Oxford ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Location Map

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

Lo
ca

tio
n 

- O
xf

or
d 

A
LF

-M
em

or
y 

C
ar

e.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 3

:0
0:

05
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

Oxford Greens

City of Wildwood

1. c. 
Page 4 of 13



C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

C
R

 1
03

C-466 E C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

Oxford ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Existing Future Land Use

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

E
xi

st
in

g 
FL

U
 - 

O
xf

or
d 

A
LF

M
em

or
y 

C
ar

e.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 2

:5
4:

22
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

ALF/ Memory Care

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

City Limits

LMDR

LDR

LDR

PF

COM
ONMU

1. c. 
Page 5 of 13



Ordinance No. 2012-28 
1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-28 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A SMALL SCALE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
TO THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011, AS AMENDED; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the local 
Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map of said City, to include a land use 
amendment described as follows, to-wit: 

Sumter Retirement Residence 
Oxford ALF and Memory Care 

Portion of Parcel #: D08=005 (Lot 4) 
Containing 4.15 acres more or less 

A PORTION OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER  COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

COMMENCE AT THE S.W. CORNER OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
S.89°49'41"E., A DISTANCE OF 1335.05 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF 
THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 
OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°00'25"W., A DISTANCE OF 106.54 
FEET TO THE S.E. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1356, PAGE 358 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF 
THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°00'25"W., A DISTANCE OF 277.18 
FEET TO THE N.E. CORNER OF SAID LANDS; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
WEST BOUNDARY, S.89°46'26"E., A DISTANCE OF 27.60 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGANT CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 59.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 139°49'41", AND 
A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N.52°05'42"E., 110.82 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A 
DISTANCE OF 143.99 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE 
N.90°00'00"E., A DISTANCE OF 430.37 FEET; THENCE S.00°00'00"W., A 

1. c. 
Page 6 of 13



Ordinance No. 2012-28 
2 of 3

DISTANCE OF 346.79 FEET TO THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS; 
THENCE ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS, N.89°49'49"W., 
A DISTANCE OF 545.38 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS 
CONTAINING 4.15 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

This property is to be reclassified from City comprehensive plan category “Low 
Density Residential” to City comprehensive plan category “Public Facilities.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The adopted local Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
for the City of Wildwood, Florida, are hereby amended to include the above-referenced 
property and proposed land use amendment as indicated above. The amendment to the 
Future Land Use Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.

SECTION 2. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
land use amendment is hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land 
planning agency.

SECTION 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

1. c. 
Page 7 of 13



Ordinance No. 2012-28 
3 of 3

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2012, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. c. 
Page 8 of 13



Ordinance O2012-28: “Exhibit A” 

Oxford ALF and Memory Care 

Future Land Use Map Designation 

1. c. 
Page 9 of 13



C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

C
R

 1
03

C-466 E C-466 E
C

R
 1

01

Oxford ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Proposed Future Land Use

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

P
ro

po
se

d 
FL

U
 - 

O
xf

or
d 

AL
FM

em
or

y 
C

ar
e.

m
xd

 - 
11

/2
1/

20
12

 3
:2

2:
30

 P
M

 - 
to

ne
al

ALF/ Memory Care

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

City Limits

LMDR

PF

LDR

PF

COM
ONMU

1. c. 
Page 10 of 13



Oxford Florida - Assisted Living and Memory Care  
Project Summary & Justification Statement 

1

I. INTRODUCTION – OXFORD ASSISTED LIVING AND MEMORY CARE 

Site Description
The subject parcel is at the easterly end of Bellweather Lane, directly East of and 
Adjacent to the Open Bible Lutheran Church (4671 Bellweather Lane).

  Surrounding Uses: 

� North and East of the site LDR (Low Density Residential) 

� West of the site INS (Institutional) - Church Facility 

Site:
Current Zoning: R- 1 / LDR (Pending Zone Change to Institutional) 
Current Use: Undeveloped 

   ACCOUNT #: D08—005 (Includes additional property) 

Acreage
The parcel is 4.16 acres in size and is currently undeveloped. 

Proposed Development
Columbia Pacific proposes to develop a 103-suite Assisted Living and Memory 
Care Facility 

INTENDED USE - Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care Facility
This proposed facility will consist of 103-suites with both Assisted Living and 
Memory Care suites.  The Assisted Living care is for seniors who do not require 
the specialized services of a nursing home, yet are in need of some assistance 
with their daily routine.   The Memory Care Suites focus exclusively on 
Alzheimer’s, dementia and related memory issues that afflict our aging seniors in 
a secure and homelike atmosphere 

Services and activities at the facility are provided to maintain or improve the 
capabilities of each resident, with an emphasis on abilities rather than disabilities. 

Services include three prepared meals daily, housekeeping, laundering, also 
private bus transportation. The monthly rent payment covers the private room, 
the afore-mentioned services and utilities.  The facility offers a Service Plan 
detailing additional services a resident may request or are required.  These 
services include assistance with medications, bathing, grooming, dressing and 
other areas of need.  These services are offered 24 hours a day.

1. c. 
Page 11 of 13



Oxford Florida - Assisted Living and Memory Care  
Project Summary & Justification Statement 

2

Building Design
The exterior siding materials will include horizontal lap siding, board and batton, 
and brick.  The roof will be architectural comp shingles. 

The building interior design has common areas for a variety of uses.  There will 
be a common dining room and kitchen for shared meals.

The site is to be extensively landscaped.  Usable outdoor spaces include 
manicured lawn and enclosed courtyards.  There will be outside walking areas 
with a fountain and colorful flowers in season. 

II ZONING, LAND USE AND DESNITY 

Purpose of the proposed Comprehensive Plan and Zone Change
It is the intent of the developer to amend the Comprehensive Plan for this site to 
the use of PF (Public Facilities) and concurrently complete a Zone Change to I 
(Institutional) in order to accommodate the development of the above reverenced 
Assisted Living and Memory Care Facility. 

III.  Overview and Summary 

Existing Zoning:   R-1: Low Density Residential 
Proposed Zoning: Institutional with the allowed use of Assisted 

Living 
Land Area:   4.16 acres (181,210 sq ft) 
Existing Use:   Undeveloped 
Proposed Use: 103-suite Assisted Living and Memory Care 

Facility

IV.  SUPPORTING DOUCMENT AND DRAWINGS 

  Legal Description 
  Proof of Ownership (Recorded Deed) 
  Aerial Photo 
  Existing FLU Map 
  Property Appraiser Information 
  Existing Zoning Map 
  Location Map 
  Environmental Constraints Map 
  Requested FLU Map 
  Requested Zoning Map 

1. c. 
Page 12 of 13



Oxford Florida - Assisted Living and Memory Care  
Project Summary & Justification Statement 

3

V. JUSTIFICAITON FOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING 

This proposed development will add an Assisted Living / Memory Care (Alzheimer) 
Facility to the area. This provides another vital component to meet the growing demand 
for senior housing in Oxford, the City of Wildwood and greater Sumter County. The 
addition of this facility complements the existing senior housing in the area and provides 
additional options for seniors to choose to “age in place” as their personal and medical 
needs change. 

Comprehensive Plan
This use coordinates well with the Comprehensive Plan and its surrounding land 
uses:

This proposal is consistent with the current Compressive Plan. The Comp Plan 
allows for the designated use of (PF) Public Facility within this area. This specific 
use will be an important segment within the surrounding development.
Adopting the Comp Plan designation off PF is consistent with land use goal and 
appropriate for area.

Rezoning
Rezoning this site to IN (Institutional) provides the allowed use necessary for an 
Assisted Living / Memory Care Facility.

Amending the zoning designation of IN for this site is consistent with land use 
goal and appropriate for area. This site is ideally suited for the proposed ALF / 
Memory Care use. It has close proximity to services such as shopping, recreation 
and medical needs while still being near complementary senior housing and 
established conventional residential uses. This allowed use complements the 
surrounding development while providing two vital senior housing components to 
the area.

Thank you for your consideration. 

1. c. 
Page 13 of 13



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care (Lot 4) RZ 1210-02 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2012-29. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 12/10/12 – First Reading 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting 1/14/13 – Public Hearing 
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant (Lenity Architecture, LLC) seeks approval for a rezoning from “R-1 Low Density 
Residential” to “IN Institutional” in conformance with the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance #02012-29 (attached) subject to approval of 
Ordinance O2012-28, which establishes a future land use appropriate to the proposed zoning. 
 
The 4.15 +/- acre subject parcel is intended to be utilized for an Assisted Living Facility and Memory 
Care center.  The amendment to Institutional (IN) is necessary to accommodate the proposed 
development.  The property was recently subject to an approved Small Scale Comprehensive Plan 
amendment to change the future land use to “Public Facilities”. The requested zoning of “IN 
Institutional” will bring the property into compliance with the Future Land Use Map and the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Case RZ 1210-02 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
December 4, 2012.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the rezoning to the City Commission.  The attached maps illustrate the subject 
parcel’s relation to the surrounding area as well as the existing and proposed zoning designations 
within the vicinity. 
 

 
Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 

1. d. 
Page 1 of 9



1. d. 
Page 2 of 9



ALF/Memory Care
Lot 4

Oxford ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Location Map

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

Lo
ca

tio
n 

- O
xf

or
d 

A
LF

-M
em

or
y 

C
ar

e.
m

xd
 - 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 3

:0
0:

05
 P

M
 - 

to
ne

al

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

Oxford Greens

City of Wildwood

1. d. 
Page 3 of 9



ALF/Memory Care

C-466 E

C
R

 1
03

C
R

 1
01

C-466 EC-466 E

C
R

 1
01

R-1
C-3 NMU-7

C-2

PUD

INS

R-2

ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Existing Zoning

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

E
xi

st
in

g 
Zo

ni
ng

 - 
A

LF
M

em
or

y 
C

ar
e.

m
xd

 - 
11

/2
7/

20
12

 8
:4

1:
16

 A
M

 - 
to

ne
al

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

City Limits

R-1

1. d. 
Page 4 of 9



Ordinance No. 2012-29 
1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. O2012-29 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
PROPOSING A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT TO THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTIONS 3.2 AND 3.3 OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood, Florida, is proposing to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of said City, to include a rezoning of real property described as follows, to-
wit:

Sumter Retirement Residence 
Oxford ALF and Memory Care 

Portion of Parcel #: D08=005 (Lot 4) 
Containing 4.15 acres more or less 

A PORTION OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER  COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

COMMENCE AT THE S.W. CORNER OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID S.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
S.89°49'41"E., A DISTANCE OF 1335.05 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF 
THE S.E. 1/4 OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 
OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°00'25"W., A DISTANCE OF 106.54 
FEET TO THE S.E. CORNER OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 1356, PAGE 358 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID WEST BOUNDARY OF THE S.E. 1/4 OF 
THE S.E. 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, N.00°00'25"W., A DISTANCE OF 277.18 
FEET TO THE N.E. CORNER OF SAID LANDS; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
WEST BOUNDARY, S.89°46'26"E., A DISTANCE OF 27.60 FEET TO THE 
BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGANT CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 59.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 139°49'41", AND 
A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N.52°05'42"E., 110.82 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, A 
DISTANCE OF 143.99 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE 
N.90°00'00"E., A DISTANCE OF 430.37 FEET; THENCE S.00°00'00"W., A 
DISTANCE OF 346.79 FEET TO THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS; 

1. d. 
Page 5 of 9



Ordinance No. 2012-29 
2 of 3

THENCE ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID LANDS, N.89°49'49"W., 
A DISTANCE OF 545.38 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS 
CONTAINING 4.15 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

This property is to be reclassified from “R-1: Low Density Residential” to “IN: 
Institutional.”

 AND WHEREAS, the rezoning is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Regulations.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Wildwood, Florida is hereby 
amended to include the above-referenced property as indicated above. The amendment 
to the Official Zoning Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by 
reference.

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final reading by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood. 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2012, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 

       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  

Ed Wolf, Mayor 

1. d. 
Page 6 of 9



Ordinance No. 2012-29 
3 of 3

ATTEST:  ________________   
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   

First Reading:      

Second Reading:      

Approved as to form: 

Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. d. 
Page 7 of 9



Ordinance O2012-29: “Exhibit A” 

Oxford ALF and Memory Care 

Zoning Map Designation 

1. d. 
Page 8 of 9



ALF/Memory Care

C-466 E

C
R

 1
03

C
R

 1
01

C-466 EC-466 E

C
R

 1
01

R-1
C-3 NMU-7

C-2

PUD

INS

R-2

ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Proposed Zoning

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\
Te

rr
i\G

IS
\M

ap
s\

P
ro

po
se

d 
Zo

ni
ng

 - 
A

LF
M

em
or

y 
C

ar
e.

m
xd

 - 
11

/2
7/

20
12

 8
:4

1:
57

 A
M

 - 
to

ne
al

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

City Limits

INS

1. d. 
Page 9 of 9



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance O2013-01: 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Transmittal of Ordinance O2013-01 to the Reviewing Agencies 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: January 14, 2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

                                                                                                   
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
 
In July 2012, the Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD) updated its Regional 
Water Supply Plan (RWSP) to include the northern planning region which includes Sumter County and 
its municipalities. As a result, the City was given 18 months to adopt a water supply plan of its own 
into its comprehensive plan pursuant to F.S. 163.3177(6)(c).  
 
The City of Wildwood 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (Work Plan) has been developed in 
accordance with Florida Statutes and the SWFWMD’s RWSP. The Work Plan: 

 Covers a 10-Year planning period;  
 Inventories existing water sources and facilities; 
 Identifies alternative water supply sources;  
 Forecasts water demand; 
 Identifies the capital improvements needed to meet future demands; 
 Analyzes conservation and reuse water practices within the City; and  
 Recommends the needed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan to comply with current 

statutory requirements. 
  
Ordinance O2013-01 adopts the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan and the recommended 
text amendments to the Public Facilities, Conservation, Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital 
Improvements Elements. The specific policy language is contained within the Ordinance, but in 
summary the amendments are as follows: 
 

 Adopt the Work Plan into the Comprehensive Plan by  reference; 
 Coordinate the Work Plan with the Southwest Florida Water Management District; 
 Encourage the use of reuse water to offset potable water demands; 
 Investigate strategies to further water conservation practices; and 
 Update the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements to include the capital facilities needed for 

the Champagne Farms Water Treatment Plant and transmission system. 

1. e. 
Page 1 of 68



 
Staff rec
163.3187
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

commends 
7.  

cHugh 
ment Service

the transm

 

es Coordina

ittal Ordina

ator 

ance O2013--01 to the sttate reviewinng agenciess under F.S. 
1. e. 
Page 2 of 68



 
Ordinance No. O2013-01 

10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan 
1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; ADOPTING THE 10-YEAR WATER SUPPLY 
FACILITIES WORK PLAN; PROVIDING FOR TEXT 
AMENDMENTS TO THE PUBLIC FACILITIES ELEMENT, 
CONSERVATION ELEMENT, INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COORDINATION ELEMENT, AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT OF THE ADOPTED LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 163.3177(6)(c), FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS,  the City is required to prepared and adopt a 10-Year Water Supply 
Facilities Work Plan  into the local comprehensive plan pursuant to Section 
163.3177(6)(c), Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City wishes to adopt the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work 

Plan and recommended text amendments to the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City hereby adopts the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work 
Plan contained in “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein. 
 

SECTION 2. The text amendments to the Public Facilities, Conservation, 
Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital Improvements Elements of the City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan are shown in attached “Exhibit B.” The amendments are 
attached hereto and are shown with strikethrough for deletions and underline for 
additions. 
 
 SECTION 3. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
amendments are hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land planning 
agency.  
 
 SECTION 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  
 

1. e. 
Page 3 of 68



 
Ordinance No. O2013-01 

10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan 
2 of 2 

 SECTION 5. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 6. This Ordinance, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
effective 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that 
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining this Ordinance to be in compliance. No 
development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent upon this Ordinance 
may be issued or commenced before it has become effective. If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this Ordinance may 
nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, 
a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             
 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 
 

1. e. 
Page 4 of 68



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ordinance O2013-01 

 
“Exhibit A” 

 
City of Wildwood 10-Year Water Supply 

Facilities Work Plan 
 

1. e. 
Page 5 of 68



 

 

 

10-
Fa

Yea
acili

De

K

ar W
ties

Pr

City 

evelopment 

Utilitie

Kimley-Horn

Decem

Wate
s Wo

epared by:

of Wildwoo

Services De

es Departm

n and Associ

 

mber 15, 201

er Su
ork 

d 

epartment

ent 

iates, Inc. 

12 

upp
Plan

ply 
n 

 

1. e. 
Page 6 of 68



 i
 

 

Abbrevia
Section I
  
  
Section I
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Section I

  

Section I
  
  
Section V
Section V
  
  
  

Section V
 

 
Table 1: 
Table 2: 
Table 3: 
Table 4: 
Table 5: 
Table 6: 
 
Map 1:  
Map 2:  
Map 3:  
 
 

 

ations………
I:  Introd

Purpo
Statu

II:  Potab
Potab
Water
Distri
Wells
Potab
High 
Water
Water

III: Potab
Water
Cham
Capit

IV: Reuse
Existi
Futur

V:  Water
VI: Modif

Public
Conse
Interg
Capit

VII: Concl

Existi
  Potab
 Wells

Water
Water
Potab

Water
Existi
Futur

………………
duction 
ose…………

utory Requir
ble Water D
ble Water Se
r Supply an
ibution Syst
s and Water
ble Water St
Service Pum
r Use Perm
r Quality…

ble Water Pr
r Demand P

mpagne Farm
tal Improvem
e 
ing Conditio
re Condition
r Conservat
fications to 
c Facilities 
ervation Ele
government
tal Improvem
lusions………

ing Potable 
ble Water Pl
s and Water
r Use Perm
r Demand P

ble Water Ca

r Service Ar
ing Facilitie
re Potable W

 

Table

………………

………………
rements……
ata, Invento
ervice Area…

nd Treatmen
tem…………

r Treatment
torage Facil
mping Facil
it……………
………………
rojections an
Projections 2
ms…………
ments 2012/

ons…………
ns……………
tion…………
the Compre
Element……

ement………
tal Coordina
ments Elem
………………

List of T

Water Cust
lants………
r Treatment
it Groundw

Projections 2
apital Impr

rea Boundar
es  
Water Facili

e of Content

………………

………………
………………

ory and Ana
………………
nt Facilities
………………
t Plants……
lities…………
lities…………

………………
………………
nd Capital I
2013-2023…
………………
/2012 – 201

………………
………………
………………
ehensive Pla
………………

………………
ation Eleme

ment…………
………………

Tables and M

tomers……
………………

t Plants……
water Supply
2013-2023…
ovements P

ry 

ities 

ts 

………………

………………
………………

alysis  
………………
s………...……

………………
………………

………………
………………

………………
………………
Improveme

………………
………………
17/2018……

………………
………………
………………

an 
………………

………………
ent…………
………………
………………

Maps 

………………
………………

………………
y Facilities…

………………
Projects…..…

………………

………………
………………

………………
………………

………………
………………
………………
………………

………………
………………
ents 

….……………
………………
….…………

………………
………………

………………

………………
………………
………………

………………
………………

………………
………………
………………

………………
………………
………………

…………..Pa

……………Pa
…….…….Pa

……………Pa
…………...Pa
………….Pa
…………..Pa
…………...Pa
…………...Pa
………….Pa

……………Pa

……………Pa
……………Pa

………….Pa

…………Pag
………...Pag
…………Pag

…………..Pag
………...Pag
…………Pag

…………  Pag
…………..Pag

…………...Pa
…………...Pa
…………..Pa

…………...Pa
………….Pa

……………Pa

age ii 

age 1 
age 1 

age 3 
age 3 
age 4  
age 4 
age 5 
age 5 
age 5 
age 6 

age 7 
age 7 
age 9 

ge 10 
ge 10 
ge 11 

ge 12  
ge 13  
ge 13  
ge 13  
ge 14  

age 3  
age 3 
age 4 
age 6 
age 8 
age 9 

1. e. 
Page 7 of 68



 ii
 

 

ADF:   

AWS:  

CIP:  

CRSA:  

FDEP:  

F.S.:  

GPD:  

GPM:  

ID:  

KHA:  

MCL:  

MDF:  

MGD:   

NERSA:

NWRSA

PWS:  

RWSP: 

SCADA:

SERSA: 

SWFWM

WTP:  

WUP:  

 

Avera

Altern

Capit

Centr

Florid

Florid

Gallon

Gallon

Ident

Kimle

Maxim

Maxim

Millio

 North

A: North

Public

Regio

 Super

South

MD: South

Water

Water

age Daily Fl

native Wate

tal Improvem

ral Regional

da Departm

da Statutes 

ns per Day 

ns per Minu

ification 

ey-Horn and

mum Conta

mum Daily 

on gallons p

heast Region

hwest Regio

c water syst

onal Water S

rvisory Cont

heast Region

hwest Florid

r Treatmen

r Use Perm

Abb

low 

er Supply 

ments Plan

l Service Ar

ment of Envir

ute 

d Associates

aminant Lev

Flow 

er day 

n Service Ar

n Service A

tem 

Supply Plan

trol and Da

n Service Ar

da Water M

t Plant 

it 

breviations

rea 

ronmental P

s, Inc. 

vels 

rea 

Area 

n 

ta Acquisiti

rea 

anagement 

Protection

ion 

District 

1. e. 
Page 8 of 68



 
 

I. 

 

Local go
into the
managem
163.3177
(SWFWM
the Distr
Plan (Wo
the requ

Purpose 

The purp
that will
potable w
and end
Rather, 
adequate
statutory

The Wor
Utility D
and Ass
existing 
the City
examine

A subse
relation 
objective
are need

Statutor

The Wor
water su

F.S. 163

F.S. 163

 

Introduct

overnments 
eir local co
ment distric
7(6)(c). In 
MD) include
rict’s RWSP
ork Plan) h

uirements an

pose of the 
l be needed 
water servi

ding in 2023
the Work 

e water sup
y requireme

rk Plan has
Department 
ociates, Inc
and future

y’s service a
ed.  

quent purp
to the find

es, and polic
ded to imple

ry Requirem

rk Plan has 
upply and fa

.3.77(4)(a):  

.3177(6)(c): 

tion 

are require
omprehensiv
ct approves
July of 20

ed the north
P. As such, 
as been dev
nd guideline

City of Wild
to serve ex
ce area. Th
3.  Howeve
Plan shou

pply is avai
ents are bein

s been prep
with the ad

c. (KHA). T
e water faci
area. Exist

pose of the 
dings of the
cies of the C
ment the re

ments 

been devel
acility plann

Co
the

Re
to 

ed to prepa
ve plans w
s a Regiona
012, the S
hern planni
the City of 

veloped. Thi
es contained

dwood’s Wo
xisting and f
he Work Pla
er, the Work
ld be upda
ilable to the
ng met.  

pared by th
dvice of the

The Work P
ilities. The 
ing water 

Work Plan
e report.  Th
City’s Comp
ecommendat

oped to mee
ning: 

oordinate ap
e SWFWMD

evise the Pu
adopt the 

re and adop
within 18 m
l Water Su

Southwest F
ing region, w
Wildwood 

is Work Pla
d in Florida 

ork Plan is t
future devel

an covers a 
k Plan is n
ated every 
e customers

he City of W
e City’s civil
Plan provide
Work Plan
conservatio

n is to analy
he Work Pl
rehensive P
tions and fi

et the follow

ppropriate a
D’s RWSP 

ublic Faciliti
Work Plan

pt a water 
months aft

upply Plan (
Florida Wa
which inclu
10-Year Wa

an has been 
a Statutes an

to plan for w
lopment wi
ten-year tim

not intende
few years 

s within th

Wildwood’s 
l engineerin
es text, ma
forecasts p

on practices

yze the Cit
lan include

Plan and ide
ndings of th

wing statuto

aspects of th

ies Element
n to meet p

supply faci
ter their r
(RWSP) pu
ater Manag

udes Sumter
ater Supply
created in 

nd the SWF

water sourc
thin the Cit
meframe be
d to be a s
as approp

e service ar

Developme
ng consultan
aps, and ta
potable wat
s within th

ty’s compre
es an analy
entifies whe
he Work Pla

ory requirem

he comprehe

t of the com
projected de

ilities work 
espective w
rsuant to F
gement Dis
r County, w
y Facilities W

accordance 
FWMD’s RW

ces and faci
ty of Wildw

eginning in 
static docum
priate to en
rea and tha

ent Services
nt, Kimley-H

ables to des
ter usage w
he City are 

ehensive pla
sis of the g
ere amendm
an.  

ments (2012

ensive plan 

mprehensive 
emands; inc

plan 
water 
F.S. § 
strict 

within 
Work 
with 

WSP.  

ilities 
wood’s 

2013 
ment. 
nsure 
at all 

s and 
Horn 

scribe 
within 

also 

an in 
goals, 
ments 

2) for 

with 

plan 
clude 

1. e. 
Page 9 of 68



 
 

F.S. 163

F.S. 163

F.S. 163

  

 

 

.3177(6)(d)(

.3177(3)(a)4

.3177(6)(h)1

fac
con

(3): Re
ass
lev

4: Re
com
be 

1: Re
com
coo
Wa

 

cilities need
nservation a

evise the Co
sess current
vels of conse

evise the 
mprehensiv
implemente

evise the In
mprehensiv
ordinating 
ater Supply

ded to deve
and reuse m

onservation 
t and projec
ervation, an

Capital 
ve plan to id
ed in the fir

ntergovernm
ve plan to 

the compr
y Authority a

lop alterna
measures to 

Element of
cted water n

nd water sou

Improvem
dentify capit
rst 5 years o

mental Coo
adopt prin

rehensive 
and the SW

ative water 
meet future

f the compre
needs and s

urce protecti

ments Ele
tal improve
of the Work 

ordination 
nciples and
plan with 

WFWMD’s R

supply; ide
e needs 

ehensive pl
sources, exi
ion  

ment of 
ment projec
Plan 

Element of
d guidelines

Withlacoo
WSP 

entify 

an to 
isting 

the 
cts to 

f the 
s for 
ochee 

1. e. 
Page 10 of 68



 
 

II. 

 

The City
the City
family re

Commer

 

The City
connect 
Protectio
stages o
Floridan

Plant 

 
Notes:  Pl
 Pl

 

In 2011 
water, a
Average 
Monthly

 

 

Potable W

y of Wildwoo
y serves app
esidences.  

Typ
Residenti

rcial/Industr

y of Wildwo
to a commo
on (FDEP) 
of a sixth p
n Aquifer. Th

Number 
1 

2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

lant #6 has been
lant #7 is a futu

the City p
averaging a

Daily (AA
y daily avera

Water Data,

od’s potable
proximately

Table1: E

pe of User 
al Single Fa
rial/Professi
Total 

Wate

ood owns an
on distribut

Public Wa
potable trea
he City’s po

Servic
Ce

Sou

Sou
Nor
Nor
Sou
Nor

n taken offline a
ure water plant i

pumped, tre
approximate
AD) permitt
age is 7,657

, Inventory 

Potable W

e water serv
 4,162 conn

Existing Cit

amily 
ional/Irriga

ter Supply an

nd operates
ion system 
ter System

atment plan
otable water

Table 2: Po

ce Region 
entral 

utheast 

utheast 
rthwest 
rtheast 
utheast 
rthwest 

and is no longer 
in early design s

eated and d
ely 2,144,25
ted withdra
,000 GPD.

and Analys

Water Servic

vice area is s
nections wit

ty Potable W

tion

and Treatme

 five (5) pot
under the 

m (PWS) ID
nt with two
r plants are 

table Water

40

F

Cha

in use 
stages 

distributed 
52 gallons p
awal capac

sis 

ce Area 

shown on M
th the pred

Water Custo

Num

ent Facilitie

table water
Florida Dep

D#6600331. 
o (2) wells 
identified i

r Plants 

801
05 CR 501 (N

Correc
Okahum

SR 44 and 
Fairways Su
Wildwood E
ampagne F

approximat
per day (G

city is 4,98

Map 1. As sh
dominate us

omers 

mber of Met
3,240 
922 

4,162 

es 

r treatment
partment of
The City i
extending 

in Table 2 a

Location 
 Huey Stree
Near Colem
ctional Faci

mpka Service
CR 231 Inte
ubdivision (
Estates (SR 
arms (CR 2

tely 782,652
GPD). The s
80,000 GPD

hown on Tab
sers being s

ters 

t facilities w
f Environm
is in the de
into the L

nd on Map 

et 
man Federal 

lity) 
e Plaza 
ersection 
(CR 127A) 
 44 East) 
31 and I-75

2,000 gallon
system’s An

D and the 

ble 1, 
single 

which 
ental 
esign 

Lower 
2. 

5) 

ns of 
nnual 
Peak 

1. e. 
Page 11 of 68



 
 

The inte
maintain
the wate

The City
treatmen
are unde
storage t
tank, fiv
consistin
Map 2 id

 

F

Pl
Pl

Pl

Pl
Pl

Notes: The 
capacity. 

Plant #7
wells co
Septemb
to meet t

The City
working 
requirem

 

erconnected
ned water m
er treatment

y’s potable 
nt facilities 
er design), 
tank, one (

ve (5) high s
ng of high s
dentify the C

acility 

lant #1 
lant #2 

 
lant #3 

 
lant #4 
lant #5 
well pump valu

7 (Champag
nstructed o

ber 2010 aft
the statutor

o Condi
Aquif
 

o Condi
 

y is a memb
with the D

ments of the

d distributi
mains rangi
t facilities t

We

water distr
consisting 
one (1) 500
1) 500,000 
service pum
service pum
City’s potab

Table 2

W
We

High Se
We

High Se
W
W

ues are SWFWM

gne Farms)
on-site (per
ter being dr
ry definition

ition 1: The
fer and the L

Tests indi
ition 2: The 

Tests indi

ber of the W
Director in a
e WUP’s con

Distrib

ion system 
ng in size fr
hat serve th

Wells and Wa

ibution faci
of seven (7)

0,000 gallon
ground stor

mps, three (
mps and a 5

le water we

2: Wells and

 

Well Pump
ell Pumps (2
ervice Pump

ell Pumps (2
ervice Pump

Well Pump
Well Pump
MD permitted wi

 is in the e
mitted by t

rilled into th
n of an AWS

ere must n
Lower Flori
icate the we
water qual

icate the wa

Withlacooch
an effort to 
nditional req

ibution Syste

consists o
from 2” to 1
he City are p

ater Treatme

ilities are c
) active well

n elevated st
rage tank, 
3) hydro-pn

500,000 gall
ells and trea

d Water Tre

Pea

2) 
ps (4)
2) 
ps (1)

ithdrawal capac

early design
the SWFW
he Lower F
S source, the

not be a con
idan Aquifer
ells meet the
lity is requir
ater quality 

hee Regiona
have SWFW

quirement o

tem 

of approxim
6” in diame
permitted t

ment Plants

connected to
ls, five (5) i
torage tank
 one (1) 25

neumatic ta
lon ground 
atment plan

eatment Pla

ak Month A
(MGD) 
0.92275 

3.075 
5.04 

0.563186
0.7344 

0.379609
0.14022 

cities. The High 

n stages. T
WMD). These
Floridan Aqu
ey must me

nnection be
r. 
e criteria. 
red to be “br
does not m

al Water Su
WMD accep

of an AWS s

mately 85.4
eter. The Ci
through the 

o five (5) w
inactive wel
k, one (1) 1
5,000 gallon
anks and a 

storage tan
nts. 

ants 

ADF 

Service Pump v

There are pr
e wells wer
uifer. In ord
et two (2) co

etween the 

rackish.”  
eet the crite

upply Autho
pt the wells
source. 

4 miles of 
ity’s operati
FDEP.   

ater supply
lls (two of w
,000,000 gr

n ground sto
re-pump st
nk. Table 3

ADF  
(MGD) 
0.600 
2.000 
3.276 
0.366 
0.477 
0.246 
.0912 

values are rated

resently tw
re complete
der for the 
onditions. 

Upper Flor

eria. 

ority and sta
s as meeting

City 
ion of 

y and 
which 
round 
orage 
ation 

3 and 

d pump 

wo (2) 
ed in 
wells 

ridan 

aff is 
g the 

1. e. 
Page 12 of 68



 
 

It was n
2012. Ho
The City
off-line w
Plaza of 

Upon com
#5 will b
approxim
#3, #4, a
MGD).   

The City
gallons a
2,500,00

The City
3,500 GP
station r
plants t
emergen

The con
distribut
as a sour
The City
WUP au
quantitie

 

A modifi
2013. Th
withdraw
Table 4. 

 

 

noted in the 
owever, onl
y and the Fl
within the 
the Florida

mpletion of
be taken of
mately 36 m
and #5, Pla
 

y has three 
and one (1)

00 gallons.   

y has a tota
PM; one (1)
rated at a t
to a centra
ncy notificat

struction, o
tion facilitie
rce of raw w
y’s Water U
uthorizes t
es: 

 Annu
 Peak 

ication to th
his modific
wal. The g

previous u
y Plant #6 
orida Turnp
next 24 – 

a Turnpike. 

f the design
ff-line. The 

months. Upo
ant #7 will 

P

(3) ground 
) 500,000 g

H

l of eight (8
) at Plant #
total of 2,9

al Supervis
tion to the o

operation a
es are permi
water supply

Use Permit (
the withdra

ual Average 
Month Aver

he City’s W
ation made

groundwater

 

update that 
has been ta

pike Enterp
30 months.

, permitting
constructio

on completio
supply a s

Potable Wat

storage tan
gallon eleva

High Service

8) high servi
#3 rated at 
50 GPM. T
ory Contro
perator on c

Water Us

nd mainten
itted throug
y for treatm
(WUP) num
awal of gr

Daily Flow
rage Daily F

UP was iss
e no chang
r supply fa

Plants #4 a
aken off-lin

prise are pre
. Plant #3 i

g and constr
on of Plant 
on of constr
significant 

ter Storage F

nks, two (2) 
ated storage

e Pumping F

ice pumps, 
510 GPM a

The City is 
ol and Data
call. 

Use Permit (W

nance of th
gh the FDE

ment is gove
mber 200081
roundwater 

(ADF) – 4,9
Flow – 7,65

ued on Jan
es to the A

acilities gov

and #6 wou
ne while Pla
esently in ne
is located a

ruction of P
 #7 is antic

ruction and 
portion of 

Facilities 

500,000 ga
e tank for

Facilities 

four (4) at P
and three (
working on
a Acquisiti

(WUP) 

he City’s w
P, but the w

erned and pe
135.009 was

for public

980,000 GPD
7,000 GPD

nuary 25, 20
ADF withd
verned by 

uld be off-lin
ant #4 rema
egotiations 
at the Okah

Plant #7, bo
cipated to b
the abando
the City’s d

allons and o
a total stor

Plant #2, ra
3) at the C

n connecting
ion (SCADA

ater treatm
withdrawal 
ermitted by
s issued by 
c supply in

D 

012 and exp
drawal or th

the WUP 

ne by Septe
ains operati
to take Plan
humpka Se

oth Plant #4
be complete

onment of P
demand (1.

one (1) 1,000
rage capaci

ated at a tot
CR 214 Re-P

g the treat
A) system 

ment plants
of ground w

y the SWFW
SWFWMD

n the follo

pires on Jul
he Peak M
are outline

mber 
ional. 
nt #3 

ervice 

4 and 
ed in 
lants 
.6408 

0,000 
ity of 

tal of 
Pump 
ment 
with 

s and 
water 

WMD. 
. The 

owing 

ly 29, 
Month 
ed in    

1. e. 
Page 13 of 68



 
 

Water Pl
N

Hue
Tu
Tu

P
P

Police De
Wes

WW Cou
Wildwoo
WW Cou
Wildwoo

Fairw
Champa
Champa

Total
Notes: 
*: W
**: W
^: W
^^: W

pl

 

The City
permitti
Champa
indicate 

 

Maintain
compone
water su
organic a
As a res
water qu
regulatio

 

 

 

Tab

lant Common
Name 

 
y Street* 
rnpike* 
rnpike* 

Prison* 
Prison* 
epartment*,^
t Well1,4 

untry Resort –
od Estates*,^
untry Resort –
od Estates*,^
ways*,^^ 
agne Farm**
agne Farm**
l Quantity 

Wells produce from 
Wells produce from 
Wells produce from 
Wells produce from 

aced in production

y’s consulta
ng and co

agne Farm 
there is no 

ning high w
ents of the w
upply is belo
and inorgan
sult Plant N
uality produ
ons for the p

ble 4: Water

n Water 
Plant 

Number 
 
1 
3 
3 
2 
2 

^  
4 

– 
^ 

6 

– 
^ 

6 

5 
* 7 
* 7 

 

the Upper Florida
the Lower Florida
the Upper Florida
the Upper Florida

n. 

ant, KHA h
onstruction 

wells were
connection 

water qualit
water treatm
ow the Max
nic contamin
Nos. 2 & 3 
uced by all 
production o

r Use Perm

Well I

SWFWM
6 
12 
13 
14 
15 
18 
19 
20 

21 

22 
29 
30 

 

an Aquifer 
an Aquifer and are
an Aquifer and are
an Aquifer and ar

has develop
of the Ch

e construct
between th

Wa

y is a prior
ment faciliti
ximum Cont
nates with 
have aerati
five (5) wa

of safe drink

it Groundw

I.D. Number

MD City
11

SP-
SP-
SE-
SE-

18
WW-
WE-

WE_

FW-
CF-
CF-

e not in service at 
e no longer in use.
re scheduled to be 

ped a prelim
hampagne 
ed into th
e Upper and

ater Quality

ity for the C
ies are in go
taminate Le
the exceptio
ion treatme

ater treatme
king water.

 

water Supply

W

y 
 60
2 16
1 19
1 1,0
2 1,0
 2
44 24
-1 1

_2 1

-1 9
1 82
2 82

4,9

this time 
 
taken out of serv

minary des
Farm Wat
e Lower F
d Lower Flo

y

City of Wild
ood operatin
evels (MCL)
on of sulfid
ent facilities
ent plants m

y Facilities 

WUP 
ADF 

 
00,000 
69,100 
97,200 
000,000 
000,000 
2,000 
46,900 

16,100 

16,700 

91,200 
20,400 
20,400 
980,000 

vice upon the Cham

sign report 
ter Treatm
Floridan Aq
oridan aquif

dwood. Curr
ng condition
) for all cur

des at plant 
s for the su
meets all st

WUP
Peak Mon

ADF
 

922,750
259,991
303,195

1,537,50
1,537,50

3,075
379,609
24,754

25,676

140,220
1,261,36
1,261,36
7,657,00

mpagne Farm wel

for the de
ent Plant.

quifer and 
fers.  

rently, all m
n. The City’s
rently regu
numbers 2

ulfides. Fini
tate and fe

nth 

0 
1 
5 
00 
00 

9 
4 

6 

0 
65 
65 
00 

lls being 

esign, 
The 

tests 

major 
s raw 
lated 
 & 3. 
ished 
deral 

1. e. 
Page 14 of 68



 
 

III: 

The City
page. Th
includin
Next, th
not utili
believes 
assigned
smaller, 

Buildout
the Tabl
MGD wh

The esti
trends th
to believ
Villages,
commun

Over the
WTP an
Kimley H
for the n

The repo
meet the
in phase
provide 
span of t

  

 

Potable W

y’s 10-Year W
he projectio
g the Colem
e City accou
zed as a res
are on the

d to these p
infill projec

t scenarios h
le).  As show
hich represe

mates show
he City has 
ve substant
, available 

nity will to g

e last few y
nd transmis
Horn and A

new WTP an

ort indicate
e projected 
es. The first
4.5 MGD w

the Work Pl

Water Proje

Wat

Water Dem
ons were de
man Federa
unted for th
sult of execu
e horizon w
projects is 
cts within ea

have been c
wn in Table

ents a 58% i

wn in Table
been exper

tial and fas
infrastruc

grow.  

years, the C
sion system

Associates c
nd transmis

es the ultim
20-year dem
t phase wou
which shoul
lan. The sec

ctions and C

ter Demand

mand Project
eveloped by
al Correctio
he amount o
uted Develo

were also a
minimal. L
ach service 

calculated at
e 5, the Cit
increase in c

e 5 may be 
riencing ove
st-paced gr
cture that

Cham

ity of Wildw
m for the w
completed th
sion system

mate design 
mands. How
uld include 
ld be able t
cond phase w

Capital Imp

d Projections

tions (ADF)
y first ident
onal Facility
of committe
oper’s Agree
accounted fo
Lastly, estim
region. 

t 5 and 10 y
ty’s total pr
current dem

conservativ
r the last fe
owth is im
can accom

mpagne Farm

wood has be
ells at Cha
he Champa

m.   

capacity w
wever, the W

the constru
to accommo
will commen

provements

ns 2013-2023

 are shown 
tifying the 
y, the City

ed capacity 
ements.  Kn
or. Howeve
mates were

year increm
rojected wat
mand.     

ve and are 
ew years.  H

mminent du
mmodate g

rm 

een plannin
ampagne Fa
agne Farm 

will be 6.0 M
WTP will be
uction of th
odate the a
nce when w

3 

in Table 5 
existing se

y’s largest u
that has be

nown projec
er, the amo
e forecasted

ments (shown
ter demand

based on cu
However, th
e to the pr

growth, and

ng and prep
arm. In Nov
Preliminary

MGD which
e designed 

he necessary
nticipated g

warranted. 

on the follo
erved popul
utility custo
een reserved
cts that the
ount of buil
d to accoun

n as “% Bui
d in 2023 is

urrent econ
he City conti
roximity to
d political 

paring for a
vember of 2
y Design Re

h is sufficie
and constru
y componen
growth over

owing 
ation 
omer. 
d but 

e City 
ldout 

nt for 

ilt” in 
 3.62 

nomic 
inues 

o The 
and 

a new 
2012, 
eport 

nt to 
ucted 
nts to 
r the 

1. e. 
Page 15 of 68



 

  

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

  
S

E
R

V
IC

E
A

R
E

A
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

S
 W

IT
H

  
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

F
U

T
U

R
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
S

 

  

   

AR

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
R

E
A

 

Existing Served 
Coleman Prison 
Infill 1 (City, Nor

Infill 2 (City, We

Infill 3 (City, Eas

Infill 4 (West SR

Infill 5 (East SR 

Infill 6 (US 301, 
Infill 7 (CR 501) 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 

301 S. Office Com

Amprop Corners

CFUS (IMRT Ce
Harry Harmer In
Hi-End Developm

Homes in Partne

Lake Andrew Pr

Lakeside Landin
Maricamp, LLC 
Mercantile Bank
Oxford Crossings

Parkwood Sumte
Triumph South  
Turkey Run 
Turkey Run (Fut

Landstone DRI 

Wildwood Spring

Southern Oaks D

Tradewinds Villa

Wildwood Crossi

Quadventure 

O'Dell PD 

Monarch Ranch 

Sumter LLC 

Lee Capital 

Total 

REA 

Area 

rth) 

est) 

st) 

R 44) 

44) 

South of Turnpike) 

mplex 

s, Inc. 

enter) 
ndustrial Park 
ment 

ership 

eserve 

ngs 

k 
s Partnership 

er Properties 

ture) 

gs DRI 

DRI 

age PD 

ings 

Table

Current (20
Population ERU

8,324 4,16

7,500 3,48
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

15,824 7,65

e 5: Water Dem

013) 
Us GPD % 

2 1,061,310 

8 1,046,512 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 2,107,822 

mand Projection

201
Built Population

81 8,754 

100 7,500 
68 2,224 

24 261 

55 1,524 

15 20 

10 147 

23 132 

52 72 

25 8 

25 67 

25 12 

25 3 
25 230 

25 10 

25 109 

25 59 

25 93 
25 1 
25 278 

100 99 
25 20 
25 37 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

  21,660 

ns for 2013-2023

18 
ERUs GPD

4,377 1,116,12

3,488 1,046,51
967 290,087

113 33,991

663 198,809

9 2,635

64 19,148

57 17,243

31 9,443

3 998 

29 8,775

5 1,575

2 450 
100 30,000

4 1,275

48 14,250

26 7,725

41 12,150
0 105 

121 36,225

43 12,900
9 2,550
16 4,875

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

10,216 2,867,84

3 

% Built Pop

20 86 

12 100 
7 79 

1 42 

9 67 

44 

8 31 

3 41 

64 

50 

50 

50 

50 
0 50 

50 

0 50 

50 

0 50 
50 

5 50 

0 50 
50 
50 

50 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

41   2

2023 
pulation ERUs 

9,352 4,676 

7,500 3,488 
2,571 1,118 

462 201 

1,832 796 

59 26 

475 207 

239 104 

89 39 

15 7 

135 59 

24 11 

7 3 
460 200 

20 9 

219 95 

118 52 

186 81 
2 1 

555 242 

49 22 
39 17 
75 33 

472 205 

958 417 

339 147 

537 233 

95 41 

25 11 

39 17 

83 36 

259 112 

61 26 

99 43 

27,449 12,772

GPD 

1,192,362 

1,046,512 
335,374 

60,235 

238,930 

7,748 

62,009 

31,200 

11,583 

1,995 

17,550 

3,150 

900 
60,000 

2,550 

28,500 

15,450 

24,300 
210 

72,450 

6,450 
5,100 
9,750 

61,500 

124,995 

44,160 

69,990 

12,375 

3,270 

5,145 

10,770 

33,735 

7,920 

12,975 

3,621,142 

1. e. 
Page 16 of 68



 
 

In order
improvem
Champa
listed re
Plan.  

 

  

The prel
system. A
addition
24” wate
estimate
costs rep
report. 

These pr
sources f

 F
 S
 W
 C

 

 

r to address
ment proje

agne Farm W
epresent the

T

De
Champ

WTP
Champ

Tran
System
extens
Champ

Tran
System
exten

214
inte

liminary de
An analysis
al infrastru

er main exte
ed cost of th
present the

rojects are 
for the need

Florida Rura
State Revolv
Water and W
Connection a

Capital 

s future pot
cts that ar

WTP and tr
e potable w

Table 6: Pota

scription 
pagne Farm

P (Phase 1) 
pagne Farm
nsmission 
m: 24” Main
ion to SR 44
pagne Farm
nsmission 
m: 24” Main
nsion to CR 
4/CR 209 
ersection 

esign report
s was perfor
ucture. In a
ensions need

he three imp
e Engineer’

currently u
ded improve

al Water Ass
ving Fund L
Waste Dispo
and Transm

l Improveme

table water 
re necessar

ransmission
water compo

able Water 

Ti
m 

FY 

m 

n 
4 

FY 

m 

n 
FY 

t included a
rmed to iden

addition to t
ded to conn

provements 
’s Opinion 

unfunded.  H
ements. Pote

sociation Lo
oan Program
sal Loan an

mission Infra
 

ents 2012/20

needs with
ry. The thr
 system and

onent of the

Capital Imp

imeframe 

2015/2016

2015/2016

2015/2016

an extensiv
ntify the loc
the costs of
ect the new
listed in Ta
of Cost con

However, th
ential fundi

oan Program
m – Drinkin

nd Grant Pr
astructure E

013 – 2017/2

hin the serv
ree projects
d are includ
e City’s ove

provements

$

$

$

e analysis o
cation and m
f constructin

w WTP to the
able 6 is at e
ntained wi

he City is e
ing sources 

ms 
ng Water 
ogram 

Extension fe

/2018 

vice area, t
s are assoc
ded in Table
erall Capita

s Projects 

Cost 

$8,238,000 

$4,206,000 

$5,814,000 

of the exist
magnitude 
ng the WTP
e existing sy
estimated $
ith the pre

exploring po
include: 

ees (impact 

here are ca
ciated with
e 6. The pro

al Improvem

ting distribu
of the neces

P, there are
ystem. The 

$18,258,000
liminary de

otential fun

fees)   

apital 
h the 
ojects 
ments 

ution 
ssary 
e two 
total 
. The 
esign 

nding 

1. e. 
Page 17 of 68



 
 

IV. 

The Cit
effective
The Vill
Country 

 T
su
a 
su

 T
a 
2
co
 

The City
reuse is 

The Cit
Memora
undeterm
water sy
will the r

Presentl

 

 

 

Reuse 

ty will con
ly using reu
lages Water
Club to sup

The agreeme
upplied is o
minimum o

upplying ap
The original 

supplemen
1, 2001. Th
ourse. Prese

y is presentl
being used 

ty has sold
ndum of U
mined quan
ystem for ir
reuse system

ly there are 

ntinue its 
use water fo
r Conserva
pply reuse w

ent with th
n a sliding 
of 1.5 MGD 
pproximatel

agreement 
ntal agreeme
ese agreem
ently the Ci

ly producing
by the Sham

d reservati
Understandi
ntity of reuse
rrigation pu
m. 

no expansio

 

Existin

commitmen
or non-potab
tion Author

water for us

he Authority
scale, this b
and a maxi
y 1.124 MG
with the R

ent with Br
ents were fo

ity is averag

g an averag
mrock Indus

Futur

ons for an
ng with th
e. New deve

urposes whe

ons planned

ing Conditio

nt to reduc
ble uses. Cu
rity, LLC (
e on the res

y sunsets o
being the 8th

imum of 2.0
GD. 
Rolling Hills 
rass Boys En
for the City 
ging supplyi

e of 1.552 M
strial Park 

 

re Condition

n additiona
he Landston
elopment is 
en available

d in the 5-ye

ons 

ce potable 
urrently the
(the Author
spective golf

on July 7, 2
h year of the
0 MGD. Pres

 Country C
nterprises w
to supply 0
ing approxim

MGD of reus
and several

ns 

al 0.447 M
ne developm
required to

e. As growth

ear capital i

groundwat
e City has a
rity) and th
f courses. 

2014. The a
e agreement
sently the C

lub is dated
was entered
0.3 MGD of 
mately 0.18

se water. Th
l small City

MGD of reu
ment to sup
o connect to
h in the Cit

improvemen

ter demand
agreements 
he Rolling 

amount of r
t which req

City is avera

d April 11, 1
d into on Oct
reuse to the

854 MGD. 

he balance o
y owned site

use and h
pply it wit
 the City’s r
ty occurs, s

nts plan. 

d by 
with 
Hills 

reuse 
uires 
aging 

1994; 
tober 
e golf 

of the 
es. 

has a 
th an 
reuse 
so too 

1. e. 
Page 18 of 68



 
 

V. 

The SW
resource

The City
also em
developm

 P
 Ir

a

 A
 R
 P

in
 P

Utilizing
plans to 
to recogn

 

 

Water Co
 

WFWMD’s R
es more effic

y’s Compreh
mphasize co
ment and re

Promote com
rrigation pla
nd contain w

o Rain 
o Check
o A min
o A m

buildi
o No di
o Water
o Micro
o Turf 

irriga
o Recla

lieu o
o High 

soils 
surviv

All irrigation
Reuse water 
Promotion of
n all Planne

Promotion of

g technology
implement 

nize a leak o

onservation 

RWSP place
ciently, futu

hensive Pla
onservation

edevelopmen

mpact develo
aced in new
water wise 
sensors for 
k values to p
nimum sepa
inimum se
ings/vertica
rect spray o
r conveyanc

o-irrigation r
grass, annu

ation zones f
imed water
f potable wa
water use z
and requir

ve) are limit
n practices s

must be ut
f low flow f
ed Developm
f  water star

y can also h
a water me

on the custo

 

ed an emph
ure demand 

an, Land De
n.  These 
nt to contain

opment that
w developme

irrigation sy
automatic s
prevent low
aration of 4”
eparation 

al structures
on to walkw
ce systems w
required for
uals flower
from tree, sh
r, surface wa
ater if avail
zones (plant
re supplem
ted to 33% o
shall be in a
ilized for irr

facets, show
ments) 
r appliances

have a positi
eter replace
omer’s side o

hasis on wa
can be redu

evelopment 
regulation

n water con

t utilizes res
ent is requir
ystems whi
shutoff; 

w head drain
” between di
of 12” be

s; 
ways and pav
with a veloc
r tree, shrub
s, and vege
hrub, and g
ater, or stor
lable; 
ts and turf 

mental wate
of the total l
accordance w
rigation if a

wer heads, a

s (required i

ive impact o
ment progr
of the meter

ater conser
uced and off

Regulation
ns and sta
nservation fe

sources effic
red to be Flo
ich shall uti

nage; 
istribution e
etween dis

vement; 
city of five (5
b, and groun
etable gard

groundcover
rmwater sh

types which
er in addit
landscaped 
with the SW
available 
and toilets w

in all Plann

on water us
ram with me
r. 

rvation. By 
fset.  

ns, and Cod
andards re
eatures incl

ciently; 
orida Friend
ilize: 

equipment 
tribution e

5) feet per s
ndcover bed

dens are to 
r areas; 
hall be used 

h are associ
tion to nat

area 
WFWMD’s re

within stru

ned Develop

sage. In the 
eters having

utilizing w

de of Ordina
equire all 
uding: 

dly Landsca

and paveme
equipment 

second or les
ds; 

be on sepa

for irrigati

iated with m
ural rainfa

egulations

uctures (requ

pments) 

future, the
g the techno

water 

ances 
new 

aping 

ent 
and 

ss 

arate 

on in 

moist 
all to 

uired 

e City 
ology 

1. e. 
Page 19 of 68



 
 

VI. M

The City
availabil
coordina
recomme
requirem

Public F

 D
th

 C
d
su

 C
W

 C
th
im

 

 
Modification

 

y’s 2035 Com
lity of wa

ation with 
endations a

ments 

acilities Ele

Delete Policy
he SWFWM

Create Polic
distribution 
sufficient fun
Create new 
Work Plan: 

o Policy
Year 
2012. 
issues
serve 
City s
chang
in the
consis
Impro

o Policy
Work

o Policy
expan
and d

o Policy
Mana
Distri

Create Objec
the use of 
mplement th

o Policy
netwo
for irr

s to the Com

mprehensiv
ater supply

the Southw
are made 

ement: 

y 1.3.9 conc
MD updating
cy 1.1.12 “
facilities, t

nds to provi
policies to 

y 1.3.13 The
Water Sup
The Work 

s that pert
existing an

shall review
ges to occur 
e annual u
stency betw
ovements E
y 1.3.14 The
 Plan on an
y 1.3.15 Th
nsion and u
distribute po
y 1.3.16 Th
agement Dis
ict’s Region
ctive 1.11 “T

reuse wat
he objective
y 1.11.1 Th
ork to serve
rigation. 

mprehensiv

ve Plan cont
y and faci
west Florid
to ensure 

cerning upd
g the RWSP
“The City s
take steps t
ide water to 
adopt and 

e City here
pply Faciliti
Plan shall c
ain to wate
nd future d
w and upda
within the 
pdate to th
ween the 
lement. 
e City shall

n annual bas
e Work Pla

upgrade of f
otable water
he City sha
strict to as
al Water Su
The City wi
ter and co
e: 
he City sha
e additional 

e Plan  

tains goals, 
ilities, wat
da Water M
the Compr

ating the P
P. 
shall main
to reduce d

o meet existi
implement

eby adopts b
ies Work P
cover a 10 y
er supply f
developmen
ate the Wor
first five ye

he Capital I
Public Fa

l assess the
sis. 
an shall be 
facilities use
r to meet fu
ll coordinat
sure the co

upply Plan.
ill strive to 
onservation 

all expand 
large users

objectives 
ter conserv
Managemen
rehensive P

Public Facili

ntain adequ
demand for 
ting and futu
t the 10-Yea

by reference
Plan (Work 
year plannin
facilities an

nt within th
rk Plan at l
ears of the W
Improveme
acilities E

e effectivene

used to pr
ed to withd

uture needs.
te with the
onsistency o

offset potab
programs.

the reuse 
s and contin

and policies
vation, wat
nt District.
Plan meets

ities Elemen

uate water 
potable wa

ure needs.” 
ar Water S

e the City o
Plan) date

ng period an
nd requirem
he City’s se
least every 

Work Plan s
nts Plan u
lement an

ess and per

rioritize and
draw, transm
 

e Southwest
of the Work

ble water de
.” Create n

water syst
nue to reduc

s concerning
ter reuse, 
. The follo
s the statu

nt as a resu

treatment 
ater, and se

Supply Faci

of Wildwood
d Decembe
nd shall add

ments neede
ervice area.

five years.
shall be incl
pdate to en

nd the Ca

rformance o

d coordinate
mit, treat, s

t Florida W
k Plan with

demands thr
new policie

tem distribu
ce potable w

g the 
and 

owing 
utory 

ult of 

t and 
ecure 

ilities 

d 10-
er 15, 
dress 
ed to 
. The 
 Any 

luded 
nsure 
apital 

of the 

e the 
store, 

Water 
h the 

rough 
es to 

ution 
water 

1. e. 
Page 20 of 68



 
 

 
Conserva

 C
co

 
Intergov

 C
W
F

Capital I

 C
W
Im
W

 C
th
T
th

 M
p
 

 

 

 

o Policy
conne

o Policy
suppl
surfac

o Policy
Mana
regula
used. 

ation Eleme
Create new P
onserve wat

vernmental 
Create new 
Water Mana
Facilities Wo

Improvemen

Create new P
Work Plan 
Improvemen
Work Plan.” 
Create new 
the Work Pl
This schedul
the capital p
Modify the 5

rojects iden

y 1.11.2 The
ect to the Ci
y 1.11.3 In
ied from a v
ce water wh
y 1.11.4 T
agement Di
ations and p

ent: 
Policy 1.4.5
ter.” 

Coordinatio
Policy 1.2.

agement Dis
ork Plan wit

nts Element

Policy 1.1.6
(Work Plan

nts to includ
”

Policy 1.1.7
lan shall be
le shall be u

projects with
5-Year Sche
ntified in the

 

e City shall
ity’s reuse w
n addition 
variety of a
here permitt
The City 
istrict’s wa
programs de

5 “The City 

on Element:
11 “The Ci

istrict to ass
ith the Distr

t: 

6 “The City 
n) annually
de related w

7 “Capital I
e included i
updated ann
h the capital
edule of Cap
e Work Plan

l require ne
water system

to groundw
lternative s
ted. 
shall supp
ter reuse p
esigned to i

shall contin

 
City shall co
sure the con
rict’s Region

shall review
y together w

work projects

Improvemen
in the 5-Yea
nually, as ne

al projects id
pital Impro
n. 

ew developm
m when ava
water, futu

sources, incl

port the S
projects an
increase the

nue to inves

oordinate w
nsistency of
nal Water Su

w the 10-Ye
with the 5
s identified 

nts identifie
ar Schedule

necessary, to
dentified in t
ovements to

ment and re
ailable. 
ure water 
luding recla

Southwest 
nd impleme
e volume of 

stigate strat

with the Sou
f the 10-Yea

Supply Plan.

Year Water S
5-Year Sche

d in the first 

ied in the fi
e of Capital
o maintain c
the Work Pl
o include th

edevelopme

needs shal
aimed water

Florida W
entation of 
reclaimed w

ategies to fur

outhwest Flo
ar Water Su
.” 

Supply Faci
edule of Ca
t five years o

irst five yea
l Improvem
consistency 

Plan.” 
he potable w

ent to 

ll be 
r and 

Water 
new 

water 

urther 

lorida 
upply 

ilities 
apital 
of the 

ars of 
ments. 
y with 

water 

1. e. 
Page 21 of 68



 
 

VII. C

 

The 10-Y
163.3177
Supply P
over the 

The follo

 T
w

 T
M

 T
en

 T
 T

a
 T

 

 

Conclusion 

Year Water 
7(6)(c) and 
Plan. The W
next ten ye

owing are th

The City pu
water per, av
The system’
Monthly dail
The construc
nsure adequ

o The f
to pro
growt

o Total 
$18,2

The City sho
The City’s re

nd 
The Compreh

Supply Fac
the Southw

Work Plan d
ears.  

he key findin

umps, treats
veraging ap
s Annual A
ly average i
ction of the 
uate water s
first phase w
ovide 4.5 M
th over the s

unfunded
58,000.  

ould explore
egulations 

hensive Pla

cilities Work
west Florid
demonstrat

ngs and rec

s, and distr
proximately

Average Da
s 7.65 MGD
Champagne
supply over
would inclu

MGD which 
span of the 
d infrastru

 and encour
and standa

an should be

k Plan has b
a Water M
es how the 

ommendati

ributes app
y 2.14 MGD
aily (AAD) 
D; 
e Farm WT
 the life of t

ude the cons
should be 

Work Plan.
ucture im

rage the exp
ards contain

e amended t

been drafte
Management

 City inten

ions of the W

proximately 
D per day; 

capacity is

TP and distr
the Work Pl
struction of
able to acc

.   
mprovements

pansion of it
n strong wa

to include th

ed in accord
t District’s 

nds to meet 

Work Plan: 

782.652 m

s 4.98 MGD

ribution syst
lan; 
f the necess
commodate 

s (FY 20

ts reuse sys
ater conserv

he recomme

dance with F
Regional W
water dem

million gallo

D and the 

tem is need

sary compon
the anticip

015/2016) 

stem; 
vation pract

endations. 

F.S. § 
Water 
mands 

ns of 

Peak 

ded to 

nents 
pated 

total 

tices; 

1. e. 
Page 22 of 68



S
R

   93

S
R

   
35

SR   4
4

SR   91

S
R

  4
7

1

SR   48

SR  500

S
R

  4
7

5

S
R

   
35

S
R

   
35

CR  466

CR   48

CR  470

CR   44A

C
R

  4
75

CR  476

CR  468

CR  466A

C
R

  2
09

CR  462

CR  472

C
R

  469C
R

  4
78

CR  104

C
R

  1
01

CR  202

CR  476A

CR  462

C
R

  4
75

CR   48

CR   
48

C
R

  4
70

C
R

  475

C
R

  4
62

C
R

  470

CR  476

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December  2012 Map 1

Water Service Area Boundary
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 5,700 11,400

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\W
ate

rse
rvi

ce
bo

un
da

ry.
mx

d -
 12

/11
/20

12
 1:

20
:51

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

Legend
Water Service Area Boundary

Wildwood

Parcels

1. e. 
Page 23 of 68



!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

37PS

]]

Fairways WTP

Huey Street
WTP

Okahumpka Service Plaza
WTP

CR 501 WTP

West Well
WTP

CR 214 WTP

CR  466

CR   44A

CR  468

C
R

  2
09

CR  475

CR  462

CR  466A

CR  472

CR  104

C
R

  1
01

C
R

  470

CR  202

C
R

  4
62

C
R

  475

CR  462

S
R

   93

SR   44

SR   91

S
R

   
35

S
R

   35

S
R

   
35

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December  2012 Map 2

Existing Facilities
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 3,250 6,500

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g F

ac
ilit

ies
.m

xd
 - 1

2/1
1/2

01
2 1

:24
:42

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

Legend
]] Water Tower

37PS Repump Station

!( Existing Wells

Water Main
Diameter

16" Water Main

12" Water Main

10" Water Main

8" Water Main

8" Water Main (Dry)

6" Water Main

4" Water Main

2" Water Main

City of Wildwood

1. e. 
Page 24 of 68



!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

37PS

]]

Future Champagne
 Farms WTP

^

Proposed connection 
option 1

Proposed connection 
option 2

West Well WTP
Fairways WTP

Huey Street WTP

Okahumpka WTP

CR 501 WTP

CR 214 WTP

CR  466

CR   44A

CR  470

CR  468

C
R

  2
09

C
R

  4
75

CR  462

CR  466A

CR  472

C
R

  1
01

C
R

  4
62

C
R

  475

C
R

  470

CR  462

S
R

   93

SR   44

SR   91

S
R

   
35

S
R

   35

S
R

   
35

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 3

Future Facilities
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 3,250 6,500

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\F
utu

re 
Fa

cil
itie

s.m
xd

 - 1
2/1

1/2
01

2 1
:26

:12
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

Legend
WTPs

Proposed Water Main
24" Water Main

Water Main
Diameter

16" Water Main

12" Water Main

10" Water Main

8" Water Main

8" Water Main (Dry)

6" Water Main

4" Water Main

2" Water Main

37PS Repump Station

]] Water Tower

!( Existing Wells

City of Wildwood

1. e. 
Page 25 of 68



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ordinance O2013-01 

 
“Exhibit B” 

 
Text Amendments to the Public Facilities, Conservation 

Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital Improvements Elements 
of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan 

 

1. e. 
Page 26 of 68



 
 

77

Chapter 4 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 

Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced in this Element Shall he Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
the Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment of this Element. 

GOAL 1 Needed public facilities shall be provided in a manner which protects 
investments in existing facilities and promotes orderly, compact urban growth. 

Objective 1.1  The City shall enforce procedures to ensure that adequate public facility 
capacity is available or will be available when needed to serve the development. 

Policy 1.1.1  The following level of service standards are hereby adopted and shall be 
used as the basis for determining the availability of facility capacity and the demand 
generated by a development: 

Sanitary Sewer  250 gallons per day per ERC 
Potable Water  300 gallons per day per ERC 
Solid Waste 2.04 lbs/capita/day (in accordance with the 

level of service established by the County – 
Source: Sumter Utilities Element Policy 
4.3.1.2  

Drainage/Stormwater Facilities shall be designed to accommodate the 25-
year, 24-hour design storm to meet the water quality and quantity 
standards that follow: 

a. Water Quantity     Peak post-development runoff shall not exceed 
peak pre-development runoff rates. 

b. Water Quality Treatment of stormwater runoff shall be 
required for all development, redevelopment and, when expansion 
occurs, existing developed areas. The stormwater treatment system 
or systems can be project specific, serve sub-areas within the City 
or be a system to serve the entire City. Regardless of the area 
served and in accordance with Chapter 62-25, F.A.C., the 
stormwater treatment systems must provide a level of treatment for 
the runoff from the first one (1) inch of rainfall for projects in 
drainage basins of 100 acres or more, or as an option for projects 
with drainage basins less than 100 acres, the first on-half (1/2) inch 
of runoff in order to meet receiving water quality standards of 
Chapter 62¬302, Section 62-302,500, F.A.C. Stormwater 

1. e. 
Page 27 of 68



 
 

78

discharge facilities shall be designed so as to not lower receiving 
water quality or degrade the receiving water body below the 
minimum conditions necessary to assure the suitability of water for 
the designated use of its classification as established in Chapter 62-
302, F.A.C. It is intended that all standards in these citations are to 
apply to all development and redevelopment and that any 
exemptions or exceptions in these citations including project size 
thresholds, are not applicable. 

Infill residential development within improved residential areas or 
subdivisions existing prior to the adoption of this comprehensive 
plan, must ensure that its post-development stormwater runoff will 
not contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the 
entire improved area or subdivision to degrade receiving water 
bodies and their water quality as stated above. 

In order to ensure that level of service standards are maintained, 
methodologies for determining available capacity and demand 
shall incorporate appropriate peak demand coefficients for each 
facility and for the type of development proposed. 

Policy 1.1.2 All improvements for replacement, expansion, or increase in capacity of 
facilities shall be compatible with the level of service standard for the facilities.  

Policy 1.1.3 The City shall develop procedures to update facility demand and capacity 
information as development orders are issued. 

Policy 1.1.4 The City shall prepare annual summaries of capacity and demand 
information for each facility. 

Policy 1.1.5 The City shall enforce the public works manual for the design of water 
systems as well as other public systems; consideration of the standards provided in the 
Sumter County Water Supply Master Plan prepared by the WRWSA shall be made for 
inclusion in the adopted manual.  Further consideration of the SWFWMD rules provided 
in Florida Statutes 120 and 373 and Florida Administrative Code 40D and 4D will also be 
given during preparation of updates to the public works manual for design of water 
systems. 

OBJECTIVE 1.2 The City will maintain a five-year schedule of capital 
improvement needs for public facilities, to be reviewed and updated annually in 
conformance with the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.2.1 Proposed capital improvement projects will be evaluated and ranked 
according to the following priority level guidelines. 

1. e. 
Page 28 of 68



 
 

79

Level 1  Whether the project is needed to protect public 
health and safety, to fulfill the City's legal 
commitment to provide facilities and services, or 
to preserve or achieve full use of existing 
facilities. 

Level 2  Whether the project increases efficiency of use 
of existing facilities, prevents or reduces future 
improvements costs, provides service to developed 
areas lacking service or promotes infill 
development. 

Level 3 Whether the project represents a logical extension 
of facilities and services within a designated 
service area. 

OBJECTIVE 1.3 The City of Wildwood shall provide water services to meet 
the existing and projected demands identified in this element, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.3.1 All identified potable water improvement projects will be scheduled 
according to rank during the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.2 The City shall determine at least annually whether new water wells are 
needed and/or whether existing wells need to be abandoned and capped. Funds as 
needed will be scheduled through the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.3 The City shall monitor and repair and/or replace water distribution lines 
as needed. Funds for repair and/or replacement of water distribution lines will be 
scheduled as part of the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.4 Projects to correct existing deficiencies shall be given priority in the 
formulation and implementation of City programs. 

Policy 1.3.5 No permits shall be issued for new development which would result 
in an increase in demand on deficient facilities prior to completion of improvements 
needed to bring the facility up to standard. 

Policy 1.3.6 Extension of water lines for new development shall be made consistent 
with the Future Land Use Element and scheduled during the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.7 The City shall extend water lines to existing subdivisions when it is 
economically feasible. However, the City will extend water lines, when 
requested, if the subdivision is owned by an individual or group of individuals and 
the owner(s) are willing to pay for costs of expansion. 

1. e. 
Page 29 of 68



 
 

80

Policy 1.3.8 The City shall locate new wellfields so as to protect the quality of ground 
and surface water. 

Policy 1.3.9     This element shall be reviewed and revised within 18 months as 
required by s. 373.0361(7), Florida Statue (F.S.) and s.163.3177(6)(c), F.S. after the 
Southwest Florida Water Management District approves an updated regional water 
supply plan.  The review and revisions should include: 

1. Identification and incorporation of the alternative supply project(s) selected by 
the City from the projects identified in the updated regional water supply plan, or an 
alternative project proposed by the City. 
2. Identification of traditional and alternative water supply projects, bulk sales 
agreements, and the conservation and reuse programs necessary to meet current and 
future water use demands within the City’s service area. 
3. An updated water supply facilities work plan for at least a 10-year planning 
period for constructing the public, private, and regional water supply facilities 
identified in the element as necessary to serve existing and new development. 

Policy 1.3.109 The City shall ensure that adequate water supplies and facilities are 
available to serve new development no later than the date on which the City anticipates 
issuing a certificate or occupancy and consult with the applicable water supplier prior 
to approving a building permit, to determine whether adequate water supplies will be 
available to serve the development by the anticipated issuance date of the certificate of 
occupancy per 163.3180(2)(a), F.S. 

Policy 1.3.1110 The City shall continue to coordinate with SWFWMD, Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection, and other public and private utilities to 
investigate, develop and implement use of stormwater and water reuse as alternatives to 
the use of groundwater for irrigation purposes. 

Policy 1.3.1211 In coordination with the Conservation Element, continue to 
implement conservation initiatives through development of surface water and storm water 
irrigation sources for either direct irrigation and or to serve as reclaimed water 
augmentation sources associated with the public reclaimed water system.  

Policy 1.1.12 The City shall maintain adequate water treatment and distribution 
facilities, take steps to reduce demand for potable water, and secure sufficient funds to 
provide water to meet existing and future needs. 

Policy 1.3.13 The City hereby adopts by reference the City of Wildwood 10-Year Water 
Supply Facilities Work Plan (Work Plan) dated December 15, 2012. The Work Plan shall 
cover a 10 year planning period and shall address issues that pertain to water supply 
facilities and requirements needed to serve existing and future development within the 
City’s service area. The City shall review and update the Work Plan at least every five 
years. Any changes to occur within the first five years of the Work Plan shall be included 
in the annual update to the Capital Improvements Plan update to ensure consistency 
between the Public Facilities Element and the Capital Improvements Element. 

1. e. 
Page 30 of 68



 
 

81

Policy 1.3.14 The City shall assess the effectiveness and performance of the Work Plan 
on an annual basis. 
 
Policy 1.3.15 The Work Plan shall be used to prioritize and coordinate the expansion and 
upgrade of facilities used to withdraw, transmit, treat, store, and distribute potable water 
to meet future needs. 
 
Policy 1.3.16 The City shall coordinate with the Southwest Florida Water Management 
District to assure the consistency of the Work Plan with the District’s Regional Water 
Supply Plan. 

OBJECTIVE 1.4 The City shall implement an education program for the public on 
the conservation of water. 

Policy 1.4.1 The City will coordinate with the SWFWMD in order to educate home 
owners and businesses on water saving devices and methods. 

Policy 1.4.2    The City shall develop a City government website to assist with public 
education by 2013 as agreed per the Conservation Plan submitted to the SWFWMD 
in 2007 as part of the Water Use Permitting process. 

OBJECTIVE 1.5  The City of Wildwood shall provide sanitary sewer services 
to meet existing and projected demands identified in this element, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.5.1 All identified sanitary sewer improvement projects shall be scheduled 
during the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.5.2  The City shall monitor and repair and/or replace sewer distribution 
lines as needed. Funds for repair and/or replacement of sewer distribution lines will be 
scheduled as part of the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.5.3 Projects to correct existing deficiencies shall be given priority in the 
formulation and implementation or City programs. 

Policy 1.5.4 No permits shall be issued for new development which would result 
in an increase in demand on deficient facilities prior to completion of improvements 
needed to bring the facility up to standard.  

Policy 1.5.5 Extension of sewer lines for new development shall be made consistent with 
the Future Land Use Element and scheduled for during the annual budget process. 

OBJECTIVE 1.6 The City of Wildwood shall coordinate with the County in 
order to meet the existing and projected solid waste demand needs identified in this 
element, the Comprehensive Plan, and the Capital Improvements Element. 

1. e. 
Page 31 of 68



 
 

82

Policy 1.6.1 The City shall coordinate with Sumter County on the extension of, or 
the increase in capacity of solid waste facilities to meet future needs based on the 
projected future demand on County facilities. 

Policy 1.6.2 Projects to correct existing deficiencies shall be given priority in the 
formulation and implementation of City programs. 

Policy 1.6.3 The City of Wildwood shall coordinate with the County in 
monitoring existing wells in the vicinity of abandoned landfill sites in order to prevent 
potential groundwater contamination from the abandoned landfills. 

OBJECTIVE 1.7 Adequate stormwater drainage will be provided to afford 
reasonable protection from flooding and to prevent degradation of the quality of 
receiving waters. 

Policy 1.7.1 The City shall enforce Land Development Regulations to provide for 
protection of natural drainage features and ensure that future development utilizes 
stormwater best management practices. 

Policy 1.7.2 The City shall utilize the following policies in planning for the 
drainage system. These policies shall also become a part of the development 
regulations of the City: 
a. New developments are required to manage runoff so that post-development runoff 
rates, volumes, and pollutant loads do not exceed pre-development conditions. 
b. Stormwater engineering, design and construction standards for on-site systems 
are to be in conformance with Chapter 40D-4 and 40D-40, F.A.C. 
c. Erosion and sediment controls are to be used during development. 
d. Developer/applicant will obtain relevant stormwater management permits from 
SWFWMD prior to receiving final approval from the City of Wildwood. 
e. Periodic inspection and maintenance of on-site systems shall be required of the 
entity that has the legal responsibility under the MSSW, ERP, and stormwater 
management permits issued by the SWFWMD and or the owner(s) of the property 
upon which said system resides. 

Policy 1.7.3 The natural functions of the floodplain areas shall be protected by 
ensuring no net loss of flood storage capacity. 

OBJECTIVE 1.8 The City shall adopt a comprehensive Stormwater Management 
Plan by the year 2014. 

Policy 1.8.1 The City shall acquire the necessary analysis and data to identify all 
existing public and private drainage facilities. At a minimum the data shall include: 
a. The entity having operational responsibility 
b. The geographic service area 
c. Design capacity 
d. Existing demand 

1. e. 
Page 32 of 68



 
 

83

e. Existing level of service 
f. Evaluation of general performance 

Policy 1.8.2 The Stormwater Management Plan shall establish criteria for the 
following: 
a. Elimination of identified problems 
b. Establishment of City wide requirements specific for each watershed area 
c. Guidelines for existing and proposed development to implement the overall plan 
d. Responsible entity for construction of necessary improvements to maintain the 
adopted level of service. 
e. Timetables for improvement completion in relation to development 
approval. 

OBJECTIVE 1.9 The functions of natural groundwater aquifer recharge areas within 
the City will be protected and maintained. 

Policy 1.9.1 The City shall map areas within the City having high aquifer recharge 
potential, based on data from SWFWMD. 

Policy 1.9.2 The City shall protect areas identified as having high recharge potential 
through implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 
a. Maximum impervious surface restrictions shall be consistent with the 
protection of functional values; 
b. Land alterations in conjunction with development shall not include the removal 
of high permeability soils and/or replacement with lower permeability soils; 
c. To the maximum extent feasible, open space/native vegetation shall be 
preserved; 
d. Commercial or industrial uses which store or handle hazardous 
materials/wastes shall be restricted; 
e. Stormwater detention systems shall be designed to provide maximum 
aquifer recharge; and 
f. New development and redevelopment shall not reduce aquifer recharge 
quality or quantity (volumes and rates) and subsurface storage and flows should simulate 
predevelopment conditions. 

OBJECTIVE 1.10 The City shall maintain the quality and quantity of the City’s 
potable water system supply. 

Policy 1.10.1 The City shall locate and operate the potable water system raw water 
supply withdrawals/sources in such a manner as to minimize the potential of adverse 
impacts to legal users as identified by the SWFWMD and adverse environmental 
impacts to water resources.  

Policy 1.10.2 The City shall protect existing and future potable water wellfields 
through implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 

1. e. 
Page 33 of 68



 
 

84

a.   Existing and future public water supply wells (both publicly and privately 
owned) shall be clearly depicted on the FLUM map or map series; 

b.  To protect public water supplies from possible contamination, the City shall 
establish wellhead protection zones as follows: 

1. In the area defined by a circle around the wellhead with a radius of 
500', all proposed development around existing wells shall be connected to a 
central water and sanitary sewer system. 
2. All future wells shall have a no development zone consistent of a 500' 
radius from the wellhead. 
3. Existing development within 500' of a public water wellhead, not 
currently connected to central water and sewer facilities, shall be required to 
connect within one year after being notified that such facilities are available; 
and, 

4. In the additional area defined by a secondary circle around the wellhead 
with a radius of 100', per FDEP requirements in Florida Administration Code 
Chapter 62-555.312, the following development activities are prohibited: 

 landfills; 
 facilities for bulk storage, handling or processing of materials on 

the Florida Substance List with the exception of sodium 
hypochlorite solution; 

 activities that require the storage, use or transportation of 
restricted substances, agricultural chemicals, petroleum products, 
hazardous toxic waste, medical waste, etc.; 

 feedlots or other commercial animal 
facilities; 

 wastewater treatment plants, percolation ponds and similar 
facilities; 

 junk, salvage or scrap yards; 
 industrial waste land application areas; 
 graveyards; 
 landscape nurseries; 
 oil and gas production wells; 
 drainage or injection wells; 
 train / airport fueling, maintenance, or 

storage yards; 
 mines (active or abandoned); and 
 excavation of waterways or drainage facilities which intersect the 

water table. 

5. In the additional area defined by a tertiary circle around the wellhead 
with a radius of 50’, per FDEP requirements as noted in Florida Administrative 

1. e. 
Page 34 of 68



 
 

85

Code (F.A.C.) Chapter 62-555.312, the following development activities are 
prohibited: 

 above ground storage tanks that are not regulated under Chapter 
62-761, F.A.C but are used for bulk storage of a liquid pollutant 
or hazardous substance (as defined in Chapter 62-671, F.A.C.) 
other than sodium hypochlorite solution; fertilizer, herbicide, or 
pesticide application areas that are not under the ownership or 
control of the supplier of water at agricultural sites, golf courses, 
nurseries, and parks; 

 railroad tracks; 
 stormwater detention or retention basins; 

and  
 surface water. 

 
Policy 1.10.3 Wellhead protection areas will be regulated during rezonings and special 
exceptions to exclude activities which may contaminate the well sites. The following uses 
are prohibited in addition to those listed in Policy 1.10.2 unless adequate measures are 
implemented to insure wellhead protection to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, FDEP, 
SWFWMD and appropriate City officials.  Note that an exception to F.A.C. Chapter 62-
555.312 would need to be applied for and approved in order for FDEP and/or SWFWMD 
to allow. 

 
a. Sanitary landfills; 
b. Industrial landfills or other surface impoundments; 
c. Wastewater treatment facilities not required to install FDER contaminant monitoring 
wells, except for single-family residential on site wastewater disposal facilities. However, 
no septic systems shall be located within 200 feet of any public well; 
d. Facilities that produce, use or store hazardous materials at or above established 
threshold amounts listed in Title Ill of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization 
Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. s. 11001, et. seq. (SARA) and the Florida Hazardous Materials 
Emergency Response and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1988, Chap. 252, Part II, 
F.S.; 
e. Junkyards or salvage operations; 
f. Mines; 
g. Airport/refueling facilities; 
h. Transportation facilities including railroads, arterial and collector roads, and pipelines 
that may be used to transport pollutants or contaminants; and 
i. Excavation of waterways or drainage facilities that intersect the water table. 
Stormwater management systems constructed under SWFWMD permits and not 
discharging contaminants are exempt. 
 
Policy 1.10.4 To ensure adequate future potable water supplies are available the City 
shall establish via ordinance water conservation practices which are consistent with the 
City’s Conservation Element Policies. 

1. e. 
Page 35 of 68



 
 

86

Policy 1.10.5 Wellhead protection areas are regulated per FDEP requirements, F.A.C. 
Chapter 62-555.312, such that for wells connected to a community water system on or 
after August 28, 2003, continuing protection of the well from the sanitary hazards 
described in Policies 1.10.2 and 1.10.3 shall be provided during the entire useful life of 
the well through one of the following means: 

a. Ownership by the City/water supplier of all land 
within 100 feet of the well; 

b. Control by the City/water supplier of all land within 100 feet of the well via 
easements, lease agreements, or deed restrictions that appropriately limit use of the land; 
c. Wellhead protection, zoning, or other land use regulations that appropriately limit 
use of all land within 100 feet of the well; 
d. New wells shall be located on their sites in such a manner that the wells are in 
an area free from, or least subject to, inundation with surface drainage and flood water; 
and  
e. To the extent practicable, new wells shall be located on their sites in such a 
manner that the wells are “upstream” from on-site or off-site sanitary hazards when 
considering the direction of ground water movement. 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.11 The City will strive to offset potable water demands through the use 
of reuse water and conservation programs.  
 
Policy 1.11.1 The City shall expand the reuse water system distribution network to serve 
additional large users and continue to reduce potable water for irrigation. 
 
Policy 1.11.2 The City shall require new development and redevelopment to connect to 
the City’s reuse water system when available. 
 
Policy 1.11.3 In addition to groundwater, future water needs shall be supplied from a 
variety of alternative sources, including reclaimed water and surface water where 
permitted. 
 
Policy 1.11.4 The City shall support the Southwest Florida Water Management District’s 
water reuse projects and implementation of new regulations and programs designed to 
increase the volume of reclaimed water used. 

1. e. 
Page 36 of 68



 
 

87

Chapter 5 
 

CONSERVATION ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 

Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced is this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
tie Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment or this Element. 
 
GOAL 1 Conserve, protect and manage the natural resources of the City of 
Wildwood to ensure that resources are used efficiently to maintain the highest 
environmental quality practicable while respecting individual property rights. 

 
 

AIR QUALITY 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1 The City shall meet or exceed the Air Quality Standards 
established by the FDEP. 

 
Policy 1.1.1 The City shall continue to plan for transportation alternatives to gasoline-
powered automobiles by planning efficient pedestrian and bicycle systems and by 
evaluating future feasibility for multi-modal systems, including bus and passenger rail 
transit, and by adapting streets, and parking structures to facilitate the use of alternatively 
powered vehicles such as electric and hybrid cars. 

 
Policy 1.1.2 The City shall continue to enforce the prohibition on open burning of trash 
and debris. 

 
Policy 1.1.3 The City shall make an effort to promote public awareness about mass 
transit, car-pooling, bikeways, park-n-ride lots, and other alternative transportation modes 
as a means to reduce automobile emission pollution. 

 
Policy 1.1.4 Construction or clearing activities that expose, destabilize, or otherwise 
alter soil shall be required to implement best management principles and practices for soil 
protection to reduce wind-related soil erosion and dust particles as air pollutant. 

 
Policy 1.1.5 The City shall maintain a tree protection ordinance to sustain natural 
vegetative filters for air pollution. 

 
Policy 1.1.6 The City shall participate in air quality public information programs and 
shall encourage alternative forms of transportation. 
 
 

1. e. 
Page 37 of 68



 
 

88

SURFACE WATER 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 The City shall enforce Land Development Regulations to protect 
the flood storage capabilities of surface water bodies so as to minimize damage from 100-
year flood events. 
 
Policy 1.2.1 The City shall incorporate into its Floodplain Ordinance the provision that 
any impacting activity within the 100-year flood elevation must be mitigated by 
compensating storage on site as directed and approved by SWFWMD. 

 
Policy 1.2.2 The City shall individually meter all City withdrawals from surface 
waters. The meter readings from each withdrawal facility shall be reported to the 
SWFWMD on a monthly basis.  

 
Policy 1.2.3 Wetlands, lakes, and other surface waters may not be adversely impacted 
as a result of the ground water use authorized by the SWFWMD Water Use Permit issued 
to the City. 

 
Policy 1.2.4 The City shall mitigate any adverse impact to environmental features or 
offsite land uses as a result of the City’s water withdrawals. When adverse impacts occur 
or are imminent, the City shall avoid or mitigate the impacts by reducing the water 
withdrawals at appropriate locations. Adverse impacts include: 
 
a. Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 
impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; 
b. Sinkholes or subsidence caused by reduction in water levels; 
c. Substantial, ongoing damage to the habitat of 

endangered or threatened species. 
 

Policy 1.2.5 The City shall adopt design criteria for stormwater management practices 
that: 
 
a.  Minimize the leaching or discharge of nutrients and pollutants; and 
b.  Require stormwater to be treated at 1.5 times the standard for discharges directly 
to an Outstanding Florida Water (OFW).  
 
 

GROUND WATER 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.3 The City shall conserve, use best management techniques, and 
protect future and existing groundwater resources for potable water usage. 
 
Policy 1.3.1 The City, working in conjunction with the SWFWMD, shall cooperate to 
plug existing unused public supply wells within the City to avoid ground water 
contamination. 

 

1. e. 
Page 38 of 68



 
 

89

Policy 1.3.2 The City shall meter its ground water withdrawals from its own facilities. 
The meter readings shall be reported to the SWFWMD.  
 
Policy 1.3.3 The City shall mitigate any adverse impact to existing legal uses as 
documented by the SWFWMD caused by withdrawals from City facilities. When adverse 
impacts occur or are imminent, the City will avoid or mitigate the impacts by reducing 
the withdrawals at appropriate locations. Adverse impacts include: 
 
a. A reduction in water levels which impairs the ability of the well to produce water; 
b. Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 
impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; or 
c. Significant inducement of natural or manmade contaminants into a water supply 
or into a usable portion of any impacted aquifer system. 
 
Policy 1.3.4 The City shall mitigate any adverse impact to environmental features or 
offsite land uses as a result of withdrawals from City facilities. When adverse impacts 
occur or are imminent, the City will avoid or mitigate the impacts by reducing the 
withdrawals at appropriate locations. Adverse impacts include: 
 
a. Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 
impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; 
b. Sinkholes or subsidence caused by reduction in water levels; 
c. Substantial, ongoing damage to the habitat of endangered or threatened species. 

 
Policy 1.3.5 As part of the required reasonable assurance that the City's current and 
future increased withdrawals will not result in adverse environmental impacts to the 
water resource, the City shall develop an Environmental Monitoring Plan.  The City shall 
coordinate with the SWFWMD in developing the Monitoring Plan and it shall identify 
specific wetland and water level monitoring sites and include details and frequency of 
required data collection. The data collected will serve as a basis for environmental 
evaluation of future withdrawal requests. The wetland(s) to be monitored shall be 
evaluated using SWFWMD's Wetland Assessment Procedure (WAP) with appropriately 
located piezometers and staff gauges in wetlands near the City's authorized wells. 
 
Policy 1.3.6 To avoid possible contamination, the City will require abandoned 
underground storage tanks and other potential pollution sources to be located prior to 
finalizing a development plan. New well fields should be permitted only after 
consideration of known or potential pollution sources in the area surrounding the 
proposed site and sufficient buffer is provided for the area of influence of the proposed 
well. 

 
Policy 1.3.7 Prior to development authorization, proposed potentially deleterious land 
uses shall demonstrate through accepted engineering practices that the quality and 
quantity of the ground water will not be adversely affected. 

 

1. e. 
Page 39 of 68



 
 

90

Policy 1.3.8 The City shall protect existing and future potable water wellfields 
consistent with Policy 1.10.2 of the Public Facilities Element. 

 
Policy 1.3.9  The City shall develop standards and restrictions for activities and land 
uses within a Wellhead Protection Zone (WPZ) for domestic potable water wells, 
defined as a 500-foot radius from a public well.  Standards for existing activities within a 
WPZ may include increased water monitoring or increased safety features for petroleum 
storage tanks.  At a minimum, the City shall prohibit Industrial and intensive 
Commercial Future Land Use Map designations, as well as hazardous waste generators 
and storage sites, solid waste disposal sites, gas stations, septic tanks, and single-lined 
petroleum storage tanks within the 500-foot WPZ.  The City shall revise the WPZ should 
the potable water supply entities establish stricter protection standards. 

 
Policy 1.3.10  The City shall work with the State, as required by the Safe Drinking Water 
Act, to map WPZs and develop land use controls that will provide protection from 
contamination for these areas, and will maintain its existing Geographical Information 
Systems mapping database of the highest water recharge areas to aid developer and 
reviewers in determining the impacts of development on the natural recharge 
characteristics of the land.   

 
Policy 1.3.11 As part of the required reasonable assurance that the City's current and 
future increased ground water withdrawals will not result in adverse environmental 
impacts to water resource, the City shall develop an Environmental Monitoring Plan.  
The City shall coordinate with the SWFWMD in developing the Monitoring Plan and it 
shall identify specific wetland and water level monitoring sites and include details and 
frequency of required data collection. The data collected will serve as a basis for 
environmental evaluation of future withdrawal requests. The wetland(s) to be monitored 
shall be evaluated using SWFWMD's Wetland Assessment Procedure (WAP) with 
appropriately located piezometers and staff gauges in wetlands near the City's authorized 
wells. 

 
WATER CONSERVATION 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.4 The City shall comply with SWFWMD water conservation 
regulations. 
 
Policy 1.4.1 The City shall continue to cooperate with the SWFWMD to conduct water 
conservation programs. 

 
Policy 1.4.2 The City shall adopt a water conserving rate structure by 2009. Within six 
months of adoption, the City shall submit a report to the SWFWMD on the rate structure 
that includes but is not limited to a description of the structure, how each component is 
designed to promote water conservation among the City’s customers, and how it is 
expected to reduce the City's gross per capita water use. After the first report submitted, 
an update on the rate structure and a summary of its effectiveness shall be included in an 
Annual Report by April 1 of each year. 

1. e. 
Page 40 of 68



 
 

91

 
Policy 1.4.3 By August 1, 2009, the City shall submit a report on water conservation 
plan progress including a description of the current conservation measures and progress 
towards achieving conservation of water per the conservation plan submitted to the 
SWFWMD as part of the Water Use Permitting effort. After the first report is submitted, 
an update on the conservation plan and a summary of its effectiveness shall be included 
in an Annual Report to be submitted to the SWFWMD by April 1 of each year. Updates 
shall address the following activities: 
 
a. Adoption of stricter landscape ordinance language which promotes standard City-
wide conservation practices and the use of “Florida Friendly” landscaping as 
recommended by the University of Florida and the SWFWMD. 
b. Adopt ordinance language requiring alternative irrigation via a dual piping system 
for all new development regardless of proximity to reclaimed system.   
c. Adoption of the 2004 Florida Building Code – Plumbing section and subsequent 
future amendments by reference. 
d. Adoption of Water Shortage Restrictions and Penalties and Enforcement 
Provisions in coordination with the SWFWMD Water Shortage Restrictions. 
e. Develop a City government website to assist with public education including 
water conservation. 
f. Continue a residential per capita of less than 150 gpdc (Coleman Prison 
population and flows excluded). 
g. Continue tracking water loss estimates associated with water main breaks, main 
flushing and fire flow events. 
h. Continue enforcing connection to public utilities: water, sewer, and reclaimed. 
i. Continue the development of Alternative Resources for irrigation. 
j. Continue to convert City properties to reclaimed irrigation from potable irrigation 
supplies. 
k. Continue participation in the Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority. 
l. In cooperation with the SWFWMD, assist in enforcing the current and future 
landscape watering restrictions for commercial and residential areas. 

 
Policy 1.4.4 All development shall comply with applicable water conservation 
programs. 
 
Policy 1.4.5 The City shall continue to investigate strategies to further conserve water. 

 
FLORA, FAUNA, WETLANDS, WATERBODIES, AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.5 The City shall conserve, appropriately use, and protect endangered, 
threatened, and species of special concern and their habitats through enforcement of the 
following policies and Land Development Regulations. 
 
Policy 1.5.1  The City recognizes the existence and strategic value of habitat within 
the City for federal and state listed species of flora and fauna.  The City shall 
participate in and support the efforts on the part of the USFWS, FWC, SWFWMD, 

1. e. 
Page 41 of 68



 
 

92

ACOE and Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Affairs to protect and 
conserve these resources.   

 
Policy 1.5.2 Applications for development must include a complete listed species 
study and field surveys of habitat of listed species.  The City shall adopt land 
development regulations within one year of adoption of this comprehensive plan 
amendment which specify the level of detail required for such field studies.  The 
level of detail may vary by size of parcel and whether the property has been 
previously altered. Development impacts to listed species will be avoided when 
possible. 
 
Policy 1.5.3 Proposed development projects which are determined to contain listed 
species will be prohibited unless a permit and mitigation plan has been approved by 
the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FFWCC) and/or the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 

 
Policy 1.5.4   Protection of listed species and their habitats shall be addressed in the 
development review process and conditions of approval. Protective measures can 
include clustering of development away from habitats occupied by listed species, the 
use of vegetated buffers, and on and off-site mitigation. The City shall encourage the 
maintenance of wildlife corridors and prevention of habitat fragmentation by 
coordinating development proposals which impact listed species and identified 
associated habitat with the FFWCC. 

 
Policy 1.5.5 The City shall use one or more of the following methods to protect 
endangered, threatened and rare species and their habitat: 

 
a. Consult with the FGFWFC to determine alternative mitigation practices to 
conserve species and habitat; 
b. Utilization of MID, cluster development and other flexible regulatory techniques 
to work with private developers in conserving habitat and species; 
c. Fee simple acquisition through dedication and the use of conservation easements. 
 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.6 The City shall protect the following natural resources from the 
adverse impacts of development through implementation of a series of policies which 
specifically address these resources: soils, native vegetative communities, listed species, 
water quality and quantity, wildlife habitats, floodplains, wetlands, and other 
environmentally sensitive lands. 
 
Policy 1.6.1 The City shall require that all applications for development orders or 
permits contain information on the site's natural resources at a level of detail and 
specificity to enable the City to determine required protective measures. 

 

1. e. 
Page 42 of 68



 
 

93

Policy 1.6.2 The City shall require that new development use Natural Resource 
Conservation Service and Florida Department of Environmental Protection Best 
Management Practices to control soil erosion and unconfined emissions and to prevent 
stormwater runoff from adversely impacting surface water quality. 

 
Policy 1.6.3 The City shall adopt land regulations to protect viable native vegetative 
communities identified in the Florida Natural Areas Inventory through the 
implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 
 
a. Where feasible, development shall be clustered to avoid destruction of native 
vegetation; 
b. The use of native vegetation shall receive priority in meeting, buffering, 
landscaping and open space requirements; and 
c. The City shall encourage the removal of exotic species. 

 
Policy 1.6.4  The City shall actively enforce National Pollution and Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) BMPs.  The City, when performing site visits, shall 
inspect for proper placement and maintenance of BMPs, and will require applicants 
to submit an erosion control plan and any required NPDES permits.   

 
Policy 1.6.5  The City shall require that all golf courses implement one or more 
BMPs specific to golf course maintenance shown on FDEP’s list of BMPs web site.   

 
OBJECTIVE 1.7  The City shall protect the 100-Year Floodplain so they are 
protected and maintained from causing net loss of flood storage capacity. 
 
Policy 1.7.1  The City shall incorporate into its Floodplain Ordinance the provision 
that any impacting activity within the 100-year flood elevation must be mitigated by 
compensating storage on site as directed and approved by SWFWMD. 

 
Policy 1.7.2 The City shall protect floodplains as identified by FEMA and shown on 
Future Land Use Map 1-3.  The natural functions of these floodplains shall be protected 
through implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 
 
a. Precise delineation of floodplains shall be determined for new development 
through site specific studies and field determinations; 
b. Require all proposed development to be located on the non-floodplain portions of 
the site if feasible. Where proposed development areas lie entirely within the 100 year 
floodplain, all structures shall be required to be elevated with the first floor elevation at 
least 18" above the 100 year base flood elevation; 
c. Dredging and filling of lands within the floodplain shall be discouraged except for 
fill allowed in conjunction with minimal access ways and with a minimum amount 
beneath structures, will be limited by land development regulations protecting the 
direction and rate of historical flows on the property. All fill within the floodplain 
requires compensatory on site storage meeting FEMA standards; 

1. e. 
Page 43 of 68



 
 

94

d. Maximum density for development in floodplains is one dwelling unit per five 
acres. Where central water and sewer facilities are utilized and floodplain compensation 
is provided, the allowable density may be increased to be compatible with the adjacent 
designated land uses; and 
e. Land uses which require the storage, generation or use of hazardous materials or 
waste are prohibited in floodplains; 
f. Roads, bridges, and other similar public facilities shall not be located within the 
floodplains, except where no reasonable alternative exists. 
 

WETLANDS 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.8 The City shall protect wetlands from the adverse impacts of 
development through implementation of a series of policies and land development 
regulations which will maintain their ecological function. Wetlands are defined as being 
lands which are inundated or saturated by surface water or ground water at a frequency or 
duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do or would support, 
a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions.  
Wetlands include both jurisdictional and non jurisdictional wetlands as determined by 
SWFWMD and ACOE. 

 
Wetlands and the natural functions of wetlands shall be protected and conserved.  The 
adequate and appropriate protection and conservation of wetlands shall be accomplished 
through a comprehensive planning process which includes consideration of the types, 
values, functions, sizes, conditions and locations of wetlands, and which is based on 
supporting data and analysis.  
 
Future land uses which are incompatible with the protection and conservation of wetlands 
and wetland functions shall be directed away from wetlands.  The type, intensity or 
density, extent, distribution and location of allowable land uses and the types, values, 
functions, sizes, conditions and locations of wetlands are land use factors which shall be 
considered when directing incompatible land uses away from wetlands.  Land use shall 
be distributed in a manner that minimizes the effect and impact on wetlands.  The 
protection and conservation of wetlands by the direction of incompatible land use away 
from wetlands shall occur in combination with other goals, objectives and policies, in the 
comprehensive plan.  Where incompatible land uses are allowed to occur, mitigation shall 
be considered as one means to compensate for loss of wetlands functions.  
 
a.   Jurisdictional wetlands are a part of or are naturally connected to a water body which 
is designated by the SWFWMD or the FDEP as an area of regional ecological 
significance such as Outstanding Florida Waters or Aquatic Preserves, and surface waters 
that have been classified as Class I (Potable Water Supplies) or major springs (as 
identified by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection), or 
b.   Named lakes, named waterways or other jurisdictional wetlands that are naturally 
connected to wetlands described above that are critical to the contiguous-nature of the 
system; or 
c.    Wetlands included in Mitigation Banks, Conservation Banks or state or federal lands. 

1. e. 
Page 44 of 68



 
 

95

 
Policy 1.8.1 Wetlands shall be protected through the implementation of the following 
standards and guidelines: 
 
a. Precise delineation (pursuant to Chapter 62-340, FAC) and functional assessment 
(pursuant to Chapter 62-345, FAC) of wetland areas shall be determined based on ACOE 
and SWFWMD criteria through site-specific studies and field determination during 
development review; 
b. Impacts to wetlands shall be avoided where possible. Mitigation of lost wetland 
resources shall be required. The amount of mitigation required shall be dependent upon 
the function value of the wetlands proposed for impact and the type of mitigation 
proposed based on ACOE and SWFWMD criteria; 
c. Commercial and industrial uses and uses which store or generate hazardous 
materials/wastes shall not be permitted in or adjacent to wetlands without proper 
measures to ensure protection of the wetlands; 
d. Septic tanks shall not be permitted in wetlands; 
e. Wetland protective measures shall include the use of SWFWMD vegetative 
buffers. Buffer widths shall depend on the nature and functional value of the wetlands to 
be protected per SWFWMD regulations; 
f. No new parcels of land shall be created which consist entirely of wetlands, unless 
such parcels are dedicated to the public or remain in private ownership with long term 
conservation easements; and 
g. All required permits from jurisdictional agencies shall be approved prior to, or 
concurrent with, the City issuing a final development order authorizing site development 
activity. 
 
Policy 1.8.2 In order to prevent development from having adverse impacts to existing 
wetlands, the natural upland buffer shall be preserved a minimum of fifteen (15) feet and 
an average of twenty-five (25) feet from the edge of the wetland. Where a wetland is 
unavoidably impacted by development, the development shall be subject to the mitigation 
requirements of the pertinent regulatory agency. 
 
Policy 1.8.3 The City shall coordinate with the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers and/or the SWFWMD in implementing their regulatory responsibilities within 
the City when wetlands are involved. 
 

AQUIFER RECHARGE 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.9 The City shall protect areas having high recharge potential, as 
identified by the Southwest Florida Water Management District, through the 
implementation of a series of policies and land development regulations in order to 
maintain their aquifer recharge function. 
 
Policy 1.9.1 Aquifer recharge shall be protected through the implementation of the 
following standards and guidelines: 
 

1. e. 
Page 45 of 68



 
 

96

a. Maximum impervious surface restrictions shall be consistent with the protection 
of functional values; 
b. Land alterations in conjunction with development shall avoid the removal of high 
permeability soils and/or replacement with lower permeability soils; 
c. To the extent feasible, open space/native vegetation in areas of high recharge 
potential shall be preserved; 
d. Commercial or industrial uses which store or handle hazardous materials/wastes 
shall be restricted; 
e. Stormwater detention systems shall be designed to provide  aquifer recharge; and 
f. New development and redevelopment shall not reduce aquifer recharge quality or 
quantity (volumes and rates) and subsurface storage and flows should simulate 
predevelopment conditions; 
g. Natural grades and topography shall be maintained unless alteration is needed to 
construct stormwater systems or to meet health and safety standards. 
 
Policy 1.9.2 The City shall develop and maintain requirements and standards which at 
a minimum are in conjunction with those developed by SWFWMD and Sumter County 
for on-site stormwater run-off and detention/retention for all new developments in its 
development regulations.  Stormwater standards shall include at a minimum, 
requirements for: 
 
a. Setback from any major water bodies and wetlands in an effort to preserve natural 
vegetation; 
b. Post-development run-off rates and pollutant loading must not exceed pre-
development rates; 
c. Best management practices consistent with State and Federal recommended 
standards, to reduce pesticide and fertilizer and soil erosion. 

 
KARST FEATURES 

OBJECTIVE 1.10 The City shall protect karst features, such as sinkholes, caves and 
seeps, located on or under developable lands within the City limits with appropriate 
development requirements. 
 
Policy 1.10.1  The City shall protect areas containing karst features through appropriate 
development review and regulations, the acquisition of land for conservation, or through 
the purchase or dedication of easements in these areas.  

 
Policy 1.10.2 Developers shall employ techniques to guide more intense development 
away from karst areas that are incapable of remediation. A variety of approaches may be 
used including designation of less intense land use, a minimum average buffer 
requirement of 25 feet from preserved karst areas that have been scientifically proven to 
have direct impact on ground water quality, and conservation easements for preserved 
karst areas. 

 

1. e. 
Page 46 of 68



 
 

97

Policy 1.10.3  The City shall use revenues and monies that become available to 
match or leverage funds for private or public acquisition programs including but not 
limited to the Florida Forever Program, the Florida Community Trust and any other 
existing or newly implemented program to acquire fee simple ownership or less than fee 
ownership through conservation easements.  Karst features scientifically proven to 
directly impact ground water quality shall be considered for acquisition by the City 
with priority given to those areas where acquisition would protect the health and 
welfare of the citizens and environment. 

 
Policy 1.10.4  Developers of property on which karst features are located shall 
accurately identify and scientifically evaluate those features prior to development permit 
approval.  Features shall be evaluated utilizing subsurface investigation and ground 
penetrating radar when appropriate, and shall be classified in one of three categories: 

 
a. Stable; Areas that are stable for normal development without remediation; 
b.  Unstable, capable of remediation; Areas that can be remediated and utilized for 
normal development with proven mediation technologies such as pressure grouting with 
cement grout or sand or; 
c. Unstable; Areas that are incapable of remediation. 
 
Policy 1.10.5 Development will be allowed based upon the classification of karst 
features, as follows:  a. stable karst features – normal development;   b. unstable karst 
areas capable of remediation – normal development upon remediation provided that 
appropriate level of remediation as recommend and approved by professional 
geotechnical engineer is used; and c. unstable karst features incapable of remediation – 
conservation or passive recreation uses only. 

 
Policy 1.10.6 Techniques used to stabilize karst features capable of remediation, 
include pressure grouting with sand or cement slurry and other methods recommended 
by a professional geotechnical engineer.  All remediation plans shall be prepared by a 
professional geotechnical engineer, who shall prepare and certify a completion report 
following remediation certifying that the work was completed as specified in the plan. 

 
Policy 1.10.7 The development plan shall identify strategies for protecting karst 
features during construction and after development, which promote the following: 

a.  Inclusion of unstable karst features into pervious open space areas; 
b. Use of landscape design principles to incorporate karst features as aesthetic 
elements; 
c. Pretreatment of stormwater runoff, in accordance with applicable federal, state, 
regional and local regulations, prior to discharge to karst features;  
d.  Prohibition of untreated stormwater discharge to karst features scientifically 
determined to have a direct hydraulic connection to the aquifer; 

e. Prohibition of discharge of wastewater effluent to karst features; and 

f. Perimeter buffering around features to maintain natural function, edge 
vegetation, and structural protection. 

1. e. 
Page 47 of 68



 
 

98

 
Policy 1.10.8 The City shall require impervious liners where appropriate to prevent 
direct hydraulic connection to the aquifer between stormwater ponds in karst areas 
and the aquifer. 

 
Policy 1.10.9 Mining and industrial or heavy commercial uses which store or generate 
hazardous materials/waste shall not be permitted in karst areas without proper 
measures to ensure protection of ground water.  

 
 

SPRING PROTECTION 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.11 The City shall develop programs to protect sensitive areas within 
and adjacent to all springs and spring runs.  The City shall cooperate with the local, state 
and regional agencies, as appropriate, in development and implementation of the following 
programs. 
 
Policy 1.11.1  The City shall cooperate with and promote the monitoring programs of 
the USGS, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the Water Management 
Districts and other federal, state, regional and local agencies.   

 
Policy 1.11.2 The City shall coordinate with local colleges, the school board and 
individual schools to develop environmental education programs for school-aged 
children regarding springs, water bodies, watersheds and ground water. 

 
Policy 1.11.3 The City shall coordinate with local community organizations to 
develop environmental education programs regarding springs, water bodies, 
watersheds and ground water.  

 
Policy 1.11.4 The City shall establish an education program for homeowners and 
landscape and lawn-care professionals regarding responsible practices that encourage 
limitation of water use, fertilizers and pesticides, such as those produced by the Water 
Management Districts. 

 
Policy 1.11.5 Within 12 months of the effective date of this amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan, the City shall adopt LDRs for springs protection utilizing as a 
guide the BMPs contained in the document “Protecting Florida’s Springs Manual-Land 
Use Planning Strategies and BMPs” (FDCA and FDEP).  These LDRs shall include but 
not be limited to standards for the use of native and drought tolerant species, clearing 
of vegetation, landscaping and arbor requirements, use of septic systems, 
identification and review of and buffering of karst features, creation of open space 
and efficient irrigation to maximize conservation of water. 

 
Policy 1.11.6 The City shall establish fertilizer-free zones in all buffers surrounding 
spring heads, as well as adjacent to any surface waters, and wetlands which drain 
directly into a spring or spring run.  

1. e. 
Page 48 of 68



 
 

99

 
OBJECTIVE 1.12  All development on property where a spring or spring run is located 
shall be planned, designed, and implemented to limit environmental impacts to ground and 
surface water quality. 
 
Policy 1.12.1 The following buffer areas apply to all development:   

 
a. 150 feet from the ordinary high water line of a spring head;  
b. 50 feet from the ordinary high water line along spring runs. 

 
A perimeter vegetated swale will be allowed within the buffer around the spring head.  
Stormwater retention areas shall be located no less than 150 feet from the spring head to 
avoid direct discharge of overflow stormwater runoff. 

 
Policy 1.12.2 All buffers that do not otherwise have native upland species shall be planted 
or supplemented with plants and grasses recommended in the Florida-Friendly Landscaping 
guidelines provided by the Florida Friendly Yard and Neighbors Program.  Buffers must be 
designed to accommodate vegetated swales meeting land development code requirements 
to provide additional filtering of stormwater runoff. 

 
Policy 1.12.3 Agriculture shall implement BMPs to minimize environmental impacts to 
a spring head or spring runs. 

 
Policy 1.12.4  Silviculture activities shall comply with best management practices 
outlined in “Silviculture and Agriculture Best Management Practices Manuals” (Florida 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services).  The City shall encourage long-crop 
rotation silviculture, minimum tillage farming, and unimproved pasture. 

 
Policy 1.12.5 Residential and commercial land owners shall be encouraged to use 
BMPs, including Florida-Friendly Landscaping and Florida-Friendly Yard practices and 
guidelines provided by the Florida Yard and Neighbors program, to ensure proper use of 
water, fertilizer, herbicides, and pesticides.  The City will make available to all 
Homeowners’ Associations (HOAs) guidelines promoting Florida-Friendly practices such 
as native plant landscaping, proper use of fertilizer, and lower water use turf grasses. 

 
Policy 1.12.6 The City shall provide for all commercial maintenance providers to be 
certified by a board, program or agency that educates on fertilizer impacts. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.13 In addition to the above, all developers of property on which a 
spring or spring run is located shall submit a Spring Protection Plan (Plan) for 
consideration and adoption by the City into the site plan or development order as 
appropriate.  Each Plan shall address the following issues and shall be implemented with 
specific conditions to: 
 

1. e. 
Page 49 of 68



 
 

100

Policy 1.13.1 Mining and industrial or heavy commercial uses which store or generate 
hazardous materials/waste shall not be permitted in spring buffers or in surface 
drainage basins with direct surface water outfall into spring head or spring run, 
without proper measures to ensure protection of ground water and surface water.  

 
Policy 1.13.2 Drainage basins with direct surface water discharge into spring head or 
spring run shall provide OFW 1.5 times water treatment criteria as required by 
SWFWMD.  Irrigated turf grass will be restricted from spring buffers and limited to a 
maximum 50% of open space in drainage basins with direct surface water discharge into 
spring head or spring run. 

 
Policy 1.13.3 A minimum percentage of 25% open space calculated for drainage basins 
within the development that have direct surface water discharge into spring head or 
spring run.  Open space may be achieved by any of the following techniques, or any 
combination thereof:  Clustering, preserved open space, trails and pedestrian 
pathways corridors, and, where appropriate, utility and stormwater treatment corridors, 
to form a greenway system. Credit towards the 25% open space shall also be given for 
the use of pervious pavement, underground exfiltration trenches and other aquifer 
recharge mechanisms that retain runoff water and recharge the aquifer. 

 
Policy 1.13.4  Implement a water quality monitoring program providing periodic 
sampling and testing of surface and groundwater quality.  Baseline sampling will begin 
prior to construction.  Results shall be reported to the applicable regulatory agency and 
to a person designated by the City. 

 
Policy 1.13.5 Participate in any local education “adopt a spring” type program and 
other incentive and volunteer spring awareness and protection programs. 

 
HAZARDOUS WASTE 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.14 The City shall cooperate with Department of Environmental 
Protection and Sumter County to develop programs to properly dispose of hazardous 
waste. 
 
Policy 1.14.1 The City shall cooperate with Sumter County and Department of 
Environmental Protection in workshops and "amnesty day" programs on management of 
hazardous waste. 

 
Policy 1.14.2 The City shall incorporate into the City-wide conservation program 
criteria concerning the protection of natural resources from adverse effects of hazardous 
waste generation. 

 
Policy 1.14.3 When developing a hazardous waste management program through 
cooperative workshops with Department of Environmental Protection and Sumter County 
the identification including quantity, type and location of hazardous waste shall be 
accomplished. 

1. e. 
Page 50 of 68



 
 

101

Chapter 6 
 

RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 

Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced in this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
the Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment of this Element. 
 

GOAL 1 Develop recreation facilities in the City of Wildwood to create a satisfying 
and stimulating living environment for City residents. 
 

OBJECTIVE 1.1 The City will ensure that active and passive recreational facilities, 
as well as recreational open space with public access are adequately provided. 
 

Active recreation is defined as any activity that needs organization of teams or group 
activities including, but not limited to, softball, baseball, soccer, summer camp and 
football.  
 
Passive recreation is defined as recreational uses that do not normally require 
organization including, but not limited to playgrounds, camping, picnics, nature trails and 
boat ramps. 
 
Recreational open space includes parks, walking and bicycling trails as well as any area 
that is dedicated for active and passive recreation.  
 

Policy 1.1.1 The City will develop, promote and manage a continuous recreation program 
to provide for the existing and projected recreation needs of the City. The City will use 
the recreation level of service standards set forth below as the official City policy in the 
overall recreation program and in permitting new development. 

 
Recreation LOS Minimum Standards Population Based* 

 
Neighborhood Parks:  2 acres per 1,000 population 

 
A neighborhood park is generally defined as a "walk-to" park, generally located along 
streets where people can walk or bicycle without encountering heavy traffic. It serves the 
population of a neighborhood in a radius of up to one-half mile, and should have at least 
2 acres for each 1,000 population. Its size usually ranges from 5 to 10 acres, and it serves 
a population of up to 5,000. Because the service areas of a neighborhood park and an 
elementary school often coincide, it is desirable for the neighborhood park to physically 
join the elementary school, when feasible. Both park and school serve the same basic 
population, share compatible land uses, and contain recreation facilities that are of mutual 

1. e. 
Page 51 of 68



 
 

102

benefit. Because recreation needs vary from one neighborhood to another, site design for 
this type of park should be flexible in order to meet the particular recreation needs of 
each neighborhood. Site design should also reflect the character of the neighborhood and 
incorporate compatible elements of both passive and active types of recreation. Typical 
suggested facilities developed in the neighborhood park may include play apparatus, 
recreation buildings, multipurpose courts, sports fields, picnic areas and free play areas. 
Additional facilities may be added, depending on the recreation demands of the 
neighborhood. 
 

Community Parks:  3 acres per 1,000 population 
 
 
A community park is generally defined as a "ride to" park, located near major streets. It is 
designed to serve the needs of 4 to 6 neighborhoods. It serves an area with a radius of 
upservice population of up to 25,000. A minimum of 20 acres for each community park is 
recommended, with acreage needs based on a standard of 3 acres per 1,000 population. 
Because the service areas of a community park and an elementary school often coincide, 
it is desirable for the neighborhood park to physically join the elementary school, when 
feasible. Both park and school serve the same basic population, share compatible land 
uses, and contain recreation facilities that are of mutual benefit. Where a community park 
can be located adjacent to a junior or senior high school, a minimum of 5 acres is 
recommended. The community park offers a wide range of program and facility 
opportunities for all individuals and families. Just as the neighborhood park fulfills the 
recreation needs of the neighborhood, the community park is designed to meet the 
recreation needs of the entire community. Typical suggested facilities at a community 
park may include swimming pools, ball fields, tennis courts, play areas, picnic areas, 
multipurpose courts, recreation buildings, and sports fields. Additional recreation 
facilities may be included to meet a particular recreation demand in the community. 
Adequate off-street parking may be needed to contain parking overflow from the school 
parking areas. Two important elements of every community park are the use of 
landscaping and the provision of passive recreation activity areas. 
 
 

Regional Parks:  5 acres per 1,000 population 
 
Regional parks are generally defined as large, resource-based areas that serve two or 
more communities or counties and are usually located within an hour's driving distance of 
the residents they serve. A space allowance of 5 acres per 1,000 population is suggested. 
The park should serve a population of over 100,000 and should range in size from a 
minimum of 250 acres to as much as several thousand acres. Because the service areas of 
a community park and an elementary school often coincide, it is desirable for the 
neighborhood park to physically join the elementary school, when feasible. Both park and 
school serve the same basic population, share compatible land uses, and contain 
Recreation facilities that are of mutual benefit. Because regional parks are generally 
designed for resource-based activities, location is dependent upon the availability of high 
quality natural resources capable of being developed and used for outdoor recreation. 

1. e. 
Page 52 of 68



 
 

103

Typical suggested facilities provided at a regional park may include water-based 
recreation sites, camping areas, hiking and nature trails, picnic areas, and other facilities 
not requiring intensive development. Parking areas are necessary support facilities and 
should be designed to minimize adverse effects on the natural environment. The most 
prominent feature of a regional park is that it provides recreational opportunities that, 
through the design and development of outdoor recreation resources and facilities, 
capitalize on the natural environment and promote an atmosphere of beauty and serenity. 
Outdoor recreational facilities could also be categorized as facilities that could be 
required in a sports complex. Ball fields, such as soccer fields and football fields, tennis 
courts and hard courts for volleyball, basketball or tennis may be components of a sports 
complex and may be located within regional parks.   
 
*Required facility to be determined during development review process 

 
Policy 1.1.2 Existing deficiencies in recreational facilities shall be corrected in order 
to meet or exceed the adopted level of service standards. 

 
Policy 1.13 Continually investigate alternative sources of funding of recreation and 
open space facilities through federal, state and private programs. 

 
Policy 1.1.4 The City will continue to hold public hearings and administer surveys of 
City residents regarding mutual facilities. 
 

OBJECTIVE 1.2 Coordinate public and private resources in the provision of recreation 

to City residents. 

 
Policy 1.2.1 Participate on the recreation committee to be established by Sumter 
County composed of the County, the school board and other cities. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.3 The City will require additional open space be dedicated to the public 
by all new subdivisions. 

 
Policy 1.3.1 The City shall enforce recreation and open space standards incorporated in 
the Land Development Regulations by conducting a review of all residential projects 
submitted after April 1, 2008 to determine the potential adherence to the recreational 
level of service standards defined in the Comprehensive Plan. It is also possible for 
alternatives, such as contributions to a recreation fund, to satisfy the requirements of 
concurrency. 

1. e. 
Page 53 of 68



 
 

104

CHAPTER 7 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 
 
Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced in this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
the Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment of this Element. 
 
GOAL 1 The City shall coordinate the activities of the City of Wildwood with 
affected federal, state, regional and local jurisdictions and agencies. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1  The City shall annually identify all existing and potential 
relationships with other governmental jurisdictions and agencies, and enforce policies to 
further efforts concerning coordination between all potential jurisdictions and agencies. 

 
Policy 1.1.1  The City shall use the Intergovernmental Coordination Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan as the basis for the development of an on-going intergovernmental 
coordination program. 

 
Policy 1.1.2 The City shall establish and maintain lines of communication with public 
agencies and local governments regarding local planning and development activities. 

 
Policy 1.1.3 The City shall ensure the widest possible dissemination of information 
and encourage public discussion of all proposed City plans and programs. 

 
Policy 1.1.4  The City shall require developers to assess their needs regarding essential 
services (electric, gas, etc.) and the developer shall seek confirmation of future 
availability from appropriate utility suppliers. Confirmation shall be provided by the 
utility to the City Development Services Department during the planning stages of 
development but no later than the issuance of a development permit. 

 
Policy 1.1.5  The City of Wildwood Development Services Department shall maintain 
close contact with public utilities that provide essential services to assure continuity and 
availability of service. 

 
Policy 1.1.6 The City of Wildwood and Sumter County will coordinate on Planning, 
Water and Sewer, Roads, Parks and Recreation, Fire Services, Library Services, 
Workforce Housing, Solid Waste, Stormwater, Geographic Information Systems, Law 
Enforcement, Mosquito Control, and Animal Control pursuant to an Interlocal Service 
Boundary and Joint Planning Agreement adopted by the City on April 13, 2009, 
Ordinance No. 2009-10, and by the County on April 14, 2009, Ordinance 2009-07. 

1. e. 
Page 54 of 68



 
 

105

 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 The City of Wildwood shall coordinate the Comprehensive Plan 
with Sumter County School Board, Southwest Florida Water Management District, the 
Florida Department of Transportation, adjacent local government comprehensive plans 
and other units of local government providing services but not having regulatory 
authority over land. 

 
Policy 1.2.1 The City shall, as part of the Comprehensive Plan Review and 
Amendment Process, coordinate proposed plan amendments with adjacent local 
governments, the Sumter County School Board, the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District, the Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council and other local 
governments not having regulatory authority over the use of land. 

 
Policy 1.2.2 The City Manager, or designee, shall be responsible for the 
implementation of the intergovernmental programs. 

 
Policy 1.2.3  The City shall establish procedures to ensure intergovernmental 
coordination with the Sumter County School Board for the location of educational 
facilities within the City limits, including: 

 
a. Upon written notice from the Sumter County School Board informing the City of 
the acquisition or leasing of property to be used for new public education facilities, the 
City shall notify the School Board within 45 days as to the consistency with the 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan. 

 
b. The City Manager, or designee, shall meet semi-annually with the Sumter County 
School Board superintendent or designee in order to discuss upcoming planning issues 
which may impact the Sumter County School District, a particular school or planning 
efforts. 

 
Policy 1.2.4  The City shall identify and participate in joint processes for collaborative 
planning on population projections, school siting, facilities with City-wide significance 
and problematic land uses. 

 
Policy 1.2.5 The City shall review for potential impact all projects proposed in the City 
of Wildwood by other agencies. 
 
Policy 1.2.6 The City shall annually review the relationship of the proposed 
development of the City of Wildwood to the Sumter County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Policy 1.2.7 The City shall enforce regulations to ensure that other jurisdictions and 
agencies are not adversely impacted by activities within the City. 

 
Policy 1.2.8 The City shall request copies and review all plans and programs being 
proposed by other area government entities with known or potential impacts on the City. 

 

1. e. 
Page 55 of 68



 
 

106

Policy 1.2.9  The City shall resolve any and all conflicts with other local governments 
through the Regional Planning Council’s dispute resolution process only if such conflicts 
cannot be resolved by negotiation with the other government entity. 
 
Policy 1.2.10 The City shall notify the County of all proposed annexations upon receipt 
of requests for such annexations. 
 
Policy 1.2.11 The City shall coordinate with the Southwest Florida Water Management 
District to assure the consistency of the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan with 
the District’s Regional Water Supply Plan. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.3  Ensure through adopted Interlocal Agreements, the City of 
Wildwood addresses through coordination mechanisms, the impacts of developments 
proposed in the Wildwood Comprehensive Plan on development in adjacent 
municipalities, the County, Region and State. 

 
Policy 1.3.1 The City shall ensure all proposed development is not contrary to the 
development plans of the County, region and state prior to issuance of development 
orders. 
 
Policy 1.3.2  The City shall establish policies to address a joint process with the 
Sumter County School Board for collaborative planning and decision making 
concerning population projections and school siting. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.4  The City shall acquire the approval of any State, Local or 
Regional entity having operational and maintenance responsibilities of public 
facilities within the City jurisdiction prior to establishing level of services for such 
public facilities. 

 
Policy 1.4.1  The City shall coordinate proposed level of service standards for public 
facilities with state, regional and local entities having operational and maintenance 
responsibilities for such facilities. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.5 The City shall strive to maintain and enhance joint planning 
processes and procedures for coordination of public education facilities for planning and 
decision-making. 
 
On an ongoing basis, the City shall establish new and review existing coordination 
mechanisms that will evaluate and address its comprehensive plan and programs and their 
effects on the comprehensive plans developed for the adjacent local governments, school 
board, and other units of local government providing services but not having regulatory 
authority over use of land and the State, by an annual county-wide forum, joint meetings 
or other types of forums with other agencies. Assistance for this effort shall be requested 
from regional and state agencies, as needed.  
 

1. e. 
Page 56 of 68



 
 

107

Policy 1.5.1  On an annual basis, the City shall ask the School Board to provide 
information from their five-year Capital Facilities Plan to determine the need for 
additional school facilities. The School Board shall provide to the County, each year, a 
general education facilities report.  The educational facilities report shall contain 
information detailing existing facilities and their locations and projected needs.  The 
report shall also contain the School Board’s capital improvement plan, including planned 
facilities with funding representing the district’s unmet needs.  
 

CALENDAR OF KEY ANNUAL DEADLINES 

February 1 Cities’ and County’s Growth Reports Provided 
to School Board 

April 15 Staff working group meeting re enrollment 
projections and any proposed amendments to 
the school-related elements of the 
comprehensive plan provisions 

June 30 School Board provides Tentative Educational 
Facilities Plan to County and Cities for review 

July 30 Cities and County provide School Board with 
comments, if any, on Tentative Educational 
Facilities Plan 

September 1 School Board’s adoption of Educational 
Facilities Plan 

September 1 Update of Five-Year Capital Facilities Plan 
adopted into City’s and County’s 
comprehensive plans 

 
 
Policy 1.5.2   In order to coordinate the effective and efficient provision and siting of 
public educational facilities with associated infrastructure and services within the City of 
Wildwood, the Sumter County Board of County Commissioners, the Sumter County 
School Board, and the City of Bushnell Council, Center Hill Council, City of Coleman 
Council, and City of Webster Commission shall meet jointly to develop mechanisms for 
coordination.  Such efforts may include: 

 
1. Coordinated submittal and review of the annual capital improvement program of 
the City, the annual educational facilities report and Five-year School Plant Survey of the 
Sumter County School Board. 

 
2. Coordinated review and assessment of the associated costs and expenditures of 
siting and developing schools with needed public infrastructure. 

 
3. Coordinated review of residential planned developments or mixed use planned 
developments involving residential development. 

 

1. e. 
Page 57 of 68



 
 

108

4. Use of a unified data base including population (forecasts of student population), 
land use and facilities. 
 
5. Use of the Parks/Schools Planning Group (with representatives from each of the 
entities) to review coordinated siting of schools with parks for multi-functional use. 
Directives resulting from the joint meeting shall be incorporated into the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Regulations, and other appropriate 
mechanisms as deemed necessary. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.6 Interlocal Service Boundary and Joint Planning Agreement with 
Sumter County  The City shall continue to coordinate with Sumter County regarding 
planning, building permitting and code enforcement, future annexation areas, water and 
sewer, roads, parks and recreation, fire services, library services, workforce housing, 
solid waste, stormwater, geographic information systems, law enforcement, mosquito 
control, and animal control pursuant to the effective Interlocal Service Boundary and 
Joint Planning Agreement (ISBA), consistent with Chapter 171 Part II, Florida Statutes. 
The ISBA assures the following: 
 
1. Land use decisions are consistent with the comprehensive plan of each 
jurisdiction; 
2. Annexations of unincorporated areas are coordinated and consistent with planned 
future service areas; 
 
3. Expansion of water and sewer service is coordinated, efficient, and supports the 
growth and development of each community; and 
4. Future municipal growth and expansion is supported through a unified effort 
across jurisdictions and supported with planned public services. 
 
Policy 1.6.1  Interlocal Service Boundary and Joint Planning Area Agreements 
Adopted by Reference  The Interlocal Service Boundary and Joint Planning Area 
Agreements adopted by the Sumter County Board of County Commissioners by 
Ordinance 2009-07, as amended, and the City of Wildwood City Commission by 
Ordinance No. 02009-10, as amended, is hereby adopted within the comprehensive plan 
by reference. 
 
Policy 1.6.2  Joint Planning Area and Municipal Services Area A Joint Planning 
Area and Municipal Services Area is hereby established between the City of Wildwood 
and Sumter County to combat urban sprawl, provide an energy efficient land use pattern, 
and to manage growth in an environmentally sensitive manner that protects rural areas 
within the county. The Joint Planning Area, as shown on Map 1-11, shall serve as the 
Municipal Services Area, more specifically defined in Sections 171.202(11) and 
163.3171, Florida Statutes.  
 
Policy  1.6.3 Annexation within the Joint Planning Area The City may annex any 
property within their respective Joint Planning Area, including property that is not 

1. e. 
Page 58 of 68



 
 

109

contiguous, that creates enclaves, or that creates pockets, if the property proposed for 
annexation meets the following criteria: 
  
1.     It is consistent with the prerequisites to annexation and consent requirements for 
annexation in Section 171.204 and Section 171.205, Florida Statutes; 
2.    Utilities are available or scheduled within the Capital Improvements Element to 
be provided to the property within five (5) years; 
3.     A road directly impacted by the annexation, meaning such road directly abuts the 
property or otherwise provides significant service to the property, is not a substandard 
road, as defined by the Transportation Element, or deficiencies are mitigated through a 
binding agreement; and 
4.     All other municipal services are available to the site. 
 
Policy 1.6.4 Proposed Future Land Use Map Designations within the Joint Planning 
Area The proposed future land use designations for properties within the Joint Planning 
Area shall be depicted on Map 1-12. Upon annexation into the City, the City shall amend 
the Future Land Use Map to include the annexed property. If the future land use of the 
annexed property is consistent with the proposed future land uses depicted on the Joint 
Planning Area Map 1-12 then the amendment shall be considered a small scale future 
land use map amendment pursuant to Section 171.204(2), Florida Statutes.  The proposed 
future land uses shown on Map 1-12 are not effective until such time as the property is 
annexed into the City and the City’s Future Land Use Map is amended to include the 
annexed property.  The underlying County future land use shall remain in full force and 
effect until such time as the annexation and related amendment are effective. 
 
Policy 1.6.5  Amendments to the Joint Planning Area Boundary The Joint Planning 
Area boundary may be expanded to include a parcel or parcels of property for annexation 
following joint approval by the City of Wildwood and the County.  Approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld if the property meets the criteria for annexation and there is no 
increase in density or intensity of development.  If there is an impasse, the City and the 
County will resolve through the dispute resolution process provided in the ISBA.  The 
expanded Joint Planning Area shall not take effect until the City’s and County’s Future 
Land Use Maps are amended and approved by the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity as required by Section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes. 
 
Policy 1.6.6 Amendments to Proposed Future Land Use on the Joint Planning 
Area Maps Amendments to the proposed future land use on the Joint Planning Area Map 
shall require joint approval by the City and the County. The amendment to the Joint 
Planning Area Map shall not take effect until the City’s and County’s Future Land Use 
Maps are amended and approved by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity as 
required by Section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes.     
 
Policy  1.6.7 Issuance of Development Orders The City shall have the sole authority to 
issue development orders within its municipal limits. The County shall have the sole 
authority to issue development orders within unincorporated areas.  However, the 
County, pursuant to the ISBA, shall provide the City the professional staff support for the 

1. e. 
Page 59 of 68



 
 

110

processing, review, and approval of building permits and other building inspection 
services. 
 
Policy 1.6.8 Land Development Regulations The City’s land development 
regulations shall apply for development within its municipal limits. The County’s land 
development regulations shall apply for development within unincorporated areas. 
However, the City’s Design District Standards, as amended, shall apply to properties 
within the Joint Planning Area, as further described in the ISBA.   

1. e. 
Page 60 of 68



 
 

111

Chapter 8 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 
Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced is this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
tie Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment or this Element. 
 

GOAL 1 The City of Wildwood shall implement a capital planning program that 
provides and maintains public facilities and services through the use of sound fiscal 
policies. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1 Capital Improvements Program The City shall adopt each year, as 
part of the budget process, a Capital Improvements Program (CIP) that meets the needs 
of the City of Wildwood for the construction of capital facilities necessary to meet 
existing deficiencies, to accommodate desired future growth and to replace obsolete or 
worn-out facilities. 
 
Policy 1.1.1 The City shall adopt a Capital Improvements Budget in congruence of the 
annual budgeting process which evaluates current, short range and long range needs for 
infrastructure.  An annual capital improvement budget as well as a five-year forecast of 
projects will be an ongoing practice.  The five-year plan will require consideration of 
construction costs, inflation and impacts on other operating revenues.   
 
Policy 1.1.2   The Capital Improvements Element shall include projects identified in 
other elements of the comprehensive plan such as utilities, transportation, recreation and 
open space, and public school facilities. 
 
Policy 1.1.3 The Capital Improvements Program shall be updated annually by all affected 
Departments within the City to incorporate any necessary adjustments in prioritization or 
evaluation of proposed projects.   
 
Policy 1.1.4 The following priorities shall be used to determine which projects are 
included in the CIP: 
 
1. To remove a direct and immediate threat to the public health or safety. 
2. Necessary to meet or maintain established levels of service. 
3. Essential for the maintenance of existing facilities or infrastructure. 
4. Increase the efficiency of existing facilities or infrastructure. 
5. Will accommodate new development or redevelopment anticipated in this plan. 
6. Whether the project competes with other facilities that have been or could 
reasonably be provided by other government entities or the private sector. 

1. e. 
Page 61 of 68



 
 

112

7. The revenue-generating potential of the project. 
8. Whether the project leverages additional benefits to the City, such as offers to 
donate land or services by the private sector and/or other governmental entities. 
 
Policy 1.1.5 Adoption of TIP.  The City hereby adopts by reference, the Lake-Sumter 
MPO TIP, FDOT Five-Year Work Program and Sumter County 5-Year TIP for FY 
2011/2012 through 2015/2016, as adopted by the appropriate governing body. 
 
Policy 1.1.6 The City shall review the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (Work 
Plan) annually together with the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements to include 
related work projects identified in the first five years of the Work Plan. 
 
Policy 1.1.7 Capital Improvements identified in the first five years of the Work Plan shall 
be included in the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements. This schedule shall be 
updated annually, as necessary, to maintain consistency with the capital projects with the 
capital projects identified in the Work Plan. 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 Coordination of Land Use Decisions The City of Wildwood shall 
coordinate land use decisions and available or projected fiscal resources with a schedule 
of capital improvements which maintains adopted level of service standards and meets 
the existing and future facility needs. 
 
Policy 1.2.1 The City shall use the development approval process to ensure coordination 
of the level of service standards in the area of proposed development.  Such development 
will not be approved until public facilities in the proposed area meet or exceed the level 
of service standards. 

 
Policy 1.2.2  Provisions for facilities to serve development for which development 
orders were issued prior to plan adoption will be as directed by the City's existing codes 
and ordinances. 
 
Policy 1.2.3   The City shall have provisions for the availability of public facilities and 
services needed to support development concurrent with the impacts of such 
development. Public facility and service availability shall be sufficient if the public 
facilities and services for a development are phased, or the development is phased, so that 
the public facilities and those related services which are deemed necessary by the local 
government to operate the facilities necessitated by that development, are available 
concurrent with the impacts of the development in accordance with the requirements of 
Florida Statutes. Adequate water supplies and facilities shall be available to serve new 
development no later than the date on which the local government anticipates issuing a 
certificate of occupancy or its equivalent. 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.3 Level of Service (LOS) The City shall utilize level of service criteria 
defined in the various Elements of this Plan when determining the timing and funding of 
capital facilities. 

1. e. 
Page 62 of 68



 
 

113

 
Policy 1.3.1 The City of Wildwood hereby adopts the following guidelines and 
procedures: All plan amendments and requests for new development shall meet at a 
minimum: 

 
a. The intent and polices of the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use 
Element and Capital Improvements Element. 
b. The adopted LOS Standards as follows for all facilities and services required by 
the City of Wildwood. 
c. The economic feasibility requirements of the Capital Improvements Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan.   
d. The requirements of appropriate state and regional agency plans. 
e. The minimum requirements for concurrency as set forth in the administrative 
rules of the state. 
 

Category Level of Service Standard  
Water    300 gallons per day per ERC 
Sewer    250 gallons per day per ERC  
Solid Waste   2.04 lbs/capita/day (in accordance with the 

level of service established by the County – 
Source: Sumter Utilities Element Policy 
4.3.1.2)  

Drainage Facilities  Stormwater facilities shall be designed to 
accommodate the 25-year, 24-hour design 
storm to meet the water quality and quantity 
standards that follow: 

 
a. Water Quantity  Peak post-development runoff shall not exceed peak 
pre-development runoff rates. 
b. Water Quality Treatment of stormwater runoff shall be required 
for all development, redevelopment and, when expansion occurs, existing 
developed areas. The stormwater treatment system or systems can be 
project specific, serve sub-areas within the City or be a system to serve the 
entire City. Regardless of the area sewed and in accordance with Chapter 
17-25, F.A.C., the stormwater treatment systems must provide a level of 
treatment for the runoff from the first one (1) inch of rainfall for projects 
in drainage basins of 100 acres or more, or as an option for projects with 
drainage basins less than 100 acres, for the first one-half (1/2) inch of 
runoff in order to meet receiving water quality standards of Chapter 17-
302, Section 17-302.500, F.A.C. Stormwater discharge facilities shall be 
designed so as to not lower receiving water quality or degrade the 
receiving water body below the minimum conditions necessary to assure 
the suitability of water for the designated use of its classification as 
established in Chapter 17-302, F.A.C. It is intended that rill standards in 
these citations are to apply to all development and redevelopment and that 

1. e. 
Page 63 of 68



 
 

114

any exemptions or exceptions in these citations including project size 
thresholds, are not applicable. 

 
Infill residential development within improved residential areas or 
subdivisions existing prior to the adoption of this comprehensive plan, 
must ensure that its post-development stormwater runoff will not 
contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the entire improved 
area or subdivision to degrade receiving water bodies and their water 
quality as stated above. 

 
Recreation  
Neighborhood Parks  2 acres per 1,000 population 
Community Parks  3 acres per 1,000 population 
Regional Parks           5 acres per 1,000 population 

 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.4 New Development Future development will bear a proportionate cost 
of needed facility improvements through equitable and legally available means. 

 
Policy 1.4.1 Development will bear an equitable and proportionate share of the cost of 
providing new or expanded public facilities required to maintain adopted levels of service 
through mechanisms such as impact fees, capacity fees, developer dedications, developer 
contributions pursuant to land development regulations and special benefit 
assessment/taxing districts. 
 
Policy 1.4.2 The City shall continue to use the various impact fees to support the 
implementation of the Capital Improvements Program. 
 
Policy 1.4.3 The City shall regularly evaluate the following: 
 
a. Whether the present fee levies are adequate to address impacts of inflations. 
b. Whether the City needs to appropriate new impact fees. 
c. Whether capacity fees, user charges, special benefit assessment/taxing district and 
other mechanisms are adequately and fully meeting the fiscal demands placed on the City 
by new development. 
 
Policy 1.4.4 Development orders may only be issued where the required levels of service 
are being met concurrent with current or projected development.  A valid Certificate of 
Concurrency is proof that the applicant has met such criteria.  This approval is required 
prior to the issuance of any development order. 

 
Policy 1.4.5 The City Land Development Regulations shall be amended to require 
developers to supply data outlining the demand of their project on all infrastructure. 

 

1. e. 
Page 64 of 68



 
 

115

Policy 1.4.6  All developers creating a deficiency upon any infrastructure facility with 
an adopted level of service standard shall upgrade the deficient facility so the adopted 
level of service is maintained. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.5   Management of Process The City will seek to manage its fiscal 
resources efficiently in order to insure funds are available to implement capital facilities 
needs and priorities. 
 
Policy 1.5.1 Adoption of annual budgets shall include a specific capital budget, which 
shall implement adequate funding sources and be consistent with the Capital 
Improvements Element. 

 
Policy 1.5.2 To ensure optimum strategies for financial feasibility, the City shall review 
and evaluate available and potential funding sources to ensure a financial strategy exists 
to adequately fund the 5-Year Capital Improvements Plan.  If alternative funding sources 
are not successfully adopted and implemented on the schedule identified, the City shall 
either: 
 
a. Increase the rates of current revenue sources or implement other available sources 
such that the schedule of capital improvements is adequately funded in each budget year; 
or 
b. Amend the Plan Elements including level of service (LOS) standards and the 
schedule of capital improvements, as appropriate and necessary, such that internal 
consistency of the Plan and financial feasibility are maintained. 
 
Policy 1.5.3 To ensure optimum strategies for financial feasibility, the City shall review 
and evaluate available and potential funding sources to ensure a financial strategy exists 
to adequately fund long term improvements.  Alternative funding sources and 
mechanisms may include: 
 
a. Establishment of Municipal Services Benefit Units (MSBUs) for transportation 
funding. 
b. Implementation of impact fees to assist in the funding of new facilities. 
c. Encourage large projects to form Community Development Districts (CDDs) to 
share the cost of infrastructure funding. 
d. Establishment of special assessments on property owners. 
e. Combination of funding sources. 
 
Policy 1.5.4 The City will actively seek grants from federal, state and other sources 
(including private funding), where available and when appropriate, to supplement or fully 
finance capital facility construction. 
 
Policy 1.5.5 The City shall only consider long-term borrowing in the absence of current 
revenue to commit to capital improvements. 
 

1. e. 
Page 65 of 68



 
 

116

Policy 1.5.6 The Capital Improvements Program shall embody and be consistent with the 
following: 
 
a. Maintenance of existing infrastructure, including renewal/replacement of worn-
out facilities and rehabilitation/reuse of existing facilities, shall be specifically projected 
and the funding identified. 
b. Debt obligations shall be specifically identified and projected to ensure 
compliance with debt covenants, including coverage requirements. 
c. A debt management strategy and set of criteria, which shall be based upon the 
debt management principles set out in Policy 1.5.6. 
d. Maintenance of levels of undesignated reserves adequate to serve sound public 
fiscal management purposes. 
e. Equity of the uses of a revenue source relative to the populace generating the 
revenue. 
 
Policy 1.5.7 Management of Debt The City shall manage debt issuance and obligations 
according to sound public fiscal management principles, including the following: 
 
a. Debt issuance will be included in the City’s long-term capital plan. 
b. The City will only issue debt to fund capital expenditures that have an expected 
life greater than five (5) years. 
c. Debt may not be issued for a period of more than forty (40) years or the expected 
useful life of the asset being funded, whichever is less. 
d. The maximum ratio of total debt service to total revenue shall be 15%. 
e. Total City debt will not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the taxable value 
of property located within the City. 
f. Credit enhancement will be utilized when necessary to lower total borrowing 
costs. 

 
Policy 1.5.8  The City will expend revenue generated by the citizens of Wildwood for 
capital facilities in a manner consistent with this Comprehensive Plan only. 
 

 
 
 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS IMPLEMENTATION 
 
A 5-year schedule of capital improvements is included in this section of the Capital 
Improvements Element. This schedule is the mechanism by which the City of Wildwood 
utilizes to stage the timing, location, cost, and revenue sources required for capital 
projects that effect concurrency as derived from other elements of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  The 5-year schedule demonstrates the financial feasibility of the concurrency-
related capital needs of the City of Wildwood. 

 

1. e. 
Page 66 of 68



2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017

C-468 Interchange with Florida Turnpike $1,566,000 $829,000 $5,345,000 $4,000,000 

C-462 Widening from US 301 to C-466A $900,000 $5,800,000 

C-466 Widening from CR 209 to US 301 $450,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000 

C-466A Phase III - Widening fromUS 301 to 
Powell Road

$2,300,000 $2,468,438 $2,200,000     

C-468 Widening from SR 44 to Turnpike $5,000,000 $4,100,000 
C-468 Widening from US 301 to Florida 

Turnpike
Total $5,216,000 $11,097,438 $16,045,000 $8,100,000 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
C-466W from CR 209 to US 301 

Resurfacing
CON $1,612,903 

Huey Street/CR 44a CSX Crossing - Rail 
Safety Project

$209,076 

SR 35 (US 301) from CR 470 to SR 44 PD&E $10,000 $1,000,000 
AD $1,361,993 

CON-SUP $1,379 
PE $8,500 

CON $619,769 
CON-SUP $5,155 

PE $2,262 
CON-SUP $206,108 

PE $27,759 $65,557 
ROW $9,260 $174,030 
CON $465,664 

CON-SUP $5,615 
Total $1,836,337 $1,798,954 $1,678,460 $0 $471,279

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
TIE and Connection Fees $0
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

DES $213,000 
CON $8,238,000

Champagne Farms Transmission System - 
24" main extension to SR 44

CON
$4,206,000

Champagne Farms Transmission System - 
24" main extension to CR 214/CR 209 

intersection
CON

$5,814,000
Expenditures Total $213,000 $0 $0 $18,258,000 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE -$213,000 $0 $0 -$18,258,000 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds

City Projects 

Sumter County Projects 

5 - Year Schedule of Capital Improvements
Transportation

Fiscal Year
PhaseCounty Funded Projects:

City Projects 

US 301 at SR 44 - Add turn lane(s)

FDOT Funded Projects:
Fiscal Year

Phase

Phase

City Projects 

FDOT Projects 

Fiscal Year
PhaseCity Revenue Source:

CR 466 at US 301 - Add Turn Lane(s)

SR 35 (US 301) N of CR 232 to N of NE 
110 Road

Champagne Farms WTP (Phase 1)

Sanitary Sewer and Reuse Projects

City of Wildwood

Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source:

Potable Water

SR 35 (US 301) N of CR 204 to Marion 
County Line - Add lanes and reconstruct

1. e. 
Page 67 of 68



5 - Year Schedule of Capital Improvements
City of Wildwood

TIE and Connection Fees
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:
Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt $35,000

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

High Street Tot Lot CON $35,000
Expenditures Total $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Italics = Unfunded
*Partially Funded

Drainage (Stormwater) Projects
City Projects 

Recreation Projects
City Projects 

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

1. e. 
Page 68 of 68



SUBJEC 
  
  
REQUES 
  
  
  
  

CONTRA 
  
  
  
  
BUDGET 
  

 Annua 
 Capita 
 N/A 

    
  
HISTORY 
  
The appl 
the adop 
  
Policy 1.7 
  
The appl 

 R 
 In 
 A 

m 
  
The text 
the DRI 
contained 
with a de 
  
Staff rec 
163.3187 
  

  
Jason Mc 
Developm 
  
  

CITY 

CT: Ord 

STED ACTIO 

 W 
  

  
  

ACT:  
Effe 
Man 

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS 

icant seeks 
pted Compre 

7.3 is specifi 

icant’s reque 
Remove the c 
ncrease the 

Add clarifying 
minimum per 

amendment 
process. Re 
d within the 
ecrease in ot 

commends 
7.  

cHugh 
ment Service 

Y COMMIS 

dinance O2 

ON: 

Work Sessio 
Regular Mee 

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis 

  
  
FUNDING S 
EXPENDITU 
  
                          

SSUES: 

approval for 
hensive Plan 

c to The Vill 

est is to ame 
cap of a max 
maximum re 
g language 
rcentage to t 

t will not gra 
esidential un 
e DRI Develo 
ther uses as 

the transm 

  

es Coordina 

SSION OF 

EXECUT 

2013-02: T 
  
Transmitta 

on (Report O 
eting 

__________ 
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO 

                          

r a Text Ame 
n. 

lages of Wild 

end Policy 1 
ximum of 66 
esidential ac 
so that it is 

the maximum 

ant additiona 
nits can only 
opment Ord 
specified in 

ittal Ordina 

ator 

F THE CI 
  

TIVE SUMM 
  

he Villages 

al of Ordina 

Only) DAT 
 S 

  

Vend 
____ Term 

  

UNT: 

                 

endment to 

dwood Deve 

.7.3 to: 
6 residential 
creage from 
s clear that 
m percentag 

al entitlemen 
y be constru 
der. Thus, an 
 the Develop 

ance O2013- 

ITY OF W 

MARY 

s of Wildw 

ance O2013 

TE OF MEET 
Special Meet 

dor/Entity:  
mination Date 

  
  
  

Policy 1.7.3 

elopment of 

dwelling un 
15% to 40% 

t the percen 
ge. 

nts.  All imp 
ucted throug 
ny increase 
pment Orde 

-02 to the st 

WILDWOO 

wood 

3-02 to the 

TING: J 
ting  

  

  
e:   

of the Futu 

Regional Im 

its. 
%. 
ntage distrib 

pacts have b 
gh the land 
in residenti 
r.  

tate reviewin 

OD 

Reviewing 

January 14, 

re Land Use 

mpact (DRI). 

bution range 

been address 
use conver 

al units mus 

ng agencies 

 Agencies 

2013 

e Element of 

  

es from the 

sed through 
rsion matrix 
st be offset 

s under F.S. 

1. f. 
Page 1 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
1 of 6 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR TEXT AMENDMENTS TO 
POLICY 1.7.3 OF THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF 
THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
PERTAINING TO THE VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD 
DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT; IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT 
OF 2011; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS,  The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact, herein 
referred to as “The Villages,” is a mixed-use development located within the municipal 
limits of the City of Wildwood, Florida; 

 
WHEREAS, The Villages is governed by The Villages of Wildwood Development 

of Regional Impact Development Order and Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Villages wish to amend Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 

Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan pertains solely to The Villages. The lands contained within The Villages subject to 
Policy 1.7.3 are legally described as follows:  

 
VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD  

DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT 
 

SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA: 
 
THE LAND LYING IN SECTION 4, TOWNHSIP 19, SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID 
SECTION 4, RUN S00°22’17”W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID SECTION 4 A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE 

1. f. 
Page 2 of 17



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
2 of 6 

SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY OF WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 466A AND THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°30’00”E, 
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY A DISTANCE OF 2208.01 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID RIGHT OF WAY, S00°29’59”W, 294.99 FEET; THENCE 
S11°45’51”W, 115.75; THENCE S03°11’42”E, 88.78 FEET; THENCE 
S20°58’27”E, 62.51 FEET; THENCE S26°51’45”E, 59.88; THENCE S39°43’42”E, 
51.33 FEET; THENCE S72°01’33”W, 298.77 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC 
OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 3,572.15 FEET 
AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S21°25’12”E, 351.44 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05°38’21”, A DISTANCE OF 351.58 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 122°10’41”, A DISTANCE OF 85.30 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY AND HAVING  A RADIUS OF 171.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 98°54’59”, A DISTANCE OF 295.22 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 249.33 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 170.00 FEET AND A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N26°31’56”W, 303.33 FEET TO WHICH A 
RADIAL LINE BEARS S53°23’12”E; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 126°17’27”, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 374.71 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE 
N89°40’39”W, 166.79 FEET; THENCE S00°19’21”W, 269.89 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 521.40 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 789.00 FEET OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE N00°22’17”E, 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 15.00 FEET OF THE WEST 789.00 FEET OF 
SAID NORTH ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST 
LINE N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 298.30 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF WEST 490.70 FEET OF SAID NORTH ½ 
OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE 
N00°22’17”E, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 466.70 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 481.70 FEET OF SAID NORTH 
½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO A 
POINT ON SAID WEST LINE THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID NORTH LINE N00°22’17”E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 

1. f. 
Page 3 of 17



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
3 of 6 

794.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; LESS:  THE RIGHT OF WAY OF 
COUNTY ROAD 139; AND 
 
SECTIONS 8,  9, 16 AND 17, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEING PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 8, 9, 16 AND 17, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF CSX RAILWAY AND LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE 
NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 44, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF "KERL & MILLER SUBDIVISION 
1ST ADDITION", ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN 
PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 55, SUMTER COUNTY RECORDS, FLORIDA; THENCE 
N65°13'12"W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE THEREOF AND ALONG 
THE NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF FOR A DISTANCE OF 
874.89 FEET; THENCE S22°30'28"W 716.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF AFORESAID SECTION 8; THENCE 
N89°28'01"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE FOR A DISTANCE OF 611.48 FEET; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, S00°25'18"E, 471.13 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 44; 
THENCE THE FOLLOWING 22 COURSES ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE: S70°31'17"E, 296.92 FEET; THENCE S71°43'13"E, 
300.33 FEET; THENCE S70°31'17"E, 350.12 FEET; THENCE S69°02'54"E, 
2190.00 FEET; THENCE N20°57'06"E, 293.00 FEET; THENCE S69°02'54"E, 
312.68 FEET; THENCE S00°40'13"W, 307.04 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 
390.88 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 
1,118.84 FEET; THENCE S69°02'53"E, 943.81 FEET; THENCE N18°38'47"E, 
10.01 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 337.76 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 
FEET; THENCE S69°02'58"E, 131.89 FEET; THENCE S69°02'49"E, 68.11 
FEET; THENCE S68°11'21"E, 200.02 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 
FEET; THENCE S65°58'19"E, 400.58 FEET; THENCE S64°37'01"E, 200.60 
FEET; THENCE S65°48'19"E, 300.48 FEET; THENCE S67°34'23"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 271.85 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE WESTERLY 
LINE OF OAK PARK, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED 
IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 32, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING AFORESAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NO. 44, RUN N00°37'16"E, ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID OAK PARK A DISTANCE OF 606.23 FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID "OAK PARK"; THENCE S89°43'00"E ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE 401.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE LANDS 
DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 947, PAGE 7, RECORDED IN THE 

1. f. 
Page 4 of 17



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
4 of 6 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N00°33'26"E 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE 394.18 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1419, PAGE 616, 
RECORDED IN PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE N60°44'37"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 834.76 FEET TO THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 
1419, PAGE 616; THENCE N00°35'51"E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 536.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1419, PAGE 616 AND THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 16; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°30'39"E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINES 
THEREOF A DISTANCE OF 56.08 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID 
NORTH LINES AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE CSX RAILWAY; 
(THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES ARE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY 
OF THE CSX RAILWAY); THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINES 
N51°31'53"W, 1,333.10 FEET; THENCE S00°29'25"W, 12.69 FEET; THENCE 
N51°31'53"W, 30.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE SOUTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,928.30 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH 
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°40'39", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 460.32 FEET; 
THENCE N65°12'32"W, 2,448.41 FEET; THENCE N00°24'18"E, 10.98 FEET; 
THENCE N65°12'32"W, 1,418.92 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF KERL AND 
MILLER SUBDIVISION 1ST ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 55, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY OF 
THE CSX RAILWAY S24°48'19"W, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1,133.40 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
AND 
 
A PORTION OF SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT PORTION OF THE CSX RAILWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO AND 
NORTHEASTERLY OF TAX PARCELS G08=096, G08=019, G08=022, 
G09=009 AND G09=008; SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY BOUNDED ON THE WEST BY 
THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EASTERLY LINE OF “KERL & 
MILLER SUBDIVISION 1st ADDITION” AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, 
PAGE 55 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA AND 
BOUNDED ON THE EAST BY A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED CSX RAILWAY 
BEGINNING AT ITS INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 
9, LESS THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 44A. 

1. f. 
Page 5 of 17



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
5 of 6 

 
AND 
 
THAT LAND LYING IN SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8 RUN N00°29'25"E, ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF A 
DISTANCE OF 317.95 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF C-44A 
ACCORDING TO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP ON FILE IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE AND ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
THE FOLLOWING COURSES: N57°12'30"W, 18.62 FEET; THENCE N65°08'45"W, 
55.69 FEET; THENCE N64°55'26"W, 27.20 FEET; THENCE N65°09'05"W, 652.79 
FEET; THENCE S71°31'02"W, 3.69 FEET; THENCE N65°35'30"W, 10.02 FEET TO 
THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 139 AS RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2088, PAGE 193, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AND ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING 
COURSES: N19°25'59"W, 39.56 FEET; THENCE N25°04'43"E, 239.29 FEET TO THE 
NORTH BOUNDARY OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
2131, PAGE 399, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA.; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG SAID NORTH 
BOUNDARY AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF, S65°09'05"E, 
715.62 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID 
NORTH BOUNDARY, S00°57'59"W, 295.85 FEET TO SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF C-44A; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE 
FOLLOWING COURSES: N65°02'56"W, 21.89 FEET; THENCE N57°12'30"W, 20.22 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.    

SECTION 2. The text amendments to Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan are shown in attached “Exhibit A.” 
The amendments are attached hereto and are shown with strikethrough for deletions 
and underline for additions. 
 
 SECTION 3. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
amendments are hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land planning 
agency.  
 
 SECTION 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  

1. f. 
Page 6 of 17



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
6 of 6 

 SECTION 5. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 6. This Ordinance, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
effective 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that 
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining this Ordinance to be in compliance. No 
development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent upon this Ordinance 
may be issued or commenced before it has become effective. If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this Ordinance may 
nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, 
a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             
 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. f. 
Page 7 of 17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-02 

“Exhibit A” 

The Villages of Wildwood 

Development of Regional Impact 

Future Land Use Element Policy 1.7.3 

 

1. f. 
Page 8 of 17



Policy 1.7.3 The Villages of Wildwood DRI The City of Wildwood recognizes the 
uniqueness of the property known as The Villages of Wildwood DRI which is designated 
as such on the City of Wildwood’s Future Land Use Map.  The Villages of Sumter 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI) 3rd Substantial Deviation, Application for 
Development Approval (ADA) serves as supporting data and analysis for the project. The 
DRI is composed of a town center, office, commercial, institutional and other uses which 
are only a portion of the entire The Villages of Sumter DRI. Thus, the land uses lying 
within Wildwood are only a small part of the entire development plan and a portion of the 
allocation of mixed uses within the DRI. The ADA provides a comprehensive analysis of 
the suitability of the area and impacts from the DRI. This DRI analysis can be used by the 
City of Wildwood to guide the timing, location, type and amount of future development. 
Thus, the ADA, sufficiency responses and the DRI Development Order provide 
supporting data and analysis for the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) and text amendments. 
The boundaries of The Villages of Wildwood DRI are identified on the City’s Future 
Land Use Map and subject to the following: 
 

a. The Villages of Wildwood DRI is a mixed use development that may include a 
functional integration of residential, retail, office, medical, attraction, hotel, 
institutional, recreation uses and supporting infrastructure (e.g. roads, water, 
sewer, etc.). All uses within the Villages of Wildwood may be located within the 
Town Center except for the Medical Campus.  The planning timeframe for the 
project is 2008 through build-out in 2014. The maximum non-residential land use 
intensity shall not exceed 0.5 Floor Area Ratio (FAR), except for Town Centers 
and Medical Campus which shall not exceed 3.0 FAR. The maximum residential 
density shall not exceed 7 dwelling units per net residential acre and is limited to 
a maximum of 66 units.  All residential units are age-restricted and must be 
established through the use of the land use-trade off mechanism within the 
adopted DRI development order.  Consistent with these intensity/density 
standards, the Village of Wildwood is limited to the following development 
entitlements: 

 
Retail  1,288,258 SF 
Office  14,400 SF 
Hotel  200 rooms 
Medical 300 hospital beds or equivalent medical uses 
Theatre 8 screens 
Institutional 49,714 SF 
 
These entitlements may be converted through mechanisms described in the DRI 
development order.  Conversions must not create an increase in public facility 
impacts and are limited to a maximum of 25% of the approved entitlements to 
maintain the character of development.  Phasing for the project is based on 
development units (e.g. non-residential square footage and hospital beds) and is 
approximately divided into three year increments, but may proceed more quickly 
than projected. Interim land use activities for undeveloped land may include 
farming, and cattle and buffalo husbandry, provided such activities are not in 

1. f. 
Page 9 of 17



conflict with the Wildlife Habitat Management Plan approved by the FFWCC for 
the DRI. The mix of uses and distribution of uses (not including support 
infrastructure) as a percent of the project’s acreage shall be consistent with the 
following minimum and maximum ranges are as follows: 

  
Use Minimum 

Permitted 
Maximum 
Permitted 

Commercial: Including Retail, Office, Hotel 
Convention/Performing Arts Center and Theater 

55% 68% 

Residential 0% 40% 
Institutional/Educational 1% 3% 
Medical Campus: Including Hospital, Clinic, 
Professional Offices, Pharmacy, Assisted Living 
Facility/ Skilled Nursing Facility 

5% 15% 

 
  Commercial: Including Retail, Office, Hotel 

 Convention/Performing Arts Center and Theater   55% to 68% 
 Residential  0% to 15% 
 Institutional/Educational  1% to 3% 
 Medical Campus: Including Hospital, Clinic, 
 Professional Offices, Pharmacy, Assisted Living 
 Facility/Skilled Nursing Facility   5% to 15% 
 
  This policy does not guarantee the approval of development orders which are in 

accordance with the percent distribution of acreage mix. The approval of 
development orders shall be consistent with this policy and other policies under 
Policy 1.7.3 and future conditions maps. 

 
  No vertical construction may occur within the Villages of Wildwood until the 

effective date of a Villages of Sumter DRI development order amendment to 
remove the entitlements identified above. 

 
b. The Villages of Wildwood DRI must be consistent with the supporting criteria in 

this policy.  Policy 1.7.3 restates the relevant provisions within the City’s plan as 
it relates to the DRI, but exempts the project from all other comprehensive plan 
standards which do not relate to the project or have been superseded by Policy 
1.7.3.  This exemption is necessary in order to ensure that the DRI is developed 
consistently with the remainder of the Villages of Sumter DRI and considers those 
land uses that are outside of, but support, the portion within the City. The DRI 
must also be consistent with the City of Wildwood FLUM and future conditions 
maps. 
 

c. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will meet all required local, state and federal 
regulations as specified in the DRI development order and zoning requirements.  
 

1. f. 
Page 10 of 17



d. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA is determined to be 
suitable for the land uses proposed for the site and will remain compatible with 
the surrounding area through design requirements including standards for 
buffering and landscaping. The project will also be developed as an intense urban 
center providing the benefits of a mixed use project that will encourage pedestrian 
activity and other modes of transportation including sidewalks bike lanes and golf 
cart paths. 
 

e. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA has determined there are 
approximately 25 acres of wetlands on-site. The wetlands will be protected or 
mitigated in accordance with the Southwest Florida Water Management District’s 
Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) requirements. Wetlands impacted will be 
limited to isolated wetlands and may be mitigated off-site as provided by the 
conditions of the ERP. No development will be permitted within protected 
wetlands in accordance with the development order. Impacted wetlands can be 
developed in accordance with the DRI development order as long as the wetlands 
are mitigated as required under the ERP. 
 

f. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA has identified the nesting 
of the Sherman Fox Squirrel on-site. No other listed plant or animal species or 
other environmental features have been identified. A habitat management plan 
must be developed and incorporated into the DRI development order which will 
direct the protection and/or mitigation of impacts to any listed species. The 
Habitat Management Plan also requires coordination with the Florida Game and 
Freshwater Fish Commission. 
 

g. Development of the Villages of Wildwood DRI will require coordination between 
the developer, the City of Wildwood and Sumter County. This may include the 
development of any necessary agreements between the developer of the DRI, one 
or more Community Development Districts, Sumter County and the City of 
Wildwood, either through joint or separate agreements, in the provision of 
services. The developer will also coordinate with the City in regards to capital 
improvement planning as required in this policy. 
 

h. New development within the Villages of Wildwood DRI must not degrade the 
adopted level of service for the public facilities required to serve this 
development. Water and sewer facilities will be provided by the Central Sumter 
Utility Company and not by the City of Wildwood. For transportation facilities, 
the DRI development order includes requirements for mitigating transportation 
impacts. If improvements are necessary, then the developer will coordinate with 
the City regarding any necessary capital planning which may include agreements 
to ensure the roads are mitigated. 
 

i. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will be developed in accordance with the 
following level of service standards and shall be used as the basis for determining 
the availability of facility capacity and the demand generated for the DRI. 

1. f. 
Page 11 of 17



Decisions regarding the issuance of development orders and permits for the DRI 
will be based upon coordination of the development requirements adopted as part 
Policy 1.7.3. 

 
Level of Service Standards for the Villages of Wildwood DRI 

 
(These level of service standards only apply within the boundaries of The Villages of 

Wildwood DRI as identified on the FLUM) 
 

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES LEVEL OF 
SERVICE

Principal Arterial D 
Minor Arterial and others D 

POTABLE WATER AND SANITARY SEWER
LEVEL OF 
SERVICE

 
Land Use Unit

Sanitary Sewer 
(GPD)

Potable Water 
(GPD) 

Residential Dwelling unit/day 115.9 118.6 
Office Gross SF 0.010 0.10 
Hotel Rooms 100 100 
Retail/Service Gross SF 0.15 0.15 
Hospital Beds 250 250 
Theater Seat 5 5 
Educational/Institutional Gross SF 0.15 0.15 
DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
Stormwater facilities shall be designed to accommodate the 15-year, 24-hour design 
storm to meet the water quality and quantity standards below.
WATER QUALITY and QUANTITY
Treatment and attenuation of stormwater runoff shall be required for all development, 
redevelopment and, when expansion occurs, existing developed areas.  Infill residential 
development within improved residential areas or subdivisions, which existed prior to the 
adoption of the comprehensive plan, must ensure that its post-development stormwater 
runoff will not contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the entire improved 
area to degrade receiving waters.  Water quality and attenuation shall be deemed 
acceptable when the applicant has demonstrated compliance with Southwest Florida 
Water Management District Chapter 40D-4 and Chapter 40D-40, F.A.C. 
RECREATION FACILITIES 

The recreation facilities necessary for this site are provided in the Sumter County
portion of the Villages of Sumter DRI.  The developer may include parks and 
other recreation uses within the City but these facilities are in excess of required 
recreation level of service to serve the project. Thus, the developer will not rely 
on nor degrade the City’s level of service standard for recreation.   

 
 

 
j. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will include as part of this project sidewalks, bike 

lanes and golf cart paths to ensure the project is interconnected with the remainder 
of The Villages. 
 

k. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will mitigate for any required affordable housing 
impacts in accordance with the adopted development order. 
 

l. The developer will coordinate with the City of Wildwood in the provision of 
transportation facilities that may be necessary to mitigate for the DRI’s impacts. 

1. f. 
Page 12 of 17



No other public facilities (such as potable water and sewer) will be provided by 
the City of Wildwood. As part of any required mitigation, the developer will 
coordinate with the City to ensure the mitigation can be considered as part of the 
City’s required capital improvement planning. The developer will also coordinate 
with any water suppliers in accordance with the Consumptive Use Permit to 
ensure that adequate water supplies are available to serve the DRI. 
 

m. Amendments to the DRI through the Notice of Proposed Change process pursuant 
to s. 3 80.06(19), FS, shall not require a plan amendment provided the change 
does not include the addition of land or a new use and is otherwise consistent with 
the comprehensive plan. Changes to a DRI Development Order adopted by the 
City of Wildwood shall be reflected in the Conceptual Master Plan and other 
zoning support documents as a ministerial function. 
 

n. The Application for Development Approval, sufficiency responses and DRI 
Development Order for The Villages of Wildwood DRI provide the supporting 
data and analysis for the DRI land use designation on the FLUM. 
 

o. The Villages of Wildwood DRI Development Order ensures consistency of the 
DRI land use designation on the FLUM with Policy 1.7.3 and future conditions 
maps of the Wildwood Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. f. 
Page 13 of 17



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 1

Villages of Wildwood DRI
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 Vi
lla

ge
s o

f W
ild

wo
od

 D
RI

.m
xd

 - 1
2/2

1/2
01

2 3
:12

:40
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

Legend
Villages of Wildwood DRI

1. f. 
Page 14 of 17



K
M

K
S

R
V

11
-1

2-
12

1 
of

 2

D
at

e:
D

ra
w

n 
by

:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y:

R

0
60
0

12
00

18
00

24
00

30
00

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
lo

rid
a 

 3
21

62
10

20
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng

M
A

S
TE

R
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
P

LA
N

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

Te
l N

o.
 (3

52
)7

53
-4

74
7 

 F
ax

 N
o.

 (3
52

)7
53

-1
29

6
10

38
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng
   

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
L 

32
16

2
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

LL
C

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r: 

 2
74

95

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

2

M
A

P
 O

F 
V

IL
LA

G
E

S
 O

F
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

 D
R

I
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y 1. f. 
Page 15 of 17



K
M

K
S

R
V

11
-1

2-
12

2 
of

 2

D
at

e:
D

ra
w

n 
by

:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y:

R

0
30
0

60
0

90
0

12
00

15
00

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
lo

rid
a 

 3
21

62
10

20
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng

M
A

S
TE

R
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
P

LA
N

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

Te
l N

o.
 (3

52
)7

53
-4

74
7 

 F
ax

 N
o.

 (3
52

)7
53

-1
29

6
10

38
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng
   

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
L 

32
16

2
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

LL
C

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r: 

 2
74

95

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

2

M
A

P
 O

F 
V

IL
LA

G
E

S
 O

F
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

 D
R

I
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y 1. f. 
Page 16 of 17



Future Land Use 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 1

Villages of Wildwood DRI
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Ex
ist

ing
 FL

U 
- V

illa
ge

s o
f W

ild
wo

od
 D

RI
.m

xd
 - 1

2/2
1/2

01
2 3

:11
:12

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

C-44A

E SR 44

PO
WE

LL
 R

D

C-466A

C-
46

2 E

S B
UE

NA
 VI

ST
A B

LV
D

PO
WE

LL
 ST

CLEVELAND AVE/C-466A

E SR 44

Legend
Villages of Wildwood DRI

City Limits

Villages of Wildwood
DRI

COM

REC

I

COM

RIO

HDR

PF

PF

CMU

CMU

CMU PF

MDR

COM

ECNMU

1. f. 
Page 17 of 17



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
Attached
areas inc
from the 
residents
 
Staff wou
engineer
Construc
possible.
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 
 

CITY

CT: CD

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS

d are the fin
clude paving

attached p
s of Wildwoo

uld like to tha
ring expertis
ction, Inc., a
. 

Peavy, Direc
ment Service

Y COMMIS

DBG Grant 

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 

nal before an
g / repaving f
hotos, the p

od. 

ank Andy Ea
se and co
and Geo-Te

ctor 
es Departme

SSION OF

EXECUT

– Before a
 
Information
improveme

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

nd after pho
for sections 
project has 

aston and A
onsultation; 
ch Inc. with

 

ent 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

and After P

nal item reg
ents throug

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

otos from th
of Stone, M
resulted in 

Associates fo
and C.W. 

hout whose 

ITY OF W

MARY 

Photos on S

garding the 
h the City’s

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

he CDBG P
Moss, Oak, a

much need

or their work 
Roberts C
hard work 

WILDWOO

Street Rep

results of r
s CDBG gra

TING: J
ting  

 

 
e:   

roject Impro
and Fourth s
ed roadway

on this gran
Contracting, 

this project

OD 

paving 

roadway 
ant 

January 14, 

ovements.  T
treets.  As y

y improveme

nt; Kimley-H
Inc., Utilit

t would not 

2013 

The project 
you can see 
ents for the 

orn for their 
ty Systems 
have been 

2. f. 1. 
Page 1 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements 
 

Final Pictures 
 

November 2012 

PREPARED BY: 

2. f. 1. 
Page 2 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 2 

Stone Street 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 3 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 3 

Stone Street 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 4 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 4 

Stone Street 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 5 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 5 

Moss Street 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 6 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 6 

Oak Street 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 7 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 7 

Oak Street 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 8 of 9



CDBG Project Improvements – Final Pictures, November 2012, Pg. 8 

Fourth Street 

 

 

2. f. 1. 
Page 9 of 9



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
Attached
Citizens 
process, 
to develo
in-house
 
Staff loo
developm
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 
 

CITY

CT: Dev

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS

d is a copy 
and Busine
review sche

opers, relato
, using minim

oks forward 
ment here in

Peavy, Direc
ment Service

Y COMMIS

velopment

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 

of the Deve
esses.”  The
edule, fees, 
ors, and pote
mal resource

to using t
 the City of W

ctor 
es Departme

SSION OF

EXECUT

t Services 
 
Information
brochure, “

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

elopment Se
e brochure p

and contact
ential new b
es.   

this brochu
Wildwood. 

 

ent 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Brochure

nal item reg
“Information

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

ervices Depa
provides info
t information
usiness own

re as one 

ITY OF W

MARY 

garding Dev
n for Citizen

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

artment’s ne
ormation on
n in an enga
ners.  The b

more tool 

WILDWOO

velopment 
ns and Bus

TING: J
ting  

 

 
e:   

ew brochure
n the depart
aging format
brochure was

to promote

OD 

Services’ n
sinesses”  

January 14, 

e titled “Info
ment’s miss
t that can be
s produced 

e healthy, 

new 

2013 

ormation for 
sion, review 
e distributed 
and printed 

sustainable 

2.f.2. 
Page 1 of 3



2.f.2. 
Page 2 of 3



2.f.2. 
Page 3 of 3



Blessed Mother Teresa of Calcutta Division Ancient Order of Hibernians 
Lake County 01, Florida 

1351 Paige PL, The Villages FL 32159 
353-391-5391   aohvillages@embarqmail.com 

                                        
 
Mr. Bill Ed Cannon         January 3, 2013 
Wildwood City Manager 
100 N Main Street 
Wildwood Florida 34785 

Dear Mr. Cannon, 

Once again, Florida’s Irish American community will be celebrating its Irish heritage 
during the month of March.  Ever since the military governorship of Irish American 
Andrew Jackson, Irish Americans in Florida have provided leadership and service to their 
state, counties, and local communities.  Irish Floridians can look back with pride on the 
legacy of their Irish forebears, who have contributed significantly to education, business, 
sports, literature, science, engineering, medicine, science and the arts.  Today, we 
continue to recognize and honor the service of our current State, County and Town/City 
Commission leaders and the contributions of fellow Irish Floridians. 

In the past, March has been designated “Irish American Heritage Month” throughout the 
United States to coincide with the celebration of St. Patrick’s Day on the 17th.  Across the 
State of Florida, the Ancient Order of Hibernians and other Irish organizations will be 
conducting parades, celebrations and cultural events. 

Our Mother Teresa of Calcutta Division of Ancient Order of Hibernians requests that 
your office issue a Proclamation designating March 2013 as “Irish American Heritage 
Month” in recognition of the long history of Irish American contributions to the State of 
Florida.  To assist you in this request, I have taken the liberty of providing a few 
“WHEREAS” for your consideration and possible use. 

On behalf of Mother Teresa of Calcutta Division of Ancient Order of Hibernians, I would 
like to thank you for your kind consideration of this request.  Should you have any 
questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

In Friendship, Unity, & Christian Charity, 
 
Patrick V. Kennedy 

Patrick V. Kennedy 
President 
 
 

2. f. 3. 
Page 1 of 2



PPrrooccllaammaattiioonn 
WHEREAS, by 1776 nearly 300,000 Irish nationals had emigrated to the American colonies and played a crucial role in America’s War for Independence; and 

WHEREAS, following the victory at Yorktown, a French Major General reported that Congress owed its existence and America its preservation to the fidelity of the 

Irish serving the Continental Army; and 

WHEREAS, five signers of the Declaration of Independence were of Irish descent and three signers were Irish born; and 

WHEREAS, Irish Americans helped to fashion a system of government for our young Nation; and 

WHEREAS, eighteen Presidents have proudly proclaimed their Irish American heritage; and 

WHEREAS, in 1892 Irish born James Hoban provided the architectural plans for the White House and served as one of the supervising architects for the construction 

of the Capitol; and 

WHEREAS, Irish born Commodore John Barry was recognized by the United States Congress in September of 2002 as the “First Flag Officer of the United States 

Navy”; and 

WHEREAS, Commodore John Barry fought the last sea battle of the American Revolution off the coast of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, in 1813, Captain Oliver Perry, an Irish American, achieved a major naval victory in the Battle of Lake Erie; and 

WHEREAS, in 1942, the five Sullivan brothers made the ultimate sacrifice for democracy and freedom during the Naval Battle of Guadalcanal and later had the 

Destroyer USS Sullivan commissioned in their memory; and 

WHEREAS, Andrew Jackson, whose family came from County Antrim, served as Florida’s military governor following its acquisition by the United States; and 

WHEREAS, Irish Americans, since America’s inception, have provided and continue to provide leadership and service to this nation’s political, business and religious 

establishments; and 

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to celebrate the rich cultural heritage and the many valuable contributions of Irish Americans 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida, that the month of March 2013, be, and is hereby proclaimed as 
 

“IRISH AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH” 
 
in the City of Wildwood, Florida in recognition of the long history of Irish American contributions to the State of Florida. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED this 14th  day of January in the year of Our Lord Two Thousand and Thirteen. 

 

 

CITY COMMISSION 

CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA 

 

S E A L 

___________________________________________ 

Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:___________________________________   

                         Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 

 

2. f. 3. 
Page 2 of 2



2. f. 4. 
Page 1 of 1



 

Page 1 of  4

 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
CALLED WORKSHOP MEETING 
DECEMBER 3, 2012 – 6:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood Florida met in Special Session, December 3, 2012 at 
6:00 p.m. 

Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Clark, and Strickland.  Also present were: City 
Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, City Attorney Blair, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police Chief 
Reeser, Development Services Director Peavy, and AVT Law. 
 
The meeting was called to Order followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the American 
Flag. 
 
1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
 a. Special Presentations 

1) Grant Funding Analysis by Angie Brewer & Associates of potential funding 
opportunities for a variety of projects in the City of Wildwood (Attachments)  

 
 Rick Busche of Kimley-Horn and Associates presented a Powerpoint of the Funding 

Analysis as prepared by KHA and Angie Brewer & Associates. Mr. Busche reported 
this is an informational meeting to review the highlights and to answer questions of the 
Commission. Introduced Kevin Sudbury of Angie Brewer & Associates. 

 
 He noted the Scope and Goals of the Study: Identify needed large Capital 

Improvements that will benefit the citizens of the City of Wildwood; Identify funding 
options for those needs; create a work plan for staff to follow in upcoming funding 
cycles.  

 
 He noted recent funding strategies of the City and Projects to be Funded: Downtown 

Redevelopment Master Plan, Trail System Enhancement/US301 and CSX Crossing, 
Millennium Park Emergency Shelter upgrades, Millennium Park 
Baseball/Softball/Soccer Fields, Elevated Water Storage Tank on north side of town, 
CR 501 Force Main replacement, Water Meter upgrades with AMR Technology, 
Looping and upgrading existing water mains in areas of low pressure, CR462 
Commercial Area Wastewater Transmission System upgrades, Small Project 
“Bundling”, Natural Gas Filling Station. 

 
 Kevin Sudbury – reported that Angie Brewer & Associates has been doing this about 

24 years exclusively in the State of Florida and have found about 6 billion dollars in 
funding for clients over that period. Discussed the progression of the funding analysis 
project beginning with meetings with KHA and staff to come up with a list of projects. 
Then AB&A put their engine to work researching the projects and the grant and funding 
programs to make the first cut. A second person reviews further for a second cut and 
then he reviews and does the final cut. The analysis is then prepared by matching the 
projects with the funding sources. Also looked for opportunities to take funds from one 
funding source and match with another, which is leveraging. Three main funding types: 
Grants, Private, and Loans. After looking at the funding, the complexity of the 
application process and complexity of the administration process and make notations 
to assist in determining if City staff can handle some of the process.  



 

Page 2 of  4

 

Minutes 
Page 2 
December 3, 2012 
 
 Look at readiness to proceed with projects. Some are ready to go, some have partial 

planning, and some haven’t been planned yet.  
 
 Funding identified: Grants – over 8 million dollars, Private – up to one million dollars, 

and Loans – over 17 million dollars. Some additional grant dollars are available but the 
amount is not known.  

 
 Summary - Where we are: City staff is working to help move important City projects 

forward while minimizing the financial impact, Developed a report that should be used 
as a work plan for funding applications, Evaluated how those dollars can help the City, 
Created a two year plan of action for consideration. Next Steps: Refine a two year 
proposed plan of action/approach – identifies when to apply, not when the project will 
be complete and determine which applications can be made by staff and which ones 
need a grant writer; There are opportunities to have a possible quick win; Implement 
your budgeted Rate Study to determine if any adjustments need to be made; Work with 
City Manager and Staff on which applications to pursue. 

 
 Rick Busche – referred to the Strategy pages in the Study. Would like to see the City 

proceed with the Rate Study that has been budgeted this year.  
  
 Mayor Wolf noted the deciding factor in what is done will be the Commission’s appetite for 

debt service. There are some things in the report the Commission has already said no to. 
Some of the projects need to be done and need to be move to the front burner, possibly the 
462/466 corner. Rick noted there is opportunity for private/public partnership for that project.  

 
 Commissioner Strickland asked where the priority list come from, was there discussion with 

department heads and City Manager, because the Commission had no input. Rick indicated 
through meetings with City Manager and Department Heads. Looked at the capital 
improvement program and the budget and the needs the Department heads felt the City had. 
Tried to bring the list down to 10 or 11. Commissioner Strickland – how flexible will the plan 
be, because something could come up that would take priority over projects on the list. Who 
will be in charge of making application, keeping up with when they need to be submitted? Will 
it be each Department Head, the City Manager or KHA? Rick – it is something that is usually 
tasked to someone in City staff. Direction for grant funding will come from the City. Who fills 
out the application depends on the complexity. Application opening and closing dates have to 
be part of the plan. May need a workshop every year to talk about what will be pursued that 
year and who will make application.  

 
 CM Cannon – Commission will have to direct which way to go.  
 
 Mayor Wolf stated that City Manager can go move forward on any free money grants.  Asked 

where on the list is the new Police Station and Public Works building that has been discussed 
year after year. Commissioner Strickland stated that representation on the list is a little skewed 
from what he saw.  

 
 Kevin Sudbury indicated that the person who is monitoring the application dates should be 

looking 120 days to the deadline, not waiting until 30 or 15 days to the deadline. The 120 days 
is recommended because there is gathering of documentation involved and also if the 
application is complex, this will give the City the opportunity to engage a firm timely so that 
they have time to complete it.  



 

Page 3 of  4

 

Minutes 
Page 3 
December 3, 2012 
 
 Mayor Wolf asked if they will be the lead on the CDBG now or Andy Easton. Rick Busche – 

the City has a contract with Andy Easton at this time for grant applications. That was not the 
purpose of this IPO; it was to identify funding opportunities.  

 
 Commissioner Bivins referring to the Transportation Grant asked, with the CSX coming 

through soon at 60 mph, if this grant could be looked at regarding a crossing. CM Cannon 
indicated that is a project that was discussed. Cycle begins on January 1, and in process of 
getting questions answered. Noted he would be monitoring the opening and deadlines.  

 
 Kevin Sudbury noted that the cycle actually began October 1 and January 1 is greater than 

120 days to the deadline.  
 
 CM Cannon – document needs to be reviewed further. Some funding will require matches and 

he has concerns as to what the City can afford just as the Commission does. Need to move 
forward on the rate study. 

 
 Mayor Wolf requested that CC/CFO Jacobs be utilized in the process, because the City has 

outstanding debt service and he doesn’t want to see the City take a project and borrow money, 
then an emergency come up and the City is extended so that we are not eligible for any 
additional loans.  

 
 UD Phillips reported that since the City is a member of the FRWA they will do a rate study 

free.  Doesn’t know how good it is, but they will do one.  
 
 Mayor Wolf noted that no one should leave this meeting thinking the Commission has signed 

off or approved any of this.  
 
 CM Cannon noted you may have a plan for the necessary today. Noted a police cruiser was 

totaled over the weekend and will need to be replaced. Will bring it up the next meeting. PC 
Reeser noted this was a vehicle expected to be used another three or four years. Requested 
the Commission consider lease/purchase of six vehicles instead of the five that were 
budgeted. Will be brought back as an agenda item at the next regular meeting. 

  
 Mayor Wolf requested that a letter be sent to the County or DOT concerning the left turn at 

466a and 301. Rick Busche indicated he would check on it and a redo of the intersection is 
included in the 466a redo. CM Cannon indicated that he would have Rick check on the design 
and then letters would be sent.  

 
 CA Blair expressed concern that the City might have legal liability is the lines are not in the 

ground when needed to serve an area and requested that be taken into consideration when 
making the priority list of projects. Mayor Wolf noted that DSD Peavy is aware of what is 
happening at the corner with Providence and other development. Need to be sure lines are 
available when development is ready for the Word-Beaumont property.  

 
 Rick Busche – Concerning the corner, Providence and the Word-Beaumont property, that 

situation is being worked on now. Noted this report will help the City deal with the other things 
that may come up. Priorities will change.  

 
 
 



 

Page 4 of  4

 

Minutes 
Page 4 
December 3, 2012 
 
 
 Commissioner Clark noted there are needs in Police Department and Public Works and other 

issues to take into consideration for the priority list. Rick Busche indicated they would take 
Commissioner Strickland’s point to heart and make sure the list is expanded as needed.  

 
 Commissioner Clark requested a hard copy of the study as did others. CM Cannon to have 

placed in mail bins.  
 
Mayor Wolf indicated that he has considered having signs made and placed on the medians on 466a 
and Powell Road reading; these medians are designed and maintained by Sumter County, not the 
City of Wildwood. There are 39 $500 to $1000 oak trees that have dropped every leaf on 466a and 
not sure how many on Powell Roads. The County made it clear that Powell Road was there road 
when they named it. This is not a good reflection on the County. Letters that went to Mr. Arnold and 
the County Public Works department should also go to the five Commissioners.  
 
Mayor Wolf – he understands the Butter Bean will reopen Thursday under new ownership and hopes 
the outstanding utility bill transfers to the new owner. DSD Peavy indicated the Business License 
hasn’t been issued yet and will hold it up until checked out. 
 
Mayor Wolf noted important dates below.  
 
3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 
 
4. ADJOURN 
 Upon a motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark the meeting 
adjourned.  
 
 
 
IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 
a. December 3, 2012 – (Monday) – Special Called City Commission Workshop Meeting – 6:00 PM – City 
Hall Commission Chamber 
b. December 9, 2012 – (Sunday) - Tours of the Baker House – 1:00 PM – 5:00 PM – 6106 CR 44A, 
Wildwood 
c. December 10, 2012– (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission 
Chamber 
d. December 14, 2012 – (Friday) – ANNUAL EMPLOYEE & VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION BANQUET - 
7:00PM – Wildwood Community Center 
e. December 24, 2012 – (Monday) – City Offices CLOSED for CHRISTMAS EVE HOLIDAY (Except Police 
Dept.) 
f. December 24, 2012– (Monday) – (CANCELLED) City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall 
Commission Chamber  
g. December 25, 2012 – (Tuesday) – City Offices CLOSED FOR CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY (Except Police 
Dept.) 
h. January 1, 2013 – (Tuesday) – City Offices CLOSED FOR NEW YEAR’S HOLIDAY (Except Police 
Dept.) 
i. January 7, 2012 – (Monday) – 6:00 p.m. Called Workshop. 
j. January 8, 2013 - (Tuesday) – Parks & Recreation Board Meeting – 6:00 PM – City Hall Conference 
Room #124 



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 10, 2012 - 7:00 p.m. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER  
  
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood Florida met in Regular Session December 10, 2012 at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Present were: Mayor Pro tem Allen, Commissioners Bivins and Strickland.  Also present were: City 
Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, City Attorney Blair, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police Chief 
Reeser, Development Services Director Peavy, AVT Law and Utility Director Phillips. Richard Busche 
of Kimley-Horn Associates. 
 
The meeting was called to Order followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the American 
Flag. 
 
1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 a. PUBLIC HEARING – Notice of Proposed Change - Request for approval of a minor 
 amendment to the Villages of Wildwood DRI Development Order to remove the build-out date 
 limitation for the provision of solid waste service (Board Option) (Attachments) 
 
 Mayor Pro tem Allen opened Public Hearing. DSD Peavy was sworn in by the City Attorney.  
 
 In response to a question from Commissioner Strickland, CA Blair indicated the Waste 
 Management has no objection to the Resolution and the agreement with Waste Management will 
 not have to be amended. 
 
 No comments were received from the audience. 
 
  1) RESOLUTION NO. R2012-30 to adopt a fourth amendment to the Development Order 
  for the Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact (Board Option) (Attachments) 
 
  Resolution No. R2012-30 was introduced and read by title only. 
 
  Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to adopt Resolution No. 
  R2012-30: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
  FLORIDA, ADOPTING A FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT ORDER FOR 
  THE VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT; PROVIDING 
  AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 b. APPROVAL SOUGHT by Lamars A & K Properties, LLP for Site Plan Approval (SP 1210-03) 
 to construct a total of 4,300 sq. ft. of additional buildings with paved parking and driveway for a 
 bus maintenance facility on Parcel  F12=032C in the Willard Peebles Industrial Park; subject to 
 approval, exemption or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. (Staff 
 Recommends Approval) (Attachments) 
 
 DSD Peavy noted that the square footage of the building is not correct, that it is actually 12,452 
 sq. ft.  
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve SP1210-03 as 
 recommended by the Special Magistrate. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Minutes  
Page 2 
December 10, 2012 
 
 c. APPROVAL SOUGHT by Sumter Retirement Residence, LLC for SP1211-01 Oxford Greens 
 – Preliminary Plat Plan, to subdivide parcel D08=005 into five lots with shared infrastructure.  
 Heard by P&Z Board/Special Magistrate 12-04-12. (Staff Recommends Approval, subject to 
 approval, exemption or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction) 
 (Attachments) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve SP1211-01 
 Preliminary Plan as recommended by Special Magistrate. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 d. APPROVAL SOUGHT by Sumter Retirement Residence, LLC for SP1211-02 Oxford 
 Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care Site Plan, to construct a three-story building for a 103 
 suite Assisted Living and Memory Care  facility. Heard by P&Z Board/Special Magistrate 12-04-
 12. (Staff Recommends Approval, subject to approval, exemption or permitting of the project by 
 all agencies of competent jurisdiction) (Attachments) 
 
 DSD Peavy asked that this item be pulled from the agenda because the zoning ordinance will 
 not be adopted until January.  

 

2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
 a. Special Presentations 
  1) None 
 b. City Manager 
  1) Request Commission consideration: Lease purchase of six (6) police vehicles in place of 

 the five (5) budgeted, due to recent accident and vehicle totaled.  (Board Option)(No 
 attachments)  

 
  Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve lease 

 purchase of six (6) vehicles instead of five. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
  2) Request for Police Department to follow Christmas Eve ½ day holiday and New Year’s 

 Eve ½ day  holiday as stated in the Personnel Rules and Regulations, and that PD be 
 made an “Exception to” the recent approved Christmas Eve/New Year’s Eve change for  this 
 year. (Staff Recommends Approval by  motion or common consent.)(No attachments) 

 
  By Common Consent the Commission approve the request for PD to follow the PR&R 

 regarding Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve.  
 
 3) Request Commission consideration: Discard the practice (not written policy) of holding 

back 1% of an employee’s pay to be paid out as a lump sum in late November. Effective 
starting 2013, with employees notified within 10 days of approval to allow them to make 
other arrangements, such as savings account for the holidays in 2013. Of 84 employees, 41 
requested the Lump Sum this year. (Staff Recommends Approval) (No attachments) 

 
 No objections from the Commission, and employees to be notified as soon as possible. 
 
 4) As requested by the Commission: Update on status of City buildings. Report attached.  
 
  CM Cannon referred to the information provided. No questions from the Commission. 

* Quasi-Judicial Hearing 

 



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Minutes 
Page 3 
December 10, 2012 
 
 5)  CM Cannon reported that the Mayor had talked with him about the majority of the 

employees not receiving an increase in October. After review of the budget and a calculation 
of what it would cost the City for a “rounded” off 2% COLA one-time pay out. This reflects 
what the Mayor had requested him to do. The Mayor asked that he bring to the Commission 
since he would not be at the meeting and this would be the only meeting before the holidays. 
This would be one time pay out and would not be a part of the annual rate with next budget 
year.   

 
 Mayor Pro tem Allen expressed the opinion that this should be approved. Commissioner 

Bivins expressed approval based on the City Manager and Chief Financial Officer indicating 
it can be done, and with the understanding that it will not be added to the employee annual 
rate for next budget year. Commissioner Strickland asked how it could be a COLA and not 
adjust and annual rate, that it sounds like a bonus. CA Blair noted a bonus cannot be given 
but a Cost of Living Adjustment for this fiscal year in a lump sum could be given. 
Commissioner Strickland noted that the funds could be used for other things the City needs 
and would prefer not to vote for it.  

 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve the request 

the COLA one time pay out that would not be added into the annual rate for those 
employees who did not receive an increase in October. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

  
 c. City Attorney 
  1) 
 d. City Clerk 
  1)  
 e. Commission Members 
  1)  
 f. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 
  1) Sam Saleem, Wildwood Community Development Center Inc. Read a letter he sent to 

 CM Cannon on December 4. “Dear Mr. Cannon, We are collaborating with the equity and 
 diversity committee and the MLK Committee of Lake-Sumter State College together with 
 various other community groups in connection with generating scholarships to Sumter 
 County Students. The enclosed article regarding this matter appeared in the November 22, 
 2012 issue of the Sumter County Times. We’re hoping that the City of Wildwood will consider 
 participating as a sponsor to support the MLK Literary competition for Sumter Students and 
 ask that this request be placed on the agenda for approval by the City Commission at the 
 regularly scheduled meeting on Monday December 10, 2012. You may recall that a few 
 months ago Waste Management provided the City of Wildwood with a donation of $1000. 
 Could a portion of that donation be used to offset the costs related to the Sumter County 
 program that can provide scholarships to deserving Wildwood students. A Sponsorship letter 
 will be forwarded to you directly from the appropriate party at Lake-Sumter State College. If 
 you have any questions or require additional information please feel free to contact me at 
 352-748-7770 or email peacemaker1@earthlink.net. Thank you kindly. Sincerely, Sam 
 Saleem, Vice President. 

 
  Introduced Beverly Steele to provide a related presentation. Ms. Steele provided a handout 

 (copy on file) to the Commission. CEO of The Steele Organization LLC and founder of Young 
 Performing Artist  Inc. a 501(c)(3) not for profit State corporation. Requested support for the 
 MLK Literary contest, which will include Middle and High School Students.  

mailto:peacemaker1@earthlink.net


 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Minutes 
Page 4 
December 10, 2012 
 
  CM Cannon reported he had talked with Mr. Saleem and was in the process of writing a letter 

 to him. CM Cannon referred to and read a portion of Resolution No. 1027 adopted October 
 13, 2008 which created a  policy regarding charitable contributions and establishing that the 
 City would not provide financial support to any charity.  

 
  Mayor Pro tem suggested that the policy be readdressed after the first of the year as the 

 economy gets better. Commissioners and City Attorney indicated they would make donations 
 to the project. 

 
  Mr. Saleem invited the Commission and Staff to the MLK Day event and festivities. 
 
  2) Desiree Everett, owner of Lebanon Family Day Care. Requested use of the Jackson 

 Street building. Mayor Pro tem Allen indicated that building has been committed.  
 
  CM Cannon indicated the meeting with PR&C Hudson, Chloe and himself has been delayed 

 due to illness in Jenny’s family. Mayor Pro tem Allen indicated that if the meeting is not 
 successful with the first party, Ms. Everett is welcome to come back.  

 
  3) a) Robert Hannah, Sam Saleem, Larry Jett of Wildwood Community Development 

 Center,  Inc. presented a petition with over 400 signatures requested CSX to building a 
 crosswalk for the Railroad Track. They would like the City to send the petition to CSX and 
 let them know it is not fair for CSX to limit access to town from the west side. Would  like the 
 City to get behind the group.  

 
  Mayor Pro tem Allen indicated the City would be in support, but the City has been talking to 

 CSX for a long time. 
 
  Larry Jett asked if this is something the City Commission will follow up on. Mayor Pro tem 

 Allen noted the City is in constant contact with CSX through the attorney. CA Blair noted  that 
 the City does not have the authority to tell CSX to put in a crosswalk. CSX has gone 
 through several years of hearings and presenting information and at every step the City has 
 taken the position that there needs to be crosswalks or whatever is needed. The City is not 
 the governmental agency with the power. CSX has the go ahead to do things from the State 
 and the Department of Transportation, but the City will forward the petitions indicating the 
 City supports what the group is asking for. Mr. Jett asked what is the next step. CA Blair 
 indicated a meeting with CSX. It was noted CSX has not been talking with the residents, only 
 the business owners. CA Blair – maybe a meeting can be scheduled with CSX Community 
 Relations Rep and the residents. 

 
  Robert Hannah stated the west side residents are being penalized and will be prosecuted for 

 crossing the tracks where they have been crossing for years, and it is not fair. 
 
 4) Gidget Gibson reported that the Christmas Parade had 38 entries this year which was up 

 from last year. Thanked Commissioner Strickland for being a judge and noted that 
 Commissioner Bivins also came out. Reported on the Baker house tours with over 700 
 visitors in the two days. Many more have said they want to know when the next tour will be. 

 
 g. Notes and Reports 
  Mayor Pro tem Allen referred the Commission to the Notes, Reports and Important Dates. 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Minutes 
Page 5 
December 10, 2012 
 
3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 
 a. MINUTES 
  1) Minutes of Regular Meeting held on November 26, 2012 (Attachments – Staff 
 recommends approval)  
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve the minutes of 
 November 26 as typed. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 
  1) Ordinance O2012-26: An Ordinance proposing a small scale land use map amendment, 

Sumter  Retirement Residence, Oxford Cottages Retirement, Portion of Parcel #D08=005, Lot 5. 
Case was heard  by Local Planning Agency 12-04-12. (Attachments) 

 
  Ordinance O2012-26 was introduced and read by title only. 
 

 2) Ordinance O2012-27: An Ordinance proposing a zoning map amendment, Sumter 
 Retirement Residence, Oxford Cottages Retirement, Portion of Parcel #D08=005, Lot 5. Case 
 RZ 1210-01 was considered by the P&Z Board/Special Magistrate 12-04-12.  (Attachments) 
 
  Ordinance O2012-27 was introduced and read by title only. 
 
  3) Ordinance O2012-28: An Ordinance proposing a small scale land use map amendment, 

Sumter  Retirement Residence, Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care, Portion of 
Parcel #D08- 005, Lot 4. Case was heard before the Local Planning Agency 12-04-12. 
(Attachments) 

 
  Ordinance O2012-28 was introduced and read by title only. 
 
  4) Ordinance O2012-29: An Ordinance proposing a zoning map amendment, Sumter 

Retirement Residence, Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care, Portion of Parcel #D08-
005, Lot 4. Case was heard before the P&Z  Board/Special Magistrate 12-04-12. (Attachments) 

   
  Ordinance O2012-29 was introduced and read by title only. 
 
 c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
  1)  
 d. APPOINTMENTS  
  1)   
 
 e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
  1) Report regarding CR 501 Water Treatment Plant and Request. (Staff Recommends 

Approval)(Attachments) 
 
 UD Phillips explained this is related to security at the plants and other City facilities. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve Amendment No. 

1 of KHA IPO #15. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
 f. FINANCIAL 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Minutes 
Page 6 
December 10, 2012 
 
 1) Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve payment of the 

bills. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
 g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
  1) Sam Saleem with the Wildwood Community Development Center, Inc. requests 

permission to have a  Martin Luther King Day Parade along C-44A, High Street, CR-242 and CR-
213 on January 21, 2013 starting at  9:00 a.m. followed by a Martin Luther King celebration at 
MLK Park and Pavilion until 7:00 p.m.   (Attachments – Board Option)  

 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve permission to 

have a  Martin Luther King Day Parade along C-44A, High Street, CR-242 and CR-213 on 
January 21, 2013 starting at  9:00 a.m. followed by a Martin Luther King celebration at MLK 
Park and Pavilion until 7:00 p.m.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
  2) Letter from Wildwood Community Development Center, Inc. requesting donation of 

$2000 from the  City for MLK Day events. City Attorney Blair to address with Options and 
Resolution R2012-31 for consideration. 

 
 CA Blair reported that the group is Chartered by the State as a 501(c) (3), but they do not have 

the designation through the IRS. If the Commission is satisfied with what the group did last year, 
and they feel the group is providing a public purpose she sees no reason not to donate the 
$2000. The Commission could make the group a Committee of the City and provided two 
resolutions for consideration. Also contacted the City auditor and he agreed with her opinion. 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to provide the donation of 

$2000 as in the past and to waive (refund) the fee for the special event. Motion carried by 
unanimous vote.  

 
4. ADJOURN 
 Upon a motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins the meeting was 

adjourned. 
             CITY COMMISSION 
             CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 

S E A L 
                       
ATTEST:           Ronald B. Allen, Mayor Pro tem 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 
 
IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 
 a. December 10, 2012– (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall 
Commission Chamber 
 b. December 11, 2012 – (Tuesday)  - Wildwood Area Historical Association Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall Conference Room #124. 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

Minutes 
Page 7 
December 10, 2012 
  
 b. December 14, 2012 – (Friday) – ANNUAL EMPLOYEE & VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION 
BANQUET – 6:00 PM –  Wildwood Community Center 
 c. December 24, 2012 – (Monday) – City Offices CLOSED for CHRISTMAS EVE HOLIDAY 
(Except Police Dept.) 
 d. December 24, 2012– (Monday) – (CANCELLED) City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City 
Hall Commission  Chamber  
 e. December 25, 2012 – (Tuesday) – City Offices CLOSED FOR CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 
(Except Police Dept.) 
 f. January 1, 2013 – (Tuesday) – City Offices CLOSED FOR NEW YEAR’S HOLIDAY (Except 
Police Dept.) 
 g. January 7, 2013, 6:00 p.m. – (Monday) – Called Commission Workshop 
 h. January 8, 2013 - (Tuesday) – Parks & Recreation Board Meeting – 6:00 PM – City Hall 
Conference Room  #124 
 i. January 14, 2013 – (Monday) First Regular Commission Meeting of 2013 – Swearing in Seat 
3 and 5 
 i. January 21, 2013 (Monday) – City Offices CLOSED FOR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR 
HOLIDAY (Except for  Police Department) 



SUBJEC

 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
Kimley H
Regulatio
grasses a
 
The curr
has state
 
Ordinanc
size requ
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 
 

CITY

CT: Ord
Reg

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

Horn, acting 
ons be amen
areas not su

ent regulatio
ed the 12 inc

ce O2013-03
uirement.  

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2
gulations: 

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

as the City E
nded to redu
ubject to veh

on requires 
ch minimum 

3 modifies th

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-03 A
Storm Sew
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

Engineer, ha
uce the requ

hicular traffic

the pipe siz
diameter is 

he language

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

mending S
wer Pipe S

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

as recomme
uired minimu
c.   

ze to be no l
excessive a

e in Section 

e O2013

ITY OF W

MARY 

Section 6.4
Sizes 

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

ended Sectio
um pipe size

less than 12
and should b

6.4(E) to e

WILDWOO

4(E) of the

nance O20

TING: J
ting  

 

 
e:   

on 6.4(E) of 
e for storm s

2 inches in d
be eliminated

liminate the 

OD 

e Land Dev

013-03 

January 14, 

the Land De
sewers when

diameter.  K
d. 

12 inch min

velopment 

2013 

evelopment 
n located in 

Kimley Horn 

nimum pipe 

3. b. 1. 
Page 1 of 3

plaw
Typewritten Text
-03.



 
Ordinance No. O2013-03 
Storm Sewer Pipe Sizes 

1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; 
AMENDING SECTION 6.4(E) OF THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA; PERTAINING TO STORM SEWER 
AND CULVERT DESIGN; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Section 6.4(E)(1)(a) of the Land 

Development Regulations regarding minimum pipe sizes for storm sewers.  
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 

Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. The amendments to Section 6.4(E)(1)(a) of the Land Development 
Regulations are shown with strikethrough for deletions and include:  
   

(E) Storm sewer and culvert design. 
 (1) Types and requirements. Where drainage pipes are utilized, the 

following standards apply: 
(a) Storm sewers shall be reinforced concrete or other FDOT 
approved material, subject to additional approval by the City, 
and have a minimum diameter of 18 inches or equal. An inlet 
or manhole is required to each change or alignment or 
grade. Minimum pipe diameters may be reduced to 12 
inches in grassed areas not subject to vehicular traffic when 
the primary purpose of the storm sewer is to accommodate 
open space draining. 

 
SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 

the same are hereby repealed.  
 

SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption during the second 
and final reading by the City of Wildwood City Commission. 
 
 

3. b. 1. 
Page 2 of 3



 
Ordinance No. O2013-03 
Storm Sewer Pipe Sizes 

2 of 2 

 
 
 
 DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             

Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: __________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 
 

3. b. 1. 
Page 3 of 3



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Annual Update to the Five Year Schedule of Capital Improvements 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Approval of Ordinance O2013-04 (attached) to be transmitted to 
the Department of Community Affairs (Staff recommends 
approval). 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: January 14, 2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

                                                                                                   
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
The 5-Year Schedule of Capital of Improvements covers the period from FY 2012-2013 through 2016-
2017 and is scheduled to be adopted by Ordinance O2013-XX. The Schedule is broken down to show 
project expenditures and the revenues sources associated with each project. Additionally, and 
although not required by the statute, Tables 9.1A & 9.1B have been provided to demonstrate the 
financial feasibility of the projects contained in the Schedule.   
 
Transportation Projects 
 
The Lake-Sumter Metropolitan Planning Organization monitors traffic and roadways within the City’s 
service area. All roadways within the area are anticipated to operate within their adopted levels of 
service within the next five years. However, there are planned improvements for roadway segments 
within the area. The City’s schedule includes transportation projects identified within the Florida 
Department of Transportation’s 5-Year Work Program, the Lake-Sumter MPO’s Transportation 
Improvement Program and Sumter County’s Capital Improvement Plan. There are no City 
transportation projects planned at this time. 
 
Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, and Reuse Projects 
 
The City’s potable water and sanitary sewer systems are currently operating within their existing levels 
of service. However, staff has identified the need for the following capital improvement projects to 
service future growth: 
 
1. Champagne Farms WTP (Phase 1) 
2. Champagne Farms Transmission System: 24” main extension to SR 44 
3. Champagne Farms Transmission System: 24” main extension to CR 214/CR209 intersection 
 
The first phase of the Champagne Farms WTP construction would include the necessary components 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 1 of 75



to provid
years.  
 
The proj
However
Transmis
 
TIE and 
City. At e
This met
bond for 
 
Table 9.1
and sanit
 
Drainage
 
The Sche
 
Recreatio
 
The Sch
budget fo
 
Solid Wa
 
The Sche
Waste M
 
Public Sc
 
Pursuant
the Sum
School D
Concurre
 

 
The 5-Ye
the City. 
unfunded
 
As previo
potable w
 
The High
budget fo
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 

de 4.5 MGD

ject is curre
r, the City is 
ssion Infrast

Connection 
execution of
thod is inten
payment. 

1B provides
tary sewer p

e Projects 

edule does n

on Projects 

edule includ
or FY 2012/2

aste Projects

edule does n
Management 

chools Facili

t to the adop
mter County 
District 201
ency Service

ear Schedul
 The City h

d.  

ously stated
water improv

h Street tot 
or FY 2012/2

Peavy, Direc
ment Service

 which wou

ently unfund
exploring po
ructure Exte

Fees are s
f the Agreem

nded to enab

a balance s
projects cont

not include a

des the cons
2013. 

s 

not include i
to provide r

ities Projects

pted Interloc
School Bo

2/2013 Wo
e Area (A).  

e of Capital 
as the oblig

d, the City is
vements.   

lot recreatio
2013. 

ctor 
es Departme

ld be able t

ded, as sh
otential fund

ension (TIE) 

secured whe
ment, the de
ble the City 

sheet of the
tained within

any drainage

struction of 

mprovemen
efuse servic

s 

cal Agreeme
ard maintai
rk Plan do

Fina

Improveme
gation, per S

s exploring 

on project is

 

ent 

to accommo

own in the
ding sources
and connec

en developer
eveloper is r
to complete

e anticipated
n the Schedu

e improveme

a tot lot on 

ts to the sol
ces to its bus

nt between 
ns concurre
es not incl

ancial Feas

ents identifie
Statute, to de

financing m

s currently f

odate the an

e 5-year Sc
s including lo
ction fees.  

rs enter into
required to p

e utility infras

d revenues a
ule.  

ents. 

High Stree

id waste fac
sinesses and

the City and
ency for pu
ude any ca

sibility 

es four (4) pr
emonstrate w

mechanisms 

funded and 

nticipated gr

chedule of 
oan program

o Developer’
pay their co
structure pro

and expendi

t. The proje

cilities. The C
d residents. 

d the Sumter
blic schools
apacity proj

rojects that 
whether the

to fund the

is included 

rowth over t

Capital Imp
ms and grants

’s Agreemen
onnection an
ojects withou

itures for po

ect is in the 

City has con

r County Sc
s. The Sum
jects within

will be adm
e projects are

e costs asso

in the City’

the next 10 

provements. 
s as well as 

nts with the 
nd TIE fees. 
ut having to 

otable water 

City’s CRA 

tracted with 

hool Board, 
mter County 

 the City’s 

inistered by 
e funded or 

ociated with 

s approved 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 2 of 75



Ordinance No. O2013-XX 
1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-04 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD FLORIDA; MODIFYING THE 5-YEAR 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEDULE OF THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENT 
OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 163.3177(3)(b), 
FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND  PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood proposes to update the 5-Year Schedule of the 
Capital Improvements of the Capital Improvements Element of its Comprehensive Plan 
in accordance with Section 163.3177(3)(b), Florida Statutes; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the modifications are not deemed to be an amendment to the local 
comprehensive plan. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 
 
 SECTION 1. The attached Exhibit “A” is the 5-Year Schedule of Capital 
Improvements of the Capital Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan 
amending the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements as required by Section 
163.3177(3)(b), Florida Statutes.    
 
 SECTION 2. The 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements and supporting data 
and analysis are hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the Florida Department 
of Community Affairs for compliance determination in accordance with Section 
163.3184, Florida Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 3. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 
its second reading and final adoption by the City Commission. 
 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 3 of 75



Ordinance No. O2013-XX 
2 of 2 

 
 PASSED AND ORDAINED this _____ day of January, 2013, by the City 
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
        
 

CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

 
S E A L  

              
ATTEST:      Ed Wolf, Mayor 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
First Reading:  ________________ 
 
Second Reading:   _______________ 
Approved as to form: 
 
     
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney   

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 4 of 75



2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017

C-468 Interchange with Florida Turnpike $1,566,000 $829,000 $5,345,000 $4,000,000 

C-462 Widening from US 301 to C-466A $900,000 $5,800,000 

C-466 Widening from CR 209 to US 301 $450,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000 

C-466A Phase III - Widening fromUS 301 to 
Powell Road

$2,300,000 $2,468,438 $2,200,000     

C-468 Widening from SR 44 to Turnpike $5,000,000 $4,100,000 
C-468 Widening from US 301 to Florida 

Turnpike
Total $5,216,000 $11,097,438 $16,045,000 $8,100,000 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
C-466W from CR 209 to US 301 

Resurfacing
CON $1,612,903 

Huey Street/CR 44a CSX Crossing - Rail 
Safety Project

$209,076 

SR 35 (US 301) from CR 470 to SR 44 PD&E $10,000 $1,000,000 
AD $1,361,993 

CON-SUP $1,379 
PE $8,500 

CON $619,769 
CON-SUP $5,155 

PE $2,262 
CON-SUP $206,108 

PE $27,759 $65,557 
ROW $9,260 $174,030 
CON $465,664 

CON-SUP $5,615 
Total $1,836,337 $1,798,954 $1,678,460 $0 $471,279

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
TIE and Connection Fees $0
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

DES $213,000 
CON $8,238,000

Champagne Farms Transmission System - 
24" main extension to SR 44

CON
$4,206,000

Champagne Farms Transmission System - 
24" main extension to CR 214/CR 209 

intersection
CON

$5,814,000
Expenditures Total $213,000 $0 $0 $18,258,000 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE -$213,000 $0 $0 -$18,258,000 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds

City Projects 

Sumter County Projects 

5 - Year Schedule of Capital Improvements
Transportation

Fiscal Year
PhaseCounty Funded Projects:

City Projects 

US 301 at SR 44 - Add turn lane(s)

FDOT Funded Projects:
Fiscal Year

Phase

Phase

City Projects 

FDOT Projects 

Fiscal Year
PhaseCity Revenue Source:

CR 466 at US 301 - Add Turn Lane(s)

SR 35 (US 301) N of CR 232 to N of NE 
110 Road

Champagne Farms WTP (Phase 1)

Sanitary Sewer and Reuse Projects

City of Wildwood

Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source:

Potable Water

SR 35 (US 301) N of CR 204 to Marion 
County Line - Add lanes and reconstruct

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 5 of 75



5 - Year Schedule of Capital Improvements
City of Wildwood

TIE and Connection Fees
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:
Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt $35,000

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

High Street Tot Lot CON $35,000
Expenditures Total $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Italics = Unfunded
*Partially Funded

Drainage (Stormwater) Projects
City Projects 

Recreation Projects
City Projects 

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 6 of 75



Policy Number(s) Project Description
Juridiction/ Maintaining 

Agency
Capacity/LOS 
Improvement?

Phase 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 Funding Source(s) & Notes

**No Projects at 
This Time**

Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Policy Number(s) Project Description
Juridiction/ Maintaining 

Agency
Capacity/LOS 
Improvement?

Phase 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 Funding Source(s) & Notes

TE 1.2.1 and 
1.2.2

C-468 Widening from US 301 to 
Florida Turnpike

Sumter County YES not yet funded Sumter County -  Road Impact Fees

DES $1,000,000 

CON $2,500,000 $13,000,000 

DES $1,400,000 

CON $5,500,000 

DES $728,000 

CON

DES $2,300,000 

CON $2,500,000 $2,000,000 

DES $3,700,000 

CON $7,300,000 $8,600,000 

TE 1.2.2 C-466W From C-209 to US 301 FDOT YES CON $1,612,903 FDOT 5 Year Work Program

Huey Street/CR 44a CSX 
Crossing - Rail Safety Project

FDOT NO $209,076 FDOT 5 Year Work Program

TE 1.2.2
SR 35 (US 301) from CR 470 to 

SR 44
FDOT YES PD&E $10,000 $1,000,000 FDOT 5 Year Work Program

PE $8,500 

CON $619,769 

CON-SUP $5,155 

PE $2,262 

CON-SUP $206,108 

PE $27,759 $65,557 

ROW $9,260 $174,030 

CON $465,664 

CON-SUP $5,615 

Total $10,964,337 $9,798,954 $13,478,460 $21,600,000 $471,279 

Policy Number(s) Project Description
Juridiction/ Maintaining 

Agency
Capacity/LOS 
Improvement?

Phase 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 Funding Source(s) & Notes

DES $213,000 

CON $8,238,000
Champagne Farms 

Transmission System: 24" main 
extension to SR 44

City CON
$4,206,000

Champagne Farms 
Transmission System: 24" main 

extension to CR 214/CR 209 
intersection

City CON.

$5,814,000

Total $213,000 $0 $0 $0 $18,258,000 

Policy Number(s) Project Description
Juridiction/ Maintaining 

Agency
Capacity/LOS 
Improvement?

Phase 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 Funding Source(s) & Notes

**No Projects at 
This Time**

Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Policy Number(s) Project Description
Juridiction/ Maintaining 

Agency
Capacity/LOS 
Improvement?

Phase 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 Funding Source(s) & Notes

**No Projects at 
This Time**

Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Policy Number(s) Project Description
Juridiction/ Maintaining 

Agency
Capacity/LOS 
Improvement?

Phase 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 Funding Source(s) & Notes

**No Projects at 
This Time**

Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Italics = Unfunded Projects

*Partially Funded

City Water Connection Fees, TIE Fees and 
Developer Contributions (See Table 9.1B)

Sumter County - Road Impact Fees

Sumter County - Road Impact Fees

SR 35 (US301) N of CR 232 to 
N of NE 110 Road

FDOT YES

AD $1,361,993 

US 301 at SR 44 - Add turn 
lane(s)

FDOT YES

TE 1.2.2

YES

CR 466 at US 301 - Add Turn 
Lane(s)

FDOT YES

TE 1.2.2

Sumter County - Road Impact Fees 
(Agreement with The Villages)

TE 1.2.1 and 
1.2.2

TE 1.2.1 and 
1.2.2

C-466A Phase III - Widening 
from US 301 to Powell Road

C-468 Widening from SR 44 to 
Turnpike

Sumter County YES

Sumter County

City Water Connection Fees, TIE Fees and 
Developer Contributions (See Table 9.1B)

CON-SUP $1,379 

FDOT 5 Year Work Program

FDOT 5 Year Work Program - Completed

FDOT 5 Year Work Program

FDOT 5 Year Work Program - Completed

C-462 Widening from US 301 to 
C-466A

Sumter County YES Sumter County - Road Impact Fees

C-466 Widening from CR 209 to 
US 301*

Sumter County

Table 9.1A

Revenue Sources

City Projects

Sumter County and FDOT Projects

SR 35 (US 301) from N of CR 
204 to Marion County Line - Add 

lanes & reconstruct
FDOT YES

TE 1.2.1 and 
1.2.2

TE 1.2.1 and 
1.2.2

YES

5-Year Capital Improvements FY 2012/2013 - FY 2016/2017

TE 1.2.1 and 
1.2.2

C-468 Interchange with Florida 
Turnpike Constructed by 

Villages
Sumter County - Road Impact FeesSumter County YES

Transportation Facilities

PFE 1.2

Potable Water Facilities - City Projects

Sanitary Sewer & Reuse Facilities - City Projects

(Drainage) Stormwater Facilities - City Projects

Recreation Facilities - City Projects

TE 1.2.2

PFE 1.2
Champagne Farms Water 

Treatment Plant and 
Transmission System

City 

TE 1.2.2

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 7 of 75



1 

City of Wildwood 
Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems 

Capacity and Level of Service Analysis 
Annual Update to the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements 

FY 2012/2013 – 2016/2017 
 
The City of Wildwood’s potable water and sanitary sewer systems are required to meet concurrency 
pursuant to Section 163.3180, Florida Statutes. The Comprehensive Plan sets level of service 
standards needed to maintain concurrency. Additionally, Section 163.3177(3)(b), Florida Statutes 
requires local governments to review the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements within the Capital 
Improvements Element of the Comprehensive Plan, annually. The table below illustrates the current 
capacity (represented in million gallons per day) and level of service (gallons per day per equivalent 
residential connection) for the potable water and sanitary sewer systems. 
 

System Capacity  (MGD) Level of Service Standard 
Potable Water 4.980 300 gallons per day per ERC 

Sanitary Sewer (Effluent) 3.55 250 gallons per day per ERC 
 
Currently, the potable water and sanitary sewer systems have sufficient capacity needed to support 
projected growth within the next five years. In order to demonstrate the systems will continue to 
operate within the adopted level of service for the next five years, data from the City’s Water and 
Wastewater departments were analyzed (see Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer Summary Charts).  
The data represents the monthly flows from for the previous 12 months and that information was 
used in this analysis. The data demonstrates the following flows (represented in million gallons per 
day): 
 

System 12 Month Average Flow (MGD) Peak Average Monthly Flow 
(MGD) 

Potable Water 2.040 2.643 
Sanitary Sewer (Effluent) 1.522 1.501 

 
For purposes of demonstrating these systems will continue have sufficient capacity to meet  growth 
demands, an annual growth rate of 5% was applied to the Peak Average Monthly Flow.  Due to the 
current economic conditions, the rapid growth forecasted by the Comprehensive Plan in the short term 
is over-projecting demand. Even with the 5% annual growth rate and the unlikely assumption that all 
of the capacity reserved through executed developer’s agreements is utilized, the systems can serve 
the projected demands without the needed water supply capacity of the Champagne Farms well. 
However, the City has programmed in its Capital Improvements Element the design and construction 
of the Champagne Farms water treatment plant and transmission system which will add capacity and 
increase the level of service for the potable water system.  The table below illustrates the anticipated 
remaining capacity for FY 2015-2016 without Champagne Farms: 
 

System Remaining Capacity 
Potable Water .983 (MGD) 20% 
Sanitary Sewer (Effluent) 1.118 (MGD) 32% 
 
Please see the table labeled “Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems Capacity Analysis” for 
detailed information.  
 
In conclusion, the City can continue to provide optimal service to its existing and future utility 
customers throughout the short term.  The city continues to benefit from long term infrastructure 
planning regarding the supply and facilities capacity of its potable water and sanitary sewer systems.  

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 8 of 75



DATE TOTAL VOLUME (PLANTS 1-5) AVERAGE MONTHLY FLOWS MAX MONTHLY FLOWS
Jan-12 63.670 2.054 3.033
Feb-12 57.197 1.845 2.632
Mar-12 63.998 2.064 2.406
Apr-12 66.806 2.155 2.847
May-12 68.697 2.216 2.506
Jun-12 63.295 2.062 3.811
Jul-12 65.778 2.122 2.327
Aug-12 62.232 2.007 2.348
Sep-12 61.566 1.986 2.707
Oct-12 62.783 2.025 2.410
Nov-12 60.995 1.968 2.355
Dec-12 61.376 1.980 2.332

Notes:
Source: City of Wildwood Water Dept 
Numbers respresented in MGD (million gallons per day)
Peak Average Monthly Flow - 2.643 MGD

Potable Water Flows

Summary Chart

2

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 9 of 75



INFLUENT 3 MONTH 12 MONTH EFFLUENT 3 MONTH 12 MONTH
FLOW AVERAGE AVERAGE FLOW AVERAGE AVERAGE

Dec-11 1.471 1.469 1.515 1.417 1.431 1.528
Jan-12 1.470 1.464 1.518 1.441 1.419 1.509
Feb-12 1.497 1.479 1.514 1.441 1.433 1.503
Mar-12 1.513 1.493 1.509 1.483 1.455 1.491
Apr-12 1.500 1.503 1.502 1.446 1.457 1.476
May-12 1.483 1.499 1.500 1.398 1.442 1.469
Jun-12 1.655 1.546 1.512 1.615 1.486 1.480
Jul-12 1.659 1.599 1.522 1.737 1.583 1.493
Aug-12 1.725 1.680 1.534 1.756 1.703 1.503
Sep-12 1.629 1.671 1.545 1.619 1.704 1.519
Oct-12 1.587 1.647 1.553 1.466 1.614 1.518
Nov-12 1.493 1.570 1.557 1.445 1.510 1.522

Notes:
Source: City of Wildwood Wastewater Dept - Plant Records MORs/Flows
Numbers respresented in MGD (million gallons per day)
Peak Average Monthly Flow - 1.501 MGD

Sanitary Sewer (Wastewater) Flows

Summary Chart

DATE

3

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 10 of 75



Current (MGD)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Permitted Water Supply Well Capacity 4.980 4.980 4.980 4.980 4.980 4.980
     Current Demand (Peak Monthly Average) 2.643
                              Growth Rate (5%) 2.775 2.914 3.060 3.213 3.373
      Outstanding Developer Agreement Obligations 0.624 0.624 0.624 0.624 0.624 0.624
                             Remaining Capacity (MGD) 1.713 1.581 1.442 1.296 1.143 0.983
                             Remaning Capacity (%) 34% 32% 29% 26% 23% 20%

Current (MGD)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

FDEP Permitted Capacity 3.550 3.550 3.550 3.550 3.550 3.550
     Current Demand (Peak Monthly Average) 1.501
                              Growth Rate (5%) 1.576 1.655 1.738 1.824 1.916
      Outstanding Developer Agreement Obligations 0.516 0.516 0.516 0.516 0.516 0.516
                             Remaining Capacity (MGD) 1.533 1.458 1.379 1.296 1.210 1.118

                             Remaning Capacity (%) 43% 41% 39% 37% 34% 32%

Notes:

1) Numbers represented in MGD (million gallons per day) 6) 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan due on  1/26/2013

2) Growth rate of 5% annual increase applied to this analysis. 7) Analysis does not include Champagne Farms WTP and transmission system

3) Remaining capacity represents current peak month demand with applied growth rate

4) WUP - 4.98 MGD expires on 7/26/2013. 

4

Sanitary Sewer

Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer Systems Capacity Analysis

Projected Growth (MGD)

Projected Growth (MGD)

Annual Update to the Capital Improvements Element

Potable Water

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 11 of 75



TIE Fee
Connection 

Fees
TIE Fee Connection Fees

FY 2012/2013
Landstone 1000 1 $624,380 $541,520 $0 $1,149,325 2013

Wildwood Springs 1000 1.21 $755,500 $541,520 $827,943 $1,149,325 2013
Providence Independence ALF 88 .28/.7 $15,385 $47,654 $42,150 $101,141 2013

Future Growth:

FY 2013/2014 50 1 $31,219 $54,152 $34,213 $114,933 N/A
FY 2014/2015 75 1 $46,829 $81,228 $51,319 $172,399 N/A
FY 2015/2016 150 1 $93,657 $162,456 $102,638 $344,798 N/A
FY 2016/2017 200 1 $124,876 $216,608 $136,850 $459,730 N/A

Projected 5 - Year Total 2,563 $1,691,845 $1,645,138 $1,195,111 $3,491,649

TIE Fee TIE Fee
FY 2012/2013 2088 $1,395,265 $870,092
FY 2013/2014 50 $31,219 $34,213
FY 2014/2015 75 $46,829 $51,319
FY 2015/2016 150 $93,657 $102,638
FY 2016/2017 200 $124,876 $136,850

Projected 5 -Year Total 2,563 $1,691,845 $1,195,111

$81,228
$162,456
$216,608

$57,466
$86,199

$172,399
$229,865

Table 9.1B

Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer Projects - Balance Sheet

TIE Fee Factor
Anticipated ERUs 

Reserved

Anticipated 
Agreement 

Execution Date

TIE and Connection Fee Revenue Projections 

Projected Revenues

Water Wastewater
Known Projects:

Connection Fees

Wastewater
Fiscal Year

Anticipated ERUs 
Reserved

$1,130,694 $2,399,791

Revenue Summary

Water

Connection Fees

$1,645,138 $2,945,720

$54,152

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 12 of 75



Table 9.1B

Potable Water and Sanitary Sewer Projects - Balance Sheet

TIE and Connection Fee Revenue Projections 

Water FY 2012-2013 FY 2013-2014 FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016 FY 2016-2017

Balance Forward $8,308 $2,321,266 $2,406,637 $2,534,693 $2,790,806
Revenues
          TIE Fees $1,395,265 $31,219 $46,829 $93,657 $124,876
          Connection Fees $1,130,694 $54,152 $81,228 $162,456 $216,608
Expenditures* -$213,000 $0 $0 $0 -$18,258,000
Balance $2,321,266 $2,406,637 $2,534,693 $2,790,806 -$15,125,710

Wastewater FY 2012-2013 FY 2013-2014 FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016 FY 2016-2017

Balance Forward $815 $3,270,698 $3,362,377 $3,499,895 $3,774,931
Revenues
          TIE Fees $870,092 $34,213 $51,319 $102,638 $136,850
          Connection Fees $2,399,791 $57,466 $86,199 $172,399 $229,865
Expenditures* $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Balance $3,270,698 $3,362,377 $3,499,895 $3,774,931 $4,141,646
Notes

* See Table 9.1A for list of projects

$2,945,720

Total

$4,141,646

Balance Sheet

-$15,125,710

$1,691,845
$1,645,138

Total

$1,195,111

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 13 of 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case CP 1212-02 

Five Year Schedule of Capital Improvements 

Supporting Documentation 

Transportation 

 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 14 of 75



 

Transportation  
Improvement  

Program 
 

FISCAL YEARS 
2012/13-2016/17 

 

 

Approved—June 27, 2012 
Amended—August 22, 2012 

Amended—September 26, 2012 

The preparation of this  report was financed in part by the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit 
Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation and local participating governments. The views and opinions of the 
report do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of the U.S. Department of Transportation. 

 

Prepared by the  
Lake~Sumter Metropolitan Planning Organization 

1616 South 14th Street 
Leesburg, FL  34748 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 15 of 75



LAKE-SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 

FISCAL YEARS 2012/13 – 2016/17 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

                                    PAGE # 
RESOLUTION    3-7

MEMBERS LIST 8 

PURPOSE 9 

FINANCIAL PLAN 10 

PROJECT SELECTION 11-12 

CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER PLANS 12 

PROJECT PRIORITY STATMENT 12 

IMPLEMENTED PROJECTS 12 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 12

CERTIFICATION 12 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS 12

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS    13-14

2012/13-2016/17 WORK PROGRAM                15-17 

LAKE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM APPENDIX A 

SUMTER COUNTY CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM APPENDIX B 

 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 16 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 17 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 18 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 19 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 20 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 21 of 75



 

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
2011 MEMBER LIST 

 
 
Jennifer Hill/Chairman Lake County, D1 
 

 
Jake Farley Town of Astatula 
 

 
Sean Parks/2nd Vice-Chairman Lake County, D2 
 

 
Sharon Kelly City of Fruitland Park 
Chris Bell (alternate) 

 
 
Jimmy Conner Lake County, D3 
 

 
James Gearhart City of Groveland 
John Griffin (alternate) 

 
 
Leslie Campione Lake County, D4 

 

 
Bonnie Nebel Town of Howey-in-the-Hills 

 
 
Welton Cadwell  Lake County, D5 

 

 
Tony Rosado  City of Mascotte 
Jeff Krull (alternate) 

 
 
Don Burgess/ Chairman-Elect Sumter County (1) 
Doug Gilpin                                                                           Sumter County (2) 
Garry Breeden (alternate) 
Randy Mask (alternate) 

 
Joe Wynkoop Town of Montverde 
Glenn Burns (alternate) 

 

 
Ray Goodgame  City of Clermont 
Jack Hogan  

 

 
Eric Olson/ At-Large Representative(Lake) City of Umatilla 
Peter Tarby (alternate) 

 
 
William Ferree City of Eustis 
Sue Hooper (alternate) 

 

 
Warren Maddox/ At-Large Representative(Sumter) City of Bushnell 

 

 
Jim Richards/1st Vice Chairman Town of Lady Lake 
Ty Miller (alternate) 

 

 
Ed Wolf City of Wildwood 
Ronald Allen (alternate) 

 
 
Sanna Henderson/Immediate Past Chairman City of Leesburg 
Bill Polk (alternate) 

 

 
Pete Petree Florida Central Railroad / Ex-officio 
 
 

 
Joseph Saunders City of Minneola 
Debbie Flinn (alternate) 

 

 
Debbie Stivender Lake County School Board / Ex-officio 
Rosanne Brandeburg (alternate) 

 
 
Robert Thielhelm  City of Mount Dora 
Dennis Wood (alternate) 
 

 
Kathie Joiner Sumter County School Board / Ex-officio 
 

 
Kirby Smith City of Tavares 
Lori Pfister (alternate) 
 

 

 
 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 22 of 75



 

THE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 
 

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) is to provide a staged, multi-year, intermodal program of 
transportation projects, consistent with the Transportation 2035, Lake~Sumter MPO 2035 Long Range Transportation plan 
(LRTP).  The TIP is required of all metropolitan areas, under Section 134 of Title 23, United States Code (USC), as amended by 
the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) of 2005.  The TIP 
includes improvement projects for the highway, transit, bicycle/pedestrian and rail systems. 
 
The Lake~Sumter MPO 2012/13-2016/17 TIP contains all transportation projects within the Lake and Sumter County 
metropolitan areas designated for funding from Title 23 and Title 49 funding sources and all regionally significant transportation 
projects requiring federal action, regardless of funding source.   
 
FINANCIAL PLAN 
 
The Lake~Sumter MPO 2012/13-2016/17 TIP, financially constrained for each of the five years, was developed in cooperation 
with FDOT, Lake County and Sumter County.  The projects within the TIP are financially feasible and the federally funded 
projects identified in the TIP can be implemented using current and proposed revenue sources, based on FDOT’s Five-Year 
Work Program and locally dedicated transportation revenues.   
 

FULL PROJECT COSTS AND OTHER PROJECT DETAILS 

 
Projects on the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS) 
 
The normal project production sequence is to have a Project Development and Environment (PD&E) phase, a Design 
(PE) phase, a Right of Way (ROW) phase and a Construction (CST) phase.  Some projects may not have a ROW phase, 
if land is not needed to complete the project.  Costs on the TIP pages for projects on the SIS will have historical costs, five 
years of the current TIP and five years beyond the current TIP, which may or may not be the total project cost.  If there is 
no CST phase on the TIP page, then the entry will probably not be reflective of the total project cost.  For some projects, 
such as resurfacing, safety or operational project, there may not be a total cost provided but rather additional details on 
that program.   
 
The SIS is a network of high priority transportation facilities which includes the state’s largest and most significant 
commercial service airports, spaceport, deepwater seaports, freight rail terminals, passenger rail and interecity bus 
terminals, rail corridors, waterways and highways.  All projects on the SIS will have a SIS identifier on the TIP page (See 
example TIP page below).  
   
For costs beyond the ten year window, access to the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) is provided.  The link to the 
LRTP is http://www.lakesumtermpo.com/2035/index.aspx.  The LRTP reference on the TIP page provides the information 
necessary to locate the full project costs and/or additional details regarding the project in the LRTP (See example TIP 
page below).  If there is no LRTP reference in the TIP, full project costs are provided in the TIP. 

 
                 Figure 1: Lake~Sumter Region 

 

 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 23 of 75

http://www.lakesumtermpo.com/2035/index.aspx


 

  
 
Non SIS projects  
 
The normal project production sequence is to have a Project Development and Environment (PD&E) phase, a Design 
(PE) phase, a Right of Way (ROW) phase and a Construction (CST) phase.  Some projects may not have a ROW phase, 
if land is not needed to complete the project.  Costs on the TIP pages for projects not on the SIS will have historical costs 
and five years of the current TIP, which may or may not be the total project cost.  If there is no CST phase on the TIP 
page, then the entry will probably not be reflective of the total project cost.  For some projects, such as resurfacing, safety 
or operational projects, there may not be a total cost provided but rather additional details on that program.   
 
Total project costs and other project details will be accessible in the TIP for all non SIS projects in the TIP.  All projects not 
on the SIS will have a Non-SIS identifier on the TIP page (See example TIP page below).   
  
For costs beyond the five year window, access to the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) is provided.  The link to the 
LRTP is http://www.lakesumtermpo.com/2035/index.aspx.   The LRTP reference on the TIP page provides the information 
necessary to locate the full project costs and/or additional details regarding the project in the LRTP (See example TIP 
page below).  If there is no LRTP reference in the TIP, full project costs are provided in the TIP.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 24 of 75

http://www.lakesumtermpo.com/2035/index.aspx


 

 
 

 

 
PROJECT SELECTION 
 
Consistent with federal requirements in 23 CFR 450.330(b), and Title 23, Section 134 USC, as amended by SAFETEA-LU, the 
projects selected for the Lake~Sumter MPO 2011/12-2015/16 TIP were taken from the MPO’s List of Priority Projects (LOPP), 
adopted in June 2011, which were drawn from the Transportation 2035, adopted in December 2010.   
 
For information purposes, the currently adopted Lake County 5-year Transportation Construction Program (TCP) and Sumter 
County 5-Year Capital Improvement Program are included in the appendix.  When a transportation project within the MPO 
planning area has been identified, the MPO requests that FDOT and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) actively 
pursue appropriate funding. 
 
The FDOT shall give priority to those projects that are: 
 
1. Designed to maximize safe and efficient travel; 
2. Identified in approved local government comprehensive plans to receive local matching funds in accordance with the 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 25 of 75



 

provisions of Section 335.20, F.S. or to be funded pursuant to the provisions of Section 339.12, F.S.; 
3. Within transportation corridors protected by local government action; 
4. Used in the operation of, or in conjunction with, public transportation facilities; and 

5. Located within the boundaries of a local government which has made a responsible effort to fund improvements needed to 
accommodate local traffic. 

 
                     

CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER PLANS 
 
All projects included in the Lake~Sumter MPO 2012/13-2016/17 TIP have been drawn from the Transportation 2035.  The projects are consistent with the FDOT Five-Year Adopted Work Program and 
the Lake County Transit Development Plan (TDP). 
 
PROJECT PRIORITY STATEMENT 
 
The Lake~Sumter MPO will  adopt its List of Priority Projects (LOPP) in August 2012.  The LOPP will be submitted to FDOT for use in developing the new outer year of the Five-Year Work Program, 
Fiscal Year201718.   
 
 
IMPLEMENTED PROJECTS 
 
FDOT produces an annual listing of projects for which federal funds have been obligated in the previous year.  This list has been published and made available for public review through FDOT. 
www.dot.state.fl.us/programdevelopmentoffice/federal/fa_mpo_obligdet.shtm 

 
 
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
Annually, the Lake~Sumter MPO develops its TIP in accordance with all applicable State and Federal laws governing public involvement.  This includes 23 CFR 450.316 and 23 CFR 450.324(b).  
Specific procedures for use of public involvement in the annual development of the TIP have been clearly defined in the MPO’s recently adopted Public Involvement Process (PIP).   Prior to adoption 
of the final TIP, the Lake~Sumter MPO sought public comment on the draft TIP by making the document available on our website (LakeSumterMPO.com).  In addition, all Lake~Sumter MPO meetings 
are held in accordance with Florida’s open meetings law (the Sunshine Law), and an opportunity is provided for public comment.  The draft TIP was on the agenda of the May 2012  Lake~Sumter 
MPO Governing Board meeting. 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
The Lake~Sumter MPO participates in an annual self-certification of its planning process with representatives from the Florida Department of Transportation, District 5.  The last annual self-
certification with FDOT was completed March 2012. 
 
 
TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED (TD)  
 
The projects included in the TIP are consistent with adopted short and long range transportation plans and master plans of the agencies and jurisdictions in the Lake~Sumter area. The projects listed 
in this TIP are part of the MPO's 2035 Long Range Transportation Plan, Lake County 2020 Transit Development Plan, and Lake and Sumter County Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plans. The 
plans and the projects identified in the TIP are also consistent, to the maximum extent feasible, with the adopted Comprehensive Plans of the local governments in the Lake~Sumter area. 
 
 
 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 26 of 75

http://www.dot.state.fl.us/programdevelopmentoffice/federal/fa_mpo_obligdet.shtm
http://lakesumtermpo.com/


 

 
ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 

 
Funding Codes: 
 
FED  Federal Funding 
 
STA  State Funding 
 
LOC  Local Funding 
 
PRV  Private Funding 
 
 
 
 
 
Project Phase Abbreviations: 
ADM  Administration 
 
CAP  Capital 
 
CST  Construction – highway project phase 
 
ENV  Environmental Mitigation – FDOT highway project phase pertaining to filing permits with the St. Johns Water management District and 
   the Florida  Department of Environmental Protection regarding the acquisition of environmentally sensitive land  for highway improvements 
 
INC  Incentive funds paid to contractors by FDOT for early project completion 
 
MNT  Maintenance 
 
MISC  Miscellaneous 
 
OPS  Operations 
 
PD&E  Project Development and Environment Study – project phase scheduled prior to preliminary engineering for Highway projects 
 
PE  Preliminary Engineering (design) – highway project phase 
 
PLN  Planning 
 
ROW  Right-of-Way Acquisition 
 
RRU  Relocation of Railroad Utilities 
 
 
 
 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 27 of 75



 

Agency and Committee Abbreviations 
BPAC  Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
 
CAC  Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
 
FAA  Federal Aviation Administration – provides up to 75% of total project cost for new airport facilities under existing  Airport Development Aid Program 
 
FDOT  Florida Department of Transportation 
 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
 
FTA  Federal Transit Administration 
 
MPO  Metropolitan Planning Organization 
 
TAC  Technical Advisory committee 
 
TDCB  Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board 
 
Miscellaneous Abbreviations 
CFR  Code of Federal Regulations 
 
CMS Congestion Management System – projects that improve the traffic flow on existing roadways without adding lanes to the roadways.  May include such projects as intersection 

improvements, adding turn lanes, etc. 
 
CR  County Road 
 
DEIS    Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
 
FEIS  Final Environmental Impact Statement 
 
HOV  High-Occupancy Vehicle – special lanes on a limited access freeway set aside for vehicles with two or more  occupants during morning and afternoon peak travel times 
 
ISTEA  Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiancy Act of 1991 
 
MIS  Major Investment Study – a study that identifies potential highway and transit improvements for a major transportation corridor 
 
SAFETEA-LU Safe Accountable Flexible Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (Reauthorization of TEA-21)  
 
SR  State Road 
 
TD  Transportation Disadvantaged – those person requiring special transportation services due to physical, mental, or economic disadvantages 
 
TEA-21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (Reauthorization of ISTEA) 
 
TIP  Transportation Improvement Program 
 
US   US Route 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 28 of 75



State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

LSMPO LSMPO URBAN AREA UPWP 4179571 LAKE~SUMTER MPO UPWP N/A TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PLN 0 489 0 0 0 489 0 0 0 488 0 0 0 488 0 0 0 488 0 0

Lake SR 50 (SR 33) 4270561 FROM CR 565 (VILLA CITY) TO CR 565A (MONTEVISTA) 2.096 mi pg.11,26,32,57 PRELIM ENG FOR FUTURE CAPACITY ENV 0 0 0 0 700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PE 1,810 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 500 (US 441) 4293561 FROM SR 44 TO NORTH OF SR 46 2.387 mi pg.11,17,18,19,20,26,32,33,57 PD&E/EMO STUDY PE 0 0 0 0 2,210 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 35 (US 301) 4301321 FROM C-470 TO SR 44 7.702 mi pg.11,17,18,19.20,6,32,33,57 PD&E/EMO STUDY PD&E 10 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 35 (US 301) 4301331 FROM N MAIN ST CR 48 TO C-470 7.820 mi pg.11,17,18,19,20,26,32,33,57 PD&E/EMO STUDY PD&E 10 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 44 4301341 FROM C-475 TO I-75 1.700 mi N/A PD&E/EMO STUDY PD&E 10 0 0 0 860 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake WEKIVA PARKWAY LINE AND GRADE 4310812 FROM ORANGE COUNTY LINE TO 0.319 WEST OF OLD MC DONALD ROAD 2.447 mi pg.11,12,17,32,35,56,57 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PE 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake WEKIVA PARKWAY LINE AND GRADE 4310813 FROM 0.319 MILES WEST OF OLD MC DONALD ROAD TO SEMINOLE COUNTY LINE 4.924 mi pg.11,12,17,32,35,56,57 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PE 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-SECTION 5303 4314001 LAKE-SUMTER MPO PLANNING STUDIES pg.11,14,16,17,18,20,24,32,33,37,58 PTO STUDIES PLN 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 56 7 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake SR 46 REALIGNMENT 2382754 FROM EAST OF ROUND LAKE ROAD TO ORANGE COUNTY LINE 1.402 mi pg.11,12,17,32,37,57 NEW ROAD CONSTRUCTION CST 253 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 429 (WEKIVA PKWY) 2382756 FROM ORANGE CO LINE TO W OF OLD MCDONALD RD 2.447 mi pg.11,12,17,32,37,57 NEW ROAD CONSTRUCTION CST 31,889 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 19 2383191 FROM CR 48 TO CR 561 4.760 mi pg.11,17,18,19,20,26,32,33,57 PD&E/EMO STUDY ENV 0 0 0 0 225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PE 600 0 0 0 2,620 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 500 (US 441) 2383942 FROM PERKINS ST TO N OF GRIFFIN RD 1.022 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT CST 0 61 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 500 (US 441) 2383943 FROM PERKINS ST TO SR 44 1.645 mi pg.11,12,16,37,39,52,53,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT ROW 508 5,997 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 500 (US 441) 2383954 FROM MARTIN LUTHER KING TO LAKE ELLA RD 3.453 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT CST 0 0 0 0 0 146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 500 (US 441) 2383955 FROM LAKE ELLA RD TO AVENIDA CENTRAL 4.157 mi pg.11,12,16,37,39,52,53,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT ROW 1,325 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 25 (US27) 2384221 FROM BOGGY MARSH RD TO LAKE LOUISA RD 6.686 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT PE 0 0 0 0 0 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 50 2384293 FROM W OF BLOXHAM BLVD TO W OF HANCOCK RD 1.724 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT CST 0 0 0 0 0 69 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 48 2404182 FROM E OF I-75 RAMPS TO C-475 (MAIN ST) 1.606 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & REHABILITATE PVMNT PE 0 0 0 0 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ROW 471 6,734 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 190 10,332 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 93 (I-75) 2426262 FROM HERNANDO CO LINE TO C-470 13.083 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & REHABILITATE PVMNT ROW 0 0 0 0 0 11,318 0 0 0 2,310 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 93 (I-75) 2426263 FROM SR 470 TO SR91 (FLORIDA TURNPIKE) 7.415 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & REHABILITATE PVMNT ROW 0 0 0 0 0 8,202 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 44  (FORMELY C-44B) 4098701 FROM SR 500 US 441 TO CR 44/SR-44 2.090 mi pg.11,12,16,37,39,52,54,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT ROW 104 2,906 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 35 (US 301) 4112573 N OF CR 232 TO N OF NE 110 RD 2.209 mi pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & REHABILITATE PVMNT CST 273 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 50 LAKE COUNTY 4167242 ADVANCE ROW ACQUISITION 5.679 mi pg.11,12,16,37,39,52,55,57 RIGHT OF WAY ACTIVITIES ROW 1,161 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 44 4193701 AT ROYAL TRAILS RD 0.210 mi pg.12,37,58 ADD LEFT TURN LANE(S) CST 0 0 0 0 232 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 33 4230961 AT CR 474 0.001 mi pg.12,37,58 ADD LEFT TURN LANE(S) ENV 106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 618 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 25/US 27 4242991 FROM POLK COUNTY LINE TO END OF 1ST RAMP NORTH OF US 192 pg.12,16,17,37,57 ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT CST 0 3,371 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter CR 466 4301871 AT US 301 0.075 mi pg.12,37,58 ADD TURN LANE(S) CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 511 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter US 301 4301881 AT SR 44 0.113 mi pg.12,37,58 ADD TURN LANE(S) ROW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 163 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 460 0

Lake CR 466A 4302531 FROM SUMTER COUNTY LINE TO US 27 3.061 mi pg.12,16,17,37,58 ADD LANES & REHABILITATE PVMNT ROW 0 0 0 0 6,853 0 6,856 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake CR 473 4311961 AT WESTMONT RD 0.135 mi pg.12,37,58 ADD LEFT TURN LANE(S) PE 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 111 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Sumter SR 48 2404183 FROM 300' W OF C-475 TO C-475 0.068 mi pg.58 TRAFFIC OPS IMPROVEMENT CST 0 235 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONTRACTS 4130193  pg.28,58 TRAFFIC SIGNALS OPS 281 0 0 0 298 0 0 0 309 0 0 0 309 0 0 0 309 0 0 0

Sumter TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONTRACTS 4130198  pg.28,58 TRAFFIC SIGNALS OPS 57 0 0 0 61 0 0 0 63 0 0 0 63 0 0 0 63 0 0 0

Lake RESERVE BOX-VILLAGES 4273051 (LAKE/SUMTER) OPERATION & SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS pg.28,58 FUNDING ACTION CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 379 0

Sumter I-75 (SR 93) 4282121 FROM HERNANDO COUNTY LINE TO SR 44 23.000 mi pg.12,32,58 ITS COMMUNICATION SYSTEM CST 0 0 0 0 1,336 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 19 (CENTRAL AVE) 4292601 AT CR 450E (COLLINS ST) 0.001 mi pg.15,16,58 TRAFFIC OPS IMPROVEMENT CST 327 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake CR 561 ROUNDABOUT 4296061 AT CR 561 AT CR 455 0.002 mi pg.15,16,58 ROUNDABOUT PE 0 272 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 826 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake WEKIVA PARKWAY 4319332 PROJECT RESERVE ITEM LAKE COUNTY SEGMENT pg.57 FUNDING ACTION PE 27,653 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ROW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,743 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,416 0 0 0 11,366 50,095 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake SR 19 4248811 FROM CR 452 TO N OF GOLDEN GEM DR 3.831 mi pg.15,16 RESURFACING CST 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 44 4272301 FROM SUMTER COUNTY LINE TO SR44/CR468 2.406 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING CST 194 2,953 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 19 4272461 FROM S OF SUMMITT CHASE VILLAS TO SR19/500 2.136 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING CST 141 1,948 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter I-75 (SR93) 4273751 FROM HERNANDO CO LINE TO PANASOFKEE CREEK BRIDGE 15.456 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING CST 0 16,892 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter C-466 4284431 FROM US 301 TO 150' E OF C-475 0.987 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,613 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter C-475 4299441 FROM C-470 TO C-542 3.697 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 0 0 0

Lake SR 44 4306511 FROM SR25/US27/14TH ST TO US 441 (NORTH BLVD) 2.121 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING PE 0 0 0 0 195 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,821 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 50 4306521 FROM SR 33 TO EAST OF CR565  (MONTE VISTA) 1.055 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING PE 175 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,421 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 471 4306531 FROM POLK CO LINE TO 1.83MI S OF UNNAMED CANAL 5.054 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING PE 10 0 0 0 240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 73 2,935 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter C-542 WEST 4318961 FROM US 301 TO C-475 0.455 mi pg.16,58 RESURFACING CST 0 363 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2013 - 2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - TIP FY 2012/13 - 2016/17 APPROVED JUNE 27, 2012 [AMENDMED SEPTEMBER 26, 2012]

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 1

Transportation Planning

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 2

Roadway Capacity

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 3

Operations and Management

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 4A

Safety - Resurfacing

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 4B

Safety - Lighting

Page 1 of 3

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 29 of 75



2013 - 2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - TIP FY 2012/13 - 2016/17 APPROVED JUNE 27, 2012 [AMENDMED SEPTEMBER 26, 2012]

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 1

Transportation Planning

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake LIGHTING AGREEMENTS 4136151  pg.15,58 LIGHTING MNT 305 0 0 0 300 0 0 0 300 0 0 0 300 0 0 0 300 0 0 0

Sumter LIGHTING AGREEMENTS 4136152 DDR FUNDS N/A pg.15,58 LIGHTING MNT 38 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 50 0 0 0 300 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Sumter SR 91 (FLORIDA TURNPIKE) 4193251 WITHIN SUMTER COUNTY 10.670 mi pg.15,16,28,58 GUARDRAIL PE 103 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 735 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 91 (FLORIDA TURNPIKE) 4193301 WITHIN LAKE COUNTY, MP 274 - 298 23.876 mi pg.15,16,28,58 GUARDRAIL CST 380 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake SR 91 (Florida Turnpike) 4231982 LAKE COUNTY RESURFACING - THERMOPLASTIC- SB ONLY, FROM MP 281 TO 297.8 15.91 mi pg.15,16,28,58 SIGNING/PAVEMENT MARKINGS CST 291 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 91 (Florida Turnpike) 4271442 SURFACING MAINLINE-THERMOPLASTIC- NB FROM MP274- 275 TO MP274-275.5 SB pg.15,16,28,58 SIGNING/PAVEMENT MARKINGS PE 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake CR 450 4274801 FROM MARION COUNTY TO LAKE YALE ROAD 1.000 mi pg.15,16,28,58 AUDIBLE PAVEMENT MARKERS, SHOULDERS CST 0 2,143 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake CR561 4296081 FROM US 27 TO CR 48 pg.15,16,28,58 SIGNING/PAVEMENT MARKINGS CST 0 0 0 0 0 195 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SR 44 PAVEMENT MARKINGS 4306421 INSTALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS AT TWO LOCATIONS --SEE PROJECT SUMMARY DESCRIPTION 17.242 mi pg.15,16,28,58 SIGNING/PAVEMENT MARKINGS PE 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 69 521 0 0 73 556 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 500 (US 441) 4306651 FROM 0.2 MILE NORTH OF SR 44 TO ORANGE COUNTY LINE 3.044 mi pg.15,16,28,58 PAVE SHOULDERS PE 0 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 56 491 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake SR 19 2383192 OVER LITTLE LAKE HARRIS BRIDGE # 110026 0.592 mi pg.11,15,16,17,57 BRIDGE REPLACEMENT ENV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 550 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PE 0 0 0 0 380 3,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ROW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 2,605 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 363 49,017 0 0

Lake SR 44 4275621 BRIDGE # 110063 PAINT & SEAL DECK 0.099 mi pg.15,16,58 BRIDGE-REPAIR/REHABILITATION CST 621 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake CR 470 4302381 BRIDGE OVER TURNPIKE 0.060 mi pg.18,19,58 BRIDGE-REPLACE AND ADD LANES CST 0 0 0 0 4,000 0 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SR 19 4310681 OVER US 441 BRIDGE# 110031 0.038 mi pg.15,16,58 BRIDGE-REPAIR/REHABILITATION PE 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 550 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake VEGETATION AND 2447543 AESTHETICS AREA WIDE pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 747 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LADY LAKE 4171991 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LEESBURG OPERATIONS 4223433 MINOR REPAIRS/RENOVATIONS pg.16,58 FIXED CAPITAL OUTLAY CST 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake CITY OF LEESBURG MOA 4231131  pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0

Lake MOA W/ MASCOTTE 4237901  pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0

Lake PAVEMENT MARKINGS 4238341 RPM'S - PERFORMANCE BASED pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 819 0 0 0 819 0 0 0 819 0 0 0 819 0 0 0 819 0 0 0

Lake MOA W/ TAVARES 4254581  pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0

Sumter MOA WITH SUMTER COUNTY 4259971 I-75 AT CR 673 INTERCHANGE pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0

Lake MOA W/WILDWOOD 4271941  pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 6 0 0 0

Lake ASPHALT REPAIR 4291571  pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 157 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake DRAINAGE REPAIR 4291762  pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake UNPAVED SHOULDER 4292781 REPAIR pg.16,58 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE MNT 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Sumter OKAHUMPKA SERVICE 4224181 PLAZA MODIFICATION  (MP 299) 0.573 mi N/A REST AREA PD&E 0 82 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 4B

Safety - Lighting

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 4C

Safety - Guardrail

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 4D

Safety - Signing and Pavement Markings

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 5A

Maintenance Bridges

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 5D

Maintenance - Routine Maintenance

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 5E

Maintenance - Miscellaneous

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 6

Bicycle/Pedestrian & Trails

Page 2 of 3

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 30 of 75



2013 - 2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - TIP FY 2012/13 - 2016/17 APPROVED JUNE 27, 2012 [AMENDMED SEPTEMBER 26, 2012]

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 1

Transportation Planning

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake SOUTH LAKE TRAIL I 4225701 FROM CLERMONT TRAIL TO SILVER EAGLE ROAD 0.010 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 BIKE PATH/TRAIL CST 0 2,005 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake SOUTH LAKE TRAIL 4225702 FROM CLERMONT TRAIL TO SILVER EAGLE DRIVE N/A BIKE PATH/TRAIL CST 0 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LEESBURG/WILDWOOD 4244441 TRAIL FROM SUMTER CO LINE TO SR 500/US 441 pg.11,17,32,33,34,38,47,48,50,58 BIKE PATH/TRAIL CST 0 473 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake ROLLING ACRES RD - SRTS 4278551 FROM VISTA SAN POLO TO GRIFFIN RD 2.300 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 SIDEWALK CST 0 751 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LSMPO LAKE/SUMTER COUNTYWIDE 4280381 BIKE/PEDESTRIAN SCHOOL SAFETY -VARIOUS AREAS N/A pg.16,26,38,58 SAFETY PROJECT PLN 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LINCOLN AVENUE 4295941 FROM TREMAIN STREET TO UNSER STREET 0.800 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 SIDEWALK CST 0 0 0 0 0 493 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE WEKIVA TRAIL 4309751 TREMAIN STREET/MOUNT DORA WEKIVA RIVER pg.15,16,26,38,58 BIKE PATH/TRAIL PE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,300 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake GREEN MOUNTAIN SCENIC BYWAY TRAILHEAD 4314351 OVERLOOK LAKE APOPKA 00.00 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 CONSTRUCT SPECIAL STRUCTURE CST 0 622 159 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake THOMAS AVENUE 4315301 FROM GRIFFIN ROAD (CR 44C ) TO N OF DOCKSIDE DR 0.662 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 SIDEWALK PE 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 157 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake ORANGE AVENUE 4316171 FROM HASELTON STREET TO CRICKET HOLLOW LANE 0.700 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 SIDEWALK PE 0 26 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 279 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake DONNELLY STREET - STREETSCAPE 4318931 REPLACE SIDEWALK AND CURB, INSTALL STREET LAMPS, LANDSCAPING, AND HANDICAP RAMP NAD CROSSWALKS 00.00 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 BIKE PATH/TRAIL PE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 390 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake TREMAIN STREET GREENWAY ACCESS ROAD/TRAIL 4318941 LAP WITH CITY OF MOUNT DORA CONVERSION FROM RESIDENTIAL TO ACCESS ROAD AND TRAIL 00.00 mi pg.15,16,26,38,58 BIKE PATH/TRAIL PE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 59 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CST 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 595 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake BEACON COLLEGE 4133601.1 LAKE COUNTY 5310 PROGRAM N/A PURCHASE VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT CAP 24 185 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE COUNTY BOCC 4133601.2 5310 PURCHASE VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT N/A PURCHASE VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT CAP 58 464 58 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE COUNTY 4143301 5307 - CAPITAL GRANT DESIGN AND CONSTRUCT MOBILITY CENTER 00.00 mi N/A CONST/EXPAND TERMINAL FACILITY CAP 0 7,000 1,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE COUNTY 4143311 5307 - CAPITAL FIXED ROUTE GRANT TO PURCHASE BUSES pg.16,32,33,37,58 CAPITAL FOR FIXED ROUTE CAP 0 1,276 319 0 0 2,010 503 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-COUNTY CAPITAL 4143312 FIXED ROUTE GRANT SECTION 5307   PURCHASE BUSES pg.16,32,33,37,58 CAPITAL FOR FIXED ROUTE CAP 0 1,915 479 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

LSMPO LAKE SUMTER MPO 4224411 5303 TRANSIT PLANNING pg.16,32,33,37,58 PTO STUDIES PLN 12 96 12 0 7 56 7 0 7 56 7 0 7 56 7 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SUMTER COUNTY 4241191 SUMTER 5311 - TRANSPORTATION OPERATING ASSISTANCE pg.16,32,33,37,58 OPERATING/ADMIN. ASSISTANCE OPS 0 279 279 0 0 333 333 0 0 349 349 0 0 367 367 0 0 385 385 0

Lake LAKE COUNTY 4241201 LAKE 5311 - TRANSPORTATION OPERATING ASSISTANCE pg.16,32,33,37,58 OPERATING/ADMIN. ASSISTANCE OPS 0 492 492 0 0 586 586 0 0 615 615 0 0 646 646 0 0 678 678 0

Lake LAKE COUNTY 4241251 BLOCK GRANT-FIXED ROUTE OPERATING COSTS pg.16,32,33,37,58 OPERATING FOR FIXED ROUTE OPS 761 612 761 0 763 643 763 0 770 643 770 0 787 650 787 0 787 715 787 0

Lake MAINTENANCE FACILITY LEASE 4261661 LAKEXPRESS FIXED ROUTE TRANSIT N/A 5307 FUNDING GR&M 0 2,222 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SUMTER COUNTY 4314061 TRANSIT  SERVICE DEVELOPEMENT pg.16,32,33,37,58 TRANSIT SERVICE DEMONSTRATION OPS 169 0 169 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter SAFE ACCESS IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES 4327181 SUMTER COUNTY 00.00 mi N/A TRAINING OPS 0 120 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake ALTERNATIVE ANALYSIS 4292141 ORANGE BLOSSOM EXPRESS pg.11,14,32,33,37,58 RAIL CAPACITY PROJECT PD&E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,500 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sumter HUEY STREET/ CR 44A 4318661 CSX CROSSING # 625318C pg.15,16,30 RAIL SAFETY PROJECT CST 0 210 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private State Federal Local Private

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG REG 4144402 TERMINAL BUILDING CONSTRUCTION pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION REVENUE/OPERATIONAL CAP 912 0 228 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG INTL 4144411 AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROJE CT pg.15,18,19,37,58 AVIATION SAFETY PROJECT CAP 9 333 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA MUNI 4298171 AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT pg.15,18,19,37,58 AVIATION SAFETY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 237 0 237 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG INTL 4315591 INSTALL FUEL TANK pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION REVENUE/OPERATIONAL CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 354 0 89 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG INTL 4315601 CONSTRUCT HELIPORT pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 120 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG INTL 4315611 DESIGN TERMINAL BUILDING & RAMP pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 258 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG 4315621 RUNWAY 13 EXTENSION DESIGN pg.15,18,19,58 AVIATION SAFETY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 843 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG INTL 4315631 DESIGN AIRCRAFT APRON pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 160 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-LEESBURG INTL 4315641 AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROJE CT pg.15,18,19,37,58 AVIATION SAFETY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 531 0 531 0 476 0 476 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316181 ACQUIRE RUNWAY SAFETY ARE AS pg.15,18,19,37,58 AVIATION SAFETY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 239 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316201 DESIGN PARALLEL TAXIWAY S OUTH pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 0 10 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316211 CONSTRUCT VEHICLE ACCESS AND PARKING pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 177 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316221 ACQUIRE CENTRAL AREA LAND pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 245 0 62 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316231 CONSTRUCT SHADE HANGARS pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION REVENUE/OPERATIONAL CAP 68 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316241 CONSTRUCT PARALLEL TAXIWA Y SOUTH pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 475 5 0

Lake LAKE-UMATILLA 4316251 CONSTRUCT TERMINAL AREA A PRON pg.18,19,37,58 AVIATION CAPACITY PROJECT CAP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 218 0 55 0

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 6

Bicycle/Pedestrian & Trails

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 7

Transit and Transportation Disadvantaged

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 8

Rail

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

LAKE~SUMTER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

2012/13 - 2016/17

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TABLE 9

Airports

COUNTY

NAME OR

DESIGNATION

FM NUMBER

**DOT

PROJECT

SEGMENT

PROJECT

LENGTH

LRTP

NUMBER

WORK

DESCRIPTION

PROJECT

PHASE

FUNDING SOURCES BY YEAR ($000's)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Page 3 of 3

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 31 of 75



 
 

APPENDICES AVAILABLE ONLINE: http://www.lakesumtermpo.com/documents/tip.aspx 
 

 
APPENDIX A – 
LAKE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM 
 
APPENDIX B- 
SUMTER COUNTY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 32 of 75



FIDOT 0 WPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 - Adopted with Amended 


(Updated: 12/18/2012) 

District 06 - Sumter County 


Category: Turnpike 


ptional Search Items: 
Type of Work: : (All Types of Work) 

Transportation System: I (All Transportation Systems) 
trategic Intennodal System (SIS): ! (All SIS and Non SIS ProjectslE 

Only Funds in Fiscal Years:O -201-3- J 2014- -2015 15 2016 LI 2017 

Search for Description: 

Search for Item Number: 
~-~ 

L_~u~rn~~J L~~S~!J 

DetailUem Report of Selected Records . 

Detail Sche<lule Activities Report of Selected Records _ 


Description Tl£pe of Work 

Canal Erotection On fpk (S~ll l n Sumter Coun!'l (Mp 298-309l SIS GUARDRAIL 

Okahumpka Service Plaza Modification (Mp 299l SIS REST AREA 

Acce~slbmt'r I ACfOOyms IFreguenlly As)(,ed OIIp.sOOns I Governor's Office 1PfivBCY PQIIIL)' I Slf!If!ln.mt or Agflnsy 

Note: Information on this web page may. at times, be temporarily unavailable due to scheduled maintenance. If you receive an error message, please try again at a later pOint 


In time. If you continue to experience problems, please contact our office using the conlaCllnformalion below. 


This site is maintained by the Florida Department of Transportation Office of Work Program and Budget. 


605 Suwannee Street, MS 21, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. 


For additional information please e-mail questions or comments to: 


(Lisa Saliba: t...isa_Si:llill a!t'Ddnt:!I[tl~ n.us or call 850-414-4622) 


View Contact Information for Office of Work Program and Budget 
Application Home: W01k Fro:oram 


Office Home: Office crW9rk ptpgranl plld Buggel 


Flqrp;!n Qepmtfr'l()nl 01 Transpor1gttop Home 


M:iEl!l!!!! 
Copyright <C> 1996-2012 


Florida Department of Transportallon 


12118/2012http://www2.dot.state.fl.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramIW orkProgram.aspx 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 33 of 75

http://www2.dot.state.fl.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramIW
http:Slf!If!ln.mt


FlDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 AD 

IUpdated: 12118/2012~1:38:11) 

District 06 - Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 430187-1 


Display current records In a Report Style 

Project Summary 
Transportation System: NON-INTRASTATE OFF STATE HIGHW 
Description: Cr 466 At Us 301 
Type of Work: ADD TURN LANE(S) 
Item Number: 430187-1 

Project Detail 

District 05 - Sumter County 

View Sclleduled t,&tivities 

Length: 0.202 

Fiscal Year:1 20131 20141 20161 20161 2017 
Highways/Preliminary Engineering 

Amount:1 $8,5001 1 T I 
Highways/Construction 

Amount:1 1 $619,7691 1 1 
Highways/Construction Support 

Amount:1 1 $5,1551 T l 

Item Total:1 $8,6001 $624,9241 1 1 

~ I ~ I Fregul!ntt~ "'s ~qcJ QU{!stlQ:l1s I 9o¥emo(" Off!cs: I Pr!yiIcy poliCY I Sla!~lnel1l of AoenCy 

Note: Infonnation on this web page may, at limes, De temporarily unavailable due 10 scheduled maintenance. It you receive 8n error message. please II)' again at 8 later point 

in time. If you conllnue to experience problems, please contact our offK:e using lhe contact Infonnation below. 

Thls sfte is maintained by the Florida Department of Transportation Office of Vobt1f. Program and Budget 

60S Suwannee Street. MS 21 , Tallahassee. Florida 32399. 

For addi1ional information please e-mail quesllons or comments to: 
(Lisa Saliba: l~Q. SsdibRMou.'all!l_ n 1I5 or call 850414-4622) 

View Contact Information for Office of Work Program and Budget 
Application Home: lA/o(1( Progmm 


OffIce Home: 0[9 ur jIyork PrOsUi!iD and Budgt'll 


FkmrjB O,.Utt!'\n)!:nt of Transoonnhon Home 


~ 
Copyright C 1996-2012 


Florida Department of TransportaUon 


http://www2.dot.state_fl_us/fmsupportapps/workprogram/Support/WPI temRept.ASPX?RF... 1211812012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 34 of 75

http://www2.dot.state_fl_us/fmsupportapps/workprogram/Support/WPI


FlDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 AD 

(Updated: 1211812012-01:38:11) 

District 06 - Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 426443-1 


Display current records in a Report Style 


Project Summary 
Transportation System: OFF STATE HWY SYS/OFF FED SYS District 05 - Sumter County 
Description: Cr 466w From Cr 209 To Us 301 
Type of Work: RESURFACING View Scheduled 8ctivrtjes 
Item Number: 426443-1 

Length: 0.967 

Project Detail 
Fiscal Year:1 2013] 20141 20151 20161 2017 

Highways/Construction 
Amountl 1 1 $1,612,9031 1 

~ I~ I Frequent'" Asked QuestlOQ'j I Gowm0r's Offtol! I PrlvlliOY Pollr,y I StaHtmrnl <If Agency 

Note: Information on this web page may, at limes, be temporarily unavailable due 10 SCheduled maintenance. If you receive an error message, please try again at a later point 

in time. If you continue to experience problems. please oonlad our offK:e using the contact inforrnalton be~. 

This site is maintained by the Florida Department of Transportation Office of Wof1( Program and Budge!. 

605 Suwannee Street. MS 21, Tallahassee. Florida 32399. 

For additional infonnation please e-mail questions or aommenls to: 

(lisa Saliba: Lr.c;a Snl!ha@dnt stAle ft till or call 850-414-4622) 

Vlew Contact Inrorma~on for Office of Work Program and Budget 
AppllcaUon Home: W9t'1t PtDOI'CIm 


OffIce Home: Office or WO~ ProorAm and BUdnet 


flondn QeD!u1mep! 01 TmnF;;pm191lon HOll Ie 


~ 
Copycight C 1995-2012 


Florida Department of Transportation 


http://www2.dot.state.f1.us/finsupportapps/workprogramlSupportJWPI temRept.ASPX?RF... 12/18/2012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 35 of 75

http://www2.dot.state.f1.us/finsupportapps/workprogramlSupportJWPI


FlDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 AD 


(Updated: 12118/2012-1)1 :38:11) 


District 05· Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 431866-1 


Display current records In a Report Style 


Project Summary 
Transportation System: NON-INTRASTATE OFF STATE HIGHW 
Description: Huey Street! Cr 44a Csx Crossing # 625318c 
Type of Work: RAIL SAFETY PROJECT 
Item Number: 431866-1 

Project Detail 

District 05 - Sumter County 

View Scheduled 8ctivities 

Fiscal Year:1 20131 20141 20161 20161 2017 
Highways/Railroad & Utilities 

Amount: 1 $209.0761 1 1 T 

A.ccessJtllllt)' I~ I Freguen1J... A!!. ad QueSlll2f1S I GQvernor'S Ottir& I ~nl,'aD' Poln ISlalp.mPH' or Ag,oey 

Note: Infonnation on this web page may. at times, be temporarily unavailable due 10 scheduled maintenance. If you receive an error message, please try again at a later point 

in time. If you continue to experience problems, please contact our office using the contact information below. 

This site is maintained by Ihe Florida Department of Transportation Office of Woo:. Program and Budget. 

605 Suwannee Street, MS 21, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. 

For addilionat infonnation please e-mail quesUons or comments to: 

(Usa Saliba: l~8.Sallba@dat Sl816 11 U$ or call 850-414-4622) 

View Contact Information for Office of Wor!< Program and Budaet 

Application Home: Wm1t Program 


Office Home: Office Qr ~11;; Progmm ,wi Budge! 


FlOnda DeNr1fTl9nt lit Transoon91.lDtl HDm!!. 


.MYE.IlHlWI 

Copyright C> 1996-2012 


Florida Department of Transportation 


http://www2.doLstate.fl.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPItemRepLASPX?RF._. 1211812012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 36 of 75

http://www2.doLstate.fl.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPItemRepLASPX?RF
mailto:l~8.Sallba@dat


FlDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 AD 


(Updated: 1V18f2012'()1 :38:11) 


District 06 - Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 428212-1 


Display current records In a Report Style 


Transportation System: INTRASTATE INTERSTATE 
Description: 1-75 (Sr 93) From Hemando County To Sr 44 
Type of Work : ITS COMMUNICATION SYSTEM 
Item Number: 428212-1 

Fiscal Year:1 
Highways/Design Build 

Amount:1 
Highways/Construction Support 

Amount:1 

Item Total:1 

Project Summary 

Project Detail 
20131 20141 

1 $1,472,6351 

1 $172,0991 

1 $1,644,7341 

2015f 

1 

1 

1 

District 05 - Sumter County 

View Scheduled Activities 
SIS 

length: 23.000 

2015f 2017 

1 

1 

1 

Acc.eSSlblhty I Ar.rnrwn1S I Fregur-nlly A!:k.ed 0005110n$ 1 Governor's Olnct I pm£) POlICY I Statement or AgeflCY 

Note: rnformaUon on th is web page may, at Umes, be temporarily unavailable due 10 scheduled mainlenance , If you receive 8n error message, please Iry again at a later point 

in time. II you continue 10 experience problems. please contact our office using Ihe contact information below. 

Thls site Is maintained by the Florida Department of Transportation Office of Wof'1( Program and Budget. 

605 Suwannee Street, MS 21, Tallahassee. Florida 32399, 

For additional information please e-mail quesltons or comments to: 

(lisa Saliba: U"JfI Satltm@t191 Sfal!) nu!l or ca" 650-414-4622) 

View Contact InformatIOn for Office of Work Program and Budget 
Application Home: vro~ Proarnm 


Office Home: QfflCe 9' VIklrk Pronmm and Budgel 


FlofJda DeGAI1meni of Trnn:!uon8lion HQm6 


~ 
Copyright IC> 1996-2012 


Florida Department of Transponalion 


http://www2.dot.state.fl.us/frnsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPItemRept.ASPX?RF ... 12118/2012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 37 of 75

http://www2.dot.state.fl.us/frnsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPItemRept.ASPX?RF


FIDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of TransportatioD 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013·2017 AD 

(Updated: 12/18/2012~1:38:111 

District 06 - Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 411257-4 


Display current records in a Report Style 


Project Summary 
Transportation System: NON-INTRASTATE STATE HIGHWAY 
Description: Sr 35 (Us 301) From N Of Cr 204 To Marion Co Line 
Type of Work: ADD LANES & RECONSTRUCT 
Item Number: 411257-4 

Construction Contract Information 
Notice to Work Present 
Proceed Begun Contract 

Date Date Days 
09/26/2009 09/28/2009 407 

Vendor Name: UTILITY SYSTEMS CONSTRUCTION, I 

Project Detail 
Fiscal Year:1 20131 20141 

Highways/Administration 

Amount:1 $1,361,9931 1 
Highways/Construction Support 

Amount:1 $1,3791 1 

Item Total:1 $1,363,3721 1 

Contract 
Days 
Used 
407 

20151' 

-r 
T 

1 

District 05 - Sumter County 

View Scheduled Activities 

Length: 1.505 

- ' ." 

Percent 
Days 
Used 

100.00% 

20161 2017 

1 

I 

1 

Acc.esstbllil 'Y I ~ I Frequently A~kad Ones.1ions IGovemo(.s Orft()! I prwar:y POIlC:y I StalOment of Agnn9' 

Note: Infonnatlon on this web page may. at times. be temporarily unavailable due to scheduled maintenance. If you receive an error message, please try again at a later point 

in time. If you continue to experience prOblems, please contact our office using the contact infonnallon below. 

This site Is maintained by the Florida Department of Transportation Office of '\I\A)f1l Program and Budget, 

605 Suwannee street, MS 21, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, 

For additional information please e-mail questions or comments to: 

(Lisa Saliba: Usa Safit1a@dM prele " us or caU 850-414-4622) 

View Contact Information for Office of Work Program and Budget 
Application Home: Work Prog1'1lTn 


Office Home: Orner Of W'lrJ: Proarnm fIIlt1 BucJgfll 


F&ooo,g [)(Jpar1mflnt of T ranSpgrlatlon Homo 


""'Flood. 
COpyright «:> 1996-2012 


Florida Department of Transportation 


http://www2.dot.state.f1.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPltemRept.ASPX?RF ... 12/18/2012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 38 of 75

http://www2.dot.state.f1.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPltemRept.ASPX?RF


FIDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 AD 

(Updated: 12118/2012-01 :38:11) 

District 06 - Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 411257-3 


Displav current records in a Report Style 

Project Summary 
Transportation System: NON-INTRASTATE STATE HIGHWAY 
Description: Sr 35 (Us 301) N Of Cr 232 To N Of Ne 110 Rd 
Type of Work: ADD LANES & REHABILITATE PVMNT 
Item Number: 411257-3 

District 05 - Sumter County 

'!Liew 12cheduled 8clivlties 

Length: 2.209 

Fiscal Year: 1 
Highways/Preliminary Engineering 

Amount:1 
Highways/Construction Support 

Amount:1 

20131 

$2,2621 

$206,1081 

Project Detail 
20141 

I 

1 

2015f 

I 

1 

2016T 

I 

1 

2017 

Item Total: 1 $208,3701 r I I 

~ I ~ I Fregu.,ntfV A.$ket1 QUAsliort(i I Govamqt's omu I Privacy pOhCY I $Islel'm,"1 Qr Mency 

Note : Information on this web page may. at Urnes, be temporarity unaV8~able due to sdleduled maintenance. If you receive an error message, please try again at a later point 

in time. If you continue to expelience problems, please contact our office using the coOled information bek>w. 

This site is mainta ined by the Florida Department of Transp()(18Uon Office of VVot1< Program and Budget 

60S Suwannee Street. MS 21 . Tallahassee. Florida 32399. 

For addiUonal information please e-mail questions or comments to: 

(Lisa Sa~ba: Gs. Sghbajtpdg! stete" ys or call 850-414-4622) 

View Contact Information for Office of Work Prog ram and Budget 
Appllcltlon Home: Wnn.: Ptogr,.m 


Office Home: Otlke 01 WoOs Pmgram Ond 8udtlp' 

fJoOdIJ OypBrtlT-.ellt of Transportation Hnme 


UyFlo!ida 

Copyright C '99&-2012 


Florida Depanment of Transportation 


http://www2.dotstateJ1.us/fmsupportapps/workprogram/SupportlWPI temReptASPX?RF... 12/18/2012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 39 of 75

http://www2.dotstateJ1.us/fmsupportapps/workprogram/SupportlWPI


FlDOT OWPB - WP Reports; 5 Year Work Program Item Detail Page 1 of 1 

Florida Department Of Transportation 

Office of Work Program and Budget 
Lisa Saliba - Director 

Five Year Work Program 
2013-2017 AD 

IUpdated: 12118/2012-1)1:38:11) 

District 06 - Sumter County 

Category: Highways 


Item Number: 430132-1 


Disolay current records in a Reoort Style 

Project Summary 
Transportation System: NON-INTRASTATE STATE HIGHWAY 
Description: Sr 35 (Us301) From Cr 470 To Sr 44 
Type of Worle PD&E/EMO STUDY 
Item Number: 430132-1 

Project Detail 

District 05 - Sumter County 

~i§l!l Scheduled Activities 

Length: 7.702 

Fiscal Year:1 20131 20141 20161 20161 2017 
HighwaysJPD & E 

Amount:[ $10,0001 $1,000,0001 1 T 

~ I ~ I FreguenUy Asked QuestIOns I GovernPO OffIC' I Poyacy pOhcy 1 StQlemenj of Agency 

Note: Information on th is web page may, at times, be temporarily unavailable due to scheduled maintenance. If you receive 8n error message. please try again at a laler point 

in time. If you continue to expelience problems. please conlad our offICe using the conlad information below. 

ThiS site Is maintained by the Florida Department of Transportation Office of I/IIork Program and Budget. 

605 Suwannee Street. MS 21. Tallahassee, Florida 32399. 

~~ For additional infonnation please e-mail questions or comments 10: 

(Usa Saliba: LrS:LS;!tI,twJ.1'.Wa1 ,.! Rol e U liS or call 8S()'414-4822) C/ 0 
View Contact Information for Office of Work Program and Budget 


AppllcaUon Home: \Nor j:)rogrsm 

Office Home: Offlf.e of yyork prOQmtn anll Budget 


FlorxfB Deoat1rMrrt 91 TrunsportllhOQ HOI!" 


Myf!ot'da 


Copyright Q 19116·2012 


Florida Depar1menl of Transpor1allon 


http://www2.dot.state.fl.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPI temRept.ASPX?RF... 1211812012 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 40 of 75

http://www2.dot.state.fl.us/fmsupportapps/workprogramlSupportlWPI


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case CP 1212-02 

Five Year Schedule of Capital Improvements 

Supporting Documentation 

Sumter County 

 

 

 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 41 of 75



Parks and Recreation Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Gant Lake Park Restroom Improvements No County FBIP $55,000 $55,000
Lake Panasoffkee Recreation Park Walking Trail No County COR $112,000 $112,000
Lake Panasoffkee Recreation Park Skate Park No County COR $115,000 $115,000
Lake Panasoffkee Recreation Park Handball/Racquetball Court No County COR $85,000 $85,000
No Projects No Center Hill, Webster

Solid Waste Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Citizens Drop‐Off Area/Animal Control Joint Use Facility No County COR $1,600,000 $87,000 $1,687,000

Stormwater Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Panacoochee Project No County GF/CDBG/CBIR $438,000 $437,000 $20,000 $895,000
Big Prairie‐Gant Lake No County GF $114,802 $114,802
Jumper Creek No County GF/CBIR $140,000 $347,234 $347,908 $233,412 $1,068,554
CR 647N Drainage Improvements No County GF $300,000 $300,000
Miscellaneous Stormwater Projects No County GF $250,000 $200,000 $130,000 $130,000 $130,000 $840,000
No Projects No Center Hill, Webster

Potable Water Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Central Beef Potable Water Line Extension No Center Hill CDBG $357,357 $357,357

Wastewater Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

No Projects No County, Center Hill, Webster

Transportation Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

C‐468 & Florida Turnpike Interchange No County RIF $1,566,000 $829,000 $5,345,000 $4,000,000 $11,740,000
C‐462 ‐ Widening from US 301 to C‐466A No County RIF $900,000 $5,800,000 $6,700,000
C‐466 ‐Widening from US 301 to CR 209 No County RIF $450,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000 $5,950,000
C‐466A ‐ Phase III from US 301 to Powell Road No County RIF $2,300,000 $2,468,438 $2,200,000 $6,968,438
C‐468 ‐ Widening from SR 44 to Florida Turnpike No County RIF $5,000,000 $4,100,000 $9,100,000
C‐468 ‐ Widening from US 301 to Florida Turnpike No County RIF $20,200,000 $20,200,000
C‐475 ‐ Improve exsiting road from C‐470 to CR 542 No County ST/SCOP $2,200,000 $2,200,000
C‐469 ‐ Improve existing road from C‐48 to SR 50 No County, Center Hill ST/CIGP $2,730,000 $2,730,000
C‐466 ‐ Improve existing road from CR 209 to C‐475 No County CIGP $1,200,000 $28,000 $1,228,000
C‐470 ‐ Improve existing road from I‐75 to CSX ROW No County CTT $211,000 $20,000 $231,000
C‐673 ‐ Improve existing road from US 301 to West 4,500 feet No County CTT/SCRAP $380,000 $25,000 $405,000
US 301 ‐  Langely turn lanes  No County CTT $417,775 $62,000 $479,775
CR 542 W ‐ Resurface from US 301 to C‐475 No County ST/CIGP $388,000 $388,000
C Roads Miscellaneous Resurfacing No County ST $3,054,525 $400,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $6,454,525
CR Roads Miscellaneous Resurfacing No County CTT $145,475 $2,520,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,399,201 $9,064,676
US 301 ‐ Intersection improvement at C‐466 (FDOT Item # 430187‐1) No County FDOT $624,924 $624,924
C‐466 ‐ Resurfacing from US 301 to CR 475 (FDOT Item # 428443‐1) No County FDOT $1,612,903 $1,612,903
SR 48 ‐ Traffic Operations Improvement from 300 feet west of CR 475 to CR 475 (FDOT Item # 240418‐3) No County FDOT $506,547 $506,547
SR 48 ‐ Widening from I‐75 to CR 475 (FDOT Item # 240418‐2) No County FDOT $11,017,594 $4,200,000 $10,087,256 $25,304,850
SR 50 ‐ Resurfacing from Hernando County line to SR 471 (FDOT Item # 424884‐1) No County, Webster FDOT $76,942 $76,942
I‐75 ‐ Resurfacing from Hernando County line to North of Panasoffkee Bridge (FDOT Item # 427375‐1) No County, Center Hill, Webster FDOT $2,493,608 $2,493,608
I‐75 ‐ Right of Way Acquisition from Hernando County line to C‐470 (FDOT Item # 242626‐2) No County, Center Hill, Webster FDOT $8,039,333 $7,724,000 $15,763,333
I‐75 ‐ Right of Way Acquisition from C‐470 to Florida Turnpike (FDOT Item # 242626‐3) No County, Center Hill, Webster FDOT $1,485,541 $1,847,490 $1,567,241 $4,900,272
I‐75 ‐ ITS Communication System Hernando County to SR 44 (FDOT Item # 428212‐1) No County FDOT $1,644,734 $1,644,734
SE 471 ‐ Resurfacing from Polk County to 1.83 miles south of Unnamed Canal (FDOT Item # 430653‐1) No County, Webster FDOT $10,000 $240,000 $2,897,837 $3,147,837
US 301 ‐ PD&E from C‐48 to C‐470 (FDOT Item # 430133‐1) No County FDOT $10,000 $1,000,000 $1,010,000
US 301 ‐ PD&E from C‐470 to SR 44 (FDOT Item # 430‐132‐1) No County FDOT $10,000 $1,000,000 $1,010,000
SR 44 ‐ PD&E from CR 475 to I‐75 (FDOT Item # 430134‐1) No County FDOT $10,000 $860,000 $870,000
US 301‐ Resurfacing from SR 48 to South of SE 13th Avenue (FDOT Item # 424883‐1) No County FDOT $49,880 $49,880
US 301 ‐ Intersection improvement at SR 44 (FDOT Item # 430188‐1) No County FDOT $10,008 $174,030 $65,557 $471,279 $720,874
US 301 ‐ Widening from CR 204 to Marion County line (Final Utility Issues) (FDOT Item # 411257‐4) No County FDOT $1,363,372 $1,363,372
US 301 ‐ Widening from CR 232 to NE 110th Road (Final ROW Issues) (FDOT Item # 411257‐3) No County FDOT $198,370 $198,370

*Key to Funding Sources: Source:  Sumter County Capital Improvement Plan Adopted for FY 2011/12 Annual Budget; Updated with Tentative FY 2012/13 Annual Budget Capital Improvement Plan (9/7/2012)
FBIP ‐ State of Florida Boating Improvement Fund Florida Department of Transportation 5 Year Work Program FY 2013‐2017, dated July 1, 2012 and Updated September 7, 2012
COR ‐ Sumter County Capital Reserves Lake‐Sumter Metropolitan Planning Organization FY 2012/13 ‐ 2016/17 Transportation Improvement Program, dated June 27, 2012 and Amended on August 22, 2012.
GF ‐ Sumter County General Fund
CDBG ‐ Federal Community Development Block Grant
CBIR ‐ Southwet Florida Water Management District Community Budget Issues Request
RIF ‐ Sumter County Road Impact Fee
ST ‐ Sumter County Secondary Trust
SCOP ‐ Florida Department of Transportation Small County Outreach Program
CTT ‐ Sumter County Community Transportation Trust
SCRAP ‐ Florida Department of Transportation Small County Road Assistance Program
FDOT ‐ Florida Department of Transportation
CIGP ‐ County Incentive Grant Program

No Projects

Table 9‐2
Consolidated 5 Year Capital Improvements Plan for Unincorporated County, City of Center Hill, and City of Webster

No Projects

No Projects

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 42 of 75



Parks and Recreation Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Gant Lake Park Restroom Improvements No County FBIP $55,000 $55,000
Lake Panasoffkee Recreation Park Walking Trail No County COR $112,000 $112,000
Lake Panasoffkee Recreation Park Skate Park No County COR $115,000 $115,000
Lake Panasoffkee Recreation Park Handball/Racquetball Court No County COR $85,000 $85,000
No Projects No Center Hill, Webster

Solid Waste Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Citizens Drop‐Off Area/Animal Control Joint Use Facility No County COR $1,600,000 $87,000 $1,687,000

Stormwater Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Panacoochee Project No County GF/CDBG/CBIR $438,000 $437,000 $20,000 $895,000
Big Prairie‐Gant Lake No County GF $114,802 $114,802
Jumper Creek No County GF/CBIR $140,000 $347,234 $347,908 $233,412 $1,068,554
CR 647N Drainage Improvements No County GF $300,000 $300,000
Miscellaneous Stormwater Projects No County GF $250,000 $200,000 $130,000 $130,000 $130,000 $840,000
No Projects No Center Hill, Webster

Potable Water Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

Central Beef Potable Water Line Extension No Center Hill CDBG $357,357 $357,357

Wastewater Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

No Projects No County, Center Hill, Webster

Transportation Project
Required for 
Concurrency County or City Funding Source* FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/2015 FY 2015/16

Prior Years 
Funding

Futue Years 
Funding Total

C‐468 & Florida Turnpike Interchange No County RIF $1,566,000 $829,000 $5,345,000 $4,000,000 $11,740,000
C‐462 ‐ Widening from US 301 to C‐466A No County RIF $900,000 $5,800,000 $6,700,000
C‐466 ‐Widening from US 301 to CR 209 No County RIF $450,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000 $5,950,000
C‐466A ‐ Phase III from US 301 to Powell Road No County RIF $2,300,000 $2,468,438 $2,200,000 $6,968,438
C‐468 ‐ Widening from SR 44 to Florida Turnpike No County RIF $5,000,000 $4,100,000 $9,100,000
C‐468 ‐ Widening from US 301 to Florida Turnpike No County RIF $20,200,000 $20,200,000
C‐475 ‐ Improve exsiting road from C‐470 to CR 542 No County ST/SCOP $2,200,000 $2,200,000
C‐469 ‐ Improve existing road from C‐48 to SR 50 No County, Center Hill ST/CIGP $2,730,000 $2,730,000
C‐466 ‐ Improve existing road from CR 209 to C‐475 No County CIGP $1,200,000 $28,000 $1,228,000
C‐470 ‐ Improve existing road from I‐75 to CSX ROW No County CTT $211,000 $20,000 $231,000
C‐673 ‐ Improve existing road from US 301 to West 4,500 feet No County CTT/SCRAP $380,000 $25,000 $405,000
US 301 ‐  Langely turn lanes  No County CTT $417,775 $62,000 $479,775
CR 542 W ‐ Resurface from US 301 to C‐475 No County ST/CIGP $388,000 $388,000
C Roads Miscellaneous Resurfacing No County ST $3,054,525 $400,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $6,454,525
CR Roads Miscellaneous Resurfacing No County CTT $145,475 $2,520,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,399,201 $9,064,676
US 301 ‐ Intersection improvement at C‐466 (FDOT Item # 430187‐1) No County FDOT $624,924 $624,924
C‐466 ‐ Resurfacing from US 301 to CR 475 (FDOT Item # 428443‐1) No County FDOT $1,612,903 $1,612,903
SR 48 ‐ Traffic Operations Improvement from 300 feet west of CR 475 to CR 475 (FDOT Item # 240418‐3 No County FDOT $506,547 $506,547
SR 48 ‐ Widening from I‐75 to CR 475 (FDOT Item # 240418‐2) No County FDOT $11,017,594 $4,200,000 $10,087,256 $25,304,850
SR 50 ‐ Resurfacing from Hernando County line to SR 471 (FDOT Item # 424884‐1) No County, Webster FDOT $76,942 $76,942
I‐75 ‐ Resurfacing from Hernando County line to North of Panasoffkee Bridge (FDOT Item # 427375‐1) No County, Center Hill, Webster FDOT $2,493,608 $2,493,608
I‐75 ‐ Right of Way Acquisition from Hernando County line to C‐470 (FDOT Item # 242626‐2) No County, Center Hill, Webster FDOT $8,039,333 $7,724,000 $15,763,333
I‐75 ‐ Right of Way Acquisition from C‐470 to Florida Turnpike (FDOT Item # 242626‐3) No County, Center Hill, Webster FDOT $1,485,541 $1,847,490 $1,567,241 $4,900,272
I‐75 ‐ ITS Communication System Hernando County to SR 44 (FDOT Item # 428212‐1) No County FDOT $1,644,734 $1,644,734
SE 471 ‐ Resurfacing from Polk County to 1.83 miles south of Unnamed Canal (FDOT Item # 430653‐1) No County, Webster FDOT $10,000 $240,000 $2,897,837 $3,147,837
US 301 ‐ PD&E from C‐48 to C‐470 (FDOT Item # 430133‐1) No County FDOT $10,000 $1,000,000 $1,010,000
US 301 ‐ PD&E from C‐470 to SR 44 (FDOT Item # 430‐132‐1) No County FDOT $10,000 $1,000,000 $1,010,000
SR 44 ‐ PD&E from CR 475 to I‐75 (FDOT Item # 430134‐1) No County FDOT $10,000 $860,000 $870,000
US 301‐ Resurfacing from SR 48 to South of SE 13th Avenue (FDOT Item # 424883‐1) No County FDOT $49,880 $49,880
US 301 ‐ Intersection improvement at SR 44 (FDOT Item # 430188‐1) No County FDOT $10,008 $174,030 $65,557 $471,279 $720,874
US 301 ‐ Widening from CR 204 to Marion County line (Final Utility Issues) (FDOT Item # 411257‐4) No County FDOT $1,363,372 $1,363,372
US 301 ‐ Widening from CR 232 to NE 110th Road (Final ROW Issues) (FDOT Item # 411257‐3) No County FDOT $198,370 $198,370

*Key to Funding Sources: Source:  Sumter County Capital Improvement Plan Adopted for FY 2011/12 Annual Budget; Updated with Tentative FY 2012/13 Annual Budget Capital Improvement Plan (9/7/2012)
FBIP ‐ State of Florida Boating Improvement Fund Florida Department of Transportation 5 Year Work Program FY 2013‐2017, dated July 1, 2012 and Updated September 7, 2012
COR ‐ Sumter County Capital Reserves Lake‐Sumter Metropolitan Planning Organization FY 2012/13 ‐ 2016/17 Transportation Improvement Program, dated June 27, 2012 and Amended on August 22, 2012.
GF ‐ Sumter County General Fund
CDBG ‐ Federal Community Development Block Grant
CBIR ‐ Southwet Florida Water Management District Community Budget Issues Request
RIF ‐ Sumter County Road Impact Fee
ST ‐ Sumter County Secondary Trust
SCOP ‐ Florida Department of Transportation Small County Outreach Program
CTT ‐ Sumter County Community Transportation Trust
SCRAP ‐ Florida Department of Transportation Small County Road Assistance Program
FDOT ‐ Florida Department of Transportation
CIGP ‐ County Incentive Grant Program

No Projects

Table 9‐4
Consolidated 5 Year Capital Improvements Plan for Unincorporated County, City of Center Hill, and City of Webster

No Projects

No Projects

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 43 of 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case CP 1212-02 

Five Year Schedule of Capital Improvements 

Supporting Documentation 

Water / Wastewater 

 

 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 44 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 45 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 46 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 47 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 48 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 49 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 50 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 51 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 52 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 53 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 54 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 55 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 56 of 75



3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 57 of 75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case CP 1212-02 

Five Year Schedule of Capital Improvements 

Supporting Documentation 

School Board Five Year Work Plan 

 

 

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 58 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 1 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

DISTRICT POINT-OF-CONTACT PERSON

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT

E-MAIL ADDRESS

PHONE NUMBER

JOB TITLE

Work Plan Submittal Date

Fiscal Year Range

District SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Date of School Board Adoption

By submitting this electronic document, we certify that all information provided in this 5-year district facilities work program is accurate, all capital outlay resources 
are fully reported, and the expenditures planned represent a complete and balanced capital outlay plan for the district. The district Superintendent of Schools, 
Chief Financial Officer, and the School Board have approved the information contained in this 5-year district facilities work program; they certify to the Department 
of Education, Office of Educational Facilities, that the information contained herein is correct and accurate; they also certify that the plan has been developed in 
coordination with the general purpose local governments as required by §1013.35(2) F.S. We understand that any information contained in this 5-year district 
facilities work program is subject to audit by the Auditor General of the State of Florida.

CERTIFICATION

The 5-Year District Facilities Work Program is a very important document. The Department of Education, Legislature, Governor's Office, Division of Community
Planning (growth management), local governments, and others use the work program information for various needs including funding, planning, and as the
authoritative source for school facilities related information.

The district's facilities work program must be a complete, balanced capital outlay plan that is financially feasible. The first year of the work program is the districts
capital outlay budget. To determine if the work program is balanced and financially feasible, the "Net Available Revenue" minus the "Funded Projects Costs"
should sum to zero for "Remaining Funds".

If the "Remaining Funds" balance is zero, then the plan is both balanced and financially feasible.
If the "Remaining Funds" balance is negative, then the plan is neither balanced nor feasible.
If the "Remaining Funds" balance is greater than zero, the plan may be feasible, but it is not balanced.

INTRODUCTION

Total Project Costs

Total Revenues

$1,732,499 $1,736,598 $1,096,676 $2,121,324 $4,170,619 $10,857,716Difference (Remaining Funds)

2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 Five Year Total

$6,185,548 $3,436,598 $4,296,676 $3,321,324 $4,370,619 $21,610,765

Summary of revenue/expenditures available for new construction and remodeling projects only.

$4,453,049 $1,700,000 $3,200,000 $1,200,000 $200,000 $10,753,049

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 59 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 2 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Fire Alarm $89,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $129,000

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Telephone/Intercom System $70,000 $250,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $410,000

Electrical $109,216 $100,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $359,216

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Flooring $144,217 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $544,217

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Roofing $206,480 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,206,480

Locations: No Locations for this expenditure.

HVAC $235,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $1,035,000

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, 
WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Fencing $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $75,000

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Parking $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Safety to Life $22,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $82,000

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Item 2012 - 2013 
Actual Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

Expenditure for Maintenance, Repair and Renovation from 
1.50-Mills and PECO
Annually, prior to the adoption of the district school budget, each school board must prepare a tentative district facilities work program that includes a schedule of 
major repair and renovation projects necessary to maintain the educational and ancillary facilities of the district.

Expenditures

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 60 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 3 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Maintenance/Repair $806,241 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $3,206,241

Locations: ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY, 
NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Closed Circuit Television $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Locations: No Locations for this expenditure.

Paint $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 $100,000

Sub Total: $1,717,154 $1,560,000 $1,290,000 $1,290,000 $1,290,000 $7,147,154

Local 1.50 Mill Expenditure For Maintenance, Repair and Renovation

Anticipated expenditures expected from local funding sources over the years covered by the current work plan.

PECO Maintenance Expenditures $0 $0 $206,809 $242,425 $267,687 $716,921

1.50 Mill Sub Total: $1,928,654 $1,745,000 $1,358,191 $1,232,575 $1,207,313 $7,471,733

Locations ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY, NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR 
HIGH, SOUTH TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, 
WEBSTER ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Locations ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY, NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR 
HIGH, SOUTH TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, 
WEBSTER ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

School Based Maintenance (603) $106,500 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $506,500

Security Systems (8175) $40,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $160,000

Locations ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY, NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR 
HIGH, SOUTH TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, 
WEBSTER ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Covered Walkways (936) $40,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $160,000

ADA Corrections  (968) $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $75,000

Locations ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX, BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY, DISTRICT MAINTENANCE COMPLEX, LAKE PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY, NORTH SUMTER PRIMARY, NORTH TRANSPORTATION AREA, SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR 
HIGH, SOUTH TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT, SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, 
WEBSTER ELEMENTARY, WEST STREET, WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Locations SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE, SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH, SUMTER PROFESSIONAL CENTER, WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH

Gym Floors (943) $10,000 $10,000 $100,000 $10,000 $10,000 $140,000

Other Items 2012 - 2013 
Actual Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

Total: $1,928,654 $1,745,000 $1,565,000 $1,475,000 $1,475,000 $8,188,654

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 61 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 4 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Land (8155) $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $250,000

Enterprise Software (908) $422,945 $422,945 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $1,445,890

School Furniture (971) $88,000 $88,000 $88,000 $88,000 $88,000 $440,000

Playground Equipment (932) $50,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $50,000 $350,000

District wide sewer connections $68,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $98,000

Master Planning (8124) $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $50,000

Technology Initiative (978) $402,200 $402,200 $450,000 $450,000 $450,000 $2,154,400

District Wide Renovations (8987) $125,000 $125,000 $225,000 $225,000 $225,000 $925,000

Charter School lease  (308) $1,920,677 $1,995,677 $2,070,677 $2,203,677 $2,318,677 $10,509,385

Technology Equipment (970) $109,268 $109,268 $109,268 $109,268 $109,268 $546,340

Paving $116,446 $0 $0 $0 $0 $116,446

Charter Schools Capital Outlay (2001) $898,850 $898,850 $898,850 $898,850 $898,850 $4,494,250

Copier Leases (968) $219,000 $219,000 $219,000 $219,000 $219,000 $1,095,000

Maintenance Budget Inventory (905) $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $250,000

District Wide Labors (904) $66,550 $66,550 $66,550 $66,550 $66,550 $332,750

School Based Equipment (1120) $79,430 $79,430 $79,430 $79,430 $79,430 $397,150

Other Vehicle Purchases $46,255 $60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $286,255

Capital Outlay Equipment $155,700 $155,700 $155,700 $155,700 $155,700 $778,500

Rent/Lease Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

School Bus Purchases $315,000 $300,000 $300,000 $700,000 $600,000 $2,215,000

Track Resurfacing $240,000 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $340,000

Remaining Maint and Repair from 1.5 Mills $1,928,654 $1,745,000 $1,358,191 $1,232,575 $1,207,313 $7,471,733

Maintenance/Repair Salaries $1,038,917 $1,064,889 $1,092,176 $1,119,480 $1,147,467 $5,462,929

COP Debt Service $2,337,489 $2,337,489 $2,337,489 $2,337,489 $2,337,489 $11,687,445

Premiums for Property Casualty Insurance - 1011.71 
(4a,b)

$320,000 $330,000 $340,000 $350,000 $360,000 $1,700,000

Qualified School Construction Bonds (QSCB) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Special Facilities Construction Account $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Rent/Lease Relocatables $80,200 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $180,200

Environmental Problems $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

s.1011.14 Debt Service $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Local Expenditure Totals: $11,138,581 $10,734,998 $10,285,331 $10,710,019 $10,707,744 $53,576,673

Item 2012 - 2013 
Actual Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

Revenue

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 62 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 5 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

(3) Full value of the 1.50-Mill 
discretionary capital outlay per 
s.1011.71

$13,005,888 $13,355,809 $13,809,698 $13,927,149 $13,960,075 $68,058,619

(4) Value of the portion of the 1.50
-Mill ACTUALLY levied

370 $11,147,904 $11,447,836 $11,836,884 $11,937,557 $11,965,778 $58,335,959

(5) Difference of lines (3) and (4) $1,857,984 $1,907,973 $1,972,814 $1,989,592 $1,994,297 $9,722,660

(2) The Millege projected for 
discretionary capital outlay per 
s.1011.71

1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

(1) Non-exempt property 
assessed valuation

$7,741,599,989 $7,949,886,446 $8,220,058,566 $8,289,969,889 $8,309,568,173 $40,511,083,063

Item Fund 2012 - 2013 
Actual Value

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

PECO Maintenance Expenditures $0 $0 $206,809 $242,425 $267,687 $716,921

PECO New Construction 340 $0 $0 $17,264 $5,849 $0 $23,113

$0 $0 $224,073 $248,274 $267,687 $740,034

Item Fund 2012 - 2013 
Actual Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

CO & DS Interest on 
Undistributed CO

360 $2,907 $2,907 $2,907 $2,907 $2,907 $14,535

CO & DS Cash Flow-through 
Distributed

360 $89,504 $89,504 $89,504 $89,504 $89,504 $447,520

$92,411 $92,411 $92,411 $92,411 $92,411 $462,055

Item Fund 2012 - 2013 
Actual Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

1.50 Mill Revenue Source

PECO Revenue Source

CO & DS Revenue Source

Nothing reported for this section.

Fair Share Revenue Source

Schedule of Estimated Capital Outlay Revenue from each currently approved source which is estimated to be available for expenditures on the projects included 
in the tentative district facilities work program. All amounts are NET after considering carryover balances, interest earned, new COP's, 1011.14 and 1011.15 
loans, etc. Districts cannot use 1.5-Mill funds for salaries except for those explicitly associated with maintenance/repair projects. (1011.71 (5), F.S.)

The figure in the row designated "PECO Maintenance" will be subtracted from funds available for new construction because PECO maintenance dollars cannot 
be used for new construction.

Revenue from Capital Outlay and Debt Service funds.

All legally binding commitments for proportionate fair-share mitigation for impacts on public school facilities must be included in the 5-year district work program.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 63 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 6 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

No

Sales Surtax Referendum

Additional Revenue Source

Private donations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Grants from local governments or not-for-
profit organizations

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Interest, Including Profit On Investment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proportionate share mitigation (actual 
cash revenue only, not in kind donations)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Impact fees received $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Special Facilities Construction Account $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue from Bonds pledging proceeds 
from 1 cent or 1/2 cent Sales Surtax

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Fund Balance Carried Forward $5,184,964 $1,732,499 $1,736,598 $1,096,676 $2,121,324 $11,872,061

General Capital Outlay Obligated Fund 
Balance Carried Forward From Total 
Fund Balance Carried Forward

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

District Equity Recognition $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proceeds from Special Act Bonds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Revenue from CO & DS Bond 
Sale

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proceeds from Voted Capital 
Improvements millage

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal Grants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proceeds from a s.1011.14/15 F.S. Loans $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

District Bonds - Voted local bond 
referendum proceeds per s.9, Art VII 
State Constitution

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proceeds from Certificates of 
Participation (COP's) Sale

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Classrooms First Bond proceeds amount 
authorized in FY 1997-98

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Classrooms for Kids $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other Revenue for Other Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proceeds from 1/2 cent sales surtax 
authorized by school board

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Proceeds from local governmental 
infrastructure sales surtax

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Item 2012 - 2013 
Actual Value

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total

Specific information about any referendum for a 1-cent or ½-cent surtax referendum during the previous year.

Any additional revenue sources

Did the school district hold a surtax referendum during the past fiscal year 2011 - 2012?

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 64 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 7 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Charter Peco $898,850 $898,850 $898,850 $898,850 $898,850 $4,494,250

Capital Outlay Projects Funds Balance 
Carried Forward From Total Fund 
Balance Carried Forward

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

One Cent - 1/2 Cent Sales Surtax Debt 
Service From Total Fund Balance Carried 
Forward

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $6,083,814 $2,631,349 $2,635,448 $1,995,526 $3,020,174 $16,366,311

PECO Maintenance Revenue $0 $0 $206,809 $242,425 $267,687 $716,921

Local 1.5 Mill Discretionary Capital Outlay 
Revenue

$11,147,904 $11,447,836 $11,836,884 $11,937,557 $11,965,778 $58,335,959

PECO and 1.5 Mill Maint and Other 1.5 
Mill Expenditures

($11,138,581) ($10,734,998) ($10,285,331) ($10,710,019) ($10,707,744) ($53,576,673)

Available 1.50 Mill for New 
Construction

$9,323 $712,838 $1,551,553 $1,227,538 $1,258,034 $4,759,286

Item Name 2012 - 2013 
Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Five Year Total

Other/Additional Revenue $6,083,814 $2,631,349 $2,635,448 $1,995,526 $3,020,174 $16,366,311

CO & DS Revenue $92,411 $92,411 $92,411 $92,411 $92,411 $462,055

PECO New Construction Revenue $0 $0 $17,264 $5,849 $0 $23,113

Total Additional Revenue $6,176,225 $2,723,760 $2,745,123 $2,093,786 $3,112,585 $16,851,479

Item Name 2012 - 2013 
Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Five Year Total

Total Revenue Summary

$6,185,548Total Available Revenue $3,436,598 $4,296,676 $3,321,324 $4,370,619 $21,610,765

Student Stations: 0 0 80 0 0 80

Total Classrooms: 0 0 6 0 0 6

Classroom Building LAKE 
PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY

Planned 
Cost:

$0 $0 $1,800,000 $0 $0 $1,800,000 Yes

Project Description Location 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 Total Funded

Capacity Project Schedules

A schedule of capital outlay projects necessary to ensure the availability of satisfactory classrooms for the projected student enrollment in K-12 programs.

Project Schedules

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 65 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 8 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Classroom Building WILDWOOD 
MIDDLE/HIGH

Planned 
Cost:

$1,742,891 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,742,891 Yes

Gross Sq Ft: 4,000 0 0 0 0 4,000

Total Classrooms: 3 0 0 0 0 3

Gross Sq Ft: 12,641 0 0 0 0 12,641

Total Classrooms: 8 0 0 0 0 8

Student Stations: 176 0 0 0 0 176

Student Stations: 75 0 0 0 0 75

Student Stations: 0 75 0 0 0 75

Remodel Building 
09/004 & 10/004

WILDWOOD 
MIDDLE/HIGH

Planned 
Cost:

$0 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000 Yes

Gross Sq Ft: 0 0 11,000 0 0 11,000

Remodel Building 
09/004 & 10/004

SOUTH SUMTER 
SENIOR HIGH

Planned 
Cost:

$600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000 Yes

Gross Sq Ft: 0 4,044 0 0 0 4,044

Total Classrooms: 0 3 0 0 0 3

Total Classrooms: 11 3 6 0 0 20

Gross Sq Ft: 16,641 4,044 11,000 0 0 31,685

Planned Cost: $2,342,891 $400,000 $1,800,000 $0 $0 $4,542,891

Student Stations: 251 75 80 0 0 406

Bleachers SOUTH SUMTER 
SENIOR HIGH

$0 $0 $300,000 $0 $0 $300,000 Yes

Generator ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMPLEX

$0 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 Yes

Cafeteria Addition WILDWOOD 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $1,100,000 $0 $0 $1,100,000 Yes

Relocate Softball Complex SOUTH SUMTER 
SENIOR HIGH

$0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 Yes

Expand Building and Bus 
Parking

SOUTH 
TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT

$0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 Yes

Paved Parking WILDWOOD 
MIDDLE/HIGH

$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 Yes

Project Description Location 2012 - 2013 
Actual Budget

2013 - 2014 
Projected

2014 - 2015 
Projected

2015 - 2016 
Projected

2016 - 2017 
Projected

Total Funded

Other Project Schedules

Major renovations, remodeling, and additions of capital outlay projects that do not add capacity to schools.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 66 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 9 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Gym Expansion/Weight Room SOUTH SUMTER 
SENIOR HIGH

$1,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000 Yes

Paved parking BUSHNELL 
ELEMENTARY

$100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 Yes

Paved parking LAKE PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY

$200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000 Yes

Auxiliary Addition WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY

$610,158 $0 $0 $0 $0 $610,158 Yes

Sewer Connections SUMTER ADULT 
EDUCATION CENTER

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Yes

Gym Expansion/Weight Room WILDWOOD 
MIDDLE/HIGH

$0 $1,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000 Yes

$2,110,158 $1,300,000 $1,400,000 $1,200,000 $200,000 $6,210,158

Nothing reported for this section.

Additional Project Schedules

Nothing reported for this section.

Any projects that are not identified in the last approved educational plant survey.

Non Funded Growth Management Project Schedules

Schedule indicating which projects, due to planned development, that CANNOT be funded from current revenues projected over the next five years.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 67 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 10 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

SOUTH SUMTER 
SENIOR HIGH

1,333 1,199 1,044 54 19 87.00 % 125 5 856 65.00 % 15

WEST STREET 80 80 33 8 4 41.00 % 0 0 0 0.00 % 0

SUMTER ADULT 
EDUCATION CENTER

83 124 35 4 9 29.00 % 0 0 0 0.00 % 0

LAKE PANASOFFKEE 
ELEMENTARY

570 570 477 29 16 84.00 % 80 6 398 61.00 % 11

WILDWOOD 
ELEMENTARY

926 926 745 47 16 80.00 % 0 0 695 75.00 % 15

BUSHNELL 
ELEMENTARY

848 848 713 47 15 84.00 % 0 0 613 72.00 % 13

WILDWOOD 
MIDDLE/HIGH

1,109 998 582 47 12 58.00 % 75 4 611 57.00 % 12

WEBSTER 
ELEMENTARY

803 803 656 43 15 82.00 % 0 0 559 70.00 % 13

SOUTH SUMTER 
MIDDLE

1,331 1,197 830 56 15 69.00 % 0 0 789 66.00 % 14

7,083 6,745 5,114 335 15 75.82 % 280 15 4,521 64.36 % 13

Location 2012 - 
2013 Satis. 

Stu. Sta.

Actual 
2012 - 

2013 FISH 
Capacity

Actual 
2011 - 
2012 

COFTE

# Class 
Rooms

Actual 
Average 
2012 - 

2013 Class 
Size

Actual 
2012 - 
2013 

Utilization

New 
Stu. 

Capacity

New 
Rooms to 

be 
Added/Re

moved

Projected 
2016 - 
2017 

COFTE

Projected 
2016 - 
2017 

Utilization

Projected 
2016 - 

2017 Class 
Size

The COFTE Projected Total (4,521) for 2016 - 2017 must match the Official Forecasted COFTE Total 
(4,520 ) for 2016 - 2017 before this section can be completed. In the event that the COFTE Projected 
Total does not match the Official forecasted COFTE, then the Balanced Projected COFTE Table 
should be used to balance COFTE.

High (9-12) 1,164

Elementary (PK-3) 1,519

Middle (4-8) 1,838

4,520

Projected COFTE for 2016 - 2017

High (9-12) 0

Elementary (PK-3) 0

Middle (4-8) 0

4,521

Grade Level Type Balanced Projected 
COFTE for 2016 - 2017

Capacity Tracking

Relocatable Replacement

Number of relocatable classrooms clearly identified and scheduled for replacement in the school board adopted financially feasible 5-year district work program.

Tracking

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 68 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 11 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH 7 0 0 0 0 7

LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY 0 0 4 0 0 4

Total Relocatable Replacements: 7 0 4 0 0 11

Location 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 Year 5 Total

Villages of Lake and Sumter 150 PRIVATE 2000 2,584 2,461 5 3,438

150 2,584 2,461 3,438

Location-Type # Relocatable 
units or 

permanent 
classrooms

Owner Year Started or 
Scheduled

Student 
Stations

Students 
Enrolled

Years in 
Contract

Total Charter 
Students 

projected for 
2016 - 2017

Charter Schools Tracking

WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY Educational 1 0 0 0 0 1

Total Educational Classrooms: 1 0 0 0 0 1

School School Type # of Elementary 
K-3 Classrooms

# of Middle 4-8 
Classrooms

# of High 9-12 
Classrooms

# of ESE 
Classrooms

# of Combo 
Classrooms

Total 
Classrooms

Total Co-Teaching Classrooms: 0 0 0 0 0 0

School School Type # of Elementary 
K-3 Classrooms

# of Middle 4-8 
Classrooms

# of High 9-12 
Classrooms

# of ESE 
Classrooms

# of Combo 
Classrooms

Total 
Classrooms

Special Purpose Classrooms Tracking

Necessary offsite infrastructure requirements resulting from expansions or new schools. This section should include infrastructure information 
related to capacity project schedules and other project schedules (Section 4).

None specified

Proposed location of planned facilities, whether those locations are consistent with the comprehensive plans of all affected local governments, and 
recommendations for infrastructure and other improvements to land adjacent to existing facilities. Provisions of 1013.33(12), (13) and (14) and 1013.36 
must be addressed for new facilities planned within the 1st three years of the plan (Section 5).

None specified

Consistent with Comp Plan? Yes

Infrastructure Tracking

Net New Classrooms

Information regarding the use of charter schools.

The number of classrooms that will be used for certain special purposes in the current year, by facility and type of classroom, that the district will, 1), not use for 
educational purposes, and 2), the co-teaching classrooms that are not open plan classrooms and will be used for educational purposes.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 69 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 12 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

Middle (4-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

High (9-12) 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 11

Elementary (PK-3) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 11 0 0 11

List the net new classrooms added in the  2011 - 2012 fiscal year. List the net new classrooms to be added in the 2012 - 2013 fiscal 
year.

"Classrooms" is defined as capacity carrying classrooms that are added to increase 
capacity to enable the district to meet the Class Size Amendment.

Totals for fiscal year 2012 - 2013 should match totals in Section 15A.

Location 2011 - 2012 # 
Permanent

2011 - 2012 # 
Modular

2011 - 2012 # 
Relocatable

2011 - 2012 
Total

2012 - 2013 # 
Permanent

2012 - 2013 # 
Modular

2012 - 2013 # 
Relocatable

2012 - 2013 
Total

SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH 0 0 0 0 0 0

WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH 175 0 0 0 0 35

SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER 48 100 100 100 100 90

LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY 0 54 0 0 0 11

WEST STREET 10 10 10 10 10 10

BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY 0 0 0 0 0 0

WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY 0 90 90 90 90 72

WEBSTER ELEMENTARY 0 0 0 0 0 0

SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE 0 22 22 22 22 18

Site 2012 - 2013 2013 - 2014 2014 - 2015 2015 - 2016 2016 - 2017 5 Year Average

Total number of COFTE students projected by year. 5,039 4,926 4,808 4,639 4,520 4,786

Percent in relocatables by year. 5 % 6 % 5 % 5 % 5 % 5 %

Total students in relocatables by year. 233 276 222 222 222 235

Totals for SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Relocatable Student Stations

WILDWOOD MIDDLE/HIGH 7 175 mobile modular 7 175

BUSHNELL ELEMENTARY 0 0 0 0

Location # of Leased 
Classrooms 2012 - 

2013

FISH Student 
Stations

Owner # of Leased 
Classrooms 2016 - 

2017

FISH Student 
Stations

Leased Facilities Tracking

Exising leased facilities and plans for the acquisition of leased facilities, including the number of classrooms and student stations, as reported in the educational 
plant survey, that are planned in that location at the end of the five year workplan.

Number of students that will be educated in relocatable units, by school, in the current year, and the projected number of students for each of the years in the 
workplan.

The number of classrooms, by grade level and type of construction, that were added during the last fiscal year.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 70 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 13 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

SOUTH SUMTER SENIOR HIGH 0 0 mobile modular 2 50

LAKE PANASOFFKEE ELEMENTARY 0 0 0 0

SUMTER ADULT EDUCATION CENTER 0 0 0 0

WEST STREET 0 0 0 0

SOUTH SUMTER MIDDLE 0 0 0 0

WEBSTER ELEMENTARY 0 0 0 0

WILDWOOD ELEMENTARY 0 0 0 0

7 175 9 225

Nothing reported for this section.

Failed Standard Relocatable Tracking

Relocatable units currently reported by school, from FISH, and the number of relocatable units identified as ‘Failed Standards’.

Block scheduling at South Sumter High

Class Size Reduction Planning

Plans approved by the school board that reduce the need for permanent student stations such as acceptable school capacity levels, redistricting, 
busing, year-round schools, charter schools, magnet schools, public-private partnerships, multitrack scheduling, grade level organization, block 
scheduling, or other alternatives.

Planning

As a result of the merger of North Sumter Primary (0091) and North Sumter Intermediate to create Wildwood Elementary (0102)North Sumter Primary is currently 
not being used as an educational facility but is housing district property. The future depends on the economy and future growth.

School Closure Planning

Plans for the closure of any school, including plans for disposition of the facility or usage of facility space, and anticipated revenues.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 71 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 14 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

No items meet the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Capacity

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of capital outlay projects projected to ensure the availability of satisfactory student stations for the projected 
student enrollment in K - 12 programs for the future 5 years beyond the 5-year district facilities work program.

Proposed Location of Planned New, Remodeled, or New Additions to Facilities in 6 thru 10 out years (Section 28).

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Infrastructure

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Plans for closure of any school, including plans for disposition of the facility or usage of facility space, and anticipated 
revenues in the 6 thru 10 out years (Section 29).

Not Specified

Not Specified

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 72 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 15 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

No items match the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Maintenance

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

District projects and locations regarding the projected need for major renovation, repair, and maintenance projects 
within the district in years 6 - 10 beyond the projects plans detailed in the five years covered by the work plan.

Other - ESE, etc 1,509 204 90.44 44.33 % 0 92 45.10 %

High - District 
Totals

1,408 1,267 1,073.60 84.74 % 0 1,522 120.13 %

Middle - District 
Totals

2,810 2,528 1,461.05 57.79 % 0 1,530 60.52 %

Elementary - 
District Totals

3,211 3,211 2,593.50 80.77 % 0 3,409 106.17 %

8,938 7,210 5,218.59 72.38 % 0 6,553 90.89 %

Grade Level 
Projections

FISH Student 
Stations

Actual FISH 
Capacity

Actual 
COFTE

Actual 
Utilization

Actual new 
Student 

Capacity to be 
added/remove

d

Projected 
COFTE

Projected 
Utilization

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Utilization

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of planned capital outlay projects identifying the standard grade groupings, capacities, and planned utilization 
rates of future educational facilities of the district for both permanent and relocatable facilities.

No comments to report.

Combination schools are included with the middle schools for student stations, capacity, COFTE and utilization 
purposes because these facilities all have a 90% utilization factor. Use this space to explain or define the grade 
groupings for combination schools.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 73 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 16 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

No items match the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Capacity

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of capital outlay projects projected to ensure the availability of satisfactory student stations for the projected 
student enrollment in K - 12 programs for the future 11 - 20 years beyond the 5-year district facilities work program.

Proposed Location of Planned New, Remodeled, or New Additions to Facilities in the 11 through 20 out years (Section 
28).

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Infrastructure

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Plans for closure of any school, including plans for disposition of the facility or usage of facility space, and anticipated 
revenues in the 11 through 20 out years (Section 29).

Not Specified

Not Specified

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 74 of 75



SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 2012 - 2013 Work Plan

Page 17 of 17 9/11/2012 11:30:51 AM

No items match the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Maintenance

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

District projects and locations regarding the projected need for major renovation, repair, and maintenance projects 
within the district in years 11 - 20 beyond the projects plans detailed in the five years covered by the work plan.

Other - ESE, etc 1,509 204 90.44 44.33 % 0 0 0.00 %

High - District 
Totals

1,408 1,267 1,073.60 84.74 % 0 0 0.00 %

Middle - District 
Totals

2,810 2,528 1,461.05 57.79 % 0 0 0.00 %

Elementary - 
District Totals

3,211 3,211 2,593.50 80.77 % 0 0 0.00 %

8,938 7,210 5,218.59 72.38 % 0 0 0.00 %

Grade Level 
Projections

FISH Student 
Stations

Actual FISH 
Capacity

Actual 
COFTE

Actual 
Utilization

Actual new 
Student 

Capacity to be 
added/removed

Projected 
COFTE

Projected 
Utilization

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Utilization

9/11/2012

SUMTER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of planned capital outlay projects identifying the standard grade groupings, capacities, and planned utilization 
rates of future educational facilities of the district for both permanent and relocatable facilities.

No comments to report.

Combination schools are included with the middle schools for student stations, capacity, COFTE and utilization 
purposes because these facilities all have a 90% utilization factor. Use this space to explain or define the grade 
groupings for combination schools.

3. b. 2. AND 3. b. 2. a. 
Page 75 of 75



3. c. 1. a. 
Page 1 of 2



3. c. 1. a. 
Page of 2

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
2

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



3. c. 1. b. 
Page 1 of 1



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R2013-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY 
SURPLUS; DETERMINING THE MANNER OF DISPOSAL OF 
SAID PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Wildwood is the owner of certain property that has been 

seized as evidence by the Wildwood Police Department; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the property can further be described as: 
 
1 Bulova Watch  Silver in color with rhinestones C876961 11 385744  
 
WHEREAS, the Chief of Police has determined that the watch is of no use to the 

City, the property as identified is hereby declared surplus for reasons of disposition.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Wildwood has determined that the 

property identified above is surplus because it is no longer usable or has a benefit  by the 
City; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, THAT: 
 

1. The item identified as property is hereby declared surplus. 
 

2. The item identified as property is to be disposed of by sell/donation/transfer/ 
declared junk to be trashed as determined by the Chief of Police. 

 
3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its final adoption by the City 

Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 

DONE AND RESOLVED, this 14th day of January, 2013, in regular session, by the  
City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 

       CITY COMMISSION, 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
SEAL 
 

              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk  

3. c. 1. c. 
Page 1 of 1



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

H:\Pam\1-AGENDA\EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES - CC\01 - FORM Executive Summary.doc 
 

 
SUBJECT: Request from Bradley Arnold, Sumter Co. Administrator for Appointment of a 

City Representative to the Sumter Co. Tourist Development Council  
REQUESTED ACTION: Appoint a City Representative to the Sumter Co. Tourist 

Development Council 
 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: January 14, 2012 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date:   Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 
 
 

 
HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
12/20/2012 9:35 AM:   Bradley Arnold called to let us know that Commissioner Robby Strickland’s term on the 
Tourist Development Council expired as of November 1, 2012 and requested the City to appoint an elected 
official to serve for the next term.  The term is for four years beginning November 1, 2012 through November 
1, 2016. 
 
It can be Commissioner Strickland again if he wants to remain on the Board or if he is not interested, the 
Commission will need to select a new representative to serve as soon as possible.   
  
The next page from Chapter 125 of the Florida Statutes outlines the requirements and pertinent information 
regarding the appointed position. 

 
P. Law 
Administrative Support Specialist 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. d. 1. 
Page 1 of 2



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

H:\Pam\1-AGENDA\EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES - CC\01 - FORM Executive Summary.doc 
 

 
125.0104  

(4) ORDINANCE LEVY TAX; PROCEDURE.  

 

(e) The governing board of each county which levies and imposes a tourist development 

tax under this section shall appoint an advisory council to be known as the “ (name of 

county) Tourist Development Council.” The council shall be established by ordinance and 

composed of nine members who shall be appointed by the governing board. The chair of the 

governing board of the county or any other member of the governing board as designated 

by the chair shall serve on the council. Two members of the council shall be elected 

municipal officials, at least one of whom shall be from the most populous municipality in the 

county or subcounty special taxing district in which the tax is levied. Six members of the 

council shall be persons who are involved in the tourist industry and who have 

demonstrated an interest in tourist development, of which members, not less than three nor 

more than four shall be owners or operators of motels, hotels, recreational vehicle parks, or 

other tourist accommodations in the county and subject to the tax. All members of the 

council shall be electors of the county. The governing board of the county shall have the 

option of designating the chair of the council or allowing the council to elect a chair. The 

chair shall be appointed or elected annually and may be reelected or reappointed. The 

members of the council shall serve for staggered terms of 4 years. The terms of office of the 

original members shall be prescribed in the resolution required under paragraph (b). The 

council shall meet at least once each quarter and, from time to time, shall make 

recommendations to the county governing board for the effective operation of the special 

projects or for uses of the tourist development tax revenue and perform such other duties 

as may be prescribed by county ordinance or resolution. The council shall continuously 

review expenditures of revenues from the tourist development trust fund and shall receive, 

at least quarterly, expenditure reports from the county governing board or its designee. 

Expenditures which the council believes to be unauthorized shall be reported to the county 

governing board and the Department of Revenue. The governing board and the department 

shall review the findings of the council and take appropriate administrative or judicial action 

to ensure compliance with this section. The changes in the composition of the membership 

of the tourist development council mandated by chapter 86-4, Laws of Florida, and this act 

shall not cause the interruption of the current term of any person who is a member of a 

council on October 1, 1996. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. d. 1. 
Page 2 of 2

plaw
Highlight



Page 1 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

                    
RECORD:  $_____________        
 
Return to:    
 City of Wildwood 
 
 
 
This Instrument Prepared by:  
 Steven H. Gray 
 Gray, Ackerman & Haines, P.A. 
 125 NE First Avenue, Suite 1 
 Ocala, FL  34470 
 
-----------------------------------------------------[SPACE ABOVE THIS  LINE  FOR  RECORDING  DATA]--------------------------------------------- 
  

DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA – WORD FAMILY, LLC] 

 
 

This Developer’s Agreement, effective the   day of     , 2013, is made and 
entered into by and between: 
 

 THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation (“City”); and 
 WORD FAMILY, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“Developer”). 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. Developer Agreements strengthen the public planning process, encourage sound capital 

improvements planning, assist in assuring that there are adequate capital facilities for 
development, and encourage private participation and comprehensive planning. 
 

B. City is a regional water, wastewater, reuse water and municipal services provider. 
 

C. Developer owns in fee simple certain real property in Sumter County, Florida, described on 
attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property”). 
 

D. Developer desires to pro cure services, including, but not limited  to, water, wastewater, reuse 
water and other municipal services, from the City for the P roperty, and City desires to p rovide 
water, wastewater, reuse water and other municipal services to the Property. 
 

E. Developer’s proposed development requires access to water, wastewater, reuse water and other 
municipal services. 
 

F. Developer will construct all utility lines, l ift stations, roadways, sidewalks, signage, open space, 
common areas, entrance monument s, amenities, storm water facilities and other si milar 
improvements within the Property in accordance with City standards. 
 

G. Developer agrees to m aintain all utility lines, lift stations, roadways, sidewalks, signage, open 
space, common areas, entrance monuments, amenities, storm water facilities and other similar 
improvements within the Property in a ccordance to City stand ards until such time as all such 
improvements are conveyed to a Hom eowners Association established by Develope r for the 
perpetual maintenance of such improvements.  
 

H. The parties desire to enter into thi s Agreement confirming their agreement regarding the 
furnishing of municipal services, including but not limited to water, wastewater, reuse water and 
other municipal services for the Property. 

3. e. 1.  
Page 1 of 13



Page 2 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

 
I. This Agreement and all stipulations and covenants made herein are acknowledged to be subject 

to the approval of eve ry County, Regional, State and Federal regulatory agency having 
jurisdiction of the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 

J. City has ap proved this Agreement and has a uthorized the p roper City officia ls to execute  this 
Agreement by motion passed at a regular City Commission meeting on    .  

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual  covenants and undertakings of City and Developer 
and other good and valu able considerations, these par ties covenant and agree with e ach other as 
follows:  
 
1. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  The parties confirm and agree that the above Recitals are 

true and correct, and incorporate their terms and provisions herein for all  purposes. The contents, 
terms and provisions of all Exhibits which are attached to this Agreement and referenced herein are, 
by this reference, incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.  
 

2. Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, in addition to those te rms which are specifically 
defined elsewhere in this Agreement the following terms shall have the following definitions: 
 
2.1. “Agreement” – T his Developer’s Agreement, as the sam e may subsequently amended, 

modified or supplemented pursuant to its terms and provisions.  
 
2.2. “Connection Fee” – Those charges of the City for a cu stomer’s proportionate share of the  

capital costs of the water and wastewater utility plant capacities allocated to a new o r modified 
customer connection, as defined in City Ordinances and Resolutions.  

 
2.3. “County” – Sumter County, Florida, a political subdivision of the State of Florida. 
 
2.4. “Developer” – Word Family, LLC, and its succe ssors, and a ssigns in int erest, and/or title,  

including the Homeowners Association to be created by Develope r to wh ich all common 
improvements, including the utilities i mprovements described in this Agree ment, will b e 
conveyed and under whom all future maintenance responsibilities will fall. 

 
2.5. “Equivalent Residential Unit” – As defined  by City Ordinance, also referred to in th is 

Agreement as “ERU”. The term “Equivalent Residential Connection”, also referred to as “ERC”, 
is synonymous with “ERU”. 
 

2.6. “Homeowners’ Association” – A Florida not-for-profit Corporation organized and formed by 
Developer for the purpose of serving as the Association for the owners of parcels located within 
the Property to own, maintain, and repair or replace, as required, Common Area improvements 
located on the Property, includ ing but not limited to utilities lines, lift stations, roadways,  
sidewalks, signage, open space, entrance monuments, amenities, stormwater facilities, and 
other similar improvements constructed on the Property. It is the intent of Developer to create a 
Homeowners’ Association for such purposes, and to convey to the Homeowners’ Association 
title to the p reviously-described improvements which will be constructed on the Property, at 
which time the Homeowners’ Association will, by execution of an appropriate agreement with 
City, assume the Developer’s responsibilities for maintenance, repair and replacement of such 
improvements which arise under the terms of this Agreement.  

 
2.7. “Party or Parties” – Refers to either Developer or City, or (as applicable) to both Developer 

and City. 
 
2.8. “Point of Connection” – The location within dedicated utility easements where City ownership 

and maintenance of the water, wastewater and reuse water mains ends and private ownership 
and maintenance of said systems begins.  

3. e. 1.  
Page 2 of 13



Page 3 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

 
2.9. “Property” – The real property described on attached Exhibit “A”. 
 
2.10. “Significant Progress” – The Developer will have achiev ed substantial pr ogress under the 

terms of this Agreeme nt when storm water b asins, roadway bases, curbs a nd underground 
utilities have been completed or are under construction pursuant to a valid Permit (or Permits) 
issued by City for such work.  

 
2.11. “Transmission Infrastructure Extension Fee” – Those charges by City for a cu stomer’s 

proportionate share of the capital costs of the water, wastewater and reuse water utility main 
lines and connection lines, as defined by City Ordinances and Resolutions, and is also referred 
to herein as a “TIE Fee” or “TIE Fees”. 

 
2.12. “Water Management District” or “SWFWMD” – The Southwest Florida Water Management 

District, an agency of the State of Florida. 
 

3. Developer’s Obligations. 
 
3.1. TIE Fees, Connection Fees and Capacity. 

 
3.1.1. TIE Fees.  

 
3.1.1.1. The Transmission Infrastructure Extension (TIE) Fee, when paid, purchases a 

hydraulic share in the water, wa stewater and reuse water infrastructure 
extending from the proposed development (the “Property”) back to the nearest 
well facility (f or water) and wastewater  treatment pl an (for wastewater). TIE 
Fees are based on the eq uivalent residential volumes, which are 300 gallo ns 
per day for water consumption, 250 gallons per day for wastewater treatment 
and distance (in feet) b etween the development and the water plant or 
wastewater plant. The standard distance for one (1) TIE is 15,000 feet.  

 
3.1.1.2. The water TIE Fee shall b e calculated using City Ordinances and Resolutions 

in effect at the time Developer executes this Agreement. The calculation for the 
water TIE Fee is shown on attached Exhibit “B”. 

 
3.1.1.3. The wastewater TIE Fe e shall be calculated using City Ordinances and 

Resolutions in effect at the time Dev eloper executes this Ag reement. The 
calculation for the wastewater TIE Fee is shown on attached Exhibit “B”. 

 
3.1.1.4. The reuse water TIE F ee shall be calculated using City O rdinances and 

Resolutions in effect at the time Dev eloper executes this Ag reement. The 
calculation for the wastewater TIE Fee is shown on the attached Exhibit “B”. 

 
3.1.1.5. As of the date of the execution of this Agreement the final design and projected 

costs of water, wastewater, and reuse water infrastructure to be constructed by 
Developer, which will be subject to the water, wastewater and reuse water TIE 
fees described above, have not been finaliz ed. Upon finalization of the design 
of the infrastructure and determination of the cost of the same, Developer and 
City shall enter into a n agreement, which shall be an A ddendum to thi s 
Developer’s Agreement, specifying the amount, date of payment, and (if  
applicable) credits against, the water, waste water, and reuse water TIE Fees 
owed by Developer under this Agreement. 

 
3.1.1.6. Developer acknowledges and agrees that TIE Fees paid are non-refundable 
 

3. e. 1.  
Page 3 of 13



Page 4 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

3.1.1.7. TIE Fees are calculated by the City based on the number of Connection Fees 
approved for a re servation of capa city as indicated on atta ched Exhibit “B”, 
unless Developer elects to re serve a lesser capacity, in whi ch case the TIE  
Fees due upon execution of this Agreement will be reduced accordingly. One 
(1) TIE Fe e is due f or each connection (ERU) reserved. Developer 
acknowledges that no water or wastewater capacity reservation is created, or 
implied, without City receiving payment of the applicable fee s. Reservation of 
water and wastewater capacity is subject to capacity availability. 

 
3.1.1.8. Developer understands that in creases in capacity reserved, or any new 

purchase of capacity reservations, will result in additional TIE Fees being due 
from Developer to City.  
 

3.1.2. Connection Fees and Capacity.  
 

3.1.2.1. The water and wastewater Connection Fees shall be calculated according to 
the rate schedule adopted by City an d in effect a t the time the Develo per 
executes this Agreement. The cal culation for the  Connection Fees to be 
purchased at the time of execution of this Agree ment is included in attached 
Exhibit “B”. Ho wever, the parties agree that Dev eloper is n ot obligated to  
reserve all of the capacity available at this time, if Developer elects to reserve a 
lesser capacity, the calculations in Exhibit “B” shall be revised accordingly. As 
of the date of the execution of this Agreement by the Parties the amount of the  
Connection Fees to be initially paid by Developer has not been determined by 
City and Developer. When the a mount of the Connection Fees to be i nitially 
paid by Developer has been finalized the Developer and City will enter into a 
written agreement, which shall be an a ddendum to this Agreement, specifying 
the amount of Connection Fees to be purchased by Developer, and the date or 
schedule for required payment for the same.  

 
3.1.2.2. Developer must proceed with due diligence toward the use of all Connection 

Fees purchased. 
 
3.1.2.3. Connection Fees are not sold by City on speculation, and may be repurchased 

by the City at the pri ce paid by the Developer if Significant Progress on 
construction of Developer’s project on the Property is not made within twenty 
four (24) months of the date the purchased connection fee becomes available 
to the Developer. The time for Significant Progress may be extended pursuant 
to the provisions of this Agreement concerning “Force Majeure”.  

 
3.1.2.4. The following actions must be completed by Developer prior to the reservation 

of water or wastewater ERU’s: 
 
3.1.2.4.1. Developer must complete and file the City’s Co ncurrency 

Determination and Concurrency Reservation applications. 
3.1.2.4.2. This Developer’s Agreement, and a ll attachments, must be f ully 

executed by Developer and City. 
 

3.1.2.5. As of the date of the execution of th is Agreement the Developer and City have 
not finalized the schedule for Developer’s payment of Connection Fees to be 
purchased by Developer under the terms of this Agreement. It is acknowledged 
by the Pa rties that as a result of anticipated Developer participation in the 
funding and construction of water, wastewater and reuse wate r infrastructure 
construction the schedule for payment of Connection Fees shall be finalized at 
a later date. When such schedule is finalized the Parties will enter into a written 

3. e. 1.  
Page 4 of 13



Page 5 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

agreement regarding th e schedule, which shall be an Ad dendum to thi s 
Agreement. 
 

3.1.2.6. Capacity is reserved for a particular location, and assumes that City will be 
prepared to serve that c apacity according to the agreed-upon availability 
schedule at that location and no other. 
 

3.1.3. Until Developer provides City with full pay ment for al l TIE Fees a nd Connection Fees 
required by Developer, and completes all oth er requirements of this A greement, no 
water, wastewater or reuse water service will be provided to the Property. 
 

3.1.4. City reserves the right to determine the number of ERU’s it will  allow Developer to 
purchase. When the City has determined the number of ERU’s it will allow Developer to 
purchase the Parties will enter into a written agreement confirming the same, which 
agreement shall be an Addendum to the this Agreement.  
 

3.1.5. Developer may not tran sfer any reserved water, wastewater or reuse water capacity 
without written permission from the City. Any such transfer, unless approved by City, 
will void the capacity reservation, the ERU’s will revert back to the City, and Developer 
will forfeit a ny right to an y repayment of the Connection Fees paid for the capacity 
reservation. The City shall not u nreasonably withhold permission for a transfer of 
capacity to a nother property or an other project. As Developer develops the Property 
and sells portions thereof, such sales and transfers to facilitate such sales shall not be 
deemed a transfer prohibited by this Section. 
 

3.1.6. The purchase of ERU’s does not act to set the price for future purchases, but only as to 
purchases specifically set forth in this Agreement. Any future pu rchases not 
contemplated by this Agreement will be at the price set by City at time of payment.  
 

4. Developer’s Responsibility after Co nnection to City’s Water, Wastewater and Re use Water 
Systems. After connection to City’s water, wastewater and reuse water systems: 
 
4.1. Developer shall be responsible for all wastewater lines from the Point of Connection to City’s 

wastewater force main. 
 

4.2. Developer shall be responsible for all water di stribution lines from the Point of Con nection to 
City’s water main. 
 

4.3. Developer shall be  responsible for all reuse water distribution lines from the Point  of 
Connection to City’s reuse water main. 

 
5. Kimley-Horn and Avid Reports, etc. City has obtained from its engineering consultant Kimley-Horn 

and Associates, Inc. (“K H”) a Rep ort regarding a proposed sewer main extension to provide  
wastewater services for the Property, which includes a recommended route and estimated cost for 
the wastewater main.  Developer previously agreed with City that it would reimburse City for the cost 
of the KH Report, a nd agrees to reimburse City for City’s co st of the Report in the a mount of 
$______________, and has done so which is acknowledged by City.  Developer has, independently, 
had its consulting engineers (Avid En gineering, or “Avid”) review th e KH Report, and consider 
alternative design considerations for extension of the wastewater main. Avid has p repared a Report 
for Developer, dated     (the “Avid Report”), and a copy of the  same has been 
provided to City, and City is currently reviewing the Avid Report in conjunction with the KH Report. 
Subsequent to the date of the execution of this Agreement City and Developer will, jointly, agree upon 
the plans for the construction of extensions of City’s water and wastewater transmission systems, and 
reuse water transmission system. City  agrees that it will allow Avid, as De veloper’s Engineering 
Consultants to complete the design and permitting of the selected wastewater main extension, water 
main extension and reuse water ma in extension, at Developer’s cost. City and Developer will enter 

3. e. 1.  
Page 5 of 13



Page 6 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

into a written agreement confirming the selected routes for the utility mains, and all details of plans to 
complete design and permitting (all of which shall be at Developer’s initial cost), which agreement will 
be an Addendum to this Agreement.  
 

6. Extensions - - Water and  Wastewater Mains. It is acknowledged by Developer and City that City 
provision of water and wastewater services for the Proper ty will require extensi ons of the City’s 
current water and wastewater systems. City does not currently have b udgeted funds for the 
construction of the utilities extensions. Upon completion of plans and designs for required extensions 
of water and wastewater mains, and development of a cost estimate for the utilities infrastructure, 
Developer and City will use their be st efforts to finalize an Agreement regarding the funding of the 
required utilities inf rastructure construction. In the event Developer agrees to advan ce funds for 
construction, or pay TIE  Fees or reserve ERU capacities to generate suffic ient funds for the 
construction (or combinations of such actions) it is agreed by the Parties that such advances would 
be made u nder the te rms of a Pionee r Agreement under which Dev eloper would receive 
reimbursements for Developer’s advanced funds upon the connection to and use of any constructed 
water main extension or wastewater main extension by third parties upon payment by the third parties 
to City of TIE Fees or any other Capacity Reservation Fees.  The terms of such a Pioneer Agreement 
would be tho se normally and custom arily used by t he City for si milar cases of privately advanced 
funds for construction of utilities infrastructure.   

 
7. Miscellaneous Terms. 

 
7.1. City’s Land Development Regulations require dual systems for irri gation, Florida Friendly 

landscaping, energy efficient construction, energy efficient a ppliances, and underground 
utilities. These Land Development Regulations will apply to Development of the Property.  
 

7.2. Fire flow vol umes and pressures are limited by City’s potabl e water extension service 
infrastructure. The fi re flow volumes and pressure flow which will be provided by City are 
appropriate for sin gle family homes. Requirements for enh anced fire flow volumes, a nd 
pressures, over extended time p eriods may require Developer construct a storage tank with 
pressure pumps, or oth erwise supplement existing potable water delivery, at Developer’ s 
expense. City shall not redu ce its fire flow volu mes and pressures after Developer has 
commenced development of the Property. 
 

7.3. Developer, any Homeowners Association created for the P roperty, and indi vidual property 
owners of portions of the Property must comply with the City of Wildwood Residential Design 
Standards and any other applicable Ordinances or Land Development Regulations. 
 

7.4. Developer will be responsible for costs associated with the recording of this do cument in the 
Sumter County Public Records.  
 

7.5. All utility easements to be provided by Developer to City must be twenty feet (20’) in width a nd 
reflected and noted on the approved site plans and plats as submitted by the Developer. If the 
Developer needs to relocate any existing utility main lines within the existing easement for any 
reason, the design and realignment must be approved by the City, and Developer must provide 
any additional easement required, which must be executed a nd recorded. All co sts of the 
relocated utility lines will be the responsibility of  the Developer including, but  not limited to,  
design, review, permitting, materials, labor and equipment. A complete set of as-built drawings 
for the relo cated utility m ains must be provided to  the City prior to the issua nce of the final 
Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

8. General Provisions. 
 

8.1. Notices. With respect to any Notices required to be  given under the terms of this Agreeme nt, 
such Notices shall be deemed given and effective:  

3. e. 1.  
Page 6 of 13



Page 7 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

 
8.1.1. Three (3) calendar days a fter the date they are deposited in the United States Mail, 

postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the Pa rties at the fol lowing 
respective addresses or such oth er address as provided by a Party pursuant  to this 
Section; or 

 
8.1.2. The date of actual d elivery by hand or by  a recog nized national overnight d elivery 

service such as Federal Express, UPS, or Express Mail, addressed to the parties at the 
following respective addresses or such other address as provided by a party p ursuant 
to this Section:  

 
AS TO THE CITY: City of Wildwood 
 Attn:_______________ 
 ___________________ 
 ___________________  

  
With Copy To:  City of Wildwood  

      Attn: Bruce Phillips, P.E., Utilities Director 
      100 N. Main Street 
      Wild wood, FL 34785   
   

AS TO DEVELOPER:  Word Property, LLC 
   Attn: Mr. Tom Word 
   3324 W. University Avenue, #317 
   Gaine sville, FL 32607  

       
With Copy To: Steven H. Gray, Esq. 

      Gray, Ackerman & Haines, P.A. 
      125 NE 1st Avenue, Suite 1 
      Ocal a, FL 34470 
      (352 ) 732-8121 
  

Any party may modify the address for notices set forth above by providing notice of the 
change of a ddress to all  parties to th is Agreement, which notice is to be provided in 
accordance with the requirements of this Section. 

 
8.2. Negation of Partnership. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed 

to create a partnership by or among Developer or City in th eir respective businesses or 
otherwise, nor shall it cau se them to b e considered joint venture rs or members of a ny joint 
enterprises. Each Party shall be considered a separate Party, no Party shall have the right to 
act as an agent for another Party and no Party shall the right to act as an agent for another 
Party unless expressly authorized to do so in this Agreement.   

 
8.3. Not a Public Dedication. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to be a gif t or dedication 

of any p ortion of th e Property to th e general public, or for any p ublic use or purpose 
whatsoever. Any portion of the Property which may under the te rms of this Agree ment later 
may be desi gnated for p ublic use or purposes shall be conve yed by Developer to City, a s 
applicable. Except as herein specifically provided no right, privileges of immunities of any Party 
hereto shall inure to the benefit of any third party, nor shall any third party be deemed to be a  
beneficiary of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement.   

 

3. e. 1.  
Page 7 of 13



Page 8 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

8.4. Default Provisions.  
 

8.4.1. The terms of this Agreement shall not entitle any Party to cancel, rescind, or otherwise 
terminate this Agreement. However, such limitations shall not affect in any manner any 
other rights or remedies which a Party may have hereund er or under applicable law by 
reason of any such breach.  
 

8.4.2. All easements, rights and covenants contained herein shall be enforceable by suit for 
specific performance and mandatory injunctive relief, in addition to any other remedy 
provided by law or equity.   

 
8.4.3. No Party shall be entitled to pu rsue any action for specific performance, injunctive 

relief, or any other available remedy arising out of a default under this Agreement until 
the non-defaulting Party has provided to th e Party alleged to be in default a written 
Default Notice (with, if applicable, a c opy to any other Party to thi s Agreement) 
specifying the specific nature of the default,  and the alleged defaulting Party has failed 
to cure the default within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Default Notice.  In 
the event the cure of a default reasonably requires greater than the thirty (30) day time 
period specified, the gra ce period granted herein shall, if the defaulting Party has 
initiated cure of the defau lt within the thir ty (30) day time period and is continuing to 
pursue completion of the cure with due diligence, extend the reasonable time period 
required for the cure of the default. 

 
8.4.4. In the event of a material  default by Develope r with res pect to its  obligations to City 

under this A greement, and failure of Developer to cure the def ault within th e grace 
period set forth above, in addition to any other remedies available to them under the 
terms of thi s Agreement City shall be entitled to withhold issuance of additional 
development permits or authorizations until the default has been cured.  If Dev eloper 
has, prior to the occurrence of the def ault, conveyed some or al l of the Prop erty to 
unrelated third parties (such parcel or parcels then becoming a “Third Party Parcel”) 
and the default of Owner is not with respect to, or impact City obligations regarding, a 
Third Party Parcel, the rig ht of City to withhold Permits upon a default by Owner shall 
not extend to City Permits pending or to be issued with respect to a successor owner of 
such Third Party Parcel.   

 
8.5. Estoppel Statements.  

 
8.5.1. Each Party agrees that upon written request from time to time of any other Pa rty it will 

timely issue at no charge to a current or prospective lender  to  such Party, or to  a 
current or prospective purchaser or successor party to such oth er Party, or to another 
governmental entity requesting or requiring the same, an Estoppel Statement stating: 

 
8.5.1.1. Whether the Party to wh om the request has been directed knows of any 

default by any Party under this Agreement, and if there are known defaults, 
specifying the nature thereof. 

 
8.5.1.2. Whether this Agreement has been assigned, modified or amended in any way 

by such Party (and if it has, stating the nature thereof).  
 

3. e. 1.  
Page 8 of 13



Page 9 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

8.5.1.3. That to the best of the requested Party’s knowledge this Agreement, as of the 
Estoppel Statement date, is in full force and effect.   
 

8.5.1.4. That (if known by the req uested Party, if not known  by the requ ested Party 
that Party shall reply only with respect to any monies owed to it) to the best of 
the requested Party’s knowledge there are not any monies currently owed by 
any Party to another Party under the terms of this Agree ment, or if there are 
monies owed, the amount and details of all monies owed. 

 
8.5.1.5. That, as to the Project or as to a specific parcel therein (as applicable, based 

upon the request) there are no moratoriums or suspensions of the ri ght to 
procure Development Orders, Building Permits, or Certificate of Occupancy or 
other development approvals in effe ct as of the date of the Estoppel  
Statement.   

 
Such written statement sh all act as a waiver of any claim by the  Party furnishing it to 
the extent such claim is based on facts contrary to those asserted against a bona fide 
mortgagee or purchaser for value witho ut knowledge of facts to the co ntrary of those 
contained in the Estoppel Certificate who has acted in reasonable reliance upon the 
statement; however, such statement shall in no event suggest the Party furnishing it to 
any liability what soever, notwithstanding the ne gligent or oth er inadvertent failure of 
such Party to disclose correct and/or relevant information.   

 
8.6. Litigation. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall 

be entitled to  recover all reasonable costs incurred with respect to such litigation, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, and including reimbursement for such reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and costs incurred with respect to any bankruptcy, appellate or post-judgment proceeding 
related thereto.  

 
8.7. Binding Effect. The pa rties to this Agreem ent represent to each other that each party fully 

understands the facts surrounding this Agreement and each is signing this Agreement fully and 
voluntarily, intending to be bound by it. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of th e Parties hereto, their respective spouses, heirs, executors, administrators and 
assigns. There are no representations or warranties other than those set forth herein.  

 
8.8. Headings. The headings contained within this Agreement are for identification purposes only, 

and shall not be construed to amend, modify, or alter the terms of the Agreement. 
 
8.9. Severability.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, in the event any provision or section of this 

Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the 
enforceability or the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.  

 
8.10. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All r epresentations and warranties contained 

herein are made in writing by the parties in connection herewith shall survive the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement. 

 
8.11. Successors and Assigns.  

 

3. e. 1.  
Page 9 of 13



Page 10 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

8.11.1. All covenants and agreements in this Agreement made by or on behalf of any Parties 
hereto shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of 
the Parties hereto, whether so expressed or not. 

 
8.11.2. Upon a sale or othe r transfer of a Parcel or a portion thereof, the term s and 

provisions of this Agreement, as applicable, shall remain in full force and effect as to 
the Parcel or a portion of the Parcel. 

 
8.12. Applicable Law. This Agreement is being delivered in the State of Florid a, and sh all be 

construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  The venue for any 
legal proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be Sumter County, Florida.  

 
8.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in several counterparts, each 

of which shall be dee med an ori ginal, and it sh all not be ne cessary in ma king proof of this 
Agreement to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

 
8.14. Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement cannot be changed, modified or released orally, 

but only by a n agreement in writing signed by the parties against whom enforcement of sa id 
change, modification or discharge is sought. 

 
8.15. Gender. As used in this Agreement, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, the 

singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular as the context may 
require. 

 
8.16. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon completion of its execution by all 

Parties, and the recordation of the Agreement in the Public Records of Sumter County, Florida.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Developer’s Agreement on the day and 
year set forth below their respective signatures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEE ATTACHED SIGNATURE PAGES OF  
THE CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 

3. e. 1.  
Page 10 of 13



Page 11 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

 SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA  
TO  

DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA – WORD FAMILY, LLC] 

BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 
_____________________________________ 
                        CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

 
 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, a Florida 
Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
        
Title: __________________________________ 
Date:      _______________________, 2013 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
                        , CITY CLERK 

  

 
 

APPROVED BY THE WILDWOOD CITY COUNCIL ON      , 2013. 

3. e. 1.  
Page 11 of 13



Page 12 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA  
TO  

DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA – WORD FAMILY, LLC] 

BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 
 

 
 

WORD FAMILY, LLC., a Florida Limited Liability 
Company 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
                          , Manager              
Date:   _____________________, 2013 
 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ____________ 
 
 The foregoing DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT was acknowledged before me by    
  as     of WORD FAMILY, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, who is: 
 
 _____ Personally known by me, OR 
 _____ Produced a driver’s license as identification. 
 
 Dated: this _____ day of ________________, 2013. 
 
 
 
                                                           
       Print Name:  _____________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Florida               
       Commi ssion number: ______________ 
       Commi ssion expires:  ______________ 

3. e. 1.  
Page 12 of 13



Page 13 of 13 
I:\Development Services New\Developers Agreements\Trailwinds Village Word Property\Dev  Agt  11-21-12.docx 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 
 

EXHIBIT REFERENCE DESCRIPTION 

A Recital C Legal – Property 

B §3.1.1 Calculation – Water, Wastewater and Reuse TIE Fees 

B §3.1.2 Approved Reservation – Connection Fees 

C §3.1.4 Schedule – Available Capacities  

 
 

3. e. 1.  
Page 13 of 13



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT
1 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 5 Employees 3,005.96$         
2 Brick City Catering Banquet 1,900.00$         
3 Deanna Cox Banquet Supplies 148.24$            
4 Jacky's Market Steaks for Banquet 962.28$            
5 Moore Awards Inc Shadow Box w/Key - R. Allen, Service Award A.Taylor 197.98$            
6 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 7.31$                
7 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 18.72$              
8 Sumter Electric Electric Service - Baker House 52.17$              
9 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 49.54$              
10 Walmart Banquet Supplies 50.51$              
11 Wildwood Ace Hardware Mr. Eraser, Glue 8.47$                
12 Wildwood Community Development 2012 MLK Day Celebration 2,000.00$         

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
13 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 2 Employees 6,101.86$         
14 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 2 Employees 2,600.00$         
15 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,584.39$         
16 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 2 Employees 6,101.86$         
17 Bright House Internet Service 17.50$              
18 Bill Ed Cannon Continuing Education 2012 PDH's Zweig White Series 145.00$            
19 Office Depot Office Supplies 1.88$                
20 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 23.01$              
21 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 60.95$              
22 Sumter Cnty Chamber of Commerce Leadership Enrollment for B. Cannon 500.00$            
23 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 59.93$              

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
24 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 4 Employees 10,206.73$       
25 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 4 Employees 4,300.00$         
26 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 4 Employees 10,206.73$       
27 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 4 Employees 10,206.74$       
28 Action Mobile Industries Rent for Storage Pod 300.14$            
29 Air Mechanical & Service Corp HVAC Improvements App. No.9 21,642.50$       
30 Bright House Internet Service 34.95$              
31 Century Link Telephone Service 51.92$              
32 Citrus Publishing Discover Ad 333.50$            
33 Coy Thomas Electric, Inc Replace Lamps at City Hall, Repair Lights at Annex 725.50$            
34 Federal Express Postage 29.79$              
35 G Neil W-2 Envelopes and 4 Part Forms 165.16$            
36 IMS Computer Software Maintenance 413.00$            
37 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 158.89$            
38 ModSpace Lease Storage Pod 56.97$              
39 Office Depot Office Supplies 80.02$              
40 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 38.14$              
41 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 97.26$              
42 Pitney Bowes Postage Meter Lease 171.26$            
43 Progress Energy Electric Service 190.37$            
44 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 87.00$              
45 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 100.50$            
46 Unifirst Rugs 23.76$              
47 USPS Postage Meter Refill 750.00$            
48 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 50.04$              
49 Villages Technology Solutions Group Zimbra Email - All General Fund Departments 487.50$            
50 Waste Management 6 Yard Dumpster 184.07$            
51 Wildwood Ace Hardware Paint, Drop Cloth, Shop Towels, Rope, Mini Lights, Etc 79.09$              

BILLS FOR APPROVAL
City of Wildwood, Florida

January 14, 2013
3. f. 1. 
Page 1 of 6

plaw
Typewritten Text



January 14 2013
Page 2

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
52 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 4 Employees 8,800.66$         
53 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 4 Employees 3,150.00$         
54 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 4 Employees 8,800.65$         
55 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 4 Employees 8,800.66$         
56 Bright House Internet Service 35.00$              
57 Paul Ketz Personal Vehicle Use 6.11$                
58 Office Depot Office Supplies 18.98$              
59 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 37.00$              
60 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 84.36$              
61 Sherwin Williams Co. Paint 166.45$            
62 The Daily Commercial Ads 1,051.17$         
63 Wildwood Community Development Refund for Permit Number Temp 1211-01 100.00$            

HUMAN RESOURCES
64 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 1 Employee 1,987.44$         
65 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 1 Employee 800.00$            
66 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 1 Employee 2,110.39$         
67 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 1 Employees 2,014.85$         
68 Bright House Internet Service 8.75$                
69 EGP Per Copy Contract 17.46$              
70 Office Depot Office Supplies 3.64$                
71 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 5.47$                
72 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 14.28$              

73 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 31 Employees 75,444.87$       
74 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 18 Employees 11,800.00$       
75 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 31 Employees 63,473.05$       
76 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period -32 Employees 74,429.97$       
77 Advanced Auto Parts Headlight 2.99$                
78 B.S. Auto Salvage Towing of Graver's Vehicle 125.00$            
79 CarQuest Auto Parts Coil, Head lamp, Switch, Valve, Brake Pads, Rotor 573.84$            
80 Cason and Gaskins TV, Inc Holster, Recorder, TZE Black on White 124.93$            
81 Central Sumter Service Area Brownwood Electric 38.46$              
82 Century Link Telephone Service - Translink Chan Term 568.00$            
83 Chief Supply/Law Enforcement Desk Print Pad 48.61$              
84 Communications International Radar Certification 932.55$            
85 Dana Safety Supply, Inc Laptop Tray, Computer Mount 726.74$            
86 Dynometer Speedometer Calibration Certification 460.00$            
87 EGP Per Copy Contract 175.08$            
88 George Nahas Chevrolet, Inc Connector 38.12$              
89 Jiffy Exhaust Systems, Inc Converter 425.49$            
90 L3 Communications Mobile-Vision Mic Package, Battery VLP, Transmitter, Rechargeable 698.00$            
91 Merritt Department Stores Vest 173.73$            
92 Motorola Solutions, Inc. Impres Chg Mackinaw, Batt Imp Std Ruggedized 1,150.76$         
93 Office Depot Office Supplies 206.43$            
94 Petty Cash Replenish 135.54$            
95 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 2,706.56$         
96 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 3,599.83$         
97 Progress Energy Electric Service 1,187.71$         
98 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 87.01$              
99 Sumter County Clerk of Court Order of Fines 55.50$              
100 Sumter Electric Electric Service 103.89$            
101 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 29.00$              
102 VCDD Utilities Electric Service 39.14$              
103 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service & Bluetooth 1,517.67$         
104 Wildwood Ace Hardware Mop, ACC Charger, Cable Ties, Kwik Clips 56.45$              
105 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Tire Repair 146.20$            
106 Stacy Wrightman Travel Reimbursement 33.30$              

POLICE DEPARTMENT

3. f. 1. 
Page 2 of 6



January 14 2013
Page 3

STREET DEPARTMENT
107 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 10 Employees 17,790.19$       
108 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 10 Employees 7,100.00$         
109 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 10 Employees 17,848.31$       
110 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 10 Employees 17,848.32$       
111 Besco Electric Supply Company Light Bulbs 44.84$              
112 B & M Equipment Boom Rental 261.00$            
113 Bright House Internet Service 39.97$              
114 CarQuest Auto Parts Hose, Rotor, Brake Pads, Valve, Drier, Switch, Etc. 386.07$            
115 Coy Thomas Electric, Inc Replaced Photocells at Street Dept Barn 115.00$            
116 C.R. 466A Landfill Facility, LLC Tipping Fee 64.02$              
117 Culligan Cooler Rental and Bottled Water 15.87$              
118 Department of Corrections Work Squad 2nd Quarter 14,501.00$       
119 Environmental Products of Florida Seal, Outer Bearing 207.21$            
120 Harris Tree Service, Inc Removal of Trees and Stump Grinding 2,400.00$         
121 Hi-Way Sign Company Reflective Signs - Slow, Speed Limit 238.28$            
122 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 29.60$              
123 Office Depot Office Supplies 35.73$              
124 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 1,887.96$         
125 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 2,197.92$         
126 Progress Energy Electric Service 5,027.79$         
127 Salescorp of Florida Gloves, Gatorade 204.40$            
128 Staples Office Supplies 58.67$              
129 Sumter Electric Electric Service 173.17$            
130 Al Taylor Boot Allowance 52.87$              
131 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 12.50$              
132 Unifirst Uniforms 299.83$            
133 UPS Postage 13.61$              
134 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 194.16$            
135 Waste Management 20 Yard Roll Off 70.52$              
136 Wildwood Ace Hardware Toilet Seat, PVC Ground Conn, Threaded Rods, Stakes, Etc 352.06$            
137 Wildwood Mower & Saw, Inc Trimmer, Stick Edger, Backpack Blowers, Line, Etc 2,285.14$         
138 Xpress Materials, LLC Concrete PSI Regular 699.00$            

FLEET SERVICES
139 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,138.60$         
140 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 1 Employees 1,400.00$         
141 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,048.35$         
142 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,048.78$         
143 Big Truck Parts Inc Filters 76.12$              
144 Bright House Internet Service 39.98$              
145 CarQuest Auto Parts Valve, Battery, Copper, Filter, Motor Treatment, Etc 177.72$            
146 Culligan Cooler Rental and Bottled Water 15.87$              
147 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 29.60$              
148 Newsom Oil Company Kendall Super Oil 15w-40 514.25$            
149 Office Depot Office Supplies 35.72$              
150 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 522.75$            
151 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 565.74$            
152 Progress Energy Electric Service 101.95$            
153 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 12.50$              
154 Unifirst Uniforms 105.44$            
155 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 56.63$              
156 Wildwood Ace Hardware Electrical Tape, Steel Wool, Key Master 15.06$              

COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT
157 Bright House Internet Service 8.75$                
158 FL Dept of Economic Opportunity FY 2012/2013 Special District Fee 200.00$            
159 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 4.69$                
160 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 24.26$              

3. f. 1. 
Page 3 of 6



January 14 2013
Page 4

PARKS AND RECREATION
161 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,050.62$         
162 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 5 Employees 2,150.00$         
163 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,159.39$         
164 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,105.01$         
165 Bright House Internet Service 8.75$                
166 CarQuest Auto Parts Grease Fitting, Prestone, Degreaser 21.23$              
167 Central Pump & Supply, Inc PVC Couplings, Bushings, Expansions, Solenoid, Battery 530.95$            
168 Century Link Telephone Service 441.37$            
169 Coy Thomas Electric, Inc Replaced 4 Dust/Dawn Fixtures, Repaired 2 Low Bays 738.12$            
170 Culligan Rental Softener - Lake Deaton Wigglesworth 65.90$              
171 Department of Corrections Work Squad 1st Quarter 8,700.60$         
172 EGP Per Copy Contract 17.46$              
173 Jerry Ulm Dodge 326.90$            
174 Nature Calls Inc Port O Let Rentals 415.00$            
175 Office Depot Office Supplies 23.72$              
176 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 354.30$            
177 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 452.05$            
178 Progress Energy Electric Service 1,128.78$         
179 Salescorp of Florida Gatorade 128.00$            
180 Sumter Electric Electric Service 375.52$            
181 TurfMasters & Associates, Inc Lawn Fertilization and Pest Control 2,465.00$         
182 Unifirst Uniforms 109.24$            
183 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 31.52$              
184 Wildwood Ace Hardware Valves, Drill Bits, Chlorine, Rake, Keys, Batteries, Etc. 301.65$            
185 Wildwood Mower & Saw, Inc Blades, Trim Line, Blower, Trimmer, Stick Edger, Etc. 2,773.54$         

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER
186 AFGE Local 506 Rental Refund - Wildwood Community Center 312.00$            
187 A-Line Fire & Safety, Inc Annual Inspection and Maintenance 197.00$            
188 Bright House Internet Service 79.95$              
189 George Nahas Chevrolet, Inc Handle 54.22$              
190 Robyn Karns Rental Refund - Oxford Community Center 50.00$              
191 Ivey King Rental Refund - Wildwood Community Center 97.50$              
192 Kohn Construction & Electric Repair & Maintenance Air Conditioner 570.00$            
193 Obdula Ledesma Rental Refund - Oxford Community Center 97.45$              
194 Oracle Regular Service 427.89$            
195 Dell Richards Reimbursement of Rental Fees and Deposit 87.45$              
196 Carol Simmons Rental Refund - Oxford Community Center 20.70$              
197 St Vincent DePaul Catholic Church Rental Refund - Wildwood Community Center 318.00$            
198 Sumter Electric Electric Service 959.63$            
199 Terminix Monthly Pest Control, Yearly Termite Baiting Program 654.00$            
200 Unifirst Rugs 63.38$              
201 Percival Wallace Rental Refund - Wildwood Community Center 79.75$              
202 Wildwood Ace Hardware Extension Cord 4.99$                
203 Wildwood Mower & Saw, Inc Oil 40.00$              

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
204 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,076.22$         
205 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 3 Employees 2,100.00$         
206 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,106.31$         
207 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,136.10$         
208 Action Mobile Industries Rent for Storage Pod 300.14$            
209 Air Mechanical & Service Corp HVAC Improvements App. No.9 21,642.50$       
210 Bright House Internet Service 26.25$              
211 Century Link Telephone Service 41.57$              
212 Paula Corbin Personal Vehicle Use 13.88$              
213 Coy Thomas Electric, Inc Replace Lamps at City Hall, Repair Lights at Annex 725.50$            
214 EGP Per Copy Contract 17.45$              
215 IMS Computer Software Maintenance 115.00$            

3. f. 1. 
Page 4 of 6



January 14 2013
Page 5

216 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 158.88$            
217 ModSpace Lease Storage Pod 56.97$              
218 Office Depot Office Supplies 133.44$            
219 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 18.96$              
220 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 48.36$              
221 Pitney Bowes Postage Meter Lease 171.25$            
222 Postmaster Utility Billing Postage 1,151.64$         
223 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 87.01$              
224 Sumter County Clerk Recording of Interlocal Agreement 44.00$              
225 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 13.50$              
226 Unifirst Rugs 23.76$              
227 Villages Technology Solutions Group Zimbra Email - All Enterprise Fund Departments 487.50$            
228 Waste Management 90% Refuse Franchise November, 90% December 129,371.52$     
229 Wildwood Ace Hardware Paint, Drop Cloth, Shop Towels, Rope, Mini Lights, Etc 79.08$              

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
230 Payroll December 2, 2012 Pay Period - 23 Employees 44,513.47$       
231 Payroll December 13, 2012  - 2% - 22 Employees 15,950.00$       
232 Payroll December 16, 2012 Pay Period - 23 Employees 43,265.00$       
233 Payroll December 29, 2012 Pay Period - 22 Employees 43,232.47$       
234 A.W.K. Industries Inc Bearing Assembly 212.76$            
235 Barney's Pumps, Inc Aurora Impellar and Wear Ring 1,894.60$         
236 Brenntag Liquid Chlorine 1,957.12$         
237 CarQuest Auto Parts Fan Clutch, Thermostat, Oil, Paint, Prestone, Vise, Etc 714.48$            
238 C & C Peat Co., Inc. Wastewater Treatment-Dewatered Bio-Solids 4,780.00$         
239 Century Link Telephone Service 183.87$            
240 Culligan Bottled Water 39.99$              
241 John Cornell Boot Allowance 75.00$              
242 Department of Corrections Work Squad 1st Quarter 5,800.40$         
243 FL Dept of Environmental Protection Membership Renewal 500.00$            
244 Florida Rural Water Association Membership Renewal 545.00$            
245 EGP Per Copy Contract 8.11$                
246 FL Society of Environmental Analysis Membership Renewal 200.00$            
247 HD Supply WaterWorks Galv Bends, Nipples, Unions, Epoxy, Etc 84.11$              
248 Komline-Sanderson Plug In Signal, Push Pull Switch, Speed Potentionmeter 1,175.21$         
249 MMD Computer Center, Inc Vantec 99mm Stealth Fan 24.00$              
250 Odyssey Hypochlorite Solutions 3,967.40$         
251 Office Depot Office Supplies 16.60$              
252 Vincent Perkins Boot Allowance 73.89$              
253 PGIT Workers Comp Insurance 1,918.43$         
254 PGIT Premium Due Final Audit 2,984.27$         
255 Bruce Phillips Personal Vehicle Use 225.34$            
256 Plant Technicians Environmental Testing 465.00$            
257 Professional Maintenance Products, Inc Lift Station Degreaser 1,450.00$         
258 Progress Energy Electric Service 4,318.22$         
259 Sanders Company, Inc Fairbanks Morse Pump & Installation 16,298.00$       
260 Alice Scheidler Personal Vehicle Use 33.74$              
261 Siemens Mixed Bed Tanks 300.00$            
262 Sparr Building & Farm Supply Treated Risers, Bow Rake 51.75$              
263 Sumter Electric Electric Service 6,630.78$         
264 Sunshine State One Call of Florida Inc Locators for Month of November 2012 344.28$            
265 TAW Orlando Service Center Repair Pump 1,490.00$         
266 Terminix Monthly Pest Control, Yearly Liquid Defend System 326.00$            
267 Test America Environmental Testing 5,725.65$         
268 The Dumont Company, Inc Hypochlorite Solution, Clear Flow 5,627.25$         
269 Unifirst Uniforms 802.10$            
270 USA BlueBook Solution 900 Silicone, Stenner Grease, Thermostat, Etc. 1,300.74$         
271 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 421.62$            
272 Water Resource Technologies Repair Grinder Pump 1,338.79$         
273 Wildwood Ace Hardware PVC, Breaker, O-Rings, Fiber Screen, Sockets, Broom 173.71$            

3. f. 1. 
Page 5 of 6



January 14 2013
Page 6

274 Wildwood Mower & Saw, Inc Trimmer Line, Blades, Air Cleaner, Carb Kit, Etc 208.38$            

MISCELLANEOUS 
275 General Fund October/November Gas Usage Transfer 8,992.36$         
276 General Fund Payment on Previous Year's Balance Transfer 75,000.00$       
277 General Fund October/November Water Utility Tax & 10% Refuse 19,594.50$       
278 WasteWater Tie Fee Transfer to Cover Expenditures 2,500.00$         
279 Wildwood Community Cemetery Budgeted Maintenance Support 340.93$            

GREENWOOD CEMETERY
280 Progress Energy Electric Service 12.95$              

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS
281 Jerri A Blair Attorney 10,000.00$       
282 Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc Engineers 28,557.50$       

FUEL INVENTORY
283 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc. Regular Unleaded Gasoline 16,543.60$       

TOTAL  1,084,019.29$  

CITY COMMISSION
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 
                                                                                                                       
ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk

3. f. 1. 
Page 6 of 6



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Jan. 14, 2013 
 

Subject: CR 462 Phase 1 Utility Extension 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): 
Recommend acceptance of construction of the CR 462, Phase 1 Utility Extension and 
approval of Rainey Construction, Co. invoice no. 2-3708 in the amount $18,081.89, as 
final payment for the project. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 On September 25, 2012 the City awarded the contract for the construction of a 
sanitary force main to serve the Providence Independent Living Facility at the 
Turkey Ron development to Rainey Construction for $57,218.75.  

 On November 26, 2012, the City Commission approved change order no. 1 in the 
amount of $3,960.00, bringing the total contract price to $61,178.75. 

 The project consisted of the installation of approximately 2,550 feet of 8” sanitary 
force main and all related fittings and site work. 

 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

o The project has been satisfactorily completed. 
 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

o Contractor has completed punch list items and is due final payment 
including retainage. 

 

 LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

o Staff and Kimley Horn and Associates, Inc. recommend acceptance of the 
project and final payment to the contractor in the amount of $18,081.89 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 Funding will be from Sewer System TIE Fees. 

3. f. 2. 
Page 1 of 4



 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 
 Contractor is due the final payment. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of Invoice No. 2-3708 
 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\January 14, 2013\CR 462 utility Extension Final Payment 12-11-12.doc 
 

 

 

 

 

3. f. 2. 
Page 2 of 4



3. f. 2. 
Page 3 of 4



3. f. 2. 
Page 4 of 4



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Jan. 14, 2013 
 

Subject: Lake Miona Golf Course 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): 
Recommend approve to purchase pump impeller from Barney’s Pumps in the amount of 
$1,900.00 and purchase a new 60 HP motor from TAW Orlando Services Center, Inc. in 
the amount of $3,211.62 for a total cost of $5,111.62. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

The City, on April 11, 1994, entered into an agreement titled “Agreement Between 
Rolling Hills Country Club and the City of Wildwood, Florida Concerning Delivery and 
acceptance of Reclaimed Water”. On October 24, 2001 the City entered into another 
agreement titled “Agreement Between City of Wildwood and Brassboys Enterprises, Inc. 
d/b/a Miona Lake Country Club” 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The Brassboys agreement states the following: 
 “5. Miona Lake and the City will share the out-of-pocket costs 

of maintenance and repair of the pumps, including necessary 
upgrades and replacements, with each party responsible for one-
half )1/2) of the costs, up to $10,000 each per incident. In the 
event that costs exceed this amount, the parties shall meet and 
attempt to reach a mutually agreeable solution. Maintenance 
issues shall be handled as follows:” 

 The pump used to pump the reclaimed water to the holding ponds on the 
Lake Miona property has experienced a failure in the pump impeller and 
the 60 HP electric motor. 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The pump manufacture is Aurora. 
 The local distributer for Aurora pumps is Barney’s Pumps, Inc. 

3. f. 3.  
Page 1 of 4



 The 60 HP electric motor was sent to Tampa Armature Works (TAW) for 
repair. TAW has determined it is not economical to repair and therefore a 
new motor is required.  

  
 

 LEGAL REVIEW: 

 N/A 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 Cost of impeller and related parts from Barney’s Pumps, Inc. is $1,900.00. 
 Cost of a new 60 HP electric motor from TAW is $3,211.00. 
 Total cost of repair is $5,111.62. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 Funding will be from account no. 0401 0036 0536 0460 Repair and Maintenance. 
 The City will be reimbursed half the expenses, $2,555.81 by Lake Miona, these 

funds shall be applied to account no. 0401 0036 0536 0460 when received. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
 None 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Barney’s Pumps, Inc. Quotation No. 2015-12 dated 11/12/12. 
 Tampa Armature Works quotation No. 60006022-5 dated 11/19/12. 

 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\January 14, 2013\Miona Golf Pump.doc 
 

 

 

 

3. f. 3.  
Page 2 of 4



3. f. 3.  
Page 3 of 4



3. f. 3.  
Page 4 of 4



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Jan. 14, 2013 
 

Subject: Waste Water Treatment Plant 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): 
Recommend approval of the Quote # 430 from Pat’s Pump & Blower in the amount of 
$2,450.00. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 This is for the repair of Digester Blower No. 4 at the Waste Water Treatment 
Plant. 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The Blower has failed and is in need of repair. 
 The blower is a Suterbilt and Pat’s Pump & Blower is the local 

representative for Suterbilt. 
 The cost to rebuild the blower is $2,450.00. 
 The cost of a new blower is $5,522.00. 

 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The rebuilt blower is recommended. 
 

 LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends authorization to have Pat’s Pump & Blower rebuild the 
existing blower at a cost of $2,450.00. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 Funding will be from Repair and Maintenance. 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 Blower is an essential component of the Waste Water Treatment plant and must 
be either repaired or replaced. 

3. f. 4. 
Page 1 of 3



 Only alternative would be to purchase new blower at an additional cost of 
$3,072.00. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of Pat’s Pump and Blower quote no. 4630. 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\January 14, 2013\Digester Blower No. 4 12-11-12.doc 
 

 

 

 

 

3. f. 4. 
Page 2 of 3



Quote
Date

1/2/2013

Quote #

4630

Customer

City of Wildwood
100 N. Main
Wildwood, FL  34785

Ship To

City of Wildwood
1290 Industrial Dr.
Wildwood, FL 34785

630 W. Church Street
Orlando, FL 32805

Rep

LLC

Project

Phone #

(407) 841-7867

Fax #

(407) 648-2096

Web Site

WWW.PATSPUMP.COM

Total

Phone:    800-359-7867
Fax:        407-648-2096
EMail:      patspump@AOL.com

Description Qty Cost Total

Revised 01/02/2013

Mike;

Thank you for this opportunity to provide repair service for your
Sutorbilt 6LR Blower.  S/N: 255319

Cost of Labor and Material to rebuild Sutorbilt 6LR to include:
Teardown, Clean & prep, replace bearings, seals, gaskets, weld &
machine lobes, reassemble.
Note: Freight for parts included.

1 2,450.00 2,450.00

NEW Sutorbilt 6LP Blower
In stock, Florida.

0 5,522.00 0.00

Prices valid for 30 days.
Price is plus freight cost to ship NEW Blower.

$2,450.00

3. f. 4. 
Page 3 of 3



3. f. 5. 
Page 1 of 8



3. f. 5. 
Page 2 of 8

plaw
Rectangle



3. f. 5. 
Page 3 of 8

plaw
Rectangle



3. f. 5. 
Page 4 of 8



3. f. 5. 
Page 5 of 8



3. f. 5. 
Page 6 of 8



3. f. 5. 
Page 7 of 8



3. f. 5. 
Page 8 of 8



3. f. 6. 
Page 1 of 3



3. f. 6. 
Page 2 of 3



3. f. 6. 
Page 3 of 3



3. f. 7. 
Page 1 of 4



3. f. 7. 
Page 2 of 4



3. f. 7. 
Page 3 of 4



3. f. 7. 
Page 4 of 4



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

H:\Pam\1-AGENDA\EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES - CC\2013.01.14 Bright House Networks - Internet & Upgraded Access - Executive Summary.doc 
 

 
SUBJECT: Enhance and Upgrade Technical Services Throughout the City 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Request for approval to upgrade technical services throughout City Hall, 
Water/Wastewater, Public Works/Fleet Services, Annex and the Wildwood Community 
Center with high speed Internet Access, enhanced e-mail, Wi Fi, Hot Spots, Backups and 
Internet Phone (Bundled Services) 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: January 14, 2013 

  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:  Bright House Networks 

 Effective Date:   Termination Date:   

 Managing Division / Dept:   

 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: Dependent Upon Services Selected:  

All Services Bundled:  Monthly Total: $2,648.71 or Annual: $31,784.52 
Internet, Wi Fi & On Site Tech Only:  Monthly Total: $1,521.51 Annual: $18,258.12 

 
 Annual 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  

 N/A  
 
 
 

 
HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
Request for approval to upgrade technical services throughout City Hall, Water/Wastewater, Public Works/Fleet Services, 
Annex and the Wildwood Community Center with higher speed Internet Access, enhanced e-mail, static IP addresses, Wi 
Fi, Hot Spots, Backups and Internet Phone (Bundled Services) which would allow wireless connection of computers, 
printers and scanners in all City Departments in addition to Hot Spot/Wi Fi access for the public in the Community Center 
and City Hall for meetings.   
 
Quotes from Brighthouse Networks and Florida Department of Management Services were obtained.   
 
The Florida Dept. of Management Services quote ($8,153.86 monthly equaling $97,846.32 annually) was extremely high 
and they were NOT able to provide Wi Fi, Hot Spots, server support or e-mail hosting for which we would have to obtain 
another vendor for.  Their quote also did not include phone service which we currently receive from them, so that would 
have to be added to their quote. 
 
Bright House provided two quotes:  one for bundled services to include phone service ($2,648.71 monthly equaling 
$31,784.52 annually) and one for bundled services without phone service $1,521.51 monthly equaling $18,258.12 
annually).  Their service would include Static IP addresses, upgrade from 7 MB to 50 MB Internet speed, hosting up to 
1,000 e-mail accounts with 5GB per e-mail account server storage, backups, Wi Fi, Hot Spots and server support. 
 
Bright House is local; Fla. Dept. of Management Services is in Tallahassee. 
 
Staff would recommend Bright House Networks. 

 

 

3. f. 8. 
Page 1 of 30



(Current Services are in BOLD) 
 
At this time, the Police Department MAY NOT be changing services from their current 
situation.  Therefore two separate pricings will be necessary, WITH the Dept and 
WITHOUT the Dept. 
 
 
City Hall, located at 100 N Main Street, 34785:  
7Mb - BrightHouse Network Cable 
PC Workstations: 20 
Telephone service is currently provided by SUNCOM 
 
Our Goal for City Hall: 
 
1) (Meet or exceed) 50mb Internet (static IP, if available) 
2) Hot Spot to provide wireless network, OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, not connected to the 
server, throughout the building and requiring a separate modem and access 
3) Hot Spot to provide four Virtual Private Network addresses – Wireless Network 
allowing RESTRICTED Guest Access - a private/secure/filtered access that could be a 
component of the City network with firewall that would allow access to server and 
printers. 
4) Connect City Hall Annex, located at 110 E Wonders Street, 34785, by add/expand 
the City Hall service to this location by cable/line. Annex currently has NO INTERNET 
SERVICE 
5) Interconnectivity with ALL outside departments addressed below, except Police 
6) Keep telephone services intact 
7)  FUTURE: Interconnectivity (only during crisis) with Police Depts. 
 
 
Community Center, located at 6500 Powell Road, 34785:  
7Mb, wireless only - BrightHouse Network - Cable 
PC Workstations: currently unused 
Telephone service is currently provided by Century Link – 7 lines 
 
Goal: 
1) (Meet or exceed) 18mb Internet (static IP, if available) 
2) HotSpot to provide wireless network, OPEN TO THE PUBLIC- not connected to the 
server- throughout the building, requiring a separate modem and access 
3) HotSpot to provide one Virtual Private Network addresses – wireless network 
allowing RESTRICTED Guest Access - a private/secure/filtered access that could allow 
access to (potential) server and (potential) printers. 
4)  Replace Century Link Telephone Service 
5) FUTURE:  Interconnectivity (only during crisis) with City Hall and Police Depts. 
 
 
 

3. f. 8. 
Page 2 of 30



Fleet & Street Depts, located at 410 Grey Street, 34785:  
5Mb - BrightHouse Network - Cable 
PC Workstations: 5 
Telephone service is currently provided by SUNCOM 
 
Goal: 
1) (Meet or exceed) 18mb Internet (static IP, if available) 
2)  HotSpot to provide wireless network allowing RESTRICTED, secure Guest Access  
3)  Interconnectivity with City Hall 
4)  FUTURE:  Interconnectivity (only during crisis) with Police Depts 
5) Keep telephone services intact 
 
 
 
Utility Dept, located at 1290 Industrial Drive, 34785:  
1.5M Month LAN - Century Link - DSL 
PC Workstations: 10 
Telephone service is currently provided by SUNCOM, with exception of 1 line 
provided by Century Link 
 
Goal: 
1) (Meet or exceed) 18mb Internet (static IP, if available) 
2) HotSpot to provide wireless network allowing RESTRICTED, secure Guest Access  
3) Interconnectivity with City Hall 
4) Keep telephone services intact 
 
 
Please understand that, at this time, the Police Department may not be changing 
services from their current situation.  Therefore two separate pricings will be necessary, 
WITH the Dept and WITHOUT the Dept. 
 
Police Dept, located at 100 E Huey Street, 34785: 1.5Mb - Nationwide Computer 
Systems, Inc – DSL; Other service: 1544 Kbps Translink Chan Term - Century 
Link 
PC Workstations: 20 
 
Goal: 
1) (Meet or exceed) 50mb Internet (static IP, if available) 
2) HotSpot to provide wireless network allowing RESTRICTED, secure Guest Access 
3)  Keep telephone services intact 
4) FUTURE:  Interconnectivity (only during crisis) with City Hall, Community Center and 
Street/Fleet Depts. 
 
 
 

3. f. 8. 
Page 3 of 30



 
 
 
Attached are the two price quotes for Bundled Services: Data / Telephone / On-site Technical Support. 
Both parties have affirmed that their price quote will meet the City's objectives, unless otherwise stated. 
 
FL DMS is Florida Division of Management Services (State) 
BHN is Bright House Networks 
  
FL DMS is unable to provide WIFI or HotSpot. This would require the City to obtain another vendor for these 
services.  
DMS price quote would be in addition to the costs already paid for our phone service.  
  
BHN is in the process of getting us pricing for Server support, but attempting to get it included without change to the 
pricing on this quote. BHN IT services do not replace our equipment. BHN includes 1 Terrabyte of back-up storage. 
BHN service for the Utilities Department, located at 1290 Industrial Drive, would need to be constructed. This could 
be done within 60 days of contract agreement.  Off-site storage/archival/records retention services can be provided at 
an additional cost.  
  
FL DMS does not provide server support.  
 
The BHN price quote includes two quotes; (1) for bundled services, (2) bundled services LESS telephone.  
Our telephones are currently on FL DMS Suncom.  The Suncom network currently charges $0.027/minute.  
Past invoices reviewed reflect that the City Hall average usage has been 1300 - 1600 minutes monthly.  
  
BHN has stated that telephone numbers are portable and No additional equipment would be needed for our system 
and/or other vendors services.  BHN price quote allows for all locations to have unlimited Local and Long Distance, 
with the exception of City Hall having a limit of 2500 minutes/month Long Distance.  
  
DMS does not provide e-mail hosting but recommends Outlook. 
BHN price quote includes 1000 POP e-mail accounts; 5G on server per account (per person).  
The City currently pays for 75 (e-mail) addresses monthly through Zimbra which can be discontinued with notice. 
  
The BHN price quote is a contract for three (3) years; early terminationn fee after 30 days would result in a penalty of 
the equivalent of four months base rate billing.  
 
Our BrightHouse Networks Account Executive Gustavo Moronta will be attending the  City 
Commission meeting, only to answer any questions on the services which he has quoted on behalf of his company. 
 
  
Alice J Borrack  
Sr. Deputy Clerk  
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
Phone: 352- 330-1330, ext 101  
Fax: 352-330-1338 
E-mail: aborrack@wildwood-fl.gov 
 
NOTE:  
Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communication to or from government officials regarding 

3. f. 8. 
Page 4 of 30

callto:352-%20330-1330
callto:352-330-1338
mailto:aborrack@wildwood-fl.gov
plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
January 14th

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



BRIGHT HOUSE SERVICES

Location Name Address 
#phone

lines 
Currrent

Internet speed 
number of
computers 

Current
Brighthouse

Bill 
Quote for

all Services 
Quote for internet, wifi 
and Onsite tech only Notes 

City Hall 100 main st 
23 Main  &

4 fax 7Mb 20 $139.95 $1,299.79 $709.89 You would upgrade to 50mb Internet 

City Hall Annex 110 Wonders Street 2
Combine
 City Hall none None 

$59.90
2 phone lines NA Run cat 5/ fiber and cobine with city hall network 

Water / Waste Water 1290 industrial dr 4 n/A 9 None $319.94 $499.74

Community Center 6500 county road 139/Powell rd 7 7Mb Wireless only 
$140.93 

Internet and Tv $346.30 $151.94

Street and Fleet 410/Grey street 4 5mb 3
$79.95

internet only $442.98 $309.79 COBINE STRRET AND FLEET ON ONE ACCOUNT

Police Deparrtment 100 e Huey st 8 n/A 8 pending pending pending Need to confirm with county and ncis 

Parks 450 South St Clair St 1 n/A none 
$29.95

PHONE ONLY Will this office remain standalone ?

Water Plants 

active 801 Huey Street 2
$65.08
tv only 

501 Water Plant 469 County Road 501

Okahumpka Plaza
Water Plant

Mile Post 299 Florida Turnpike
(Okahumpka Service Plaza)

? 8763 County Road 231

RIB Site 5124 County Road 125B-1

Legend 

Active with services 

Needs Construction

Not servicible 

Need to Build cable( 30-45 days )

Servicible/ No Brighthouse services at this Time 

3. f. 8. 
Page 5 of 30

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
MonthlyTotal:$2,648.71Annual:$31,784.52

plaw
Cross-Out

plaw
Cross-Out

plaw
Typewritten Text
$499.74

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
$319.94

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
MonthlyTotal:$1,521.51Annual:$18,258.12

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



Alice, 
Per our conference call this is a summary of our My Florida Net (MFN) proposal for your network: 
At City Hall 
For Internet Access: 1 – 33Mbps MFN Metro Ethernet (ME) set up as a Public VRF. Port Charge 
$1014.17, Local Loop Charge $929.70, totaling $1943.87. The Router for this circuit would be a CISCO 
3925-ME-SEC, renting for $363.79/month. Total monthly of $2307.66. 
For Interconnectivity: 1- 21Mbps MFN ME circuit set up as Private VRF. Port Charge $901.11, Local Loop 
charge $835.88, totaling $1736.99. The Router rental for this circuit would be a CISCO 2921-ME-SEC at 
$172.37/month. Totaling $1909.36 
At Community Center 
1-8Mbps MFN ME circuit, set up as Private VRF. Port Charge $653.04, Local Loop Charge $601.89, 
totaling $1254.93. The Router rental for this circuit would be a CISCO 1921-ME-SEC, at $57.35/month. 
Combined total $1312.28. 
At Fleet & Street Dept.  
1-8Mbps MFN ME circuit, set up as Private VRF. Port Charge $653.04, Local Loop Charge $601.89, 
totaling $1254.93. The Router rental for this circuit would be a CISCO 1921-ME-SEC, at $57.35/month. 
Combined total $1312.28. 
At Utility Dept.  
1-8Mbps MFN ME circuit, set up as Private VRF. Port Charge $653.04, Local Loop Charge $601.89, 
totaling $1254.93. The Router rental for this circuit would be a CISCO 1921-ME-SEC, at $57.35/month. 
Combined total $1312.28. 
The Community Center, Fleet & Street Dept. and the Utility Dept. are all three set up the same. Also 
note all Router rentals include installation and maintenance. 
The overall combined monthly total of all sites including routers would be $8153.86. Attached is a 
diagram of what we discussed in our call, please note that Firewall shown in the diagram is provided and 
managed by City of Wildwood. However, MFN does a have service to provide a dedicated firewall 
functionality.. 
We look forward to continuing the partnership the City and the State have enjoyed over the years in this 
new endeavor. 
Regards, 
Bill Fox 
State of Florida 
Technology Consultant 
Department of Management Services 
Division of Telecommunications 
(352) 330-1363 Office 
(352) 425-2468 Mobile 
Bill.Fox@dms.myflorida.com 
Please rate my service by taking the following anonymous survey: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/RateMeNow 
"We Serve Those Who Serve Florida" 
 

3. f. 8. 
Page 6 of 30

callto:352)%20330-1363
callto:352)%20425-2468
http://www.myfloridasuncom.com/
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/RateMeNow
plaw
Highlight

plaw
Typewritten Text
FLORIDA DIVISION OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES QUOTE (MONTHLY)

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Typewritten Text
Quote Does not include WiFi, Hot Spot or Phone Service

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
Annual Cost for Florida Dept. of Management Servicesto provide service:  $97,846.32WiFi, e-mail, hot spot and phone services are NOT included in that cost.

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Typewritten Text



Service Agreement 
Terms and Conditions 

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between 
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator"). 

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City of Wildwood 30/740956-01 1330

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

100 N Main ST City Hall Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 - -

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

100 North Main Street Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Gene Kornegay 352-303-8506

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 7 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL INTERNET & ON SITE TECHNICAL SERVICES ONLY

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City of Wildwood 30/740956-01

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 - -

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

100 N Main ST City Hall Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

100 North Main Street Wildwood FL 34785

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

1330 Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 8 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL INTERNET & ON SITE TECHNICAL SERVICES ONLY

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity 

One 
Time 

Charge 

Monthly 
Recurring 

Fee 

Monthly 
Recurring 

Total* 

Initial 
Service 
Period 
Months 

OnsITe-Data - Up to 20PC 3YR 1 $100.00 $289.99 $289.99 0 
3YR 50M x 5M 1 $49.95 $209.95 $209.95 0 
Single Static IP 1 $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 0 

Remote Data Backup 500G 1 $0.00 $199.95 $199.95 0 
Total* $149.95 $709.89

*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 9 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL INTERNET & ON SITE TECHNICAL SERVICES ONLY

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Rectangle



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City of Wildwood 30/740956-01 1330

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

100 N Main ST City Hall Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 - -

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

100 North Main Street Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Gene Kornegay 352-303-8506

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 10 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL PHONE, ON SITE TECH & INTERNET UPGRADE

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Sticky Note
MigrationConfirmed set by plaw

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City of Wildwood 30/740956-01

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 - -

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

100 N Main ST City Hall Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

100 North Main Street Wildwood FL 34785

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

1330 Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 11 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL PHONE, ON SITE TECH & INTERNET UPGRADE

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

OnsITe-Data - Up to 20PC 3YR 1 $100.00 $289.99 $289.99 36

3YR 50M x 5M Bundled 1 $49.95 $170.00 $170.00 36

OnsITe-Data - RD Backup 50G->500G Upsell 1 $0.00 $180.00 $180.00 36

3YR 4 Full Featured Lines w/ multi service 1 $0.00 $159.80 $159.80 36

TDX Services 1 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 36

Total* $649.95 $1,299.79
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 12 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
CITY HALL PHONE, ON SITE TECH & INTERNET UPGRADE

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Rectangle



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City Of Wildwood Community Center 30 / 858045-01

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

6500 County Road 139 Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 352-330-1338

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City Of Wildwood
Community Center

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 13 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY CENTER WIFI AND TV

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City Of Wildwood Community Center 30 / 858045-01

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 352-330-1338

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

6500 County Road 139 Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type

New
Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC

Embarq
LEC BTN

352-748-0394

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 14 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY CENTER WIFI AND TV

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

3YR 10M x 1M 1 $0.00 $74.95 $74.95 36

Business Wireless Network 2 $99.90 $7.00 $14.00 36

Bus TV Standard Multi Service M2M 1 $0.00 $62.99 $62.99 36

Total* $99.90 $151.94
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City Of Wildwood
Community Center

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 15 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY CENTER WIFI AND TV

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City Of Wildwood Community Center 30 / 858045-01

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

6500 County Road 139 Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 352-330-1338

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City Of Wildwood
Community Center

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 16 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY CENTER PHONE, WI FI AND CABLE TV

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City Of Wildwood Community Center 30 / 858045-01

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 352-330-1338

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

6500 County Road 139 Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 17 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY CENTER PHONE, WI FI AND CABLE TV

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

3YR 7 Full Featured Lines w/ multi service 1 $99.95 $233.31 $233.31 36

3YR 10M x 1M Bundled 1 $0.00 $55.00 $55.00 36

Bus TV Standard w/ 10M & 6+ line discount M2M 1 $0.00 $57.99 $57.99 36

Total* $99.95 $346.30
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City Of Wildwood
Community Center

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 18 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
COMMUNITY CENTER PHONE, WI FI AND CABLE TV

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City of Wildwood (Street and Fleet

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

410 grey ST Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood (Street
and Fleet

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 19 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
STREET AND FLEET  INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City of Wildwood (Street and Fleet

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

410 grey ST Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 20 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
STREET AND FLEET  INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

3YR 10M x 1M 1 $0.00 $74.95 $74.95 36

OnsITe-Data - Up to 4PC 3YR 1 $99.00 $94.99 $94.99 36

OnsITe-Data - 1 Static IP 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Anti-Virus 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Firewall 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Data Backup 10G 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - VPN 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - WLAN - 1 SSID Business 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

Total* $99.00 $169.94
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood (Street
and Fleet

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 21 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
STREET AND FLEET  INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City of Wildwood (Street and Fleet

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

410 grey ST Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood (Street
and Fleet

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 22 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
STREET AND FLEET PHONE, INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City of Wildwood (Street and Fleet

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

410 grey ST Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 23 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
STREET AND FLEET PHONE, INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

3YR 4 Full Featured Lines w/ multi service 1 $0.00 $159.80 $159.80 36

3YR 10M x 1M Bundled 1 $0.00 $55.00 $55.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Up to 4PC 3YR 1 $99.00 $94.99 $94.99 36

OnsITe-Data - 1 Static IP 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Anti-Virus 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Firewall 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - VPN 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - WLAN - 1 SSID Business 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

Total* $99.00 $309.79
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions

Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood (Street
and Fleet

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 24 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
STREET AND FLEET PHONE, INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City of Wildwood

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

1290 Industrial DR Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 25 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
WASTER WATER  ONSITE TECH  AND INTERNET ONLY

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City of Wildwood

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

1290 Industrial DR Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 26 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
WASTER WATER  ONSITE TECH  AND INTERNET ONLY

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

3YR 18M x 2M 1 $0.00 $119.95 $119.95 36

OnsITe-Data - Up to 10PC 3YR 1 $99.00 $199.99 $199.99 36

OnsITe-Data - 1 Static IP 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Anti-Virus 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Firewall 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Data Backup 20G 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - WLAN - 1 SSID Business 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

Total* $99.00 $319.94
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 27 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
WASTER WATER  ONSITE TECH  AND INTERNET ONLY

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight



Service Agreement
Terms and Conditions

This Bright House Networks Business Solutions Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) is between
customer identified below ("Customer") and Bright House Networks ("Operator").

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Information

Bright House Networks Business Solutions Contact: Gustavo Moronta 646
Telephone: 407-215-5747
Facsimile: 407-513-4851

Customer Information
Customer Name Account Number Federal Tax ID

City of Wildwood

Customer Address Suite City State ZIP

1290 Industrial DR Wildwood FL 34785

Customer Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Billing Contact Phone Fax

Service Agreement

The terms and conditions of the Services Agreement are available at www.brightbiz.com/legal.aspx, a
copy of which will be provided to customer upon request. Such terms and conditions are incorporated
herein by this reference. By executing this Services Agreement where indicated below, Customer
acknowledges that (1) customer accepts and agrees to be bound by all terms of the Services
Agreement, including section 21 thereof, which provides that the parties desire to resolve disputes
relating to the Bright House Networks Business Solutions services agreement through arbitration; (2) by
agreeing to arbitration, customer is giving up various rights, including the right to trial by jury, and (3) all
applicable Service Orders.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 28 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
WASTE WATER PHONE, INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle



Video, Data, and Business Solutions
Customer Service Order

Client Information
Business Name Account Number

City of Wildwood

Contact Phone Fax

Alice Borrack 352-330-1330 --

Service Address Suite City State ZIP

1290 Industrial DR Wildwood FL 34785

Billing Address Suite City State ZIP

Account Executive Phone Fax

Gustavo Moronta 646 407-215-5747 407-513-4851

Federal Tax ID Tax Exempt Certificate Tax Exempt Status

Federal State Local Othergfedc gfedc gfedc gfedc

Order Information

Order Type Proposed Install Date

Entity Type Customer Type

Current LEC LEC BTN

Account Authorization

Additional Order Comments

3. f. 8. 
Page 29 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
WASTE WATER PHONE, INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle



Services, Fees, and Terms

Services Selected Quantity

One
Time

Charge

Monthly
Recurring

Fee

Monthly
Recurring

Total*

Initial
Service
Period
Months

3YR 5 Full Featured Lines w/ multi service 1 $0.00 $199.75 $199.75 36

3YR 18M x 2M Bundled 1 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Up to 10PC 3YR 1 $99.00 $199.99 $199.99 36

OnsITe-Data - 1 Static IP 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Anti-Virus 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - Firewall 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - VPN 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

OnsITe-Data - WLAN - 1 SSID Business 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 36

Total* $99.00 $499.74
*Prices do not include applicable taxes and governmental fees that must be paid by Customer in addition to the specified fees.

The services, products, prices and terms identified on this Service Order constitute Bright House
Networks Business Solutions’ offer to provide such services on such terms. Until customer has
accepted this offer by signing as appropriate below, Bright House Networks Business Solutions
reserves the right to rescind this offer at any time, at its sole discretion.

This Service Order shall be renewable for successive terms unless at least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of the then-current term, either party notifies the other party of such party’s intent not to
renew this Service Order. Service Order terms and corresponding monthly billing will commence on
actual service installation date.

Business TV is delivered on a month to month basis and subject to annual rate increases.

Business Solutions customers will receive a complimentary WiFi Hotspot with any new Broadband
Internet Services ordered unless otherwise noted above.

Authorized Signature for Bright House Networks
Business Solutions Authorized Signature for City of Wildwood

Printed Name and Title Printed Name and Title

Date Signed Date Signed

3. f. 8. 
Page 30 of 30

plaw
Typewritten Text
WASTE WATER PHONE, INTERNET AND ONSITE TECH

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Highlight

plaw
Highlight



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Survey along CSX property 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

Commission approval of a $4,800 expenditure for a survey 
along the CSX right of way enabling the City to enter into a 
long-term lease with CSX for that portion of property (Staff 
recommends approval). 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: January 14, 2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: $4,800, plus engineering consultant costs under existing contract 
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
TBD 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT: TBD 
 N/A  

                                                                                                   
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
 
Staff have meet with CSX Transportation (CSXT) regarding a portion of the CSX right-of-way that 
extends from the north boundary of parcel G06=069 (SNJ Discount Beverages) to the south boundary 
of parcel G06C001 (Seaboard Systems Railroad). 
 
Historically, this area behind the various businesses along Main Street (US 301) has been used for 
parking and access to those buildings.  Additionally, the City has constructed and maintained a 
vehicular roadway, Rutland Street, behind a portion of those buildings (115 N. Main Street to 115 S. 
Main Street).  Further, there is an empty lot south of the CSX depot (parcel G06L005), which is owned 
by the railroad but is regularly used by the public for parking. 
 
Moving forward with the survey and subsequent lease agreement with CSXT will ensure that 
businesses on the west side of US 301 in the downtown area maintain adequate access to their 
facilities and provide enough parking to attract customers to the downtown area.  Customers coming 
to downtown, particularly from the Villages, are less inclined to walk long distances to park and 
retrieve their vehicle.  The decommissioning of Rutland Street would result in lost parking along its 
connecting side streets (Wonders and Oxford Streets) because those streets would become dead-
ends without a means to turn around. 
 
Given the timing of CSXT’s proposed increase in train traffic, the City has a unique window of 
opportunity to engage the railroad in discussions on this matter (such opportunity may not present 
itself again for a significant time).  Failure to act could result in irreparable economic harm to the City’s 
downtown businesses, further eroding the City’s tax base and tax receipt revenue. 
 
During the current negotiations with CSXT on this matter, their insurance department has agreed to 
accept the City’s insurance certificate and levels of coverage in order to proceed with a long-term 
lease.  Due to the cost of additional insurance as would otherwise be required by CSXT from private 
companies/individuals, previous attempts at negotiating a lease with CSXT were unsuccessful. 

B. 1 AND 3. f. 9. 
Page 1 of 4



 
Staff and
the subje
render a
Wildwood
to begin
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 

 

d CSXT belie
ect property
a legal desc
d and CSXT
 the proces

Peavy, Direc
ment Service

eve it is in t
, and to tha

cription that 
T.  Staff is r
ss .   

ctor 
es Departme

heir mutual 
at end Staff 

would beco
requesting 

 

ent 

interest to c
have sough

ome the bas
approval of

come to an a
ht a quote f
sis of a lon
f the expen

agreement o
for a survey
ng-term leas
nditure for t

on a long-te
y of the subj
se between 
the cost of 

erm lease of 
ject area to 
the City of 
the survey 

B. 1 AND 3. f. 9. 
Page 2 of 4



STATE CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 

SERVING NORTH CENTRAL FLORIDA SINCE 1988 

WWW.RMBARRINEAU.COM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
January 2, 2013 
 
Richard V. Busche, P.E. 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc 
1823 Southeast Fort King Street, Suite 200 
Ocala, FL 34471 
 
 
RE:  City of Wildwood CSX Route 
 Approximately 1500 linear feet 
 
 
Rick, 
 
Thank you for considering R.M. Barrineau & Associates. After reviewing materials from our office, I have 
determined a fee of $4,800.00 for the requested services. This will include the following tasks on the area as 
listed below in Sumter County, Florida: 

 
 

• Specific Purpose Survey:         
 

• All improvements within designated corridor and five feet east of the eastern right of 
way line of the CSX railroad. 

• Survey will be done in Florida West State Plane Coordinate System (NAD 83).   
• All easements depicted on survey as furnished by client or platted 
• Location of all visible utilities 
• Vertical datum will be on NAVD 1988 
• Full right of way and existing conditions along contiguous roadways  
• The survey will cover from the eastern rail to the eastern right of way line of the CSX 

rail road starting at the north boundary of G06=069 (SNJ Discount Beverages) north 
to the south boundary of G06 C001 (Seaboard Systems Railroad).  

• Any monumentation evidence of existing rights-of-way along the route will be located. 
The rights-of-way along the route are being claimed by plats recorded, right of way 
maps and/or deeds.  

 
• Maintenance Map:   
 

• Existing conditions for specified area as defined by the City of Wildwood. 
 

 

Reginald M. Barrineau, P.S.M., Founder 

Oakhurst Professional Park + 1309 S.E. 25th Loop + Suite 103 + Ocala, Florida 34471 
PHONE (352) 622-3133 + FAX (352) 369-3771 + rmbarrineau.com 

Christopher J. Howson, P.S.M., C.F.M. + Travis P. Barrineau, P.S.M. 
 

B. 1 AND 3. f. 9. 
Page 3 of 4



STATE CERTIFIED MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 

SERVING NORTH CENTRAL FLORIDA SINCE 1988 

WWW.RMBARRINEAU.COM 

 

 

 
Once the proposal is authorized, we anticipate a completion date of three weeks subsequent to.  The 
requested services will be delivered in an electronic drawing file in Civil 3D 2013 format and plotted 24”x36” 
maps. Upon completion an invoice will be delivered with the final map and drawing file. Payment will be due 
within 30 days of the invoice date.  
 
Terms of this proposal are valid for 30 days from date of proposal. If you have any questions regarding this 
proposal, or for any further information, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

Chris Howson 
Chris Howson, P.S.M.,  
Vice President of Operations 
R.M. Barrineau & Associates, Inc. 
 

 

B. 1 AND 3. f. 9. 
Page 4 of 4



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
F.S. § 1
necessar
governm
 
Staff has
that due 
changes 
 
Staff is 
Opportu
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 
 

CITY

CT: Let

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS

63.3191 req
ry to reflec
ents are req

s engaged in
to the City

to the City’s

seeking ap
unity. 

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

tter to the 

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 

quires local 
t changes 

quired to not

n discussion 
y’s recent p
s Comprehe

pproval to s

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

Departmen
 

Approva

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

governmen
in state sta
ify the state 

with the De
planning initi
nsive Plan a

send the at

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

nt of Econo

al to Send th

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

nts to determ
atutes in pa
land plannin

epartment of 
iatives and 
are unnecess

ttached lett

ITY OF W

MARY 

omic Oppo

he Letter to
Oppor

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

mine if com
art since th
ng agency o

Economic O
major ame
sary under F

ter to the F

WILDWOO

ortunity 

o the Depar
rtunity 

TING: J
ting  

 

 
e:   

mprehensive 
he last upd
of its determi

Opportunity 
ndments ov
F.S. § 163.3

Florida Dep

OD 

rtment of Ec

January 14, 

plan amend
date of its 
ination. 

and it has b
ver the last 
3191. 

partment of 

conomic 

2013 

dments are 
plan. Local 

been agreed 
few years, 

Economic 

3.g.1. 
Page 1 of 2



 
 
 
 
 
Janu
 
Mr. R
Plan 
Depa
Divis
107 E
Talla
 
RE:  
 
Mr. E
 
Pleas
comp
 
In 20
of W
Com
were
Depa
suffi
 
Neve
and t
also 
belie
will r
 
Shou
 
Jason
Deve
 (352
jmch
 
Rega
 
 
 
 
May
City 
 
 
 

ary 14, 2013 

Ray Eubanks 
Processing A

artment of Ec
sion of Comm
East Madison
ahassee, FL 3

Evaluation a

Eubanks, 

se accept th
prehensive pl

010, the City 
Wildwood ado
mprehensive P
e underway 
artment of C
ciency. 

ertheless, the 
the City has 
will be tran

eves its Comp
re-evaluate th

uld there be an

n McHugh 
elopment Serv
2) 330-1330 x
hugh@wildwo

ards, 

or Ed Wolf 
of Wildwood

 
 

Administrator
conomic Oppo
munity Develo
n Street, MSC
2399-4120 

and Appraisal 

his letter as 
lan pursuant t

completed a 
opted and su

Plan to the sta
in Chapter 

Community A

EAR identifi
adopted two 

nsmitting its 
prehensive Pl
he Comprehen

ny questions p

vices Coordin
x 112 
ood-fl.gov  

d 

ortunity 
opment 

C-160 

of the City’s

notification 
o F.S. 163.31

rewrite of its
ubmitted its E
ate land plann
163, Florida

Affairs no lon

ied opportuni
major amen

10-Year Wat
lan is in com
nsive Plan du

please contac

nator 

s Comprehens

of the City
191(1).  

s Comprehen
Evaluation a

ning agency. D
a Statues an
nger had the

ities for amen
ndments since
ter Supply P

mpliance with
uring the next 

ct: 

sive Plan  

’s intent to 

nsive Plan. In
and Appraisal
During this ti

nd the City 
e authority to

ndments to th
e the EAR w
Plan this mon
h current statu

scheduled EA

not modify 

n May of 201
l Report (EA
ime, significa
was notified

o review the

he Comprehen
was submitted

nth. As such
utory require
AR in 2018. 

the local 

1, the City 
AR) of the 
ant changes 
d that the 
e EAR for 

nsive Plan, 
d. The City 
h, the City 
ements and 
   

3.g.1. 
Page 2 of 2



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
CSX Tra
upcoming

 P
 D
 S
 P

 
CSXT ha
Departm
 
Staff and
necessar
inquiries 
for a pub
 

Melanie 
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: CS

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS

ansportation
g changes to

Projected inc
Double main 
Speed increa
Public educat

as requested
ent) also att

d CSXT beli
ry officials b
from the pu

blic worksh

Peavy, Direc
ment Service

Y COMMIS

X Request

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 

 (CSXT) ha
o rail operat
rease in trai
line constru

ase in Wildwo
tion and awa

d that repres
end. 

eve it is ess
be fully info
ublic.  Staff i
hop in Janua

ctor 
es Departme

SSION OF

EXECUT

t for Comm
Commissio
and depart
rail operati

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

as requeste
ions within t
n traffic on S
ction 
ood 
areness 

sentatives fr

sential that p
rmed on th
is seeking g
ary, so that

 

ent 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

mission Wo
on to set a d
tment head
ons (Board

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

ed a workin
he City of W
S Line 

rom Sumter 

prior to sche
e planned c
guidance fr
t a public m

ITY OF W

MARY 

orkshop 
date for a C

ds affected 
d Option). 

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

ng session 
Wildwood.  To

County who

eduling a pu
changes so
rom the Com

meeting can 

WILDWOO

Commission
by the plan

TING: J
ting  

 

 
e:   

with city o
opics include

o also repre

ublic meeting
o they are p
mmission o
be held late

OD 

n workshop
nned chang

January 14, 

officials to d
e: 

esent the Cit

g on this iss
prepared to 
on an accep
er next mon

p with CSX 
es to CSX 

2013 

discuss the 

ty (i.e., Fire 

sue that the 
respond to 

ptable date 
nth. 

3. g. 2. 
Page 1 of 2



1 1/7/2013 12:00 PM"Pam Law"

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

January 2013
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28

February 2013

January 2013
D
ec
 3
0 
‐ J
an

 5

Dec 30 31 Jan 1, 13 2 3 4 5

 HOLIDAY ‐ New Year's Eve

Ja
n 
6 
‐ 1

2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

 Gene ‐ Vacation (Jan. 7‐11)
6:00 PM Parks & Recreation Boa
6:00 PM Wildwood Historical As
6:30 PM Wildwood Historical As

Ja
n 
13

 ‐ 
19

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

 7:00 PM Commission Meeting 6:00 PM Wildwood Business Cou  4‐8 PM‐Teen Court (Commission

Ja
n 
20

 ‐ 
26

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

 HOLIDAY‐MLK, Jr. Day (City Clos

Ja
n 
27

 ‐ 
Fe
b 
2

27 28 29 30 31 Feb 1 2

 7:00 PM Commission Meeting

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

3. g. 2. 
P

age 2 of 2



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1211-02 Oxford Assisted Living Facility and Memory Care Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1211-02) to construct a three-story 
54,128 sq. ft. (162,384 GFA) building for a 103 suite Assisted 
Living and Memory Care facility (A portion of parcel D08=005, 
Lot 4 of the Oxford Greens Plat).  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 1/14/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission to construct a three-story, 54,128 
sq. ft. (162,384 GFA) building for a 103 suite Assisted Living and Memory Care facility (80 single units, 
23 double units, 126 total beds) with associated improvements that will be used throughout the Oxford 
Greens subdivision.  Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan, subject to approval, exemption 
or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction; and subject to approval 
of the land use change (case CP 1210-02, O2012-28) and rezoning (case RZ 1210-02, O2012-29) 
ordinances heard earlier today. 
 
Case SP 1211-02 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
December 4, 2012.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Site Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 





ALF/Memory Care
Lot 4

Oxford ALF/Memory Care
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Location Map

D08=005
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 420 840

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

 - O
xfo

rd 
AL

F-M
em

ory
 C

are
.m

xd
 - 1

1/2
1/2

01
2 3

:00
:05

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

Legend
ALF/Memory Care

Oxford Greens

City of Wildwood










	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Important Dates
	Presentation of Placque to Commissioner Ronald B. Allen
	A.1. CP 1211-01
	1.a.
	Ordinance No. O2012-26

	1.b.
	Ordinance No. O2012-27

	1.c.
	Ordinance No. O2012-28

	1.d.
	Ordinance No. O2012-29

	1.e.
	Ordinance O2013-01

	1.f.
	Ordinance No. O2013-02

	2.f.1.
	2.f.2.
	2.f.3.
	Proclamation

	2.f.4.
	3.a.1. Minutes of Special Called Workshop Meeting held on December 3, 2012
	3.a.2. Minutes of Regular Meeting held on December 10, 2012
	3.b.1.
	Ordinance No. O2013-03

	3.b.2.
	Ordinance No. O2013.04
	3.b.2.a.

	3.c.1.a.
	3.c.1.b.
	3.c.1.c. Resolution No. R2013-01
	3.d.1.
	3.e.1. Developer's Agreement - Word Family
	3.f.1. Bills for Approval
	3.f.2.
	3.f.3.
	3.f.4.
	3.f.5.
	3.f.6.
	3.f.7.
	3.f.8.
	B.1.
	3.f.9.
	3.g.1.
	3.g.2.
	3.g.3.

	Button1: 


